
Harvest Best Academy 

Board of Directors Agenda 

May 29, 2024 5:30pm-7:00pm

The board meeting will be held in the library at Harvest Best Academy. 

1. Call Meeting to Order

2. Approval of April Board Minutes (page HBA-2)

3. April Financial Report (page HBA-4)

4. Academic Report (page HBA-39)

a. Academic Goals

5. Approve Revised Bylaws

6. Approve Revised Policies (page HBA-43)

7. Update on Environmental Education Goals (page HBA-226)

8. Update on Timeline for Contract

9. Adjourn Meeting

HBA- 1



Harvest Best Academy 

Board of Director Minutes 

April 23, 2024 

Board members present: Ezra Hyland, Sarah Swanson, DeAndra Knighten, Meghan Roegge, Anura Si-

Asar 

Staff Present: Eric Mahmoud, Emily Peterson 

Meeting called to order at 5:35pm. 

1. Approve March Minutes

a. M. Roegge made a motion to approve the March minutes.

b. Motion seconded by D. Knighten.

c. The minutes for the March board meeting were unanimously approved by the board of

directors.

2. Financial Reports- Rendered by E. Peterson

a. S. Swanson made a motion to approve the March financials.

b. Seconded by D. Knighten.

c. March financial reports were approved unanimously by the board of directors.

3. PTO Buyout

a. Budget of $50,000 for staff PTO buy out. Staff have the option to take a buyout for half their

remaining PTO days and carry over the remaining PTO.

b. By June meeting, E. Mahmoud wants to create a PTO Buyout plan for the 2024-2025 school

year.

c. M. Roegge made a motion to approve a 50% PTO buyout and rollover the remaining 50%

PTO.

d. Seconded by S. Swanson.

e. Motion was unanimously approved by the board of directors.

4. Approval of 990’s

a. S. Swanson made a motion to approve the 990s for HBA and the Affiliated Building

Company.

b. Seconded by M. Roegge.

c. Motion was unanimously approved by the board of directors.

5. Academic Report- Rendered by E. Mahmoud

a. MCA data is similar to last school year’s data.

b. A big issue that needs to be addressed next school year is student attendance.

HBA- 2



6. Board Policies

a. Board members will approve the revised Policy Manual at the May meeting.

b. E. Peterson will schedule a couple of sessions so board members can ask questions

about the revised policies.

7. Osprey Wilds Board Meeting Feedback

a. Academic Goals should be in the context of Exhibit G.

b. HBA should talk about board trainings during board meeting.

c. HBA should ensure to follow Open Meeting laws.

8. Osprey Wilds HBA Contract Completion Work Plan

a. As part of the contract renewal, HBA has been meeting with Osprey Wilds.

b. By May 15th, HBA needs to review and update Exhibits A-H.

c. HBA will receive new contract from Osprey Wilds before June board meeting. Contract

will be presented for approval at June meeting.

9. Financial Management – FY25

a. Business Manager- Came across candidate at a job fair. If HBA can secure this candidate,

candidate would take some of E. Peterson’s duties as she fills the middle school

principal role for the next 2 years.

10. Closed Meeting
a. Attorney Christian Shafer joined the meeting to review pending litigation.

11. Contracts

a. D. Knighten made a motion to approve the Lavinia contract with 2 days of co-

observations instead of 5 days.

b. Seconded by S. Swanson.

c. Motion was unanimously approved by the board of directors.

12. Phoenix Rising: HBA Comeback Celebration

a. HBA will have a reception on May 17th to thank staff, board members, community

members, and organizations that supported HBA for the last 6 years.

13. Meeting adjourned at 7:00pm.

HBA- 3



Harvest Best Academy 
Minneapolis, MN 
District 4192 

Financial Report 

April 30, 2024 

HBA- 4



Harvest Best Academy 
Minneapolis, Minnesota 

April 30, 2024  
Financial Report 

Table of Contents 

Executive Summary  1 

Financial Dashboard  3 

Balance Sheet  5 

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures  6 

Cash Flow Projection  11 

This financial report is prepared in a modified format in that they exclude footnotes and 
required supplementary information in order to be considered a full set of financial statements. The 
excluded portions will be included in the fiscal year end audited financial statements. The 
accompanying financial report of the school was not subjected to an audit, review, or compilation 
engagement by Creative Planning and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion, a conclusion, nor 
provide any assurance on them.

HBA- 5



 

 

Harvest Best Academy 
Minneapolis, Minnesota 

April 30, 2024  
Financial Report 

Executive Summary 
Summary of Key Financial Indicators 

 Average Daily Membership (ADM) Overview  
o Approved Budget:  707 
o Revised Budget:   680 
o Actual as of 4.24.24:   675.18 

 

 The revised budget projects a budgeted surplus for the year of $794,638.  This would result in a 
projected cumulative fund balance of $4,404,887 or 23.9% of expenditures at fiscal year‐end.  

 
Financial Report Key Points 

 As of month‐end, 83.3% of the year was complete. 

 Revenues received at end of the reporting period – 87.6% 

 Expenditures disbursed at end of the reporting period – 90.2% 

 Cash Balance as of the reporting period is $267,366.  Please see the cash flow projection for 
more detailed information. 

 Prior year Due from MN Department of Education is $203,660 as of the reporting period. 

 Current year state receivable is an estimated $1,406,300 based on the 10% holdback. 

 Federal Aids due to the district from FY23 have been paid in full. 

 Current year Federal grants receivable is currently $73,543 based on expenditures.  

 Payroll deductions and contributions represents insurance expenditures which will be deducted 
from employee payrolls. 

 Salaries and benefits Summer Payable estimate represents the estimated amount owed year to 
date in July 2024 for the final teacher payment of the current contract year. 

 The school was approved for a loan from Propel for $1.2M and these funds were received in 
February.   

 The school was approved for an $850k line of credit through American National which became 
active in April. No draws have been made on the line of credit to date.  

 Currently, Technology Consulting Services, Non‐Instructional Supplies, Technology Supplies, 
Leasehold Improvements, Family Engagement, and Technology Equipment are over budget. 
Details have been sent to school leadership for review. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 
 
 

Prepared by Creative Planning 1

HBA- 6



Supplemental Information 

 Supplemental information is provided to show checks written, receipts posted, and journal
entries completed for the current month.

Please contact kelly.rimpila@creativeplanning.com should you have any questions related to the financial report. 

Prepared by Creative Planning 2

HBA- 7



Resources to Operate Programs (Revenues): Funds Used to Provide Programs and Services (Expenses):
Revised Budget Revised Budget
Year to Date 87.6% Year to Date 90.2%
Balance 12.38% 9.79%

Where funds will come from to operate the school:

$16,847,609 $16,630,145 $217,464
$2,381,146 $1,803,973

Budgets for the Year

How the money is budgeted to be spent:

Fund Balance History

$19,228,755 $18,434,117 $794,638
Excess / Deficit

Harvest Best Academy
Minneapolis MN

Financial Report Dashboard
As of April 30, 2024

Financial Summary - Budgeted Amounts and Year to Date Activity

State Revenues 
80%

Federal Revenues 
19%

Local Revenues 
1%

Salaries and 
Benefits

49%

Purchased Services
28%

Supplies and 
Materials

6%

Equipment
2% Wakanda Virtual 

Academy
7%

Programs and 
Committees

5%

Other
0%

Federal Grants
3%

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

(1,000,000)

0

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

18-19 19-20 20-21 21-22 22-23

Annual Surplus/Deficit Fund Balance % of Expenditures

Year to 
Date

Year 
to 

Date

90%
88%

Prepared by Creative Planning 3

HBA- 8



Harvest Best Academy
Minneapolis MN

Financial Report Dashboard
As of April 30, 2024

Current Year Financial Trend

Current Year Student Enrollment Summary

Enrollment History

Management has elected to omit substantially all disclosures,  government-wide financial statements,  and required supplementary information. 
No CPA provides any assurance on these financial statements.

 600.00

 620.00

 640.00

 660.00

 680.00

 700.00

 720.00

8/30 9/30 10/31 11/30 12/31 1/31 2/29 3/31 4/30 5/31 6/30

ADM (Funding) Budgeted Enrollment

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
Revenues Expenses Year to Date

 -

 100.00

 200.00

 300.00

 400.00

 500.00

 600.00

 700.00

 800.00

13-14 14-15 15-16 16-17 17-18 18-19 19-20 20-21 21-22 22-23

Kind 1 - 3 4 - 6 7 - 8

Prepared by Creative Planning 4

HBA- 9



Audited Balance              
July 1, 2023

Balance at End of 
the Month

Assets
101-00 Checking 356,065$                267,366$             
115 Accounts receivable 29,869 24,469
115 Accounts receivable - ERC 578,743 2,000,000
115 Accounts receivable - Mahmoud pledge 10,649 10,649
118 Due from Other Funds 56,607 - 
118 Due from Building Company 13,482 285,307
121 Due from MN Department of Education 2,253,943 203,660

  Current year state holdback receivable 1,406,300
122 Federal aids due from MDE 1,133,259 - 

  Current year federal grant receivable 73,543
131 Prepaid expenses and deposits 121,930 40,116
131 SEED Security Deposits 139,285 139,285

Total all assets 4,693,832$            4,450,695$          

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Current liabilities

201 Salaries and wages payable 203,921$                -$  
215 Payroll deductions and contributions 108,418 (43,649)

Salaries and Benefits Summer Payable estimate 279,116
205 Due to Other Funds 56,607 - 
206 Accounts payable 714,637 387,515                

Total liabilities 1,083,583$            622,982$             

Fund balance
Fund balance July 1st 3,610,249$            3,610,249$          
Net income to date 217,464

Total fund balance 3,610,249 3,827,713

Total liabilities and fund balance 4,693,832$            4,450,695$          

Harvest Best Academy
Minneapolis, MN

Balance Sheet
As of April 30, 2024

Management has elected to omit substantially all disclosures, government-wide financial statements and required 
supplementary information.  No CPA provides any assurance on these financial statements.

Prepared by Creative Planning 5

HBA- 10



Months 10.00              83.3%

Approved 
Budget

Revised 
Budget April 

 Year to Date 
Totals 

2023-2024 2023-2024 2024 Activity  2023-2024 

707 680 675.18 

Total All Funds
Revenues

State Revenues 15,186,674$    15,371,155$    1,275,930$     12,759,296$    83.0%
Federal Revenues 2,966,681        3,011,700        224,485          2,420,731        80.4%
Local Revenues 28,400             272,900           409                 1,368,357        501.4%
Food Service Revenues 572,000           573,000           -                      299,225           52.2%

Total Revenues 18,753,755$    19,228,755$    1,500,823$     16,847,609      87.6%
check 18,753,755$         19,228,755$         1,500,823$          16,847,609           

Expenditures
Salaries and Benefits 9,958,303$      9,014,390$      754,407$        7,539,471$      83.6%
Purchased Services 5,312,174        5,093,887        715,034          4,687,909        92.0%
Supplies and Materials 1,084,944        1,084,944        85,793            889,992           82.0%
Equipment 256,172           399,939           7,106              522,596           130.7%
Wakanda Virtual Academy 1,041,540        1,388,605        124,173          1,576,974        113.6%
Programs and Committees 319,219           919,268           58,913            866,234           94.2%
Other 31,414             33,295             41,383            126,236           379.2%
Federal Grants 635,600           499,790           23,267            420,731           84.2%

Total Expenditures 18,639,366$    18,434,117$    1,810,076$     16,630,145      90.2%
check 18,639,366$         18,434,117$         1,810,076$          16,630,145           

Net effect of Operations - All Funds 114,389$         794,638$         (309,253)$       217,464           
Beginning Fund Balance 3,610,249$      3,610,249$      
Ending Fund Balance 3,724,638$      4,404,887$      

Fund Balance % of Expenditures 20.0% 23.9%

Harvest Best Academy
Minneapolis, MN

Statement of Revenue and Expenditures
As of April 30, 2024

Enrollment (Average Daily Membership)

Percent of 
Revised 
Budget

Management has elected to omit substantially all disclosures, government-wide financial statements and required supplementary information. No CPA provides any assurance 
on these financial statements.

Prepared by Creative Planning 6

HBA- 11



Months 10.00              83.3%

Approved 
Budget

Revised 
Budget April 

 Year to Date 
Totals 

2023-2024 2023-2024 2024 Activity  2023-2024 

Harvest Best Academy
Minneapolis, MN

Statement of Revenue and Expenditures
As of April 30, 2024

Percent of 
Revised 
Budget

General fund - 01
Revenues

State Revenues
211 General Education Aid 7,989,563$      7,866,589$      564,998$        6,584,737$      83.7%
335-300 Q Comp Aid 173,837           158,168           -                      30,431             19.2%
212 Literacy Incentive Aid 44,201             34,600             -                      31,140             90.0%
201 Endowment Fund Apportionment 28,676             34,063             -                      35,370             103.8%
348 Charter School Lease Aid 839,284           928,472           -                      323,770           34.9%
317 Long Term Facilities Maintenance Revenue 96,518             93,271             -                      -                       0.0%
360 Special Education & ADSIS Aid 5,994,595        6,195,992        566,357          4,347,549        70.2%
Supplemental Aid -                       20,000             -                      -                       0.0%
Student Support Aid (begin FY24) -                       20,000             -                      -                       0.0%
School Library Aid (begin FY24) 20,000             20,000             -                      -                       0.0%

Estimated State Holdback Amount -                       -                       144,574          1,406,300        
Total State Revenues 15,186,674      15,371,155      1,275,930       12,759,296      83.0%

Federal Revenues
419, 425 Special Education Aid 154,700$         135,876$         3,563$            81,149$           59.7%
401 Federal Title I Program 376,300           289,286           24,752            308,871           106.8%
414 Federal Title II Program 51,600             30,580             (3,830)             26,750             87.5%
417 Federal Title III Program 24,600             22,470             -                      -                       0.0%
433 Federal Title IV Program 28,400             21,578             -                      -                       0.0%
160/161 ESSER Funding -                       -                       -                      3,960               0.0%
Employee Retention Credit 3,000,000        3,000,000        250,000          2,500,000        83.3%
Employee Retention Credit Fee @ 20% (715,719)          (600,000)          (50,000)           (500,000)         83.3%
099 E-Rate Reimbursements 46,800             46,800             -                      -                       0.0%
ECF Funding -                       65,110             -                      -                       0.0%

Total Federal Revenues 2,966,681$      3,011,700$      224,485$        2,420,731        80.4%

Local Revenues
050 Student Fees 5,500$             5,500$             -$                    -$                     0.0%
071 Third Party Billing 1,900               1,800               -                      -                       0.0%
092 Interest Earnings -                       -                       409 11,612             0.0%
093 Rental Fees 21,000             15,600             -                      14,888             95.4%
096 Donations and Gifts -                       250,000           -                      85,000             34.0%
099 Miscellaneous Revenues -                       -                       -                      15,283             0.0%
639 Loan Proceeds -                       -                       -                      1,200,000        0.0%
Receipts Missing Backup -                       -                       -                      41,575             0.0%

Total Local Revenues 28,400             272,900           409                 1,368,357        501.4%

Total Revenues 18,181,755$    18,655,755$    1,500,823$     16,548,384      88.7%

Management has elected to omit substantially all disclosures, government-wide financial statements and required supplementary information. No CPA provides any assurance 
on these financial statements.

Prepared by Creative Planning 7

HBA- 12



Months 10.00              83.3%

Approved 
Budget

Revised 
Budget April 

 Year to Date 
Totals 

2023-2024 2023-2024 2024 Activity  2023-2024 

Harvest Best Academy
Minneapolis, MN

Statement of Revenue and Expenditures
As of April 30, 2024

Percent of 
Revised 
Budget

Expenditures
100 Salaries and Wages 3,892,350$      3,181,722$      252,593$        2,614,209$      82.2%
200 Employee Benefits 1,008,087        846,943           55,074            672,414           79.4%
Projected Summer Salaries and Benefits Payable -                       -                       13,323            126,567           

Total Salaries and Benefits 4,900,437$      4,028,665$      320,989$        3,413,190        84.7%
305 Contracted Services 939,036           909,476           137,470          986,197           108.4%
315 Technology Consulting Services 90,000             90,000             440                 99,942             111.1%
320 Communications Services 130,800           80,000             4,260              42,361             53.0%
329 Postage 11,000             10,800             2,153              8,018               74.2%
330 Utilities 236,000           236,000           22,559            221,062           93.7%
335 Short Term Rentals 20,400             26,658             2,775              28,840             108.2%
340 Property and Liability Insurance 90,000             70,000             12,581            60,514             86.5%
350 Repairs and Maintenance Costs 420,000           200,000           4,547              104,627           52.3%
360 Contracted Transportation 1,167,297        1,211,858        189,495          977,958           80.7%
366/389 Staff Travel/Training/Tuition 50,000             50,000             9,473              42,526             85.1%
369 Field Trips and Other Student Fees 50,000             10,000             639                 4,235               42.4%
348-570 Building Lease - rent portion 932,538           1,034,035        85,675            859,576           83.1%
348-570 Building Lease - maintenance portion 122,103           308,560           33,924            339,244           109.9%
401 Supplies - Non Instructional 83,700             83,700             4,445              104,105           124.4%
401 Supplies - Maintenance 87,516             87,516             5,139              54,296             62.0%
405 Non-Instructional Software/License Fees 73,350             73,350             -                      62,316             85.0%
406 Instructional Software License Agreements 74,178             74,178             62                   60,455             81.5%
430/460 Instructional Supplies/Curriculum 118,600           117,600           60                   99,051             84.2%
455/465/456/466 Technology Supplies 20,000             20,000             -                      25,848             129.2%
461 Standardized Tests 21,100             21,100             -                      11,100             52.6%
490 Food Purchased 25,000             25,000             1,783              9,440               37.8%
520 Leasehold Improvements -                       100,000           -                      146,485           146.5%
530 Equipment Purchased -                       -                       -                      10,885             0.0%
555/6 Technology Equipment 156,000           156,000           4,000              276,655           177.3%
ECF Technology Equipment (100% reimbursed) -                       65,110             -                      65,110             100.0%
560 Technology Leases 95,472             74,129             2,645              21,533             29.1%
580 Capital Equipment Leases 4,700               4,700               461                 1,929               41.0%
740 Interest Expense 1,834               1,834               7,627              16,807             916.4%
820 Dues and Memberships; Other Fees 29,580             31,461             385                 35,388             112.5%
400 Wakanda Virtual Academy 635,339           847,049           45,851            1,091,623        128.9%
402 Health & Safety Committee 244,219           183,219           17,744            190,502           104.0%
403 Family Engagement and student activities 50,000             50,000             -                      104,859           209.7%
404 TC STEM -                       -                       -                      5,959               0.0%
901 Summer School 25,000             25,000             -                      11,776             47.1%

Subtotal General Program Expenditures 10,905,199      10,306,997      917,183          9,594,413        93.1%

Management has elected to omit substantially all disclosures, government-wide financial statements and required supplementary information. No CPA provides any assurance 
on these financial statements.

Prepared by Creative Planning 8

HBA- 13



Months 10.00              83.3%

Approved 
Budget

Revised 
Budget April 

 Year to Date 
Totals 

2023-2024 2023-2024 2024 Activity  2023-2024 

Harvest Best Academy
Minneapolis, MN

Statement of Revenue and Expenditures
As of April 30, 2024

Percent of 
Revised 
Budget

State Special Education Programs Expenditures
100 Salaries and Wages 3,877,919$      3,834,854$      346,817$        3,249,656        84.7%
200 Benefits 969,480           958,714           69,411            659,408           68.8%
Projected Summer Salaries and Benefits Payable -                       -                       16,058            152,548           

Total Salaries and Benefits 4,847,399$      4,793,568$      432,286$        4,061,613        84.7%
300 Contracted Special Ed Student Services 620,600           424,100           73,715            427,757           100.9%
723 Transportation 206,400           206,400           35,474            135,489           65.6%
728 Homeless Transportation 226,000           226,000           99,854            349,562           154.7%
400 - Supplies and Materials, Dues 3,500               3,500               -                      2,966               84.7%
400 Wakanda Virtual Academy - SPED 406,201           541,556           78,322            485,351           89.6%

422 ADSIS -                       661,049           41,170            553,138           83.7%
335 Q-Comp 173,837           158,168           1,132              47,122             29.8%
419 Federal Special Education Expenditures 154,700           135,876           3,563              81,149             59.7%
401 Title I Program Expenditures 376,300           289,286           24,752            308,871           106.8%
414 Title II Program Expenditures 51,600             30,580             (9,008)             26,750             87.5%
417 Title III Program Expenditures 24,600             22,470             -                      -                       0.0%
433 Title IV Program Expenditures 28,400             21,578             -                      -                       0.0%
ESSER Expenditures -                       -                       3,960              3,960               0.0%
Payments Missing Backup -                       -                       33,371            74,001             0.0%

Total Expenditures 18,024,736      17,821,128      1,735,773       16,152,142      90.6%

Net effect of Operations, General Fund 157,019$         834,627$         (234,949)$       396,242           
Transfer out to Food Service Fund (42,630) (39,989) -                      -                       

Beginning Fund Balance 3,610,249$      3,610,243$      
Ending Fund Balance 3,724,638$      4,404,881$      

Fund Balance % of Expenditures 20.7% 23.9%

Management has elected to omit substantially all disclosures, government-wide financial statements and required supplementary information. No CPA provides any assurance 
on these financial statements.

Prepared by Creative Planning 9

HBA- 14



Months 10.00              83.3%

Approved 
Budget

Revised 
Budget April 

 Year to Date 
Totals 

2023-2024 2023-2024 2024 Activity  2023-2024 

Harvest Best Academy
Minneapolis, MN

Statement of Revenue and Expenditures
As of April 30, 2024

Percent of 
Revised 
Budget

Food Services Fund - 02
Revenues

State & Federal Revenues 572,000$         573,000$         -$                    299,225           52.2%

Total Revenues 572,000$         573,000$         -$                    299,225           52.2%

Expenditures
100 Salaries and Benefits 36,630$           33,989$           -$                    17,547             51.6%
490/495 Food and Milk 572,000           573,000           74,304            460,416           80.4%
401 Supplies 6,000               6,000               -                      -                       0.0%
820 Dues and Memberships; Other Fees -                       -                       -                      40                    0.0%

Total Expenditures 614,630$         612,989$         74,304$          478,003           78.0%

Net effect of Operations, Food Service Fund (42,630)$          (39,989)$          (74,304)$         (178,778)         
Transfer in from General Fund 42,630 39,989 -                      -                       0.0%

Beginning Fund Balance -$                     -$                     
Ending Fund Balance -$                     -$                     

Management has elected to omit substantially all disclosures, government-wide financial statements and required supplementary information. No CPA provides any assurance 
on these financial statements.

Prepared by Creative Planning 10

HBA- 15



Period Ending
State Aid 
Payments

Federal Aid 
Payments

Other 
Receipts ERC Credit

Prior Year 
State/Federal 

Holdback

Line of 
Credit 

Borrowing

Bond Closing 
Proceeds (Down 

Payment on 
Building 

Reimbursement) Total Receipts Net Salaries
Other 

Expenses
Payments on 
Line of Credit

Down 
Payment on 

Building Total Expenses Cash Balance
July 1 Beginning Balance 356,065$      

July 31 995,528 - 11,805 - 896,818 - - 1,904,151      482,388        997,668         - - 1,480,056         780,159        
Aug 31 996,639 - 5,593 - 1,604,122 - - 2,606,354      471,698        1,101,508      - - 1,573,206         1,813,308     
Sept 30 1,103,515      - 6,242 - 549,270 - - 1,659,027      494,497        1,313,027      - - 1,807,524         1,664,810     
Oct 31 1,303,286      - 6,427 - 459,011 - - 1,768,724      549,348        1,232,674      - 200,000 1,982,023         1,451,512     
Nov 30 892,670 - 34,550 - 216,781 - - 1,144,001      558,057        1,434,388      - - 1,992,445         603,068        
Dec 31 1,076,318      281,237         744                - 31 - - 1,358,329      528,002        1,001,046      - - 1,529,048         432,349        
Jan 31 1,019,843      77,489 122,169        - 66,014 - - 1,285,515      513,906        1,030,902      - - 1,544,808         173,056        
Feb 28 1,684,255      86,279 2,327 - 10,643 1,200,000   - 2,983,503 534,732        1,388,341      - - 1,923,073         1,233,486     
Mar 31 1,149,587      104,969         42,333          - -                       -                  - 1,296,889 524,907        1,532,153      - - 2,057,060         473,316        
April 30 1,131,355      65,115 848                - (3,680) - - 1,193,638 521,176        878,412         - - 1,399,588         267,366 
May 31 1,132,714      76,904 6,286 - 153,865 - 200,000 1,569,770 528,853        571,818         - - 1,100,671         736,465 
June 30 1,131,355      143,858         6,286 - - - - 1,281,499 528,853        571,818         - - 1,100,671         917,293 

Totals 13,617,065    835,850         245,610        - 3,952,875 1,200,000   200,000 20,051,400    6,236,417     13,053,755    - 200,000 19,490,172       

Assumptions: 11% State Aid Holdback
22% Federal Aid Holdback

Notes: The State Special Education Aid funding entitlement update took place in February which increased the state aid payments in future months. 
Other Receipts expected are based on our budget and include the $250,000 in donations of which timing of receipt is unknown.
The ERC Credit is still in process and under review by the IRS. It is assumed to be received in June, but there has been no gaurentee by the IRS that it will be paid that
soon. The IRS rep was not able to give the school a timetable. School leadership set up an $850k line of credit in April to help bridge the gap in case there are delays in receiving those funds.
Prior Year State holdback is based on the most recent information from MDE.
Down payment on the building reimbursement is expected in May due to the delay in our bond closing. 
The school has been approved to receive a loan from Propel for $1.2M and these funds were received in February. 
Overall, monthly expenditures are trending high compared to the total budget divided out by 12 months. If the trend continues, it will cause the school to be over budget by year end.

Cash Inflows (Revenues) Cash Outflows (Expenditures)

Harvest Best Academy
Minneapolis MN

Cash Flow Projection Summary
2023-2024 School Year

Management has elected to omit substantially all disclosures, government-wide financial statements and required supplementary information. 
No CPA provides any assurance on these financial statements.

Prepared by Creative Planning 11

HBA- 16



Harvest Best Academy 
Minneapolis, MN 
District 4192 

Supplemental Information 

April 30, 2024 

HBA- 17



r_ap_checkregdv

Detail Payment Register By Vendor
Best Academy Page 1 of 18

5/13/2024
10:46:08

Pmt
Type

Check
NoBankCoCode VendorRcd

Pmt/Void
Date

4mativ Technologies, LLC4297
BP4192 WES

E 01 005 760 720 360 000 $1,030.92FY24: 5% Fee

E 01 005 760 720 360 000 $20,618.32FY24: Parent Stipends April

$21,649.24Paid Amt:PO#: HBA24_20Invoice No:Invoice27998Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $21,649.24

BP4192 WES
E 01 005 760 733 360 000 $1,036.37FY24: Field Trips

$1,036.37Paid Amt:PO#: HBA24_21Invoice No:Invoice28065Voucher #: 4/22/2024
Check Amount: $1,036.37

Vendor Total: $22,685.61

A.Gray Photography5050
Check4192 WES 30223

E 01 010 211 000 401 000 $100.008th Grade Grad Photos

E 01 010 211 000 305 000 $561.258th Grade Grad Photo Session

$661.25Paid Amt:PO#: 9122Invoice No:Invoice27977Voucher #: 4/19/2024
Check Amount: $661.25

Vendor Total: $661.25

A-Dave's Lock & Safe3341
BP4192 WES

E 01 005 810 000 350 000 $587.00FY24: Locksmith Services

$587.00Paid Amt:PO#: 115605Invoice No:Invoice27999Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $587.00

BP4192 WES
E 01 005 810 000 350 000 $933.60FY24: Locksmith Services

$933.60Paid Amt:PO#: 115829Invoice No:Invoice28000Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $933.60

BP4192 WES
E 01 005 810 000 350 000 $40.35FY24: Locksmith Services

$40.35Paid Amt:PO#: 115830Invoice No:Invoice28001Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $40.35

BP4192 WES
E 01 005 810 000 350 000 $38.50FY24: Locksmith Services

$38.50Paid Amt:PO#: 116058Invoice No:Invoice28002Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $38.50

BP4192 WES
E 01 005 810 000 350 000 $374.00FY24: Locksmith Services

$374.00Paid Amt:PO#: 116194Invoice No:Invoice28003Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $374.00

Prepared by Creative Planning

 
 

1

HBA- 18



r_ap_checkregdv

Detail Payment Register By Vendor
Best Academy Page 2 of 18

5/13/2024
10:46:08

Pmt
Type

Check
NoBankCoCode VendorRcd

Pmt/Void
Date

A-Dave's Lock & Safe3341
BP4192 WES

E 01 005 810 000 350 000 $21.38FY24: Locksmith Services

$21.38Paid Amt:PO#: 116445Invoice No:Invoice28004Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $21.38

BP4192 WES
E 01 005 810 000 350 000 $115.48FY24: Locksmith Services

$115.48Paid Amt:PO#: 117183Invoice No:Invoice28005Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $115.48

Vendor Total: $2,110.31

Aja King, Ed.D, LPCC, NCC5019
BP4192 WES

E 01 010 420 740 394 000 $5,270.00King, Aja, Meditation Clubs, 31hrs@$170/hr.

$5,270.00Paid Amt:PO#: 620Invoice No:Invoice28006Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $5,270.00

Vendor Total: $5,270.00

American National Bank5038
Wire4192 WES

E 01 005 112 000 305 000 $245.87Account Analysis Charge

$245.87Paid Amt:PO#: 04.08.24Invoice No:Invoice27978Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $245.87

Wire4192 WES
E 01 005 112 000 305 000 $2,644.00Loan Fees

$2,644.00Paid Amt:PO#: 04.15.24Invoice No:Invoice27997Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $2,644.00

Wire4192 WES
E 01 005 112 000 305 000 $33.00Overdraft Fees

$33.00Paid Amt:PO#: 04.30.24Invoice No:Invoice28080Voucher #: 4/30/2024
Check Amount: $33.00

Vendor Total: $2,922.87

Andee Richert1028
BP4192 WES

E 01 010 401 740 394 000 $3,080.00Richert, Andee, SLP, 28hrs @ $110/hr

$3,080.00Paid Amt:PO#: 03.29.24Invoice No:Invoice27981Voucher #: 4/8/2024
Check Amount: $3,080.00

Vendor Total: $3,080.00

BerganKDV5095
BP4192 WES

E 01 005 113 000 305 000 $9,167.00FY24: Financial Mgmt March 2024

Prepared by Creative Planning

 
 

2

HBA- 19



r_ap_checkregdv

Detail Payment Register By Vendor
Best Academy Page 3 of 18

5/13/2024
10:46:08

Pmt
Type

Check
NoBankCoCode VendorRcd

Pmt/Void
Date

BerganKDV5095
BP4192 WES

E 01 005 113 000 305 000 $1,250.00FY24: Supplemental Payroll

$10,417.00Paid Amt:PO#: 1223093Invoice No:Invoice28019Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $10,417.00

Wire4192 WES
E 01 005 114 000 305 000 $858.00KPay HCM/HR Services

$858.00Paid Amt:PO#: 04.22.24Invoice No:Invoice28081Voucher #: 4/22/2024
Check Amount: $858.00

Vendor Total: $11,275.00

Bill.com5098
Wire4192 WES

E 01 005 112 000 305 000 $195.64Monthly Charge

$195.64Paid Amt:PO#: 04.09.24Invoice No:Invoice27979Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $195.64

Vendor Total: $195.64

Brian Herron Sr.5674
BP4192 WES

E 01 010 420 740 394 000 $1,870.00Herron, Brian, Meditation Clubs, 11hrs@$170/h

$1,870.00Paid Amt:PO#: 602Invoice No:Invoice28007Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $1,870.00

Vendor Total: $1,870.00

Business Essentials4238
BP4192 WES

E 01 005 810 000 401 000 $242.00FY24: ice melt

$242.00Paid Amt:PO#: OE-636965-1Invoice No:Invoice28008Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $242.00

Vendor Total: $242.00

Center for Youth Voice4860
BP4192 WES

E 01 010 203 000 369 000 $558.60FY24: Model United Nations

$558.60Paid Amt:PO#: 84622Invoice No:Invoice28009Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $558.60

Vendor Total: $558.60

Prepared by Creative Planning

 
 

3

HBA- 20



r_ap_checkregdv

Detail Payment Register By Vendor
Best Academy Page 4 of 18

5/13/2024
10:46:08

Pmt
Type

Check
NoBankCoCode VendorRcd

Pmt/Void
Date

Cintas1623
BP4192 WES

E 01 005 720 000 401 000 $39.14Staff breakroom cabinet organized and refilled

$39.14Paid Amt:PO#: 5205590091Invoice No:Invoice28014Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $39.14

Vendor Total: $39.14

Cintas Corporation5586
BP4192 WES

E 01 005 810 000 350 000 $330.00AED Agreement

$330.00Paid Amt:PO#: 9265918847Invoice No:Invoice28015Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $330.00

BP4192 WES
E 01 005 810 000 350 000 $236.92FY24: Janitorial Uniforms and Supplies

$236.92Paid Amt:PO#: 4187749898Invoice No:Invoice28010Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $236.92

BP4192 WES
E 01 005 810 000 350 000 $227.73FY24: Janitorial Uniforms and Supplies

$227.73Paid Amt:PO#: 4188470919Invoice No:Invoice28011Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $227.73

BP4192 WES
E 01 005 810 000 350 000 $227.73FY24: Janitorial Uniforms and Supplies

$227.73Paid Amt:PO#: 4189180819Invoice No:Invoice28012Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $227.73

BP4192 WES
E 01 005 810 000 350 000 $89.78FY24: Restock Cabinets & Trauma Bags

$89.78Paid Amt:PO#: 5204564440Invoice No:Invoice28013Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $89.78

Vendor Total: $1,112.16

Colonial Life1033
BP4192 WES

B 01 215 016 $10,406.86FY24: Life Insurance - March 2024

$10,406.86Paid Amt:PO#: 35863280313416Invoice No:Invoice28016Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $10,406.86

Vendor Total: $10,406.86

Comcast Business1762
BP4192 WES

E 01 005 810 000 320 000 $451.68Acct# 963497898 Internet

$451.68Paid Amt:PO#: 196554131Invoice No:Invoice28017Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $451.68

Prepared by Creative Planning

 
 

4

HBA- 21



r_ap_checkregdv

Detail Payment Register By Vendor
Best Academy Page 5 of 18

5/13/2024
10:46:08

Pmt
Type

Check
NoBankCoCode VendorRcd

Pmt/Void
Date

Comcast Business1762
BP4192 WES

E 01 005 810 000 320 000 $1,700.00Acct#932768440 Internet Services

$1,700.00Paid Amt:PO#: 196172479Invoice No:Invoice28018Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $1,700.00

Vendor Total: $2,151.68

Cross Town Cleaning4391
BP4192 WES

E 01 040 810 000 305 400 $1,500.00FY24: Cedar Ave School

$1,500.00Paid Amt:PO#: 2207Invoice No:Invoice28020Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $1,500.00

BP4192 WES
E 01 005 810 000 305 000 $29,000.00FY24: Janitorial Night Cleaning

$29,000.00Paid Amt:PO#: 2206Invoice No:Invoice28059Voucher #: 4/22/2024
Check Amount: $29,000.00

Vendor Total: $30,500.00

Culligan1622
BP4192 WES

E 01 005 105 000 401 000 $31.23FY24: Bottled Water

$31.23Paid Amt:PO#: 114X96332404Invoice No:Invoice28021Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $31.23

Vendor Total: $31.23

Dalco1699
BP4192 WES

E 01 005 810 000 401 000 $1,371.58FY24: Bldg Supplies

$1,371.58Paid Amt:PO#: 4212337Invoice No:Invoice28022Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $1,371.58

BP4192 WES
E 01 005 810 000 401 000 $462.84FY24: Bldg Supplies

$462.84Paid Amt:PO#: 4219798Invoice No:Invoice28023Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $462.84

BP4192 WES
E 01 005 810 000 401 000 $1,596.28FY24: Bldg Supplies

$1,596.28Paid Amt:PO#: 4219800Invoice No:Invoice28024Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $1,596.28

Prepared by Creative Planning 5

HBA- 22



r_ap_checkregdv

Detail Payment Register By Vendor
Best Academy Page 6 of 18

5/13/2024
10:46:08

Pmt
Type

Check
NoBankCoCode VendorRcd

Pmt/Void
Date

Dalco1699
BP4192 WES

E 01 005 810 000 401 000 $224.20FY24: Bldg Supplies

$224.20Paid Amt:PO#: 4221970Invoice No:Invoice28061Voucher #: 4/22/2024
Check Amount: $224.20

Vendor Total: $3,654.90

Dart Portable Storage, Inc.1704
BP4192 WES

E 01 005 810 000 335 000 $275.00FY24: Storage Unit Rentals

$275.00Paid Amt:PO#: 409793Invoice No:Invoice28025Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $275.00

BP4192 WES
E 01 005 810 000 335 000 $275.00FY24: Storage Unit Rentals

$275.00Paid Amt:PO#: 410088Invoice No:Invoice28026Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $275.00

BP4192 WES
E 01 005 810 000 335 000 $100.00FY24: Storage Unit Rentals

$100.00Paid Amt:PO#: 410176Invoice No:Invoice28027Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $100.00

BP4192 WES
E 01 005 810 000 335 000 $100.00FY24: Storage Unit Rentals

$100.00Paid Amt:PO#: 410482Invoice No:Invoice28028Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $100.00

BP4192 WES
E 01 005 810 000 335 000 $550.00FY24: Storage Unit Rentals

$550.00Paid Amt:PO#: 410526Invoice No:Invoice28029Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $550.00

BP4192 WES
E 01 005 810 000 335 000 $550.00FY24: Storage Unit Rentals

$550.00Paid Amt:PO#: 410919Invoice No:Invoice28030Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $550.00

Vendor Total: $1,850.00

Darul Uloom Center5644
BP4192 WES

E 01 040 203 000 305 400 $3,180.00Remaining Site Agreement 4/1-4/15/24

$3,180.00Paid Amt:PO#: 04.15.24Invoice No:Invoice27995Voucher #: 4/17/2024
Check Amount: $3,180.00

BP4192 WES
E 01 040 203 000 305 400 $2,420.00Site Agreement 4/1-4/15/24

Prepared by Creative Planning

 
 

6

HBA- 23



r_ap_checkregdv

Detail Payment Register By Vendor
Best Academy Page 7 of 18

5/13/2024
10:46:08

Pmt
Type

Check
NoBankCoCode VendorRcd

Pmt/Void
Date

Darul Uloom Center5644
BP4192 WES

E 01 040 810 000 305 400 $750.00Cleaning 4/1-4/15/24

$3,170.00Paid Amt:PO#: 04.15.24Invoice No:Invoice28031Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $3,170.00

Vendor Total: $6,350.00

Done Right Food Services, Inc5037
BP4192 WES

E 02 005 770 701 490 000 $16,718.00FY24: Student Lunches

E 02 005 770 701 305 000 $2,477.54Late Fees

E 02 005 770 705 490 400 $1,412.40FY24: Online Student Breakfast

E 02 005 770 701 490 400 $926.25FY24: Online Student Lunches

E 02 005 770 701 305 400 $200.00FY24: Online Delivery Fee

E 02 005 770 701 495 000 $2,178.00FY24: Student Milk

E 02 005 770 701 495 400 $264.00FY24: Online Student Milk

E 02 005 770 705 490 000 $5,897.74FY24: Student Breakfast

E 02 005 770 701 305 000 $7,142.50FY24: Labor

$37,216.43Paid Amt:PO#: 6362Invoice No:Invoice28032Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $37,216.43

BP4192 WES
E 02 005 770 701 305 000 $2,919.92Late Fees

E 02 005 770 701 305 400 $160.00FY24: Online Delivery Fee

E 02 005 770 701 490 000 $16,250.00FY24: Student Lunches

E 02 005 770 701 495 400 $214.50FY24: Online Student Milk

E 02 005 770 705 490 000 $6,790.00FY24: Student Breakfast

E 02 005 770 701 305 000 $6,492.50FY24: Labor

E 02 005 770 705 490 400 $1,177.00FY24: Online Student Breakfast

E 02 005 770 701 495 000 $1,402.50FY24: Student Milk

E 02 005 770 701 490 400 $1,681.00FY24: Online Student Lunches

$37,087.42Paid Amt:PO#: 6258Invoice No:Invoice28063Voucher #: 4/22/2024
Check Amount: $37,087.42

Vendor Total: $74,303.85

Doug Flieth4217
BP4192 WES

E 01 010 640 316 366 000 $247.90Reimbursement: Mileage for Math Conference

$247.90Paid Amt:PO#: 04.13.24Invoice No:Invoice28056Voucher #: 4/22/2024
Check Amount: $247.90

Prepared by Creative Planning

 
 

7

HBA- 24



r_ap_checkregdv

Detail Payment Register By Vendor
Best Academy Page 8 of 18

5/13/2024
10:46:08

Pmt
Type

Check
NoBankCoCode VendorRcd

Pmt/Void
Date

Doug Flieth4217
BP4192 WES

E 01 010 640 316 366 000 $164.20Reimbursement: Meals during Math Conferenc

$164.20Paid Amt:PO#: 04.13.24Invoice No:Invoice28057Voucher #: 4/22/2024
Check Amount: $164.20

Vendor Total: $412.10

Global Language Connections3332
BP4192 WES

E 01 005 110 000 305 000 $1,850.00Interpreter Services

$1,850.00Paid Amt:PO#: 428662Invoice No:Invoice28033Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $1,850.00

BP4192 WES
E 01 005 110 000 305 000 $1,630.00Interpreter Services

$1,630.00Paid Amt:PO#: 428990Invoice No:Invoice28034Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $1,630.00

Vendor Total: $3,480.00

Greagory A. Burrell5677
BP4192 WES

B 01 215 014 $375.00Garnishment's/Levies

$375.00Paid Amt:PO#: S2024190Invoice No:Invoice27966Voucher #: 4/18/2024
Check Amount: $375.00

Vendor Total: $375.00

Guardian Pest Solutions, Inc4220
BP4192 WES

E 01 005 810 000 350 000 $103.20FY 24 Pest Control Services: 4/3/24

$103.20Paid Amt:PO#: 2559040Invoice No:Invoice28035Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $103.20

Vendor Total: $103.20

GuideOne Insurance Company4706
Wire4192 WES

E 01 005 940 000 340 000 $12,581.25Property / Liablity Ins

$12,581.25Paid Amt:PO#: 04.23.24Invoice No:Invoice28078Voucher #: 4/30/2024
Check Amount: $12,581.25

Vendor Total: $12,581.25

HealthPartners5090
Wire4192 WES

B 01 215 010 $45,597.43Health Ins: May 24

Prepared by Creative Planning

 
 

8

HBA- 25



r_ap_checkregdv

Detail Payment Register By Vendor
Best Academy Page 9 of 18

5/13/2024
10:46:08

Pmt
Type

Check
NoBankCoCode VendorRcd

Pmt/Void
Date

HealthPartners5090
Wire4192 WES

B 01 215 009 $4,126.44Dental Ins: May 24

$49,723.87Paid Amt:PO#: 851058621810Invoice No:Invoice28077Voucher #: 4/30/2024
Check Amount: $49,723.87

Wire4192 WES
E 01 010 203 000 220 000 $223.60EAP: April 2024

$223.60Paid Amt:PO#: 7040114Invoice No:Invoice28079Voucher #: 4/30/2024
Check Amount: $223.60

Vendor Total: $49,947.47

Integrated communications5194
BP4192 WES

E 01 005 810 000 320 000 $2,108.21FY24 Phone Services: April 2024

$2,108.21Paid Amt:PO#: 871583Invoice No:Invoice28036Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $2,108.21

Vendor Total: $2,108.21

Internal Revenue Service1261
Wire4192 WES

B 01 215 002 $23,455.92Federal Withholding

B 01 215 005 $55,232.26FICA

$78,688.18Paid Amt:PO#: S2024190Invoice No:Invoice27975Voucher #: 4/15/2024
Check Amount: $78,688.18

Wire4192 WES
B 01 215 002 $21,491.29Federal Withholding

B 01 215 005 $53,773.06FICA

$75,264.35Paid Amt:PO#: S2024200Invoice No:Invoice28076Voucher #: 4/30/2024
Check Amount: $75,264.35

Vendor Total: $153,952.53

Johnson Controls Security Systems1190
BP4192 WES

E 01 005 810 000 305 000 $1,888.27Qtrly Security Services: 4/1/24 through 6/30/24

$1,888.27Paid Amt:PO#: 39939980Invoice No:Invoice28037Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $1,888.27

Vendor Total: $1,888.27

Prepared by Creative Planning

 
 

9

HBA- 26



r_ap_checkregdv

Detail Payment Register By Vendor
Best Academy Page 10 of 18

5/13/2024
10:46:08

Pmt
Type

Check
NoBankCoCode VendorRcd

Pmt/Void
Date

Julie Whitmore4294
BP4192 WES

E 01 010 420 740 394 000 $5,125.00Whitmore, Julie, Psychologist, 41hrs@$125/hr

$5,125.00Paid Amt:PO#: 2023-2024 MarchInvoice No:Invoice27982Voucher #: 4/8/2024
Check Amount: $5,125.00

Vendor Total: $5,125.00

Levy & Associates1020
BP4192 WES

B 01 215 014 $489.25Garnishment's/Levies

$489.25Paid Amt:PO#: S2024190Invoice No:Invoice27967Voucher #: 4/18/2024
Check Amount: $489.25

Vendor Total: $489.25

Louis J. King II1188
BP4192 WES

B 01 118 000 $5,000.00FY24: Bldg Co Consulting

$5,000.00Paid Amt:PO#: Jan-42Invoice No:Invoice28058Voucher #: 4/22/2024
Check Amount: $5,000.00

Vendor Total: $5,000.00

Lynn Edwards4904
BP4192 WES

E 01 010 420 419 378 000 $3,562.50Edwards, Lynn, Psych, 28.5hrs @ $125/hr

E 01 040 420 740 394 400 $10,687.50Wakanda: Edwards, Lynn, Psych, 85.5hrs @ $

$14,250.00Paid Amt:PO#: 1075Invoice No:Invoice28038Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $14,250.00

Vendor Total: $14,250.00

Men in Black Security5092
BP4192 WES

E 01 005 117 000 305 402 $7,360.00FY24: Security 2/26-3/28/24

$7,360.00Paid Amt:PO#: 2379Invoice No:Invoice28039Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $7,360.00

Vendor Total: $7,360.00

Messerli KramerMKRAM
BP4192 WES

B 01 215 014 $155.89Garnishment's/Levies

$155.89Paid Amt:PO#: S2024190Invoice No:Invoice27968Voucher #: 4/18/2024
Check Amount: $155.89

Prepared by Creative Planning

 
 

10

HBA- 27



r_ap_checkregdv

Detail Payment Register By Vendor
Best Academy Page 11 of 18

5/13/2024
10:46:08

Pmt
Type

Check
NoBankCoCode VendorRcd

Pmt/Void
Date

Messerli KramerMKRAM
BP4192 WES

B 01 215 014 $256.751.31.23 Reissue Stringer xxx-xx-2344

$256.75Paid Amt:PO#: 1.31.23 ReissueInvoice No:Invoice27983Voucher #: 4/8/2024
Check Amount: $256.75

BP4192 WES
B 01 215 014 $256.754.28.23 Reissue Stringer xxx-xx-2344

$256.75Paid Amt:PO#: 4.28.23 ReissueInvoice No:Invoice27984Voucher #: 4/8/2024
Check Amount: $256.75

BP4192 WES
B 01 215 014 $256.756.15.23 Reissue Stringer xxx-xx-2344

$256.75Paid Amt:PO#: 6.15.23 ReissueInvoice No:Invoice27985Voucher #: 4/8/2024
Check Amount: $256.75

BP4192 WES
B 01 215 014 $5.826.30.23 Reissue Stringer xxx-xx-2344

$5.82Paid Amt:PO#: 6.30.23 ReissueInvoice No:Invoice27986Voucher #: 4/8/2024
Check Amount: $5.82

BP4192 WES
B 01 215 014 $155.898.31.23 Reissue Stringer xxx-xx-2344

$155.89Paid Amt:PO#: 8.31.23 ReissueInvoice No:Invoice27987Voucher #: 4/8/2024
Check Amount: $155.89

Vendor Total: $1,087.85

Messianic Care PLLC5587
BP4192 WES

E 01 010 420 740 394 000 $20,000.00FY24: SPED Nursing Services

$20,000.00Paid Amt:PO#: 6656Invoice No:Invoice28040Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $20,000.00

Vendor Total: $20,000.00

Michael Pugh5680
BP4192 WES

E 01 010 420 740 394 000 $2,805.00Pugh, Michael, Meditation Clubs, 16.5hrs@$17

$2,805.00Paid Amt:PO#: 602Invoice No:Invoice28041Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $2,805.00

Vendor Total: $2,805.00

Prepared by Creative Planning

 
 

11

HBA- 28



r_ap_checkregdv

Detail Payment Register By Vendor
Best Academy Page 12 of 18

5/13/2024
10:46:08

Pmt
Type

Check
NoBankCoCode VendorRcd

Pmt/Void
Date

Minnesota Historical Society1470
BP4192 WES

E 01 010 203 000 369 000 $80.00MN State Capitol F/T (10@$8/each)

$80.00Paid Amt:PO#: 29981Invoice No:Invoice28042Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $80.00

Vendor Total: $80.00

MN Child Support Payment Center1066
Wire4192 WES

B 01 215 012 $1,731.30Child Support

$1,731.30Paid Amt:PO#: S2024190Invoice No:Invoice27969Voucher #: 4/15/2024
Check Amount: $1,731.30

Wire4192 WES
B 01 215 012 $1,760.90Child Support

$1,760.90Paid Amt:PO#: S2024200Invoice No:Invoice28070Voucher #: 4/30/2024
Check Amount: $1,760.90

Vendor Total: $3,492.20

MN Dept of Revenue1070
Wire4192 WES

B 01 215 003 $14,523.87MN Withholding

$14,523.87Paid Amt:PO#: S2024190Invoice No:Invoice27973Voucher #: 4/15/2024
Check Amount: $14,523.87

Wire4192 WES
B 01 215 003 $13,813.05MN Withholding

$13,813.05Paid Amt:PO#: S2024200Invoice No:Invoice28074Voucher #: 4/30/2024
Check Amount: $13,813.05

Vendor Total: $28,336.92

MN Levy5658
Wire4192 WES

B 01 215 014 $300.00Garnishment's/Levies

$300.00Paid Amt:PO#: S2024190Invoice No:Invoice27970Voucher #: 4/15/2024
Check Amount: $300.00

Wire4192 WES
B 01 215 014 $100.00Garnishment's/Levies

$100.00Paid Amt:PO#: S2024200Invoice No:Invoice28071Voucher #: 4/30/2024
Check Amount: $100.00

Vendor Total: $400.00

Prepared by Creative Planning

 
 

12

HBA- 29



r_ap_checkregdv

Detail Payment Register By Vendor
Best Academy Page 13 of 18

5/13/2024
10:46:08

Pmt
Type

Check
NoBankCoCode VendorRcd

Pmt/Void
Date

NASSP/NJHS1687
BP4192 WES

E 01 010 203 000 820 000 $385.00NJHS Affiliation 7/1/24-6/30/25

$385.00Paid Amt:PO#: 9001789540Invoice No:Invoice28064Voucher #: 4/22/2024
Check Amount: $385.00

Vendor Total: $385.00

Nebraska Child Support Payment Center4284
BP4192 WES

B 01 215 012 $57.501.31.23 Reissue- Deduction A. Pratt 0677

$57.50Paid Amt:PO#: 1.31.23 ReissueInvoice No:Invoice27988Voucher #: 4/8/2024
Check Amount: $57.50

Vendor Total: $57.50

PERA1072
Wire4192 WES

B 01 215 007 $27,201.56PERA

$27,201.56Paid Amt:PO#: S2024190Invoice No:Invoice27971Voucher #: 4/15/2024
Check Amount: $27,201.56

Wire4192 WES
B 01 215 007 $27,158.65PERA

$27,158.65Paid Amt:PO#: S2024200Invoice No:Invoice28072Voucher #: 4/30/2024
Check Amount: $27,158.65

Vendor Total: $54,360.21

Premium Waters4543
BP4192 WES

E 01 005 110 000 401 000 $323.49Bottled Water

$323.49Paid Amt:PO#: 310039660Invoice No:Invoice28060Voucher #: 4/22/2024
Check Amount: $323.49

Vendor Total: $323.49

Propel Nonprofits3344
Wire4192 WES

E 01 005 920 000 740 000 $7,627.40Interest on LOC

$7,627.40Paid Amt:PO#: 04.16.24Invoice No:Invoice27980Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $7,627.40

Vendor Total: $7,627.40

Prepared by Creative Planning

 
 

13

HBA- 30



r_ap_checkregdv

Detail Payment Register By Vendor
Best Academy Page 14 of 18

5/13/2024
10:46:08

Pmt
Type

Check
NoBankCoCode VendorRcd

Pmt/Void
Date

Quadient Finance USA, Inc.1697
BP4192 WES

E 01 005 110 000 329 000 $1,087.88Postage Acct 7900 0443 7012 4913

$1,087.88Paid Amt:PO#: 03.19.24Invoice No:Invoice28043Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $1,087.88

Vendor Total: $1,087.88

Ratwik, Roszak & Maloney, P.A.4681
BP4192 WES

E 01 005 111 000 305 000 $2,062.50FY24: Legal Services

$2,062.50Paid Amt:PO#: 75555Invoice No:Invoice28044Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $2,062.50

BP4192 WES
E 01 005 111 000 305 000 $2,828.50FY24: Legal Services

$2,828.50Paid Amt:PO#: 75788Invoice No:Invoice28045Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $2,828.50

BP4192 WES
E 01 005 111 000 305 000 $1,722.00FY24: Legal Services

$1,722.00Paid Amt:PO#: 76019Invoice No:Invoice28046Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $1,722.00

Vendor Total: $6,613.00

Republic Services1600
BP4192 WES

E 01 005 810 000 330 000 $3,725.83FY24 Trash Services:  March 2024

$3,725.83Paid Amt:PO#: 0894-006577545Invoice No:Invoice27989Voucher #: 4/8/2024
Check Amount: $3,725.83

Vendor Total: $3,725.83

Salaam Group LLC5699
BP4192 WES

E 01 040 203 000 305 400 $4,500.00Wakanda: Student Coaching

E 01 040 760 720 360 400 $2,200.00Wakanda: Site Agreement & Transportation

$6,700.00Paid Amt:PO#: 2Invoice No:Invoice27996Voucher #: 4/17/2024
Check Amount: $6,700.00

Vendor Total: $6,700.00

SCSU Career Center5701
Check4192 WES 30221

E 01 005 107 000 305 000 $460.00Huskies Job & Internship Fair 2024

$460.00Paid Amt:PO#: 2559Invoice No:Invoice27945Voucher #: 4/3/2024
Check Amount: $460.00

Vendor Total: $460.00

Prepared by Creative Planning

 
 

14

HBA- 31



r_ap_checkregdv

Detail Payment Register By Vendor
Best Academy Page 15 of 18

5/13/2024
10:46:08

Pmt
Type

Check
NoBankCoCode VendorRcd

Pmt/Void
Date

Security Control Systems, Inc.5569
BP4192 WES

E 01 005 108 000 315 000 $440.00FY24: Service Labor, Travel Time

$440.00Paid Amt:PO#: 57466Invoice No:Invoice28047Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $440.00

Vendor Total: $440.00

Seed Daycare1041
BP4192 WES

E 01 005 810 000 330 000 $9,416.50FY24: Utilities

E 01 005 850 348 570 000 $11,949.27FY24: Rent

E 01 005 810 000 350 000 $2,166.67FY24: Parking Lot

E 01 005 810 000 350 000 $14,795.54FY24: Maintenance

$38,327.98Paid Amt:PO#: 04.12.24Invoice No:Invoice27994Voucher #: 4/12/2024
Check Amount: $38,327.98

BP4192 WES
E 01 005 810 000 330 000 $9,416.50FY24: Utilities

E 01 005 850 348 570 000 $11,949.27FY24: Rent

E 01 005 810 000 350 000 $2,166.67FY24: Parking Lot

E 01 005 810 000 350 000 $14,795.54FY24: Maintenance

$38,327.98Paid Amt:PO#: 04.29.24Invoice No:Invoice28066Voucher #: 4/29/2024
Check Amount: $38,327.98

Vendor Total: $76,655.96

SocialStudies.com5065
BP4192 WES

E 01 010 203 000 430 000 $60.09Social Studies Supplies - map rail, hook, shipp

$60.09Paid Amt:PO#: SI193387Invoice No:Invoice28048Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $60.09

Vendor Total: $60.09

Sora Pediatric Therapy1508
BP4192 WES

E 01 010 420 740 394 000 $7,380.00Becker Anderson, Sarah, OT Services, 90hrs@

$7,380.00Paid Amt:PO#: 32824134759Invoice No:Invoice28049Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $7,380.00

Vendor Total: $7,380.00

Prepared by Creative Planning

 
 

15

HBA- 32



r_ap_checkregdv

Detail Payment Register By Vendor
Best Academy Page 16 of 18

5/13/2024
10:46:08

Pmt
Type

Check
NoBankCoCode VendorRcd

Pmt/Void
Date

Spark Youth4365
BP4192 WES

E 01 010 203 000 305 000 $53,000.00FY24: Classroom Instruction Pymt 3 of 4

$53,000.00Paid Amt:PO#: 2134Invoice No:Invoice28050Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $53,000.00

Vendor Total: $53,000.00

State Disbursement Unit5001
BP4192 WES

B 01 215 012 $142.37Child Support

$142.37Paid Amt:PO#: S2024190Invoice No:Invoice27972Voucher #: 4/18/2024
Check Amount: $142.37

BP4192 WES
B 01 215 012 $142.371.31.23 Reissue -A. Tyus 0335

$142.37Paid Amt:PO#: 1/31/23 ReissueInvoice No:Invoice27990Voucher #: 4/8/2024
Check Amount: $142.37

BP4192 WES
B 01 215 012 $142.376.15.23 Reissue -A. Tyus 0335

$142.37Paid Amt:PO#: 6.15.23 ReissueInvoice No:Invoice27991Voucher #: 4/8/2024
Check Amount: $142.37

BP4192 WES
B 01 215 012 $142.376.30.23 Reissue -A. Tyus 0335

$142.37Paid Amt:PO#: 6.30.23 ReissueInvoice No:Invoice27992Voucher #: 4/8/2024
Check Amount: $142.37

BP4192 WES
B 01 215 012 $142.378.31.23 Reissue -A. Tyus 0335

$142.37Paid Amt:PO#: 8.31.23 ReissueInvoice No:Invoice27993Voucher #: 4/8/2024
Check Amount: $142.37

Vendor Total: $711.85

Syand Corporation5084
BP4192 WES

E 01 005 810 000 315 402 $6,187.30FY24: Security Monitoring

$6,187.30Paid Amt:PO#: 56623Invoice No:Invoice28051Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $6,187.30

BP4192 WES
E 01 005 810 000 315 402 $231.25FY24: Remote Support for 10 New Computers

$231.25Paid Amt:PO#: 56694Invoice No:Invoice28052Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $231.25

Prepared by Creative Planning

 
 

16

HBA- 33



r_ap_checkregdv

Detail Payment Register By Vendor
Best Academy Page 17 of 18

5/13/2024
10:46:08

Pmt
Type

Check
NoBankCoCode VendorRcd

Pmt/Void
Date

Syand Corporation5084
BP4192 WES

E 01 005 810 000 315 402 $185.00FY24: Remote Support

$185.00Paid Amt:PO#: 56718Invoice No:Invoice28062Voucher #: 4/22/2024
Check Amount: $185.00

Vendor Total: $6,603.55

Tawakal Ismail5615
BP4192 WES

E 01 005 107 000 305 000 $3,500.00Recruitment: 4/1/24-4/15/24

$3,500.00Paid Amt:PO#: 04.15.24Invoice No:Invoice28053Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $3,500.00

Vendor Total: $3,500.00

The Master Teacher5676
BP4192 WES

E 01 010 203 000 406 000 $62.00Paraeducator Online Training - Annual Subscri

$62.00Paid Amt:PO#: 116801217Invoice No:Invoice28054Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $62.00

Vendor Total: $62.00

Timothy Ewing4862
BP4192 WES

E 01 010 640 000 366 000 $53.73FY24: Mileage Reimbursement (80.2miles@$0

$53.73Paid Amt:PO#: 03.26.24Invoice No:Invoice28055Voucher #: 4/16/2024
Check Amount: $53.73

Vendor Total: $53.73

TRA1077
Wire4192 WES

B 01 215 006 $29,156.23TRA

$29,156.23Paid Amt:PO#: S2024190Invoice No:Invoice27974Voucher #: 4/15/2024
Check Amount: $29,156.23

Wire4192 WES
B 01 215 006 $27,571.03TRA

$27,571.03Paid Amt:PO#: S2024200Invoice No:Invoice28075Voucher #: 4/30/2024
Check Amount: $27,571.03

Vendor Total: $56,727.26

Wells Fargo Bonds WFCTSPACS5097
Wire4192 WFB2

E 01 005 850 348 570 000 $25,945.91Rent

$25,945.91Paid Amt:PO#: 04.22.24Invoice No:Invoice28084Voucher #: 4/22/2024
Check Amount: $25,945.91

Prepared by Creative Planning

 
 

17

HBA- 34



r_ap_checkregdv

Detail Payment Register By Vendor
Best Academy Page 18 of 18

5/13/2024
10:46:08

Pmt
Type

Check
NoBankCoCode VendorRcd

Pmt/Void
Date

Wells Fargo Bonds WFCTSPACS5097
Wire4192 WFBA

E 01 005 850 348 570 000 $35,830.18Rent

$35,830.18Paid Amt:PO#: 04.22.24Invoice No:Invoice28082Voucher #: 4/22/2024
Check Amount: $35,830.18

Vendor Total: $61,776.09

Wells Fargo Checking1493
Wire4192 WFB2

E 01 005 110 000 305 000 $157.55bank fees

$157.55Paid Amt:PO#: 04.11.24Invoice No:Invoice28083Voucher #: 4/22/2024
Check Amount: $157.55

Wire4192 WFC
E 01 005 110 000 305 000 $319.80bank fees

$319.80Paid Amt:PO#: 04.11.24Invoice No:Invoice28085Voucher #: 4/11/2024
Check Amount: $319.80

Vendor Total: $477.35

Yummy Tummy MN5607
Check4192 WES 30222

E 01 010 203 000 490 000 $700.008th Grade Graduation 5/28/24 Deposit

$700.00Paid Amt:PO#: 05.28.24Invoice No:Invoice27951Voucher #: 4/10/2024
Check Amount: $700.00

Check4192 WES 30224
E 01 005 110 000 490 000 $1,008.00Staff Appreciation Event 5/3/24

$1,008.00Paid Amt:PO#: 05.03.24Invoice No:Invoice27976Voucher #: 4/19/2024
Check Amount: $1,008.00

Vendor Total: $1,708.00

Report Total: $845,041.54

Prepared by Creative Planning 18

HBA- 35



r_ar_rctdet

5/13/2024

10:49:26

Page 1 of 2

Receipt Listing Report with Detail by Deposit
Best Academy

Deposit Co Bank Batch Check No
Pmt
Type Customer

Inv
Date

Inv
Type

Invoice
Amount

Applied
Amount

Unapplied
AmountInv NoGrp Code

Receipt
DateStRct No

Receipt
Type

2492 4192 WES CR0424

Wire 1001 MN Dept of Education104/05/24A2581FY24 MMB FIN401 Dep 4/5/24 Credit

40,115.54 0.00FY24 Title I FIN 4014192 R 01 005 000 401 400 000

$0.00Receipt Total: $40,115.54

$0.00Deposit Total: $40,115.54
2493 4192 WES CR0424

Wire 1001 MN Dept of Education104/05/24A2582FY24 MMB FIN414 Dep 4/5/24 Credit

1,933.63 0.00FY24 PFY Title II FIN4144192 R 01 005 000 414 400 011

23,065.37 0.00FY24 Title II FIN4144192 R 01 005 000 414 400 000

$0.00Receipt Total: $24,999.00

$0.00Deposit Total: $24,999.00
2494 4192 WES CR0424

Wire 1007 IDEAS104/15/24A2583IDEAS Pymt 4/15/24 Credit

566,356.66 0.00FY24 Special Ed-Charter4192 R 01 005 000 740 360 000

$0.00Receipt Total: $566,356.66

$0.00Deposit Total: $566,356.66
2495 4192 WES CR0424

Wire 1007 IDEAS104/30/24A2584IDEAS Pymt 4/30/24 Credit

564,998.49 0.00FY24 General Education Cha4192 R 01 005 000 000 211 000

$0.00Receipt Total: $564,998.49

Wire 1007 IDEAS104/30/24A2585IDEAS Pymt 4/30/24 Debit

(3,679.64) 0.00FY23 Special Ed Charter4192 B 01 121 000

$0.00Receipt Total: ($3,679.64)

$0.00Deposit Total: $561,318.85
2496 4192 WES CR0424

Wire M Miscellaneous Customer104/25/24A2586Bill Void Stewart, Zlimen & Ju Credit

439.37 0.00Void Stewart, Zlimen & Junge4192 B 01 215 014

$0.00Receipt Total: $439.37

$0.00Deposit Total: $439.37

Prepared by Creative Planning

 
 

19

HBA- 36



r_ar_rctdet

5/13/2024

10:49:26

Page 2 of 2

Receipt Listing Report with Detail by Deposit
Best Academy

Deposit Co Bank Batch Check No
Pmt
Type Customer

Inv
Date

Inv
Type

Invoice
Amount

Applied
Amount

Unapplied
AmountInv NoGrp Code

Receipt
DateStRct No

Receipt
Type

2497 4192 AICS CR0424

Wire INT Interest Earnings104/30/24A2587ANB ICS: Interest April 2024 Credit

408.80 0.00ANB ICS: Interest April 20244192 R 01 005 000 000 092 000

$0.00Receipt Total: $408.80

$0.00Deposit Total: $408.80

$0.00Report Total: $1,193,638.22

Prepared by Creative Planning

 
 

20

HBA- 37



Best Academy
Journal Entry Listing

Page 1 of 1

5/13/2024

11:02:29

r_gl_list

JE Cd Period Date St Src Ref Description Account Description
Debit

Amount
Credit

AmountL Fd Org Pro Fin O/S CrsDetail Desc

11386 202410 04/12/2024 P JE Txfer: ANB to 6843 Txfer: ANB to 6843 B 01 101 005 WFBA- 6843 63,000.00 0.00

Txfer: ANB to 6843 B 01 101 008 WES- American National 0.00 63,000.00

$63,000.00 $63,000.00

11398 202402 08/31/2023 P JE FY24: Vector Training FY24: Vector Training E 01 010 204 414 366 000 Trav/Conv/Conference 0.00 2,975.50

FY24: Vector Training E 01 010 640 316 366 000 Trav/Conv/Conference 2,975.50 0.00

$2,975.50 $2,975.50

11413 202410 04/30/2024 P JE ICS Transfers: April 2024 ICS Transfers: April 2024 B 01 101 008 WES- American National 0.00 775,242.73

ICS Transfers: April 2024 B 01 101 008 WES- American National 961,367.08 0.00

ICS Transfers: April 2024 B 01 101 012 ANB ICS 775,242.73 0.00

ICS Transfers: April 2024 B 01 101 012 ANB ICS 0.00 961,367.08

$1,736,609.81 $1,736,609.81

11414 202410 04/16/2024 P JE Txfer: 6843 to 9177 Txfer: 6843 to 9177 B 01 101 004 WFC- 9177 640.00 0.00

Txfer: 6843 to 9177 B 01 101 005 WFBA- 6843 0.00 640.00

$640.00 $640.00

11415 202410 04/16/2024 P JE Txfer: 6843 to 6850 Txfer: 6843 to 6850 B 01 101 005 WFBA- 6843 0.00 26,000.00

Txfer: 6843 to 6850 B 01 101 007 WFB2- Wells 6850 26,000.00 0.00

$26,000.00 $26,000.00

11430 202409 03/31/2024 P JE W.Mawusi F401 to F161 W.Mawusi F401 to F161 E 01 010 203 161 140 013 Lic Classroom Tchr 791.95 0.00

W.Mawusi F401 to F161 E 01 010 216 401 140 000 Lic Classroom Tchr 0.00 791.95

$791.95 $791.95

11432 202403 09/07/2023 P JE FY23 State Lunch- not rec'bleFY23 June State Lunch claim B 02 121 000 Due Fm MDE 111.87 0.00

FY23 June State Lunch claim R 02 005 770 701 300 999 State Aids & Grants 0.00 111.87

$111.87 $111.87

Prepared by Creative Planning 21

HBA- 38



HBA- 39



NWEA Math Spring 2023-2024

Grade Homeroom Completed

# of 
Students 
with Valid 

Growth 
Scores (F23 

& S24)

# of 
students 
who met 
Growth 
Target 

(Fall23 to 
Spring24)

% Meeting 
Growth

# of 
Students 
with Valid 

Scores

# of 
Students At 

or Above 
Grade-Level 

Mean RIT

% Proficient Class Mean
RIT

Normative 
Grade Level 

Mean RIT

K Brooker 14 5 35.7% 16 5 31.3% 148.0

157
K Flieth 11 8 72.7% 15 10 66.7% 155.9
K Trentacoste 17 5 29.4% 17 5 29.4% 148.0
K Budziszewski 0 NA NA 1 0 0.0% 127.0
K Total 42 18 42.9% 49 20 40.8% 144.7
1 Robinson-1 10 3 30.0% 15 2 13.3% 160.0

176

1 Swanson 13 7 53.8% 15 5 33.3% 175.1
1 Citarella-1 18 5 27.8% 18 5 27.8% 166.1
1 Sheffel-1 14 2 14.3% 16 3 18.8% 166.6
1 Budziszewski 3 0 0.0% 3 0 0.0% 139.7
1 Total 58 14 24.1% 67 15 22.4% 161.5
2 Pelikan 18 15 83.3% 20 11 55.0% 187.3

189
2 Menyweather 18 2 11.1% 21 3 14.3% 173.7
2 Rogers 18 1 5.6% 21 3 14.3% 171.5
2 Budziszewski 0 NA NA 2 0 0.0% 145.5
2 Total 54 18 33.3% 64 17 26.6% 169.5
3 Bajema
3 Johns
3 Heller
3 Stafne
3 Total
4 Fahnbulleh
4 M Smith
4 Braun
4 Total
5 Nwaokolo
5 McGuinness
5 Sayler
5 Total
6 Anderson
6 Smith
6 Wicklund
6 Total
7 Flieth
7 Magda
7 Total
8 Zeidler
8 Spark-Y
8 Total

All Grades 154 50 32.5% 180 52 28.9%

HBA- 40



NWEA Reading Spring 2023-2024

Grade Homeroom Completed

# of 
Students 
with Valid 

Growth 
Scores (F23 

& S24)

# of 
students 
who met 
Growth 
Target 

(Fall23 to 
Spring24)

% Meeting 
Growth

# of 
Students 
with Valid 

Scores

# of 
Students At 

or Above 
Grade-Level 

Mean RIT

% Proficient Class Mean
RIT

Normative 
Grade Level 

Mean RIT

K Brooker 14 4 28.6% 16 4 25.0% 145.4

153
K Flieth 12 6 50.0% 15 5 33.3% 148.3
K Trentacoste 17 3 17.6% 17 4 23.5% 142.7
K Budziszewski 0 1 0 0.0% 127.0
K Total 43 13 30.2% 49 13 26.5% 140.9
1 Robinson - 1 11 6 54.5% 15 5 33.3% 160.1

171

1 Swanson 14 7 50.0% 16 6 37.5% 168.8
1 Citarella - 2 17 8 47.1% 17 4 23.5% 162.2
1 Sheffel - 2 13 6 46.2% 15 6 40.0% 163.1
1 Budziszewski 2 0 0.0% 3 0 0.0% 139.7
1 Total 46 21 45.7% 51 16 31.4% 158.5
2 Pelikan 18 8 44.4% 20 7 35.0% 179.4

186
2 Menyweather 18 1 5.6% 21 3 14.3% 166.8
2 Rogers - 1 17 1 5.9% 20 1 5.0% 166.4
2 Budziszewski 0 2 0 0.0% 145.5
2 Total 53 10 18.9% 63 11 17.5% 164.5
3 Bajema
3 Johns
3 Heller
3 Stafne
3 Total
4 Fahnbulleh
4 M Smith
4 Braun
4 Total
5 Nwaokolo
5 McGuinness
5 Sayler
5 Total
6 Anderson
6 Smith

HBA- 41



NWEA Reading Spring 2023-2024

Grade Homeroom Completed

# of 
Students 
with Valid 

Growth 
Scores (F23 

& S24)

# of 
students 
who met 
Growth 
Target 

(Fall23 to 
Spring24)

% Meeting 
Growth

# of 
Students 
with Valid 

Scores

# of 
Students At 

or Above 
Grade-Level 

Mean RIT

% Proficient Class Mean
RIT

Normative 
Grade Level 

Mean RIT

6 Wicklund
6 Total
7 Flieth
7 Magda
7 Total
8 Zeidler
8 Spark-Y
8 Total

All Grades 142 44 31.0% 163 40 24.5%

HBA- 42



Charter School System Accountability 

I. PURPOSE

The purpose of this policy is to focus public education strategies on a process that promotes
higher academic achievement for all students and ensures broad-based community
participation in decisions regarding implementation of the Minnesota K-12 Academic
Standards and federal law.

II. GENERAL STATEMENT OF POLICY

Implementation of the Minnesota K-12 Academic Standards and federal law requires
accountability for the school. The school established a system to transition to the
graduation requirements of the Minnesota K-12 Academic Standards. The school also
established a system to review and improve instruction, curriculum, and assessment which
will include substantial input by students, parents or guardians, and local community
members. The school will be accountable to the public and the state through annual
reporting.

III. DEFINITIONS

A. “Credit” means a student’s successful completion of an academic year of study or a
student’s mastery of the applicable subject matter, as determined by the school.

B. “World’s best workforce” means striving to:  meet school readiness goals; close the
academic achievement gap among all racial and ethnic groups of students and between
students living in poverty and students not living in poverty; have all students attain
career and college readiness before graduating from high school; and have all students
graduate from high school.

IV. ESTABLISHMENT OF GOALS; IMPLEMENTATION; EVALUATION AND
REPORTING

A. School Goals

1. The school board has established school-wide goals that provide broad direction
for the school. Incorporated in these goals are the graduation and education
standards contained in the Minnesota K-12 Academic Standards and federal law.
The broad goals shall be reviewed annually and approved by the school board. The
school board shall adopt annual goals based on the recommendations of the
school’s Advisory Committee.

2. The School Advisory Committee created under the Curriculum Development
policy is established by the school board to ensure active community participation
in all phases of planning and improving the instruction and curriculum affecting

HBA- 43



state and charter school academic standards. 

3. The school-wide improvement goals should address recommendations identified 
through the School Advisory Committee process. The school’s goal setting process 
will include consideration of individual site goals. School goals may also be 
developed through an education effectiveness program, an evaluation of student 
progress committee, or through some other locally determined process. 

B. System for Reviewing All Instruction and Curriculum.  

Incorporated in the process will be analysis of the school’s progress toward implementation 
of the Minnesota Academic Standards. Instruction and curriculum shall be reviewed and 
evaluated by taking into account strategies and best practices, student outcomes, principal 
evaluations under Minn. Stat. § 123B.147, and teacher evaluations under Minn. Stat. §§ 
122A.40 or 122A.41. 

a. [Insert Local Cycle in this space] 

C. Implementation of Graduation Requirements 

1. The School Advisory Committee shall also advise the school board on 
implementation of the state and local graduation requirements, including K-12 
curriculum, assessment, student learning opportunities, and other related issues.  
Recommendations of the School Advisory Committee shall be published 
annually to the community. The school board shall receive public input and 
comment and shall adopt or update this policy at least annually. 

2. The school board shall annually review and determine if student achievement 
levels at each school site meet federal expectations. If the school board 
determines that student achievement levels at a school site do not meet federal 
expectations and the site has not made adequate yearly progress for two 
consecutive school years, the School Advisory Committee shall work with the 
school site to adopt a plan to raise student achievement levels to meet federal 
expectations. The School Advisory Committee may seek assistance from the 
Commissioner of the Minnesota Department of Education (MDE) 
(Commissioner) in developing a plan which must include parental involvement 
components. 

3. The educational assessment system component utilized by the school board to 
measure individual students’ educational progress must be based, to the extent 
annual tests are administered, on indicators of current achievement that show 
growth relative to an individual student’s prior achievement. Indicators of 
achievement and prior achievement must be based on highly reliable statewide 
or charter schoolwide assessments. The school board will utilize models 
developed by the Commissioner for measuring individual student progress. The 
school board must coordinate with MDE in evaluating school sites and 
continuous improvement plans, consistent with best practices. 

Commented [LK1]: Add information regarding the 
process of reviewing instruction/curriculum 

HBA- 44



D. Comprehensive Continuous Improvement of Student Achievement 

1. By [     date      ] of each year, the School Advisory Committee will meet to 
advise and assist the school in the implementation of the school system 
accountability and comprehensive continuous improvement process. 

2. The School Advisory Committee, working in cooperation with other 
committees of the school, will provide active community participation in: 

a. Reviewing the school instructional and curriculum plan, with emphasis on 
implementing the Minnesota K-12 Academic Standards; 

b. Identifying annual instruction and curriculum improvement goals for 
recommendation to the school board; 

c. Making recommendations regarding the evaluation process that will be used 
to measure school progress toward its goals; and, 

d. Advising the school board about development of the annual budget. 

3. The School Advisory Committee shall meet the following criteria: 

a. The School Advisory Committee shall ensure active community 
participation in all planning for instruction and curriculum affecting 
Graduation Standards. 

b. The School Advisory Committee shall make recommendations to the school 
board on school-wide standards, assessments, and program evaluation. 

c. Building teams may be established as subcommittees to develop and 
implement an education effectiveness plan and to carry out methods to 
improve instruction, curriculum, and assessments as well as methods to use 
technology in meeting the school improvement plan. 

d. A local plan to evaluate student progress, using a local process, shall be 
used for developing a plan for assessment of student progress toward the 
Graduation Standards, as well as program evaluation data for use by the 
School Advisory Committee in the instruction and curriculum review 
process. This plan shall annually be approved by the school board. 

5. Translation services should be provided to the extent appropriate and practicable. 

6. The School Advisory Committee shall meet the following timeline each year: 

[Month]: Organizational meeting of the Committee to review the authorizing 
legislation and the roles and responsibilities of the Committee as determined by 
the school board. 

Commented [JS2]: Add annual date 

HBA- 45



[Month(s)]: Agree on the process to be used.  Become familiar with the 
instruction and curriculum of the cycle content area. 

[Month(s)]: Review evaluation results and prepare recommendations. 

[Month]: Present recommendations to the school board for its input and approval. 

E. Evaluation of Student Progress Committee.

A committee of professional staff shall develop a plan for assessment of student progress,
the Graduation Standards, as well as program evaluation data for use by the School
Advisory Committee to review instruction and curriculum, cultural competencies,
including cultural awareness and cross-cultural communication, and student achievement
at the school site. This plan shall annually be approved by the school board.

F. Reporting

1. Consistent with Minn. Stat. § 120B.36, subd. 1, the school board shall publish a
report in the local newspaper with the largest circulation in the school, by mail, or
by electronic means on the school website. The school board shall hold an annual
public meeting to review and revise, where appropriate, student achievement goals, 
local assessment outcomes, plans, strategies, and practices for improving
curriculum and instruction and cultural competency and efforts to equitably
distribute diverse, effective, experienced, and in-field teachers, and to review
school success in realizing the previously adopted student achievement goals and
related benchmarks and the improvement plans leading to the world’s best
workforce. The school board must transmit an electronic summary of its report to
the Commissioner in the form and manner the Commissioner determines. The
school shall periodically survey affected constituencies in their native languages,
where appropriate and practicable, about their connection to and level of
satisfaction with school. The school shall include the results of this evaluation in
its published reports and in its summary report to the Commissioner.

2. The school performance report for the school must include performance reporting
information and calculate proficiency rates as required by the most recently
reauthorized Elementary and Secondary Education Act.

3. The school must annually report the school's class size ratios by each grade to the
Commissioner of the Minnesota Department of Education in the form and manner
specified by the Commissioner.

4. The school must report whether programs funded with compensatory revenue are
consistent with best practices demonstrated to improve student achievement.

G. Annual Public Report

1. The school must publish an annual report approved by the board of directors. The
annual report must at least include information on school enrollment, student

Commented [JS3]: The school will need to determine and
add the months establishing the timeline. This timeline will 
generally flow from the start of the school year forward 

HBA- 46



attrition, governance and management, staffing, finances, academic performance, 
innovative practices and implementation, and future plans. The school may 
combine this report with the reporting required under Minn. Stat. § 120B.11 
governing the world's best workforce. 

2. The school must post the annual report on the school's official website. The school 
also must distribute the annual report by publication, mail, or electronic means to 
its authorizer, school employees, and parents and legal guardians of students 
enrolled in the school. 

3. The reports are public data under Minn. Stat., chapter 13. 
 
Legal References: Minn. Stat. Ch. 13 (Government Data Practices) 

Minn. Stat. § 120B.018 (Definitions) 
Minn. Stat. § 120B.02 (Educational Expectations and Graduation 
Requirements for Minnesota’s Students) 
Minn. Stat. § 120B.11 (School District Process for Reviewing Curriculum, 
Instruction, and Student Achievement; Striving for the World’s Best 
Workforce) 
Minn. Stat. § 120B.35 (Student Academic Achievement and Growth) 
Minn. Stat. § 120B.36 (School Accountability) 
Minn. Stat. § 122A.40 (Employment; Contracts; Termination) 
Minn. Stat. § 122A.41 (Teacher Tenure Act; Cities of the First Class; 
Definitions) 
Minn. Stat. § 123B.04 (Site Decision Making; Individualized Learning 
Agreement; Other Agreements) 
Minn. Stat. § 123B.147 (Principals) 
Minn. Stat. § 124E.03 (Applicable Law) 
Minn. Stat. § 124E.16 (Reports) 
Minn. Stat. § 126C.12 (Learning and Development Revenue Amount and 
Use) 
Minn. Rules Parts 3501.0640-3501.0655 (Academic Standards for 
Language Arts) 
Minn. Rules Parts 3501.0700-3501.0745 (Academic Standards for 
Mathematics) 
Minn. Rules Parts 3501.0820 (Academic Standards for the Arts) 
Minn. Rules Parts 3501.0900-3501.0955 (Academic Standards in Science) 
Minn. Rules Parts 3501.1300-3501.1345 (Academic Standards for Social 
Studies) 
Minn. Rules Parts 3501.1400-3501.1410 (Academic Standards for Physical 
Education) 
20 U.S.C. § 6301, et seq. (Every Student Succeeds Act) 

 

HBA- 47



 

School Meals Policy 
 

I. PURPOSE 

The purpose of this policy is to ensure that students receive healthy and nutritious meals 
through the school’s nutrition program and that school employees, families, and students 
have a shared understanding of expectations regarding meal charges. The policy of the 
school is to provide meals to students in a respectful manner and to maintain the dignity of 
students by prohibiting lunch shaming or otherwise ostracizing the student. The policy 
seeks to allow students to receive the nutrition they need to stay focused during the school 
day and minimize identification of students with insufficient funds to pay for a la carte 
items or second meals as well as to maintain the financial integrity of the school nutrition 
program. 

II. PAYMENT OF MEALS  

A. [OPTION 1:  All a la carte items or second meal purchases are to be prepaid before 
meal service begins. [Insert description for how families may add money to students’ 
accounts (e.g., electronic payment options, pay at the school office, etc.).] A student 
who does not have sufficient funds will not be allowed to charge a la carte items or a 
second meal until additional money is deposited in the student’s account.] 

 [OPTION 2:  Students have use of a meal account. When the balance reaches zero, a 
student may charge no more than $[insert amount] or [insert number of meals] to this 
account]. When an account reaches this limit, a student shall not be allowed to charge 
second meals or a la carte items until the negative account balance is paid. [Insert 
description for how families may add money to students’ accounts (e.g., electronic 
payment options, pay at the school office, etc.).]] 

 [OPTION 3:  Insert a charter school-specific process for payment of a la carte items 
or second meals.] 

 If the school participates in the United States Department of Agriculture National 
School Lunch program and has an Identified Student Percentage below the federal 
percentage determined for all meals to be reimbursed at the free rate via the Community 
Eligibility Provision it must participate in the free school meals program. 

B. A school that participates in the United States Department of Agriculture National 
School Lunch program and has an Identified Student Percentage at or above the federal 
percentage determined for all meals to be reimbursed at the free rate must participate 
in the federal Community Eligibility Provision in order to participate in the free school 
meals program. 

C. Each school that participates in the free school meals program must: 

Commented [A1]: Select the option that applies and delete the 
remaining options.  

HBA- 48



(1) participate in the United States Department of Agriculture School Breakfast
Program and the United States Department of Agriculture National School Lunch
Program; and

(2) provide to all students at no cost up to two federally reimbursable meals per school
day, with a maximum of one free breakfast and one free lunch.

D. Once a meal has been placed on a student’s tray or otherwise served to a student, the
meal may not be subsequently withdrawn from the student by the cashier or other
school official, whether or not the student has an outstanding meals balance.

E. When a student has a negative account balance, the student will not be allowed to
charge a snack item.

F. If a parent or guardian chooses to send in one payment that is to be divided between
sibling accounts, the parent or guardian must specify how the funds are to be distributed 
to the students’ accounts. Funds may not be transferred between sibling accounts unless 
written permission is received from the parent or guardian.

III. LOW OR NEGATIVE ACCOUNT BALANCES – NOTIFICATION

A. The school will make reasonable efforts to notify families when meal account balances
are low or fall below zero.

B. Families will be notified of an outstanding negative balance once the negative balance
reaches $[insert amount] or [insert number of meals]. Families will be notified by
[insert the method used to notify families (e.g., automated calling system, email, letters
sent home)].

C. Reminders for payment of outstanding student meal balances will not demean or
stigmatize any student participating in the school lunch program, including, but not
limited to, dumping meals, withdrawing a meal that has been served, announcing or
listing students’ names publicly, providing alternative meals not specifically related to
dietary needs; providing nonreimbursable meals; or affixing stickers, stamps, or pins.

IV. UNPAID MEAL CHARGES

A. The school will make reasonable efforts to communicate with families to resolve the
matter of unpaid charges. Where appropriate, families may be encouraged to apply for
free or reduced-price meals for their children.

B. The school will make reasonable efforts to collect unpaid meal charges classified as
delinquent debt. Unpaid meal charges are designated as delinquent debt when payment
is overdue, the debt is considered collectable, and efforts are being made to collect it.

Commented [A2]: Add this information 

HBA- 49



 

C. Negative balances of more than $[insert amount], not paid prior to [enter time period 
(e.g., end of the month, end of the semester, end of the school year)], will be turned 
over to the executive director or executive director’s designee for collection. In some 
instances, the school does use a collection agency to collect unpaid school meal debts 
after reasonable efforts first have been made by the school to collect the debt. 
Collection options may include, but are not limited to, use of collection agencies, 
claims in the conciliation court, or any other legal method permitted by law.  

D. The school may not enlist the assistance of non-charter school employees, such as 
volunteers, to engage in debt collection efforts.  

E. The school will not impose any other restriction prohibited under Minn. Stat. § 123B.37 
due to unpaid student meal balances. The school will not limit a student’s participation 
in any school activities, graduation ceremonies, field trips, athletics, activity clubs, or 
other extracurricular activities or access to materials, technology, or other items 
provided to students due to an unpaid student meal balance.  

V. COMMUNICATION OF POLICY  

A. This policy and any pertinent supporting information shall be provided in writing (i.e., 
mail, email, back-to-school packet, student handbook, etc.) to:  
1. all households at or before the start of each school year; 
2. students and families who transfer into the school, at the time of enrollment; and 

3. all school personnel who are responsible for enforcing this policy. 

B. The school will post this policy on the school’s website, or the website of the 
organization where the meal is served, in addition to providing the required written 
notification described above. 

C. If the school contracts with a third party for its meal services, it will provide the vendor 
with its school meals policy. The school will ensure that any third-party provider with 
whom the school enters into either an original or modified contract after July 1, 2021, 
adheres to the school’s school meals policy. 

 
Legal References: Minn. Stat. § 123B.37 (Prohibited Fees) 

Minn. Stat. § 124D.111 (School Meals Policies; Lunch Aid; Food Service 
Accounting) 
42 U.S.C. § 1751 et seq. (Healthy and Hunger-Free Kids Act) 
7 C.F.R. § 210 et seq. (School Lunch Program Regulations) 
7 C.F.R. § 220.8 (School Breakfast Program Regulations) 
USDA Policy Memorandum SP 46-2016, Unpaid Meal Charges: Local 
Meal Charge Policies (2016)  
USDA Policy Memorandum SP 47-2016, Unpaid Meal Charges: 
Clarification on Collection of Delinquent Meal Payments (2016)  

Commented [A3]: Add this information 

HBA- 50



 

USDA Policy Memorandum SP 23-2017, Unpaid Meal Charges: Guidance 
and Q&A 

HBA- 51



School Curriculum and Instruction Goals 

I. PURPOSE

The purpose of this policy is to establish broad curriculum parameters for the school that
encompass the Minnesota Academic Standards and federal law and are aligned with
creating the world’s best workforce.

II. GENERAL STATEMENT OF POLICY

The policy of the school is to establish the “world’s best workforce” in which all learning
in the school should be directed and for which all school learners should be held
accountable.

III. DEFINITIONS

A. “Academic standard” means a summary description of student learning in a required
content area or elective content area.

B. “Antiracist” means actively working to identify and eliminate racism in all forms in order
to change policies, behaviors, and beliefs that perpetuate racist ideas and actions.

C. “Benchmark” means specific knowledge or skill that a student must master to complete
part of an academic standard by the end of the grade level or grade band.

D. "Culturally sustaining" means integrating content and practices that infuse the culture and
language of Black, Indigenous, and People of Color communities who have been and
continue to be harmed and erased through the education system.

E. “Curriculum” means charter school or school adopted programs and written plans for
providing students with learning experiences that lead to expected knowledge, skills, and
career and college readiness.

F. “Ethnic studies” as defined in Minn. Stat. § 120B.25, has the same meaning for purposes
of this section. Ethnic studies curriculum may be integrated in existing curricular
opportunities or provided through additional curricular offerings.

G. “Experiential learning” means learning for students that includes career exploration
through a specific class or course or through work-based experiences such as job
shadowing, mentoring, entrepreneurship, service learning, volunteering, internships, other
cooperative work experience, youth apprenticeship, or employment.

H. "Institutional racism" means structures, policies, and practices within and across
institutions that produce outcomes that disadvantage those who are Black, Indigenous, and

HBA- 52



People of Color. 

I. “Instruction” means methods of providing learning experiences that enable students to 
meet state and charter school academic standards and graduation requirements including 
applied and experiential learning. 

J. “Performance measures” are measures to determine school progress in striving to create 
the world’s best workforce and must include at least the following: 

1. the size of the academic achievement gap; rigorous course taking, including 
college-level advanced placement, international baccalaureate, postsecondary 
enrollment options, including concurrent enrollment, other rigorous courses of 
study or industry certification courses or programs, and enrichment experiences by 
student subgroup; 

2. student performance on the Minnesota Comprehensive Assessments; 

3. high school graduation rates; and 

4. career and college readiness under Minn. Stat. § 120B.30, subd. 1. 

K. “World’s best workforce” means striving to meet school readiness goals; close the 
academic achievement gap among all racial and ethnic groups of students and between 
students living in poverty and students not living in poverty; have all students attain career 
and college readiness before graduating from high school; and have all students graduate 
from high school. 

IV. LONG-TERM STRATEGIC PLAN 

A. The school board, at a public meeting, must adopt a comprehensive, long-term strategic 
plan to support and improve teaching and learning that is aligned with creating the world’s 
best workforce and includes the following: 

1. clearly defined school goals and benchmarks for instruction and student 
achievement for all student categories identified in Minn. Stat. § 120B.35, subd. 
3(b)(2); 

2. a process to assess and evaluate each student’s progress toward meeting state and 
local academic standards, assess and identify students for participation in gifted and 
talented programs and services and accelerate their instruction, adopt early-
admission procedures consistent with Minn. Stat. § 120B.15 and identifying the 
strengths and weaknesses of instruction in pursuit of student and school success 
and curriculum affecting students’ progress and growth toward career and college 
readiness and leading to the world’s best workforce; 

3. a system to periodically review and evaluate the effectiveness of all instruction and 
curriculum, taking into account strategies and best practices, student outcomes, 

HBA- 53



principal evaluations under Minn. Stat. § 123B.147, subd. 3, students’ access to 
effective teachers who are members of populations underrepresented among the 
licensed teachers in the school and who reflect the diversity of enrolled students 
under Min. Stat. § 120B.35, subd. 3(b)(2), and teacher evaluations under Minn. 
Stat. §§ 122A.40, subd. 8, or 122A.41, subd. 5; 

4. strategies for improving instruction, curriculum, and student achievement, 
including the English and, where practicable, the native language development and 
the academic achievement of English learners; 

5. a process to examine the equitable distribution of teachers and strategies to ensure 
children in low-income families, children in families of People of Color, and 
children in American Indian families are not taught at higher rates than other 
children by inexperienced, ineffective, or out-of-field teachers; 

6. education effectiveness practices that  

i. integrate high-quality instruction, technology, and curriculum that is 
rigorous, accurate, antiracist, and culturally sustaining;  

ii. ensure learning and work environments validate, affirm, embrace, and 
integrate cultural and community strengths for all students, families, and 
employees; 

iii. provide a collaborative professional culture that seeks to retain qualified, 
racially and ethnically diverse staff effective at working with diverse 
students while developing and supporting teacher quality, performance, and 
effectiveness; and 

7. an annual budget for continuing to implement the school plan; and 

8. identifying a list of suggested and required materials, resources, sample curricula, 
and pedagogical skills for use in kindergarten through grade 12 that accurately 
reflect the diversity of the state of Minnesota. 

B. The school is not required to include information regarding literacy in a plan or report 
required under this section, except with regard to the academic achievement of English 
learners. 

C. Every child is reading at or above grade level every year, beginning in kindergarten, and 
multilingual learners and students receiving special education services are receiving 
support in achieving their individualized reading goals. 

 
Legal References: Minn. Stat. § 120B.018 (Definitions) 
  Minn. Stat. § 120B.02 (Educational Expectations and Graduation 

Requirements for Minnesota Students) 
Minn. Stat. § 120B.11 (School District Process for Reviewing Curriculum, 

HBA- 54



Instruction, and Student Achievement; Striving for the World’s Best 
Workforce) 
Minn. Stat. § 120B.12 (Read Act Goal and Interventions) 
Minn. Stat. § 120B.30, Subd. 1 (Statewide Testing and Reporting System) 
Minn. Stat. § 120B.35, Subd. 3 (Student Academic Achievement and 
Growth) 
Minn. Stat. § 122A.40, Subd. 8 (Employment; Contracts; Termination) 
Minn. Stat. § 122A.41, Subd. 5 (Teacher Tenure Act; Cities of the First 
Class; Definitions) 
Minn. Stat. § 123B.147, Subd. 3 (Principals) 
Minn. Stat. § 125A.56, Subd. 1 (Alternate Instruction Required before 
Assessment Referral) 
20 U.S.C. § 5801, et seq. (National Education Goals) 
20 U.S.C. § 6301, et seq. (Every Student Succeeds Act) 

HBA- 55



Employment Background Checks 

I. PURPOSE

The purpose of this policy is to maintain a safe environment in the school in order to
promote the physical, social, and psychological well-being of its students. To that end, the
school will seek a criminal history background check for applicants who receive an offer
of employment with the school and on all individuals, except enrolled student volunteers,
who are offered the opportunity to provide athletic coaching services or other
extracurricular academic coaching services to the school, regardless of whether any
compensation is paid, or such other background checks as provided by this policy. The
school may also elect to do background checks of other volunteers, independent
contractors, and student employees in the charter school.

II. GENERAL STATEMENT OF POLICY

A. The school shall require that applicants for school positions who receive an offer of
employment and all individuals, except enrolled student volunteers, who are offered
the opportunity to provide athletic coaching services or other extracurricular academic
coaching services to the school, regardless of whether any compensation is paid, submit
to a criminal history background check. The offer of employment or the opportunity to
provide services shall be conditioned upon a determination by the school that an
individual’s criminal history does not preclude the individual from employment with,
or provision of services to, the school.

B. The school specifically reserves any and all rights it may have to conduct background
checks regarding current employees, applicants, or service providers without the
consent of such individuals.

C. Adherence to this policy by the school shall in no way limit the school’s right to require
additional information, or to use procedures currently in place or other procedures to
gain additional background information concerning employees, applicants, volunteers,
service providers, independent contractors, and student employees.

III. PROCEDURES

A. Normally an individual will not commence employment or provide services until the
school receives the results of the criminal history background check. The school may
conditionally hire an applicant or allow an individual to provide services pending
completion of the background check but shall notify the individual that the individual’s
employment or opportunity to provide services may be terminated based on the result
of the background check. Background checks will be performed by the Minnesota
Bureau of Criminal Apprehension (BCA). The BCA shall conduct the background
check by retrieving criminal history data as defined in Minn. Stat. § 13.87. The school

HBA- 56



reserves the right to also have criminal history background checks conducted by other 
organizations or agencies. 

B. In order for an individual to be eligible for employment or to provide athletic coaching
services or other extracurricular academic coaching services to the school, except for
an enrolled student volunteer, the individual must sign a criminal history consent form,
which provides permission for the school to conduct a criminal history background
check, and provide a money order or check payable to either the BCA or to the school,
at the election of the school, in an amount equal to the actual cost to the BCA and the
school of conducting the criminal history background check. The cost of the criminal
history background check is the responsibility of the individual, unless the school
decides to pay the costs for a volunteer, an independent contractor, or a student
employee. If the individual fails to provide the school with a signed Informed Consent
Form and fee at the time the individual receives a job offer, or permission to provide
services, the individual will be considered to have voluntarily withdrawn the
application for employment or request to provide services.

C. For all individuals who have previously resided in another state and who are offered
employment with or the opportunity to provide athletic coaching services or other
extracurricular academic coaching services to the school, the school shall request a
criminal history background check on such individuals from the executive director of
the BCA and from the government agency performing the same function in the state(s)
where the individual previously resided; or, if no government entity performs the same
function in the previous resident state(s), from the Federal Bureau of Investigation. The
offer of employment or the opportunity to provide services shall be conditioned upon
a determination by the school that an individual’s criminal history does not preclude
the individual from employment with, or provision of services to, the school. Such
individuals must provide an executed criminal history consent form.

D. When required, individuals must provide fingerprints to assist in a criminal history
background check. If the fingerprints provided by the individual are unusable, the
individual will be required to submit another set of prints.

E. Copies of this policy shall be available in the school’s employment office and will be
distributed to applicants for employment and individuals who are offered the
opportunity to provide athletic coaching services or other extracurricular academic
coaching services upon request. The need to submit to a criminal history background
check may be included with the basic criteria for employment or provision of services
in the position posting and position advertisements.

F. The individual will be informed of the results of the criminal background check(s) to
the extent required by law.

G. If the criminal history background check precludes employment with, or provision of
services to, the school, the individual will be so advised.

H. The school may apply these procedures to other volunteers, independent contractors,

HBA- 57



or student employees. 

I. At the beginning of each school year or when a student enrolls, the school will notify 
parents and guardians about this policy and identify those positions subject to a 
background check and the extent of the school’s discretion in requiring a background 
check. The school may include this notice in its student handbook, a school policy 
guide, or other similar communication. A form notice for this purpose is included with 
this policy. 

IV. CRIMINAL HISTORY CONSENT FORM 

A form to obtain consent for a criminal history background check is included with this 
policy. 

 
 
Legal References: Minn. Stat. § 13.04, Subd. 4 (Rights of Subjects of Data)  

Minn. Stat. § 13.87, Subd. 1 (Criminal History Data) 
Minn. Stat. § 123B.03 (Background Check) 
Minn. Stat. §§ 299C.60-299C.64 (Minnesota Child, Elder, and Individuals 
with Disabilities Protection Background Check Act) 
Minn. Stat. § 364.09(b) (Exceptions) 
 

HBA- 58



HARVEST BEST ACADEMY – Background Check Informed Consent 
1300 Olson Memorial Highway, Minneapolis, 55411 

☐We are requesting a federal check pursuant to Minnesota Statutes 299C.62 on this individual as well.
(Contributor, please check this box if requesting a federal check and attach fingerprint card, the Child Protection
Background Check Consent form, and appropriate fee.  Please note that the federal check will take one to two
weeks to complete.)
The following named individual has made application with this agency for employment: 

Last Name of Applicant (please print): 

First Name (please print):  

Middle (full) (please print):   

Maiden, Alias or Former (please print): 

Date of Birth (Month/Day/Year):   Sex (M or F): 

I authorize the Minnesota Bureau of Criminal Apprehension to disclose all criminal history record information 
to Harvest Best Academy pursuant to Minnesota Statutes 123B.03, subdivision 1 for the purpose of 
employment as a   ________________with this School. 

This release is valid for one year from the date of my signature. 

Signature of Applicant or Potential Service Provider: __________________________ 
Date: __________________ 

Subscribed and sworn to before me 
this _____ day of __________, 20___. 

_________________________________ 
Notary Public 

1. Records obtained under the Minnesota State Statute 123B.03, subdivision 1, may be used solely for the
purpose requested and cannot be disseminated outside the receiving departments, related agencies, or other
authorized entities.

2. Your fingerprints may be used to check the criminal history records of the FBI.
3. You may challenge the accuracy and completeness of any information contained in the report provided

(procedures are set forth in Minnesota Statutes §13.04 and Title 28 CFR Section 16.34).
4. You have the right to request and obtain from the school hiring authority a copy of the background check

report. A school hiring authority may charge the individual for the actual cost of providing a copy of the
report.

The school shall forward this executed form, along with a check or money order payable to the “MN BCA” and a self-
addressed, stamped envelope, to: Minnesota Bureau of Criminal Apprehension, CHA Unit 1430 Maryland Avenue E., St. 
Paul, MN 55106 

HBA- 59



Credit Card Policy 

I. PURPOSE

The purpose of this policy is to establish the responsibilities, controls and authorizations for the 
application, issuance and processing of the school’s credit card system and to ensure all credit 
card purchases are for appropriate and acceptable business expenses, compliance with the 
reconciliation and approval process and with Internal Revenue Service laws, and to ensure that 
non-compliance will be subject to disciplinary guidelines up to and including termination. 

II. POLICY

Credit cards are issued at the discretion of the School Board to current employees who are 
granted a formal delegation of purchasing authority. Delegation of school purchasing authority 
governs the use of the credit card as a tool for purchasing materials and services for less than 
$300.00 point of sale purchase. The cardholder agrees to comply with all applicable school board 
policies and procedures. 

III. CREDIT CARD PURCHASING PROCEDURES

A. Cardholder.

The cardholder is the individual to whom the School Board has issued the credit card.
The credit card shall not be transferred to, assigned to, or used by anyone other than the
designated cardholder. Cardholders are responsible for ensuring all purchases made using
the credit card are legitimate purchases made on behalf of the school.

B. Authorized Purchases.

Cardholders may only use the credit card for allowed expenses and must obtain receipts
for all purchases.

C. Unauthorized and Restricted Purchases.

Cardholders may not use the credit card for the following:

a. Cash withdrawals;

b. Unauthorized purchases, including but not limited to:

i. Any purchase unrelated to school business;

ii. Purchases for individual items over $300.00;

iii. Items or services requiring a purchase order;

iv. Personal items; and

v. Purchases from vendors that typically invoice Accounts Payable directly.

D. Receipts.

HBA- 60



It is the cardholder's responsibility to obtain transaction receipts from the merchant each 
time the credit card is used. Individual transaction receipts are to be submitted to the 
school business manager. Individual transactions must be recorded on the monthly credit 
card expense report. The school business office must keep statement data and proof of 
reconciliation, including receipts and packing slips, on file for a period consistent with 
the record retention requirements of the law. An Affidavit of No Receipt form must be 
submitted in the event of a lost, destroyed, or not obtained receipt. 

E. Sales Tax Exemption.

The cardholder must inform merchants of applicable sales tax exempt status prior to the
purchase. Cardholders should keep a copy of the sales tax exempt certificate with them to
present at the time of purchase. Personal use of these certificates is strictly prohibited.

F. Disputed or Fraudulent Charges.

It is the cardholder’s responsibility to follow-up on any erroneous charges, returns or
adjustments to ensure proper credit is given on subsequent statements. If the cardholder
believes fraudulent charges have been made using the credit card, the cardholder must
notify the business office immediately and contact the card-issuer to prevent further
fraudulent charges.

G. Lost or Stolen Credit Cards.

The cardholder is responsible for the security of the issued credit card and any purchases
made to the account. If there is any reason to believe the credit card may have been lost
or stolen, the credit card holder must immediately report this information to the business
officer and report the card as lost or stolen to the card-issuer.

H. Credit Limits.

The account assigned has a credit limit of $________. [Each credit card is assigned a 
credit limit based on the anticipated usage.] Increases in the credit limit must be approved 
by the School Board.  

I. Ownership and Cancellation of the Credit Card.

The credit card remains property of the school. It may not be transferred to, assigned to,
or used by anyone other than the designated cardholder. The cardholder is accountable for
the activity on the card. The card-issuer or the school may suspend or cancel cardholder
privileges at any time for any reason. The cardholder will surrender the credit card upon
request to the school or any authorized agent of the card-issuer. When a cardholder leaves
the employment of the school, the credit card will be deactivated and must be turned over
to the business office.

IV. COMPLIANCE WITH POLICY, VIOLATIONS AND CONSEQUENCES

A. Cardholder Responsibilities.

Cardholder responsibilities include:

Commented [LK1]: Specify who will be in charge of
receiving receipts  

Commented [JS2]: To be completed based on terms

HBA- 61



a. Purchasing items for school business use only;  

b. Never lending or sharing the credit card or account number; 

c. Purchasing only goods and services that are approved by the cardholder’s 
supervisor or are in accordance with school policies; 

d. Keeping all individual purchases to less than $300.00; 

e. Returning the credit card to the business office and privilege of its use upon 
leaving the school or the position which entitled use of the card or upon ending 
employment with the school, or upon request of the School Board; and 

f. Forwarding purchasing documents, such as sales receipts, to the business office.  

B. Violations of Policy and Consequences. 

1. Violations of this policy or to any policy regarding the purchase of goods or 
services will be investigated and may result in either one or more of the following 
actions: written warning, revocation of credit card privileges, cancellation of 
delegation of purchasing authority, disciplinary action, and termination and/or 
criminal prosecution. Human error and extraordinary circumstances may be taken 
into consideration when investigating any violation to this agreement.  

2. The School Board has the authority to investigate and to determine whether a 
violation of this policy has occurred, and to recommend actions that may be taken 
because of such determinations. The School Board will consider the facts and 
circumstances of each incident, and will take action as deemed appropriate, and as 
permitted by applicable law and/or school policy.  

3. Credit Card violations include but are not limited to:  

a. Purchase of items for personal use;  

b. Purchase of items in violation of this or other school policy;  

c. Use of the credit card for cash advances; 

d. Use of the credit card for purchase of more than $300.00 by splitting 
purchases onto more than one credit card without approval; 

e. Failure to return the credit card when an employee is reassigned, 
terminated, or upon request; and 

f. Failure to turn in packing slips, receipts or other back up documentation to 
the business manager within 30 days of the purchase for the purpose of 
establishing accountable reconciliation procedures.  

V. BUSINESS OFFICE CREDIT CARD RESPONSIBLITIES 

The business manager is responsible for: 

1. Ensuring that these procedures are in place for all cards before employees are given card 
privileges. 

Commented [LK3]: Specify what office or staff member 
will be responsible for implementing the credit card policy 
and related accounting 

HBA- 62



2. Timely reconciliation and appropriate record keeping. 

3. Handling these administrative duties:  

a. Knowing the credit card limitations and restrictions.  

b. Developing and implementing internal procedures that govern use of the credit 
cards. 

c. Sharing new program information with cardholders. 

d. Answering cardholder questions about use of cards.  

e. Monitoring card usage to ensure that school policies, and internal policies and 
procedures are being followed. 

f. Communicating with the School Board when new or modified cards are required 
and requesting new cards from the card-issuer.  

g. Communicating with the School Board when card cancellations are required. 

h. Communicating with the School Board when misuse of the credit card or 
violations of school policy are suspected.  

i. Requesting new cards from the card-issuer. 

j. Contacting card-issuer upon notification of cardholder of potential fraudulent or 
disputed charges. 

k. Terminating accounts and inactive cards and individual authority to use cards. 

HBA- 63



 
Curriculum Development 
 
 

I. PURPOSE 

The purpose of this policy is to provide direction for continuous review and improvement 
of the school curriculum. 

II. GENERAL STATEMENT OF POLICY 

Curriculum development shall be directed toward the fulfillment of the goals and 
objectives of the education program of the school. 

III. RESPONSIBILITY 

The executive director shall be responsible for curriculum development and for 
determining the most effective way of conducting research on the school’s curriculum 
needs and establishing a long-range curriculum development program. Timelines shall be 
determined by the executive director that will provide for periodic reviews of each 
curriculum area. 

IV. CHARTER SCHOOL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

A. The school board must establish an advisory committee to ensure active community 
participation in all phases of planning and improving the instruction and curriculum 
affecting state and charter school academic standards.  

B. The School Advisory Committee, to the extent possible, must reflect the diversity of 
the school, include teachers, parents, support staff, students, and other community 
residents, and provide translation to the extent appropriate and practicable. Whenever 
possible, parents and other community residents must comprise at least two-thirds of 
committee members. 

C. The School Advisory Committee must pursue community support to accelerate the 
academic and native literacy and achievement of English learners with varied needs, 
from young children to adults, consistent with Minn. Stat. § 124D.59, subds. 2 and 2a.  

D. The school may establish site teams as subcommittees of the School Advisory 
Committee.  

E. The School Advisory Committee must recommend to the school board: 
1. rigorous academic standards, student achievement goals and measures consistent 

with Minn. Stat. §§ 120B.11, subd. 1a, 120B.022, subds. 1a and 1b, and 120B.35;  
2. charter school assessments;  

HBA- 64



3. means to improve students' equitable access to effective and more diverse teachers;   

4. strategies to ensure the curriculum is rigorous, accurate, antiracist, culturally 
sustaining, and reflects the diversity of the student population;  

5. strategies to ensure that curriculum and learning and work environments validate, 
affirm, embrace, and integrate the cultural and community strengths of all racial 
and ethnic groups; and 

6. program evaluations.  

F. School sites may expand upon school evaluations of instruction, curriculum, 
assessments, or programs. 

V. SCHOOL SITE TEAM 

Each school must establish a site team to develop and implement strategies and education 
effectiveness practices to improve instruction, curriculum, cultural competencies, 
including cultural awareness and cross-cultural communication, and student achievement 
at the school site. The site team must include an equal number of teachers and 
administrators and at least one parent. The site team advises the board and the advisory 
committee about developing the annual budget and creates an instruction and curriculum 
improvement plan to align curriculum, assessment of student progress, and growth in 
meeting state and charter school academic standards and instruction. 

VI. CURRICULUM DEVELOPMENT PROCESS 

A. The executive director shall be responsible for keeping the school board informed of 
all state-mandated curriculum changes, as well as recommended discretionary changes, 
and for periodically presenting recommended modifications for school board review 
and approval. 

B. The executive director shall have discretionary authority to develop guidelines and 
directives to implement school board policy relating to curriculum development. 

 
 
Legal References: Minn. Stat. § 120A.20 (Admission to Public School) 

Minn. Stat. § 120B.10 (Findings; Improving Instruction and Curriculum) 
Minn. Stat. § 120B.11 (School District Process for Reviewing Curriculum, 
Instruction, and Student Achievement; Striving for the World’s Best 
Workforce) 
Minn. Stat. § 120B.12 (Reading Proficiently No Later than the End of Grade 
3) 
Minn. Stat. § 120B.125(f) (Planning for Students’ Successful Transition to 
Postsecondary Education and Employment; Personal Learning Plans) 
Minn. Stat. § 124D.58 - 65 (Education for English Learners Act) 

HBA- 65



Minn. Stat. § 124E.03 (Applicable Law) 
Minn. Rules Part 3500.0550 (Inclusive Educational Program) 
Minn. Rules Parts 3501.0640-3501.0655 (Academic Standards for 
Language Arts) 
Minn. Rules Parts 3501.0700-3501.0745 (Academic Standards for 
Mathematics) 
Minn. Rules Part 3501.0820 (Academic Standards for the Arts) 
Minn. Rules Parts 3501.0900-3501.0955 (Academic Standards in Science) 
Minn. Rules Parts 3501.1200-3501.1210 (Academic Standards for English 
Language Development) 
Minn. Rules Parts 3501.1300-3501.1345 (Academic Standards for Social 
Studies) 
Minn. Rules Parts 3501.1400-3501.1410 (Academic Standards for Physical 
Education) 
20 U.S.C. § 6301, et seq. (Every Student Succeeds Act) 

HBA- 66



 
Public Data and Data Subject Requests  
 
 

I. PURPOSE 

The school recognizes its responsibility relative to the collection, maintenance, and 
dissemination of public data as provided in state statutes. 

II. GENERAL STATEMENT OF POLICY 

The school will comply with the requirements of the Minnesota Government Data Practices 
Act, Minn. Stat. chapter 13 (MGDPA), and Minnesota Rules parts 1205.0100-1205.2000 
in responding to requests for public data. 

III. DEFINITIONS 

A. Confidential Data on Individuals 
Data made not public by statute or federal law applicable to the data and are inaccessible 
to the individual subject of those data. 

B. Data on Individuals 
All government data in which any individual is or can be identified as the subject of that 
data, unless the appearance of the name or other identifying data can be clearly 
demonstrated to be only incidental to the data and the data are not accessed by the name or 
other identifying data of any individual. 

C. Data Practices Compliance Officer 
The data practices compliance official is the designated employee of the school to whom 
persons may direct questions or concerns regarding problems in obtaining access to data 
or other data practices problems. The responsible authority may be the data practices 
compliance official. 

D. Government Data 
All data collected, created, received, maintained or disseminated by any government entity 
regardless of its physical form, storage media or conditions of use. 

E. Individual 
“Individual” means a natural person. In the case of a minor or an incapacitated person as 
defined in Minn. Stat. § 524.5-102, subd. 6, "individual" includes a parent or guardian or 
an individual acting as a parent or guardian in the absence of a parent or guardian, except 
that the responsible authority shall withhold data from parents or guardians, or individuals 
acting as parents or guardians in the absence of parents or guardians, upon request by the 
minor if the responsible authority determines that withholding the data would be in the best 
interest of the minor. 

F. Inspection 

HBA- 67



“Inspection” means the visual inspection of paper and similar types of government data.  
Inspection does not include printing copies by the school, unless printing a copy is the only 
method to provide for inspection of the data. For data stored in electronic form and made 
available in electronic form on a remote access basis to the public by the school, inspection 
includes remote access to the data by the public and the ability to print copies of or 
download the data on the public’s own computer equipment. 

G. Not Public Data 
Any government data classified by statute, federal law, or temporary classification as 
confidential, private, nonpublic, or protected nonpublic. 

H. Nonpublic Data 
Data not on individuals made by statute or federal law applicable to the data: (a) not 
accessible to the public; and (b) accessible to the subject, if any, of the data. 

I. Private Data on Individuals 
Data made by statute or federal law applicable to the data: (a) not public; and (b) 
accessible to the individual subject of those data. 

J. Protected Nonpublic Data 
Data not on individuals made by statute or federal law applicable to the data (a) not 
public and (b) not accessible to the subject of the data. 

K. Public Data 
All government data collected, created, received, maintained, or disseminated by the 
charter school, unless classified by statute, temporary classification pursuant to statute, or 
federal law, as nonpublic or protected nonpublic; or, with respect to data on individuals, 
as private or confidential. 

L. Public Data Not on Individuals 
Data accessible to the public pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 13.03. 

M. Public Data on Individuals 
Data accessible to the public in accordance with the provisions of section 13.03. 

N. Responsible Authority 
The individual designated by the school board as the individual responsible for the 
collection, use, and dissemination of any set of data on individuals, government data, or 
summary data, unless otherwise provided by state law. Until an individual is designated 
by the school board, the responsible authority is the Chief Administrative Officer. 

O. Summary Data 
Statistical records and reports derived from data on individuals but in which individuals 
are not identified and from which neither their identities nor any other characteristic that 
could uniquely identify an individual is ascertainable. Unless classified pursuant to Minn. 
Stat. § 13.06, another statute, or federal law, summary data is public. 

IV. REQUESTS FOR PUBLIC DATA  

Commented [JS1]: Is this the appropriate default? 

HBA- 68



A. All requests for public data must be made in writing directed to the responsible authority. 
1. A request for public data must include the following information: 

a. Date the request is made; 
b. A clear description of the data requested; 
c. Identification of the form in which the data is to be provided (e.g., 

inspection, copying, both inspection and copying, etc.); and 
d. Method to contact the requestor (such as phone number, address, or 

email address). 
2. Unless specifically authorized by statute, the school may not require 

persons to identify themselves, state a reason for, or justify a request to gain 
access to public government data. A person may be asked to provide certain 
identifying or clarifying information for the sole purpose of facilitating 
access to the data.  

3. The identity of the requestor is public, if provided, but cannot be required 
by the government entity. 

4. The responsible authority may seek clarification from the requestor if the 
request is not clear before providing a response to the data request. 

B. The responsible authority will respond to a data request at reasonable times and places as 
follows: 

1. The responsible authority will notify the requestor in writing as follows: 
a. The requested data does not exist; or 
b. The requested data does exist but either all or a portion of the data 

is not accessible to the requestor; or 
(1) If the responsible authority determines that the requested 

data is classified so that access to the requestor is denied, the 
responsible authority will inform the requestor of the 
determination in writing, as soon thereafter as possible, and 
shall cite the specific statutory section, temporary 
classification, or specific provision of federal law on which 
the determination is based. 

(2) Upon the request of a requestor who is denied access to data, 
the responsible authority shall certify in writing that the 
request has been denied and cite the specific statutory 
section, temporary classification, or specific provision of 
federal law upon which the denial was based. 

c. The requested data does exist and provide arrangements for 
inspection of the data, identify when the data will be available for 
pick-up, or indicate that the data will be sent by mail. If the requestor 
does not appear at the time and place established for inspection of 
the data or the data is not picked up within ten (10) business days 

HBA- 69



after the requestor is notified, the school will conclude that the data 
is no longer wanted and will consider the request closed.  

2. The school’s response time may be affected by the size and complexity of 
the particular request, including necessary redactions of the data, and also 
by the number of requests made within a particular period of time. 

3. The school will provide an explanation of technical terminology, 
abbreviations, or acronyms contained in the responsive data on request. 

4. The school is not required by the MGDPA to create or collect new data in 
response to a data request, or to provide responsive data in a specific form 
or arrangement if the charter school does not keep the data in that form or 
arrangement.   

5. The school is not required to respond to questions that are not about a 
particular data request or requests for data in general. 

V. REQUEST FOR SUMMARY DATA  

A. A request for the preparation of summary data shall be made in writing directed to the 
responsible authority. 

1. A request for the preparation of summary data must include the following 
information: 
a. Date the request is made; 
b. A clear description of the data requested; 
c. Identify the form in which the data is to be provided (e.g., 

inspection, copying, both inspection and copying, etc.); and 
d. Method to contact requestor (phone number, address, or email 

address). 
B. The responsible authority will respond within ten (10) business days of the receipt of a 

request to prepare summary data and inform the requestor of the following: 
1. The estimated costs of preparing the summary data, if any; and 
2. The summary data requested; or 
3. A written statement describing a time schedule for preparing the requested 

summary data, including reasons for any time delays; or 
4. A written statement describing the reasons why the responsible authority 

has determined that the requestor’s access would compromise the private or 
confidential data. 

C. The school may require the requestor to pre-pay all or a portion of the cost of 
creating the summary data before the charter school begins to prepare the summary 
data. 

VI. DATA BY AN INDIVIDUAL DATA SUBJECT 

HBA- 70



A. Collection and storage of all data on individuals and the use and dissemination of 
private and confidential data on individuals shall be limited to that necessary for 
the administration and management of programs specifically authorized by the 
legislature or local governing body or mandated by the federal government. 

B. Private or confidential data on an individual shall not be collected, stored, used, or 
disseminated by the charter school for any purposes other than those stated to the 
individual at the time of collection in accordance with Minn. Stat. § 13.04, except 
as provided in Minn. Stat. § 13.05, subd. 4. 

C. Upon request to the responsible authority or designee, an individual shall be 
informed whether the individual is the subject of stored data on individuals, and 
whether it is classified as public, private or confidential. Upon further request, an 
individual who is the subject of stored private or public data on individuals shall be 
shown the data without any charge and, if desired, shall be informed of the content 
and meaning of that data. 

D. After an individual has been shown the private data and informed of its meaning, 
the data need not be disclosed to that individual for six months thereafter unless a 
dispute or action pursuant to this section is pending or additional data on the 
individual has been collected or created.  

E. The responsible authority or designee shall provide copies of the private or public 
data upon request by the individual subject of the data. The responsible authority 
or designee may require the requesting person to pay the actual costs of making and 
certifying the copies. 

F. The responsible authority or designee shall comply immediately, if possible, with 
any request made pursuant to this subdivision, or within ten days of the date of the 
request, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays, if immediate compliance 
is not possible. 

G. An individual subject of the data may contest the accuracy or completeness of 
public or private data. To exercise this right, an individual shall notify in writing 
the responsible authority describing the nature of the disagreement. The responsible 
authority shall within 30 days either: (1) correct the data found to be inaccurate or 
incomplete and attempt to notify past recipients of inaccurate or incomplete data, 
including recipients named by the individual; or (2) notify the individual that the 
authority believes the data to be correct. Data in dispute shall be disclosed only if 
the individual's statement of disagreement is included with the disclosed data. 

H. The determination of the responsible authority may be appealed pursuant to the 
provisions of the Administrative Procedure Act relating to contested cases. Upon 
receipt of an appeal by an individual, the commissioner shall, before issuing the 
order and notice of a contested case hearing required by Minn. Stat. chapter 14, try 
to resolve the dispute through education, conference, conciliation, or persuasion. If 
the parties consent, the commissioner may refer the matter to mediation. Following 
these efforts, the commissioner shall dismiss the appeal or issue the order and notice 
of hearing. 

HBA- 71



I. Data on individuals that have been successfully challenged by an individual must 
be completed, corrected, or destroyed by a government entity without regard to the 
requirements of Minn. Stat. § 138.17. 

J. After completing, correcting, or destroying successfully challenged data, the 
charter school may retain a copy of the commissioner of administration's order 
issued under Minn. Stat. chapter 14 or, if no order were issued, a summary of the 
dispute between the parties that does not contain any particulars of the successfully 
challenged data. 

VII. REQUESTS FOR DATA BY AN INDIVIDUAL SUBJECT OF THE DATA 

A. All requests for individual subject data must be made in writing directed to the 
responsible authority. 

B. A request for individual subject data must include the following information: 
1. Statement that one is making a request as a data subject for data about the 

individual or about a student for whom the individual is the parent or 
guardian; 

2. Date the request is made; 
3. A clear description of the data requested; 
4. Proof that the individual is the data subject or the data subject’s parent or 

guardian; 
5. Identification of the form in which the data is to be provided (e.g., 

inspection, copying, both inspection and copying, etc.); and 
6. Method to contact the requestor (such as phone number, address, or email 

address). 
C. The identity of the requestor of private data is private. 
D. The responsible authority may seek clarification from the requestor if the request is 

not clear before providing a response to the data request. 
E. The Protection and Privacy of Pupil Records policy addresses requests of students 

or their parents for educational records and data. 

VIII. COSTS 

A. Public Data 
1. The school will charge for copies provided as follows: 

a. 100 or fewer pages of black and white, letter or legal sized paper 
copies will be charged at 25 cents for a one-sided copy or 50 cents 
for a two-sided copy. 

b. More than 100 pages or copies on other materials are charged based 
upon the actual cost of searching for and retrieving the data and 

HBA- 72



making the copies or electronically sending the data, unless the cost 
is specifically set by statute or rule. 
(1) The actual cost of making copies includes employee time, 

the cost of the materials onto which the data is copied (paper, 
CD, DVD, etc.), and mailing costs (if any). 

(2) Also, if the school does not have the capacity to make the 
copies, e.g., photographs, the actual cost paid by the school 
to an outside vendor will be charged. 

2. All charges must be paid for [in cash or by check] in advance of receiving 
the copies. 

B. Summary Data 
1. Any costs incurred in the preparation of summary data shall be paid by the 

requestor prior to preparing or supplying the summary data. 
2. The school may assess costs associated with the preparation of summary 

data as follows: 
a. The cost of materials, including paper, the cost of the labor required 

to prepare the copies, any schedule of standard copying charges 
established by the school, any special costs necessary to produce 
such copies from a machine-based record-keeping system, including 
computers and microfilm systems; 

b. The school may consider the reasonable value of the summary data 
prepared and, where appropriate, reduce the costs assessed to the 
requestor. 

C. Data Belonging to an Individual Subject 
1. The responsible authority or designee may require the requesting person to 

pay the actual costs of making and certifying the copies. 
The responsible authority shall not charge the data subject any fee in those 
instances where the data subject only desires to view private data.  

The responsible authority or designee may require the requesting person to 
pay the actual costs of making and certifying the copies. Based on the 
factors set forth in Minnesota Rule 1205.0300, subpart 4, the school 
determines that a reasonable fee would be the charges set forth in section 
VIII.A of this policy that apply to requests for data by the public. 

2. The school may not charge a fee to search for or to retrieve educational 
records of a child with a disability by the child’s parent or guardian or by 
the child upon the child reaching the age of majority. 

IX. ANNUAL REVIEW AND POSTING 

Commented [JS2]: The school could choose to designate how 
payments must be made, but it is key that payments are made in 
advance.  

HBA- 73



A. The responsible authority shall prepare a written data access policy and a written 
policy for the rights of data subjects (including specific procedures the school uses 
for access by the data subject to public or private data on individuals). The 
responsible authority shall update the policies no later than August 1 of each year, 
and at any other time as necessary to reflect changes in personnel, procedures, or 
other circumstances that impact the public’s ability to access data. 

B. Copies of the policies shall be easily available to the public by distributing free 
copies to the public or by posting the policies in a conspicuous place within the 
school that is easily accessible to the public or by posting them on the school’s 
website. 

 
Data Practices Contacts 
 
Responsible Authority: 
[Name] 
[Location] 
[Phone number; email address] 
 
Data Practices Compliance Official: 
[Name] 
[Location] 
[Phone number; email address] 
 
Data Practices Designee(s):   
[Name] 
[Location] 
[Phone number; email address] 
 
 
Legal References: Minn. Stat. Ch. 13 (Minnesota Government Data Practices Act) 

Minn. Stat. § 13.01 (Government Data) 
Minn. Stat. § 13.02 (Definitions) 

 Minn. Stat. § 13.025 (Government Entity Obligation) 
Minn. Stat. § 13.03 (Access to Government Data) 
Minn. Stat. § 13.04 (Rights of Subjects to Data) 
Minn. Stat. § 13.05 (Duties of Responsible Authority) 
Minn. Stat. § 13.32 (Educational Data) 
Minn. Stat. § 124E.03 (Applicable Law) 
Minn. Rules Part 1205.0300 (Access to Public Data) 
Minn. Rules Part 1205.0400 (Access to Private Data) 

  
Cross References: Public and Private Personnel Data policy 

Protection and Privacy of Pupil Records policy 

Commented [JS3]: Complete this section to designate the staff 
members responsible for these roles and add their contact 
information. This section “Data Practices Contacts” could also be 
designated separately, for example, on the website.  

HBA- 74



1 

1. Conflict of Interest—Charter School Board Members and Employees (MSBA #210.1)

Adopted by the Best Academy, Inc.Harvest Best Academy Board of Directors: As 
Amended October 26, 2013, 

I. PURPOSE

The purpose of this policy is to observe MN Stat. 124D.10 Subd. 4a; 34 CFR Part 80.26(b) and 
36(b)(3); 34 CFR Part 75.525; and CFR Part 75.525 (a) & (b)state statutes regarding conflicts of 
interest for charter schools and to engage in school district business activities in a fashion designed 
to avoid any conflict of interest or the appearance of impropriety. 

II. GENERAL STATEMENT OF POLICY

It is the policy of the charter school board to conform to statutory conflict of interest laws and act 
in a manner that will avoid any conflict of interest or the appearance thereof. This policy addresses 
compliance requirements with MN Stat. 124D.10 Subd. 4a; 34 CFR Part 80.26(b) and 36(b)(3); 
and 34 CFR Part 75.525 (a) & (b). In addition, all purchases must follow the procedures outlined 
in Policy #35 Purchasing, Procurement and Contracting Policies that establishes procedures to 
carry out purchasing, procurement and contracting functions of the charter school and provide 
efficient management of public monies and compliance with all applicable state and federal laws 
including requirements when using federal funds to make purchases under Minnesota's federal 
Charter Schools Program (CSP). 

MN Stat. 124D.10 Subd. 4a Conflict of Interest 

(a) An individual is prohibited from serving as a member of the school board of directors if the
individual, an immediate family member, or the individual's partner is an owner, employee or 
agent of, or a contractor with a for-profit or nonprofit entity or individual with whom the 
school contracts, director or indirectly, for professional services, goods, or facilities. A 
violation of this prohibition renders a contract voidable at the option of the commissioner of 
education or the school board of directors. A member of a school board of directors who 
violates this prohibition is individually liable to the charter school for any damage caused by 
the violation. 

(b) No member of the board of directors, employee, officer, or agent of a charter school shall
participate in selecting, awarding, or administering a contract if a conflict of interest exists. A 
conflict exists when: 
(1) The board member, employee, officer, or agent;
(2) The immediate family of the board member, employee, officer, or agent;
(3) The partner of the board member, employee, officer, or agent; or
(4) An organization that employs, or is about to employ an individual in clauses (1) to (3),

Commented [LK1]: This does not appear to be a policy 
that the school has adopted 

HBA- 75



2 

has a financial or other interest in the entity with which the charter school is contracting. A 
violation of this prohibition renders the contract void. 

(c) Any employee, agent, or board member of the authorizer who participates in the initial review, 
approval, on-going oversight, evaluation, or the charter renewal or nonrenewal process or 
decision is ineligible to serve on the board of directors. 

(d) An individual may serve as a member of the board of directors if no conflict of interest under 
paragraph (a) exists. 

(e) The conflict of interest provisions under this subdivision do not apply to compensation paid 
to a teacher employed by the charter school who also serves as a member of the board of 
directors. 

(f) The conflict of interest provisions under this subdivision do not apply to a teacher who 
provides services to a charter school through a cooperative formed under chapter 308A when 
the teacher also serves on the charter school board of directors. 

34 CFR Part 75.525 (a) & (b) Participation in a Project 

(a) A grantee may not permit a person to participate in an administrative decision regarding 
a project if: 
(1) The decision is likely to benefit that person or a member of his or her immediate family; and 
(2) The person: 

(i) Is a public official; or 

(ii) Has a family or business relationship with the grantee. 
(b) A grantee may not permit any person participating in the project to use his or her position 
for a purpose that is — or gives the appearance of being — motivated by a desire for a private 
financial gain for that person or for others. 

34 CFR Part 80.26 (b) Non-Federal audit. 

(a) Basic Rule. Grantees and sub grantees are responsible for obtaining audits in accordance with 
the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 (31 U.S.C. 7501-7507) and revised OMB Circular 
A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations." The audits 
shall be made by an independent auditor in accordance with generally accepted government 
auditing standards covering financial audits. 

(b) Sub grantees. State or local governments, as those terms are defined for purposes of the Single 
Audit Act Amendments of 1996, that provide Federal awards to a subgrantee, which expends 
$300,000 or more (or other amount as specified by OMB) in Federal awards in a fiscal year, 
shall: 

HBA- 76



3 

(1) Determine whether State or local sub grantees have met the audit requirements of the Act
and whether sub grantees covered by OMB Circular A-110, "Uniform Administrative 
Requirements for Grants and Agreements with Institutions of Higher Education, 
Hospitals, and Other Non-Proflt organizations," have met the audit requirements of the 
Act. Commercial contractors (private for-profit and private and governmental 
organizations) providing goods and services to State and local governments are not 
required to have a single audit performed. State and local governments should use their 
own procedures to ensure that the contractor has complied with laws and regulations 
affecting the expenditures of Federal funds; 

(2) Determine whether the sub grantee spent Federal assistance funds provided in accordance
with applicable laws and regulations. This may be accomplished by reviewing an audit of 
the sub grantee made in accordance with the Act, OMB Circular A-133, or through other 
means (e.g., program reviews) if the sub grantee has not had such an audit; 

(3) Ensure that appropriate corrective action is taken within six months after receipt of the
audit report in instance of noncompliance with Federal laws and regulations; 

(4) Consider whether sub grantee audits necessitate adjustment of the grantee's own records;
and 

(5) Require each sub grantee to permit independent auditors to have access to the records and
financial statements. 

34 CFR Part

(3) Grantees and sub grantees will maintain a written code of standards of conduct governing the
performance of their employees engaged in the award and administration of contracts. No 
employee, officer or agent of the grantee or sub grantee shall participate in selection, or in the 
award or administration of a contract supported by Federal funds if a conflict of interest, real or 
apparent, would be involved. Such a conflict would arise when: 

(i) The employee, officer or agent,
(ii) Any member of his immediate family,
(iii) His or her partner, or
(iv) An organization which employs, or is about to employ, any of the above, has a financial

or other interest in the firm selected for award. The grantee's or sub grantee's officers, 
employees or agents will neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors or anything of 
monetary value from contractors, potential contractors, or parties to sub agreements. 
Grantee and sub grantees may set minimum rules where the financial interest is not 
substantial or the gift is an unsolicited item of nominal intrinsic value. To the extent 
permitted by State or local law or regulations, such standards or conduct will provide for 
penalties, sanctions, or other disciplinary actions for violations of such standards by the 
grantee's and sub grantee's officers, employees, or agents, or by contractors or their 
agents. The awarding agency may in regulation provide additional prohibitions relative 
to real, apparent, or potential conflicts of interest. 

III. CONFLICTING BUSINESS RELATIONSHIPS

HBA- 77



4 

A. A member of a charter school board of directors is prohibited from serving as a member 
of the board of directors or as an employee or agent of, or contractor with, a for-profit 
entity with whom the charter school contracts, directly or indirectly, for professional 
services, goods, or facilities. A violation of this prohibition renders a contract voidable at 
the option of the Commissioner of Education (Commissioner). A member of a charter 
school board of directors who violates this prohibition shall be individually liable to the 
charter school for any damage caused by the violation. An individual may serve as a 
member of the board of directors if no conflict of interest as specified in MN Stat. 124D.10 
Subd. 4a; 34 CFR Part 80.26(b) and 36(b)(3); and 34 CFR Part 75.525 (a) & (b) as printed 
above exists. 

B. A member of a charter school board of directors that serves as a member of the board of 
directors or as an employee or agent of, or contractor with, a nonprofit entity with whom 
the charter school contracts, directly or indirectly, for professional services, goods, or 
facilities, must disclose all potential conflicts to the Commissioner. 

A. An individual is prohibited from serving as a member of the board of directors of the school 
if the individual, an immediate family member, or the individual’s partner is a full or part 
owner or principal with a for-profit or nonprofit entity or independent contractor with 
whom the school contracts, directly or indirectly, for professional services, goods, or 
facilities. An individual is prohibited from serving as a board member if an immediate 
family member is an employee of the school. A violation of this prohibition renders a 
contract voidable at the option of the Minnesota Commissioner of Education 
(Commissioner) or the school board of directors. A member of a school board of directors 
who violates this prohibition is individually liable to the school for any damage caused by 
the violation. An individual may serve as a member of the board of directors if no conflict 
of interest under this paragraph exists. 

B. No member of the board of directors, employee, officer, or agent of the school shall 
participate in selecting, awarding, or administering a contract if a conflict of interest exists. 
A conflict exists when: (1) the board member, employee, officer, or agent; (2) the 
immediate family of the board member, employee, officer, or agent; (3) the partner of the 
board member, employee, officer, or agent; or (4) an organization that employees, or is 
about to employ, any individual in clauses (1) to (3), has a financial or other interest in the 
entity with which the school is contracting. A violation of this provision renders the 
contract void. 

C. Any employee, agent, or board member of the authorizer of a charter school who 
participates in the initial review, approval, ongoing oversight, evaluation, or the charter 
school renewal or nonrenewal process or decision is ineligible to serve on the board of 
directors of a school chartered by that authorizer. 

D. The school board member conflict of interest provisions do not apply to compensation paid 
to a teacher employed as a teacher by the school or a teacher who provides instructional 
services to the school through a cooperative formed under Minn. Stat., chapter 308A when 
the teacher also serves on the school board of directors. 

HBA- 78



5 

E. The school board member, employee, or officer is a local official with regard to the receipt 
of gifts as defined under Minn. Stat. § 10A.071, subd. 1(b). A board member, employee, 
or officer must not receive compensation from a group health insurance provider. 

LIMITATIONS ON RELATED EMPLOYEES 

A. The school board can hire or dismiss teachers only at duly called meetings. Where a husband 
and wife, brother and sister, or two brothers or sisters, constitute a quorum, no contract 
employing a teacher may be made or authorized except upon the unanimous vote of the full 
school board. 

B. The school board may not employ any teacher related by blood or marriage to a school board 
member, within the fourth degree, as computed by the civil law except by a unanimous vote 
of the full school board. 

DETERMINATION AS TO WHETHER A CONFLICT OF INTEREST EXISTS 

The determination as to whether a conflict of interest exists is to be made by the school board. 
Any school board member who has an actual or potential conflict shall notify the school board of 
such conflict immediately. The school board member shall thereafter cooperate with the school 
board as necessary for the school board to make its determination. 
  

HBA- 79



6 

 
2. Oout of State and Extended Local Travel By School Board Members (MSBA #214) 

Adopted by the Best Academy, Inc.Harvest Best Academy Board of Directors: As 
Amended October 26, 2013____. 

I. PURPOSE 

The purpose of this policy is to establish acceptable procedures regarding extended local and out-
of-state reimbursable travel for school board members and staffin the performance of their school 
district duties. 

II. GENERAL STATEMENT OF POLICY 

A. School board members have an obligation to become informed on the proper duties and 
functions of a school board member, to become familiar with issues that may affect the 
school district, to acquire a basic understanding of school finance and budgeting, and to 
acquire sufficient knowledge to comply with federal, state, and local laws, rules, 
regulations, and school policies that relate to their functions as school board members. 
Occasionally, it may be appropriate for school board members to travel to fulfill their 
obligations. 

 
and school district policies that relate to their functions as school board members. 
B. School district employees have a similar obligation pertaining to the performance of their 

duties and for professional growth activities. 

III. APPROPRIATE TRAVEL AND EXPENSES 

A. Out-of-state or extended local Ttravel is appropriate when the School Board finds it proper 
for school board members to acquire knowledge and information necessary to allow them 
to carry out their responsibilities as school board members and it is within the available 
resources. Travel to regional or national meetings of the National Charter School Boards 
Association is presumed to fulfill this purpose. Travel to other meetings for which the 
member intends to seek reimbursement from the school district should be pre-approved by 
the School Board. 

 
A. Employee travel expenses related to the performance of the job including professional 

development are appropriate for reimbursement and shall be approved by the charter 
school Principal or designee. 

B.A. Travel outside the continental U.S. must be requested well in advance of the 
planned activity. The itinerary must be submitted for approval to the supervising 
administrator or charter school Principal, followed by review of the School Board. 

IV. REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES  

Commented [JS2]: Separate expense reimbursement 
policy for staff 

HBA- 80



7 

Reimbursable expenses may include transportation, meals, lodging, registration fees, required 
materials, parking fees, tips, and other reasonable and necessary charter school-related expenses. 

V. REIMURSEMENT Reimbursementfor Extended Trave 

A. Extended local travel refers to travel outside the general school area and itineraries that 
include overnight lodging. Requests for reimbursement of travel expenses incurred during 
the performance of school district duties must be itemized on the official school 
districtClaim for Reimbursement form and submitted to the supervising designated 
administrator for approval. Receipts for lodging, commercial transportation, registration 
and other reasonable and necessary expenses must be attached to the reimbursement form 
to be considered. 

 
B. Automobile travel shall be reimbursed at the mileage rate set by the School Board. 

Commercial transportation shall reflect economy fares and shall be reimbursed only for 
the actual cost of the trip. 

 
B.C. The Claim for Reimbursement or Advance Expenses fonn form is to be completed 

by the individual requesting reimbursement before and/or after attending a specific event 
that has been approved by the designated supervising administrator. (See Claim for 
Reimbursement or Advance Expenses, form A, of this policy.) 

 
C.D. An advance payment for travel may be authorized up to $50/day if approved by the 

designated administrator. The advance shall be supported by receipts and adjusted 
accordingly after completing the travel. 

 
D.E. Advance payment of registration, lodging and commercial travel may also be paid 

using the school’s credit card available in the business office if approved by the designated 
administrator. 
 

VI. ESTABLISHMENT OF REIMBURSEMENT RATES AND GUIDELINES 
 
The executive director shall develop a schedule of reimbursement rates for school business 
expenses, including those expenses requiring advance approval and specific rates of 
reimbursement. The executive director shall also develop directives and guidelines to address 
methods and times for submission of requests for reimbursement. 
  

HBA- 81



8 

CLAIM FOR REIMBURSEMENT OR ADVANCE ON EXPENSES 

Form A (relating to Policy # 2) 
(Out of State or extended local Travel) 

Claimant's Name* 
 

Street Address* City Zip 
 

Departure* : Date Time a.m. or p.m. 
 

Return* : Date Time  a.m. or p.m. 
 

Destination* 
 

Purpose*  
*Required information. Claim will not be processed if not complete. 
Refer to page 2 for instructions. 

1. TRANSPORTATION: 
I. Commercial coach airfare: (Receipt or district credit card for advance payment) 

 

2. Mileage: miles @ IRS approved rate  
 

3. Other  
 

Il. MEALS: All meal expenses must be itemized and receipts provided. 
 TOTAL MEALS (itemized w/receipts)  

111. LODGING: (Receipts required) 
 TOTAL LODGING  

IV. MISCELLANEOUS: (Receipts required) 

Registration Cab 
 

Parking Other TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS  
 

HBA- 82



9 

 TOTAL EXPENSES CLAIMED  

 AMOUNT OF ADVANCE REQUESTED  

 BALANCE To BE REIMBURSED  
 
I declare, under penalties of law, that this claim is just and correct and that no part of it has been paid previously. 

________________  _____________________________________________ 
Date:    Claimant's Signature 
 

Program Budget Code(s)  

APPROVED BY: 
Administrator/Supervisor  

Date:  
 
Reimbursement Instructions (page 2) 

1. TRANSPORTATION 
• Commercial airfare (coach) or lower group fare. 
• Mileage reimbursement shall be at the IRS established rate and shall not exceed the cost of 

commercial airfare. 
• Use of a rental car must be pre-approved by the Principal or designee. Rental car use shall 

generally be a non-reimbursed item. 

2. MEALS 
• Meals that are part of registration shall not be itemized on the reimbursement claim under 

meals. The cost of those meals will be reimbursed under registration. 
• Daily meal expense reimbursement, including tax and a reasonable gratuity, must comply with 

the conditions of, and shall not exceed the amounts identified in, the cutTent current 
Commissioner's Plan. Use the actual amount if lesser or equal to the amount specified in the 
Plan. If meal expenditure was greater than allowed, request reimbursement only for the 
amount allowed. 

3. LODGING 
Receipts are required for the actual cost of lodging. As per the current Commissioner's Plan, iIt is 
expected that good judgment will be exercised when incurring lodging costs. 

4. MISCELLANEOUS 
Receipts are required for registration, cab fares, public transportation and parking fees. 

5. CLAIMS 

HBA- 83



10 

All claims for reimbursement are to be submitted within 60 days of the activity for which 
reimbursement is claimed. Exceptions may be granted by the business office under unusual 
circumstances. 

6. ADVANCES
An advance payment for travel may be authorized up to $50/day if approved by the supervising
designated administrator. The advance shall be supported by receipts and adjusted accordingly
after the completion of travel. Advance payment for registration and lodging may also be arranged 
using the District's school's credit card managed by the business office. . If the district school has
advanced an amount that exceeds the actual expenses, the excess shall be returned to the district
school within two weeks of return from travel.

HBA- 84



11 

 
3. Harassment and Violence (MSBA #413) 

Adopted by the Best Academy, Inc.Harvest Best Academy Board of Directors: As 
Amended October 26, 2013; ______. 

I1. PURPOSE 

The purpose of this policy is to maintain a learning and working environment at Best Academy, 
Inc.Harvest Best Academy that is free from religious, racial or sexual harassment and violence on 
the basis of race, color, creed, religion, national origin, sex, age, marital status, familial status, 
status with regard to public assistance, sexual orientation, including gender identity or expression, 
or disability (Protected Class). The school prohibits any form of religious, racial or sexual 
harassment and violence. 

II11.  GENERAL STATEMENT OF POLICY 

A. It is the policy of the school to maintain learning and working environments that are free 
from harassment and violence on the basis of race, color, creed, religion, national origin, 
sex, age, marital status, familial status, status with regard to public assistance, sexual 
orientation, or disability. religious, racial or sexual harassment and violence. The school 
prohibits any form of religious, racial or sexual harassment and violenceharassment or 
violence on the basis of Protected Class. 

B. It shall be a violation of this policy for any pupil, teacher, administrator or other school 
personnel of the school to harass a pupil, teacher, administrator or other school personnel 
through conduct or communication of based on a person’s Protected Class, a sexual nature 
or regarding religion and race as defined by this policy. (For purposes of this policy, school 
personnel include school board members, school employees, agents, volunteers, 
contractors or persons subject to the supervision and control of the school .) 

C. It shall be a violation of this policy for any pupil, teacher, administrator or other school 
personnel of the school to inflict, threaten to inflict, or attempt to inflict religious, racial or 
sexual violence upon any pupil, teacher, administrator or other school personnel based on 
a person’s Protected Class. 

D. The school will act to investigate all complaints, formal or informal, verbal or written, of 
religious, racial or sexual harassment or violenceharassment or violence based on a 
person’s Protected Class, and to discipline or take appropriate action against any pupil, 
teacher, administrator or other school personnel who is found to have violated this policy. 
Sexual, Racial and Religious Harassment and Violence Defined 

 

HBA- 85



12 

III. DEFINITIONS 

A. Protected Classifications; Definitions 

1. “Disability” means, with respect to an individual who 

a. a physical sensory or mental impairment that materially limits one or more 
major life activities of such individual; 

b. has a record of such an impairment; or 

c. is regarded as having such an impairment. 

2. “Familial status” means the condition of one or more minors being domiciled with: 

a. their parent or parents or the minor’s legal guardian; or 

b. the designee of the parent or parents or guardian with the written permission 
of the parent or parents or guardian. The protections afforded against 
harassment or discrimination on the basis of family status apply to any 
person who is pregnant or is in the process of securing legal custody of an 
individual who has not attained the age of majority. 

3. “Marital status” means whether a person is single, married, remarried, divorced, 
separated, or a surviving spouse and, in employment cases, includes protection 
against harassment or discrimination on the basis of the identity, situation, actions, 
or beliefs of a spouse or former spouse. 

4. “National origin” means the place of birth of an individual or of any of the 
individual’s lineal ancestors. 

5. “Sex” includes, but is not limited to, pregnancy, childbirth, and disabilities related 
to pregnancy or childbirth. 

6. “Sexual orientation” means to whom someone is, or is perceived of as being, 
emotionally, physically, or sexually attracted to based on sex or gender identity. A 
person may be attracted to men, women, both, neither, or to people who are 
genderqueer, androgynous, or have other gender identities. 

7. “Status with regard to public assistance” means the condition of being a recipient 
of federal, state, or local assistance, including medical assistance, or of being a 
tenant receiving federal, state, or local subsidies, including rental assistance or rent 
supplements. 

 

B. “Harassment” prohibited by this policy consists of physical or verbal conduct, including, 
but not limited to, electronic communications, relating to an individual’s or group of 
individuals’ race, color, creed, religion, national origin, sex, age, marital status, familial 
status, status with regard to public assistance, sexual orientation, including gender identity 
or expression, or disability, when the conduct: 

HBA- 86



13 

1. has the purpose or effect of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working 
or educational environment; 

2. has the purpose or effect of substantially or unreasonably interfering with an 
individual’s work or education; or 

3. otherwise adversely affects an individual’s employment or educational 
opportunities. 

 

C. Sexual Harassment;: Definition 

1. Sexual harassment consists of unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual 
favors, sexually motivated physical conduct, or other verbal or physical conduct or 
communication of a sexual nature when: 

a. Submission to that conduct or communication is made a term or condition, 
either explicitly or implicitly, of obtaining or retaining employment, or of 
obtaining an education; or 

b. Submission to or rejection of that conduct or communication by an 
individual is used as a factor in decisions affecting that individual's 
employment or education; or 

c. That conduct or communication has the purpose or effect of substantially 
or unreasonably interfering with an individual's employment or education, 
or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive employment or educational 
environment. 

2. Sexual harassment may include but is not limited to: 

a. Unwelcome verbal harassment or abuse; 

b. Unwelcome pressure for sexual activity; 

c. Unwelcome, sexually motivated, or inappropriate patting, pinching or 
physical contact, other than necessary restraint of pupil(s) by teachers, 
administrators or other school personnel to avoid physical harm to persons 
or property; 

d. Unwelcome sexual behavior or words, including demands for sexual favors, 
accompanied by implied or overt threats concerning an individual's 
employment or educational status; 

e. Unwelcome sexual behavior or words, including demands for sexual favors, 
accompanied by implied or overt promises of preferential treatment with 
regard to an individual's employment or educational status; or 

f. Unwelcome behavior or words directed at an individual because of sexual 
orientation, including gender identity or expression. 

f.  

Formatted: List Paragraph, Space Before:  6 pt, After:  6
pt, Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: A, B, C, …
+ Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.26" +
Indent at:  0.51"

Formatted: Normal, Space Before:  6 pt, After:  6 pt, 
No bullets or numbering

HBA- 87



14 

A. Racial Harassment: Definition 

1. Racial harassment consists of physical or verbal conduct relating to an individual's race 
when the conduct: 

a. Has the purpose or effect of creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive working or 
academic environment; 

b. Has the purpose or effect of substantially or unreasonably interfering with an  individual's 
work or academic performance; or 

c. Otherwise adversely affects an individual's employment or academic opportunities. 

B. Religious Harassment: Definition 

1. Religious harassment consists of physical or verbal conduct which is related to an 
individual's religion when the conduct:  

a. Has the purpose or effect of creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive working or 
academic environment; 

b. Has the purpose or effect of substantially or unreasonably interfering with an individual's 
work or academic performance; or 

c. Otherwise adversely affects an individual's employment or academic opportunities. 

C.D. Sexual Violence;: Definition 

1. Sexual violence is a physical act of aggression or force or the threat thereof that 
involves the touching of another's intimate parts, or forcing a person to touch any 
person's intimate parts. Intimate parts, as defined in Minn. Stat. 609.341, includes 
the primary genital area, groin, inner thigh, buttocks or breast, as well as the 
clothing covering these areas. 

2. Sexual violence may include, but is not limited to: 

a. Touching, patting, grabbing, or pinching another person's intimate parts, 
whether that person is of the same sex or the opposite sex; 

b. Coercing, forcing or attempting to coerce or force the touching of anyone's 
intimate parts; 

c. Coercing, forcing, or attempting to coerce or force sexual intercourse or a 
sexual act on another; or 

d. Threatening to force or coerce sexual acts, including the touching of 
intimate parts or intercourse, on another. 

 

D. Racial Violence: Definition 

E. Racial violence is a physical act of aggression or assault upon another because of, or in a 
manner reasonably related to, race. 

F. Religious Violence: Definition 

Formatted: Space Before:  6 pt, After:  6 pt, Add space
between paragraphs of the same style, Numbered +
Level: 1 + Numbering Style: A, B, C, … + Start at: 1 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.26" + Indent at:  0.51"

Formatted: Space Before:  6 pt, After:  6 pt, Add space
between paragraphs of the same style, Numbered +
Level: 1 + Numbering Style: A, B, C, … + Start at: 1 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.26" + Indent at:  0.51"

HBA- 88



15 

G. Religious violence is a physical act of aggression or assault upon another because of, or in 
a manner reasonably related to, religion. 

H.E. Assault;: Definition 

1. Assault is: 

a. An act done with intent to cause fear in another of immediate bodily harm 
or death; 

b. The intentional infliction of or attempt to inflict bodily harm upon another; 
or 

c. The threat to do bodily harm to another with present ability to carry out the 
threat. 

F. Violence; Definition 

1. Violence prohibited by this policy is a physical act of aggression or assault upon 
another or group of individuals because of, or in a manner reasonably related to an 
individual’s Protected Class. 

 
IV. REPORTING PROCEDURES 

A. Any person who believes he or she has been the victim of religious, racial or sexual 
harassment or violence on the basis of Protected Class by a pupil, teacher, administrator, 
or other school personnel of the school, or any person with knowledge or belief of conduct 
which may constitute religious, racial or sexual harassment or violence on the basis of 
Protected Class toward a pupil, teacher, administrator or other school personnel should 
report the alleged acts immediately to an appropriate school official designated by this 
policy. 

A.B.  The school encourages the reporting party or complainant to use the report form 
available from the Dean of Students of each building or available from the school office, 
but oral reports shall be considered complaints as well. Nothing in this policy shall prevent 
any person from reporting harassment or violence directly to a school Chief Compliance 
Officerhuman rights officer or to the Principal.  

C. In the School. The school board hereby designates the Chief Compliance Administrative 
Officer and Principal as the school’s human rights officers or the Principal to receive 
reports or complaints of discrimination, harassment, or violence prohibited by this policy. 
If the complaint involves the Chief Compliance Administrative Officer or Principal, the 
complaint shall be filed directly with the Chairperson of the School Board. 

B.D. A teacher, school administrator, volunteer, contractor, or other school employee 
shall be particularly alert to possible situations, circumstances, or events that might include 
acts of harassment or violence. Any such person who witnesses, observes, receives a report 
of, or has other knowledge or belief of conduct that may constitute harassment or violence 
shall make reasonable efforts to address and resolve the harassment or violence and shall 
inform a human rights officer immediately. School personnel who fail to inform a human 

Commented [JS3]: Emily, is this appropriate or is there 
another position?  

HBA- 89



16 

rights officer of conduct that may constitute harassment or violence or who fail to make 
reasonable efforts to address and resolve the harassment or violence in a timely manner 
may be subject to disciplinary action. The human rights officer shall ensure that this policy 
and its procedures, practices, consequences, and sanctions are fairly and fully implemented 
and shall serve as a primary contact on policy and procedural matters. 

C.E. The school shall conspicuously post the name of the School Principal and Chief 
Administrative Officer including mailing addresses and telephone numbers. 

D.F. Submission of a good faith complaint or report of religious, racial or sexual 
harassment or violence will not affect the complainant or reporter's future employment, 
grades, or  work assignments, or educational or work environment. False reports of 
violence or harassment against another person are prohibited. 

G. Use of formal reporting forms is not mandatory. 

E.H. Reports of harassment or violence prohibited by this policy are classified as private 
educational and/or personnel data and/or confidential investigative data and will not be 
disclosed except as permitted by law. 

I. The school will respect the privacy of the complainant, the individual(s) against whom the 
complaint is filed, and the witnesses as much as possible, consistent with the school's legal 
obligations to investigate, to take appropriate action, and to conform to any discovery or 
disclosure obligations. 

J. Retaliation against a victim, good faith reporter, or a witness of violence or harassment is 
prohibited. 

K. A person who engages in an act of violence or harassment, reprisal, retaliation, or false 
reporting of violence or harassment, or permits, condones, or tolerates violence or 
harassment shall be subject to discipline or other remedial responses for that act in 
accordance with the charter school’s policies and procedures. 

Consequences for students who commit, or are a party to, prohibited acts of violence or 
harassment or who engage in reprisal or intentional false reporting may range from 
remedial responses or positive behavioral interventions up to and including suspension 
and/or expulsion. 

Consequences for employees who permit, condone, or tolerate violence or harassment or 
engage in an act of reprisal or intentional false reporting of violence or harassment may 
result in disciplinary action up to and including termination or discharge. 

Consequences for other individuals engaging in prohibited acts of violence or harassment 
may include, but not be limited to, exclusion from charter school property and events 
and/or termination of services and/or contracts. 

V. INVESTIGATION 

A. By authority of the school, the Charter School Chief Compliance Officer (CCO)human 
rights officer, upon receipt of a report or complaint alleging discrimination, harassment or 
violence prohibited by this policy, shall within three (3) days of the receipt of a report or 

HBA- 90



17 

complaintimmediately undertake or authorize an investigation. The investigation may be 
conducted by school officials or by a third party designated by the school. 

B. The investigation may consist of personal interviews with the complainant, the  
individual(s) against whom the complaint is filed, and others who may have knowledge of 
the alleged incident(s) or circumstances giving rise to the complaint. The investigation may 
also consist of any other methods and documents deemed pertinent by the investigator. 

C. In determining whether alleged conduct constitutes a violation of this policy, the school 
should consider the surrounding circumstances, the nature of the behavior, past incidents 
or past or continuing patterns of behavior, the relationships between the parties involved, 
and the context in which the alleged incidents occurred. Whether a particular action or 
incident constitutes a violation of this policy requires a determination based on all the facts 
and surrounding circumstances. 

D. In addition, the school may take immediate steps, at its discretion, to protect the 
complainant, pupils, teachers, administrators or other school personnel pending completion 
of an investigation of alleged religious, racial or sexual harassment or violence. 

D.E. The alleged perpetrator of the acts of harassment or violence shall be allowed the 
opportunity to present a defense during the investigation or prior to the imposition of 
discipline or other remedial responses.  

E.F. The investigation will be completed as soon as practicable. The school human rights 
officer shall make a written report to the School Board upon completion of the 
investigation. The report shall include a determination of whether the allegations have been 
substantiated as factual and whether they appear to be violations of this policy. 

VI. SCHOOL ACTION 

A. Upon receipt of a reportcompletion of an investigation that determines a violation of this 
policy has occurred, the school will take appropriate action. Such action may include, but 
is not limited to, warning, suspension, exclusion, expulsion, transfer, remediation, 
termination or discharge. Disciplinary consequences will be sufficiently severe to try to 
deter violations and to appropriately discipline prohibited behavior. School action taken 
for violation of this policy will be consistent with requirements of applicable Minnesota 
and federal law and school policies. 

B. The school is not authorized to disclose to a victim private educational or personnel data 
regarding an alleged perpetrator who is a student or employee of the school. School 
officials will notify the victims and alleged perpetrators of harassment or violence, the 
parents or guardians of victims and of alleged perpetrators of harassment or violence who 
have been involved in a reported and confirmed harassment or violence incident of the 
remedial or disciplinary action taken, to the extent permitted by law.The result of the 
school's investigation of each complaint filed under these procedures will be reported in 
writing to the complainant by the school in accordance with state and federal law regarding 
data or records privacy. 

HBA- 91



18 

B.C. In order to prevent or respond to acts of harassment or violence committed by or 
directed against a child with a disability, the school shall, where determined appropriate 
by the child’s individualized education program (IEP) or Section 504 team, allow the 
child’s IEP or Section 504 plan to be drafted to address the skills and proficiencies the 
child needs as a result of the child’s disability to allow the child to respond to or not to 
engage in acts of harassment or violence. 

 

4. REPRISAL 

The school will discipline or take appropriate action against any pupil, teacher, administrator or 
other school personnel who retaliates against any person who asserts, alleges, or makes a good 
faith report of alleged religious, racial or sexual harassment or violence in violation of this policy 
or any person who testifies, assists or participates in an investigation, or who testifies, assists or 
participates in a proceeding or hearing relating to such harassment or violence. Retaliation 
includes, but is not limited to, any form of intimidation, reprisal, or harassment, or intentional 
disparate treatment. 

5. RIGHT TO ALTERNATIVE COMPLAINT PROCEDURES 

These procedures do not deny the right of any individual to pursue other avenues of recourse that 
may include filing charges with the Minnesota Department of Human Rights, or another state or 
federal agency, initiating civil action or seeking redress under state criminal statutes and/or 
federal law. 

5.6. HARASSMENT OR VIOLENCE AS ABUSE 

A. Under certain circumstances, alleged harassment or violence may also be possible abuse 
under Minnesota law. If so, the duties of mandatory reporting under Minnesota Statutes 
chapter 260E Minn. Stat. § 626.556 may be applicable. 

B. Nothing in this policy will prohibit the school from taking immediate action to protect 
victims of alleged harassment, violence, or abuse. 

 

7. DISSEMINATION OF POLICY AND TRAINING 

A. This policy shall be conspicuously posted throughout each school building in areas 
accessible to pupils and staff members. 

B. This policy shall be given to each school employee and independent contractor at the time 
of entering into the person's employment contract.initial employment with the school. 

C. This policy shall be summarized included in the student handbook. 

D. The school will develop a method of discussing this policy with students and employees. 

E. This policy shall be reviewed at least annually for compliance with state and federal law. 

Formatted: List Paragraph, Outline numbered + Level:
1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 2 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0" + Indent at:  0.15"

Formatted: List Paragraph, Right:  0.03", Space After: 
12 pt, Outline numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style:
1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 2 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 
0" + Indent at:  0.15"

HBA- 92



19 

  

HBA- 93



20 

4. Student Disability Nondiscrimination (MSBA #521) 

Adopted by the Best Academy, Inc.Harvest Best Academy Board of Directors: As 
Amended October 26, 2013. 

I. PURPOSE 

The purpose of this Best Academy, Inc. policy is to protect students with disabilities from 
discrimination on the basis of disability and to identify and evaluate learners who, within the 
intent of Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, need special services, accommodations, 
or programs in order that such learners may receive a free appropriate public education. 

II.  GENERAL STATEMENT OF POLICY 

A. Disabled sStudents with disabilities who meet the criteria of Paragraph C. below are 
protected from discrimination on the basis of a disability. 

B. It is the responsibility of the school to identify and evaluate learners who, within the intent 
of Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, need special services, accommodations, 
or programs in order that such learners may receive a free appropriate public education. 

C. For this policy, a learner who is protected under Section 504 is one who: 

1. Has a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more major 
life activities, including learning; or 

2. Has a record of such impairment; or 

3. Is regarded as having such impairment. 

D. Learners may be protected from disability discrimination and be eligible for services, 
accommodations, or programs under the provisions of Section 504 even though they are 
not eligible for special education pursuant to the Individuals with Disabilities Education 
Act. 

III. COORDINATOR 

Persons who have questions, comments, or complaints should contact _________, the Special 
Education Coordinator (SPED Coordinator) at [office address and telephone number]. regarding 
grievances or hearing requests regarding disability issues. This person is the school'’s 
ADAAmericans with Disabilities Act/Section 504 coordinator. 
  

Commented [JS4]: Update with new amended date 

Commented [JS5]: Add name and contact information. It 
can be someone other than SPED Coordinator, but that is 
retained from original.  

HBA- 94



21 

 
4. 5. Title IX Sex Nondiscrimination Policy, Grievance Procedure And 

Process Student Sex Nondiscrimination (MSBA #522) 

Adopted by the Best Academy, Inc.Harvest Best Academy Board of Directors: As 
Amended October 26, 2013. 

I. PURPOSE 

Students are protected from discrimination on the basis of sex pursuant to Title IX of the 
Education Amendments of 1972 and the Minnesota Human Rights Act. The purpose of this policy 
is to provide a nondiscriminatory and safe environment for all persons and to comply with state 
and federal law. equal educational opportunity for all students and to prohibit discrimination on 
the basis of sex. 

II. GENERAL STATEMENT OF POLICY 

A. The school provides equal educational opportunity for all students, and does not unlawfully 
discriminate on the basis of sex in its education programs or activities, and it is required 
by Title IX of the Education Amendments Act of 1972, and its implementing regulations, 
not to discriminate in such a manner. The requirement not to discriminate in its education 
program or activity extends to admission and employment. The school is committed to 
maintaining an education and work environment that is free from discrimination based on 
sex, including sexual harassment.No student will be excluded from participation in, denied 
the benefits of, or otherwise subjected to discrimination under any educational program or 
activity operated by the school on the basis of sex. 

B. The school prohibits sexual harassment that occurs within its education programs and 
activities. When the school has actual knowledge of sexual harassment in its education 
program or activity against a person in the United States, it shall promptly respond in a 
manner that is not deliberately indifferent. It is the responsibility of every school employee 
to comply with this policy. 

C. This policy applies to sexual harassment that occurs within the school’s education 
programs and activities and that is committed by a school employee, student, or other 
members of the school community. This policy does not apply to sexual harassment that 
occurs off school grounds, in a private setting, and outside the scope of the school’s 
education programs and activities. This policy does not apply to sexual harassment that 
occurs outside the geographic boundaries of the United States, even if the sexual 
harassment occurs in the school’s education programs or activities. The school board 
hereby designates the charter school Chief Compliance Officer (CCO) as its Title IX 
coordinator. This employee coordinates the school's efforts to comply with and carry out 
its responsibilities under Title IX. 

Formatted: Font: 13 pt

Formatted: List Paragraph, Numbered + Level: 1 +
Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment:
Left + Aligned at:  0.76" + Indent at:  1.01"

Formatted: Font: 13 pt, Underline

Commented [JS6]: New Title IX Regs are pending and 
may require additional revisions when issued. The proposed 
revisions capture the current law. 

Formatted: Font: 13 pt, Underline

Formatted: Font: 13 pt

Commented [JS7]: Update with new amended date 

HBA- 95



22 

B. Any student, parent or guardian having questions regarding the application of Title IX and 
its regulations and/or this policy should discuss them with the Title IX coordinator. The 
school’s Title IX Coordinator is: 

i. Emily Peterson 
612-876-4077 
epeterson@thebestacademy.org 

Questions relating solely to Title IX and its regulations may be referred to the Title IX 
Coordinator, the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights of the United States Department of 
Education, or both. 

III. DEFINITIONS 

A. “Actual knowledge” means notice of sexual harassment or allegations of sexual harassment 
to the school’s Title IX Coordinator or to any employee of the school. Imputation of 
knowledge based solely on vicarious liability or constructive notice is insufficient to 
constitute actual knowledge. This standard is not met when the only official of the school 
with actual knowledge is the respondent. 

B. “Complainant” means a person who is alleged to be the victim of conduct that could 
constitute sexual harassment under Title IX. A Title IX Coordinator who signs a formal 
complaint is not a complainant unless the Title IX Coordinator is alleged to be the victim 
of the conduct described in the formal complaint.  

C. “Day” or “days” means, unless expressly stated otherwise, business days (i.e. day(s) that 
the school office is open for normal operating hours, Monday - Friday, excluding State-
recognized holidays). 

D. “Deliberately indifferent” means clearly unreasonable in light of the known circumstances. 
The school is deliberately indifferent only if its response to sexual harassment is clearly 
unreasonable in light of the known circumstances. 

E. “Education program or activity” means locations, events, or circumstances for which the 
school exercises substantial control over both the respondent and the context in which the 
sexual harassment occurs and includes school education programs or activities that occur 
on or off of school property. 

F. “Formal complaint” means a document filed by a complainant or signed by the Title IX 
Coordinator alleging sexual harassment against a respondent and requesting that the school 
investigate the allegation of sexual harassment.  

1. A formal complaint filed by a complainant must be a physical document or an 
electronic submission. The formal complaint must contain the complainant’s 
physical or digital signature, or otherwise indicate that the complainant is the person 
filing the formal complaint, and must be submitted to the Title IX Coordinator in 
person, by mail, or by email. 

HBA- 96



23 

2. A formal complaint shall state that, at the time of filing the formal complaint, the 
complainant was participating in, or attempting to participate in, an education 
program or activity of the school with which the formal complaint is filed. 

G. “Informal resolution” means options for resolving a formal complaint that do not involve 
a full investigation and adjudication. Informal resolution may encompass a broad range of 
conflict resolution strategies, including mediation or restorative justice.  

H. “Relevant questions” and “relevant evidence” are questions, documents, statements, or 
information that are related to the allegations raised in a formal complaint. Relevant 
evidence includes evidence that is both inculpatory and exculpatory. Questions and 
evidence about the complainant’s sexual predisposition or prior sexual behavior are not 
relevant, unless such questions and evidence about the complainant’s prior sexual behavior 
are offered to prove that someone other than the respondent committed the conduct alleged 
by the complainant, or if the questions and evidence concern specific incidents of the 
complainant’s prior sexual behavior with respect to the respondent and are offered to prove 
consent. 

I. “Remedies” means actions designed to restore or preserve the complainant’s equal access 
to education after a respondent is found responsible. Remedies may include the same 
individualized services that constitute supportive measures, but need not be non-punitive 
or non-disciplinary, nor must they avoid burdening the respondent.  

J. “Respondent” means an individual who has been reported to be the perpetrator of conduct 
that could constitute sexual harassment under Title IX. 

K. “Sexual harassment” means any of three types of misconduct on the basis of sex that occurs 
in a school education program or activity and is committed against a person in the United 
States: 

1. Quid pro quo harassment by a school employee (conditioning the provision of an 
aid, benefit, or service of the school on an individual's participation in unwelcome 
sexual conduct); 

2. Unwelcome conduct that a reasonable person would find so severe, pervasive, and 
objectively offensive that it denies a person equal educational access; or  

3. Any instance of sexual assault (as defined in the Clery Act, 20 United States Code 
section 1092(f)(6)A(v)), dating violence, domestic violence, or stalking (as defined 
in the Violence Against Women Act, 34 United States Code section 12291). 

L. “Supportive measures” means individualized services provided to the complainant or 
respondent without fee or charge that are reasonably available, non-punitive, non-
disciplinary, not unreasonably burdensome to the other party, and designed to ensure equal 
educational access, protect safety, and deter sexual harassment. Supportive measures may 
include counseling, extensions of deadlines or other course-related adjustments, 
modifications of work or class schedules, alternative educational services as defined under 
Minn. Stat. § 121A.41, as amended, mutual restrictions on contact between the parties, 

Formatted: Font: Italic

HBA- 97



24 

changes in work locations, leaves of absence, increased security and monitoring of certain 
areas of the school buildings or property, and other similar measures. 

M. “Title IX Personnel” means any person who addresses, works on, or assists with the 
school’s response to a report of sexual harassment or formal complaint, and includes 
persons who facilitate informal resolutions. The following are considered Title IX 
Personnel: 

1. “Title IX Coordinator” means an employee of the school that coordinates the 
school’s efforts to comply with and carry out its responsibilities under Title IX. The 
Title IX Coordinator is responsible for acting as the primary contact for the parties 
and ensuring that the parties are provided with all notices, evidence, reports, and 
written determinations to which they are entitled under this policy and grievance 
process. The Title IX Coordinator is also responsible for effective implementation 
of any supportive measures or remedies. The Title IX Coordinator must be free 
from conflicts of interest and bias when administrating the grievance process. 

2. “Investigator” means a person who investigates a formal complaint. The 
investigator of a formal complaint may not be the same person as the Decision-
maker or the Appellate Decision-maker. The Investigator may be a school 
employee, school official, or a third party designated by the school.  

3. “Decision-maker” means a person who makes a determination regarding 
responsibility after the investigation has concluded. The Decision-maker cannot be 
the same person as the Title IX Coordinator, the Investigator, or the Appellate 
Decision-maker.  

4. “Appellate Decision-maker” means a person who considers and decides appeals of 
determinations regarding responsibility and dismissals of formal complaints. The 
Appellate Decision-maker cannot be the same person as the Title IX Coordinator, 
Investigator, or Decision-maker. The Appellate Decision-maker may be a school 
employee, or a third party designated by the school. 

The executive director of the school may delegate functions assigned to a specific 
school employee under this policy, including but not limited to the functions assigned 
to the Title IX Coordinator, Investigator, Decision-maker, Appellate Decision-maker, 
and facilitator of informal resolution processes, to any suitably qualified individual and 
such delegation may be rescinded by the executive director at any time. The school 
may also, in its discretion, appoint suitably qualified persons who are not school 
employees to fulfill any function under this policy, including, but not limited to, 
Investigator, Decision-maker, Appellate Decision-maker, and facilitator of informal 
resolution processes. 

IV. BASIC REQUIREMENTS FOR GRIEVANCE PROCESS 

A. Equitable Treatment  

HBA- 98



25 

The school shall treat complainants and respondents equitably. However, equality or parity 
with respect to supportive measures provided to complainants and respondents is not 
required. 

The school will not impose any disciplinary sanctions or take any other actions against a 
respondent that do not constitute supportive measures until it has completed this grievance 
process and the respondent has been found responsible.  

The school will provide appropriate remedies to the complainant any time a respondent is 
found responsible.  

B. Objective and Unbiased Evaluation of Complaints 

1. Title IX Personnel, including the Title IX Coordinator, Investigator, Decision-
maker, and Appellate Decision-maker, shall be free from conflicts of interest or 
bias for or against complainants or respondents generally or a specific complainant 
or respondent.  

2. Throughout the grievance process, Title IX Personnel will objectively evaluate all 
relevant evidence, inculpatory and exculpatory, and shall avoid credibility 
determinations based solely on a person’s status as a complainant, respondent, or 
witness. 

C. Title IX Personnel will presume that the respondent is not responsible for the alleged 
conduct until a determination regarding responsibility is made at the conclusion of the 
grievance process. 

D. Confidentiality 

The school will keep confidential the identity of any individual who has made a report or 
complaint of sex discrimination, including any individual who has made a report or filed a 
formal complaint of sexual harassment, any complainant, any individual who has been 
reported to be the perpetrator of sex discrimination, any respondent, and any witness, 
except as may be permitted by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), 
20 U.S.C. § 1232g, FERPA regulations, 34 C.F.R. part 99, Minnesota law under Minn. 
Stat. § 13.32, or as required by law, or to carry out the purposes of 34 C.F.R. part 106, 
including the conduct of any investigation, hearing, or judicial proceeding arising 
thereunder (i.e., the school’s obligation to maintain confidentiality shall not impair or 
otherwise affect the complainants and respondents receipt of the information to which they 
are entitled with respect to the investigative record and determination of responsibility). 

E. Right to an Advisor; Right to a Support Person 

Complainants and respondents have the right, at their own expense, to be assisted by an 
advisor of their choice during all stages of any grievance proceeding, including all 
meetings and investigative interviews. The advisor may be, but is not required to be, an 
attorney. In general, an advisor is not permitted to speak for or on behalf of a complainant 
or respondent, appear in lieu of complainant or respondent, participate as a witness, or 
participate directly in any other manner during any phase of the grievance process.  

HBA- 99



26 

A complainant or respondent with a disability may be assisted by a support person 
throughout the grievance process, including all meetings and investigative interviews, if 
such accommodation is necessary. A support person may be a friend, family member, or 
any individual who is not otherwise a potential witness. The support person is not permitted 
to speak for or on behalf of a complainant or respondent, appear in lieu of complainant or 
respondent, participate as a witness, or participate directly in any other manner during any 
phase of the grievance process. 

F. Notice

The school will send written notice of any investigative interviews or meetings to any party 
whose participation is invited or expected. The written notice will include the date, time, 
location, participants, and purpose of the meeting or interview, and will be provided to 
allow sufficient time for the party to prepare to participate.  

G. Consolidation

The school may, in its discretion, consolidate formal complaints as to allegations of sexual 
harassment against more than one respondent, or by more than one complainant against 
one or more respondents, or by one party against the other party, where the allegations of 
sexual harassment arise out of the same facts or circumstances. 

H. Evidence

1. During the grievance process, the school will not require, allow, rely upon, or
otherwise use questions or evidence that constitute or seek disclosure of 
information protected under a legally recognized privilege, unless the person 
holding such privilege has waived the privilege. 

2. The school shall not access, consider, disclose, or otherwise use a party’s medical,
psychological, and similar treatment records unless the school obtains the party’s 
voluntary, written consent. 

I. Burden of Proof

1. The burden of gathering evidence and the burden of proof shall remain upon the
school and not upon the parties. 

2. The grievance process shall use a preponderance of the evidence standard (i.e.
whether it is more likely than not that the respondent engaged in sexual harassment) 
for all formal complaints of sexual harassment, including when school employees 
are respondents. 

J. Timelines

1. Any informal resolution process must be completed within thirty (30) calendar days
following the parties’ agreement to participate in such informal process. 

2. An appeal of a determination of responsibility or of a decision dismissing a formal
complaint must be received by the school within five (5) days of the date the 
determination of responsibility or dismissal was provided to the parties.  

HBA- 100



27 

3. Any appeal of a determination of responsibility or of a dismissal will be decided 
within thirty (30) calendar days of the day the appeal was received by the school.  

4. The school will seek to conclude the grievance process, including any appeal, 
within 120 calendar days of the date the formal complaint was received by the 
school.  

5. Although the school strives to adhere to the timelines described above, in each case, 
the school may extend the time frames for good cause. Good cause may include, 
without limitation: the complexity of the allegations; the severity and extent of the 
alleged misconduct; the number of parties, witnesses, and the types of other 
evidence (e.g., forensic evidence) involved; the availability of the parties, advisors, 
witnesses, and evidence (e.g., forensic evidence); concurrent law enforcement 
activity; intervening school holidays, breaks, or other closures; the need for 
language assistance or accommodation of disabilities; and/or other unforeseen 
circumstances.  

K. Potential Remedies and Disciplinary Sanctions 

1. The following is the range of possible remedies that the school may provide a 
complainant and disciplinary sanctions that the school might impose upon a 
respondent, following determination of responsibility: counseling, extensions of 
deadlines or other course-related adjustments, modifications of work or class 
schedules, mutual or unilateral restrictions on contact between the parties, changes 
in work locations, leaves of absence, monitoring of certain areas of the charter 
school buildings or property, warning, suspension, exclusion, expulsion, transfer, 
remediation, termination, or discharge.   

2. If the Decision-maker determines a student-respondent is responsible for violating 
this policy, the Decision-maker will recommend appropriate remedies, including 
disciplinary sanctions/consequences. The Title IX Coordinator will notify the 
executive director of the recommended remedies, such that an authorized 
administrator can consider the recommendation(s) and implement appropriate 
remedies in compliance with the Student Discipline Policy. The discipline of a 
student-respondent must comply with the applicable provisions of Minnesota Pupil 
Fair Dismissal Act, the Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act 
(IDEA) and/or Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1972, and their respective 
implementing regulations. 

V. REPORTING PROHIBITED CONDUCT 

A. Any student who believes they have been the victim of unlawful sex discrimination or 
sexual harassment, or any person (including the parent of a student) with actual knowledge 
of conduct which may constitute unlawful sex discrimination or sexual harassment toward 
a student should report the alleged acts as soon as possible to the Title IX Coordinator.   

B. Any employee of the school who has experienced, has actual knowledge of, or has 
witnessed unlawful sex discrimination, including sexual harassment, or who otherwise 

HBA- 101



28 

becomes aware of unlawful sex discrimination, including sexual harassment, must 
promptly report the allegations to the Title IX Coordinator without screening or 
investigating the report or allegations. 

C. A report of unlawful sex discrimination or sexual harassment may be made at any time, 
including during non-business hours, and may be made in person, by mail, by telephone, 
or by e-mail using the Title IX Coordinator’s contact information. A report may also be 
made by any other means that results in the Title IX Coordinator receiving the person’s 
verbal or written report. 

D. Sexual harassment may constitute both a violation of this policy and criminal law. To the 
extent the alleged conduct may constitute a crime, the school may report the alleged 
conduct to law enforcement authorities. The school encourages complainants to report 
criminal behavior to the police immediately. 

VI. INITIAL RESPONSE AND ASSESSMENT BY THE TITLE IX COORDINATOR 

A. When the Title IX Coordinator receives a report, the Title IX Coordinator shall promptly 
contact the complainant confidentially to discuss the availability of supportive measures, 
consider the complainant’s wishes with respect to supportive measures, inform the 
complainant of the availability of supportive measures with or without the filing of a formal 
complaint, and explain to the complainant the process for filling a formal complaint. 

B. The school will offer supportive measures to the complainant whether or not the 
complainant decides to make a formal complaint. The school must maintain as confidential 
any supportive measures provided to the complainant or respondent, to the extent that 
maintaining such confidentiality would not impair the school’s ability to provide the 
supportive measures. The Title IX Coordinator is responsible for coordinating the effective 
implementation of supportive measures. 

C. If the complainant does not wish to file a formal complaint, the allegations will not be 
investigated by the school unless the Title IX Coordinator determines that signing a formal 
complaint to initiate an investigation over the complainant’s wishes is not clearly 
unreasonable in light of the known circumstances. 

D. Upon receipt of a formal complaint, the school must provide written notice of the formal 
complaint to the known parties with sufficient time to prepare a response before any initial 
interview. This written notice must contain: 

1. The allegations of sexual harassment, including sufficient details known at the time, 
the identities of the parties involved in the incident (if known), the conduct 
allegedly constituting sexual harassment, and the date and location of the alleged 
incident, if known;  

2. A statement that the respondent is presumed not responsible for the alleged conduct 
and that a determination regarding responsibility will be made at the conclusion of 
the grievance process; 

HBA- 102



29 

3. A statement explaining that the parties may have an advisor of their choice, who 
may be, but is not required to be, an attorney; 

4. A statement that the parties may inspect and review evidence gathered pursuant to 
this policy;  

5. A statement informing the parties of any code of conduct provision that prohibits 
knowingly making false statements or knowingly submitting false information; and  

6. A copy of this policy. 

VII. STATUS OF RESPONDENT DURING PENDENCY OF FORMAL COMPLAINT 

A. Emergency Removal of a Student  

1. The school may remove a student-respondent from an education program or 
activity of the school on an emergency basis before a determination regarding 
responsibility is made if: 

a. The school undertakes an individualized safety and risk analysis;  

b. The school determines that an immediate threat to the physical health or 
safety of any student or other individual arising from the allegations of 
sexual harassment justifies removal of the student-respondent; and  

c. The school determines the student-respondent poses such a threat, it will so 
notify the student-respondent and the student-respondent will have an 
opportunity to challenge the decision immediately following the removal. 
In determining whether to impose emergency removal measures, the Title 
IX Coordinator shall consult related charter school policies, including the 
Student Discipline Policy. The school must take into consideration 
applicable requirements of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act 
and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, prior to removing a 
special education student or Section 504 student on an emergency basis. 

B. Employee Administrative Leave  

The school may place a non-student employee on administrative leave during the pendency of 
the grievance process of a formal complaint. Such leave will typically be paid leave unless 
circumstances justify unpaid leave in compliance with legal requirements. The school must 
take into consideration applicable requirements of Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 
1973 and the Americans with Disabilities Act prior to removing an individual with a qualifying 
disability. 

VIII. INFORMAL RESOLUTION OF A FORMAL COMPLAINT 

A. At any time prior to reaching a determination of responsibility, informal resolution may 
be offered and facilitated by the school at the school’s discretion, but only after a formal 
complaint has been received by the school.   

HBA- 103



30 

B. The school may not require as a condition of enrollment or continued enrollment, or of 
employment or continued employment, or enjoyment of any other right, waiver of the 
right to a formal investigation and adjudication of formal complaints of sexual 
harassment. 

C. The informal resolution process may not be used to resolve allegations that a school 
employee sexually harassed a student. 

D. The school will not facilitate an informal resolution process without both parties’ 
agreement, and will obtain their voluntary, written consent. The school will provide to 
the parties a written notice disclosing the allegations, the requirements of the informal 
resolution process including the circumstances under which it precludes the parties 
from resuming a formal complaint arising from the same allegations, the parties’ right 
to withdraw from the informal resolution process, and any consequences resulting from 
participating in the informal resolution process, including the records that will be 
maintained or could be shared. 

A.E. At any time prior to agreeing to a resolution, any party has the right to withdraw 
from the informal resolution process and resume the grievance process with respect to 
the formal complaint. 

IX. DISMISSAL OF A FORMAL COMPLAINT 

A. Under federal law, the school must dismiss a Title IX complaint, or a portion thereof, if 
the conduct alleged in a formal complaint or a portion thereof: 

1. Would not meet the definition of sexual harassment, even if proven; 

2. Did not occur in the school’s education program or activity; or 

3. Did not occur against a person in the United States.  

B. The school may, in its discretion, dismiss a formal complaint or allegations therein if: 

1. The complainant informs the Title IX Coordinator in writing that the complainant 
desires to withdraw the formal complaint or allegations therein; 

2. The respondent is no longer enrolled or employed by the charter school; or 

3. Specific circumstances prevent the charter school from gathering sufficient 
evidence to reach a determination. 

C. The school shall provide written notice to both parties of a dismissal. The notice must 
include the reasons for the dismissal. 

A.D. Dismissal of a formal complaint or a portion thereof does not preclude the school 
from addressing the underlying conduct in any manner that the school deems appropriate. 

Reporting Grievance Procedures 

A. Any student who believes he or she has been the victim of unlawful sex 
discrimination by a teacher, administrator or other school personnel, or any person 

HBA- 104



31 

with knowledge or belief of conduct which may constitute unlawful sex 
discrimination toward a student should report the alleged acts immediately to an 
appropriate school official designated by this policy or may file a grievance. The 
school encourages the reporting party or complainant to use the report form 
available from the charter school CCO or available from the school office, but oral 
reports shall be considered complaints as well. Nothing in this policy shall prevent 
any person from reporting unlawful sex discrimination toward a student directly 
to the charter school CCO. 

B. The charter school CCO is the person responsible for receiving oral or written 
reports or grievances of unlawful sex discrimination toward a student at the 
building level. Any adult school personnel who receive a report of unlawful sex 
discrimination toward a student shall inform the CCO immediately. 

C. Upon receipt of a report or grievance, the CCO may request, but may not insist 
upon a written complaint. The CCO will forward a written statement of the alleged 
facts as soon as practicable to the Board Chair. If the report was given verbally, 
the CCO shall personally reduce it to written form within 24 hours and forward it 
to the Board Chair. Failure to forward any report or complaint of unlawful sex 
discrimination toward a student as provided herein may result in disciplinary 
action against the CCO. If the complaint involves the CCO, the complaint shall be 
made or filed directly with the Board Chair by the reporting party or complainant. 

D. The school board hereby designates the CCO as the school human rights officer to 
receive reports, complaints or grievances of unlawful sex discrimination toward a 
student. If the complaint involves the CCO, the complaint shall be filed directly 
with the Board Chair. 

E. The school shall conspicuously post the name of the Title IX coordinator and 
human rights officer, including office mailing addresses and telephone numbers. 

 Submission of a good faith complaint, grievance or report of unlawful sex 
discrimination toward a student will not affect the complainant or reporter's future 
employment, grades or work assignments. 

G. Use of formal reporting forms is not mandatory. 

H. The school will respect the privacy of the complainant, the individual(s) against 
whom the complaint is filed, and the witnesses as much as possible, consistent with 
the school's legal obligations to investigate, to take appropriate action, and to 
conform to any discovery or disclosure obligations. 

X. INVESTIGATION OF A FORMAL COMPLAINT 

HBA- 105



32 

A. If a formal complaint is received by the school, the school will assign or designate an 
Investigator to investigate the allegations set forth in the formal complaint.  

B. If during the course of the investigation the school decides to investigate any allegations 
about the complainant or respondent that were not included in the written notice of a 
formal complaint provided to the parties, the school must provide notice of the additional 
allegations to the known parties. 

C. When a party’s participation is invited or expected in an investigative interview, the 
Investigator will coordinate with the Title IX Coordinator to provide written notice to the 
party of the date, time, location, participants, and purposes of the investigative interview 
with sufficient time for the party to prepare.  

D. During the investigation, the Investigator must provide the parties with an equal 
opportunity to present witnesses for interviews, including fact witnesses and expert 
witnesses, and other inculpatory and exculpatory evidence. 

E. Prior to the completion of the investigative report, the Investigator, through the Title IX 
Coordinator, will provide the parties and their advisors (if any) with an equal opportunity 
to inspect and review any evidence directly related to the allegations. The evidence shall 
be provided in electronic format or hard copy and shall include all relevant evidence, 
evidence upon which the school does not intend to rely in reaching a determination 
regarding responsibility, and any inculpatory or exculpatory evidence whether obtained 
from a party or another source. The parties will have ten (10) days to submit a written 
response, which the Investigator will consider prior to completion of the investigative 
report.  

A.F. The Investigator will prepare a written investigative report that fairly summarizes 
the relevant evidence. The investigative report may include credibility determinations that 
are not based on a person’s status as a complainant, respondent or witness. The school 
will send the parties and their advisors (if any) a copy of the report in electronic format or 
hard copy, for their review and written response at least ten (10) days prior to a 
determination of responsibility. 

A. By authority of the school, the CCO, upon receipt of a report, complaint or 
grievance alleging unlawful sex discrimination toward a student shall promptly 
undertake or authorize an investigation. The investigation may be conducted by 
school officials or by a third party designated by the school. 

B. The investigation may consist of personal interviews with the complainant, the 
individual(s) against whom the complaint is filed, and others who may have 
knowledge of the alleged incident(s) or circumstances giving rise to the complaint. 
The investigation may also consist of any other methods and documents deemed 
pertinent by the investigator. 

c. In determining whether alleged conduct constitutes a violation of this policy, the school 
should consider the surrounding circumstances, the nature of the behavior, past 

HBA- 106



33 

incidents or past or continuing patterns of behavior, the relationships between the 
parties involved and the context in which the alleged incidents occurred. Whether 
a particular action or incident constitutes a violation of this policy requires a 
determination based on all the facts and surrounding circumstances. 

D. In addition, the school may take immediate steps, at its discretion, to protect the 
complainant, pupils, teachers, administrators or other school personnel pending 
completion of an investigation of alleged unlawful sex discrimination toward a 
student. 

E. The investigation will be completed as soon as practicable. The CCO shall make 
a written report to the Board Chair upon completion of the investigation. If the 
complaint involves the CCO, the report may be filed directly with the school board 
chairperson. The report shall include a determination of whether the allegations 
have been substantiated as factual and whether they appear to be violations of this 
policy. 

XI. DETERMINATION REGARDING RESPONSIBILITY 

A. After the school has sent the investigative report to both parties and before the school has 
reached a determination regarding responsibility, the Decision-maker must afford each 
party the opportunity to submit written, relevant questions that a party wants asked of any 
party or witness. 

B. The Decision-maker must provide the relevant questions submitted by the parties to the 
other parties or witnesses to whom the questions are offered, and then provide each party 
with the answers, and allow for additional, limited follow-up questions from each party. 

C. The Decision-maker must explain to the party proposing the questions any decision to 
exclude a question as not relevant. 

D. When the exchange of questions and answers has concluded, the Decision-maker must 
issue a written determination regarding responsibility that applies the preponderance of the 
evidence standard to the facts and circumstances of the formal complaint. The written 
determination of responsibility must include the following:  

1. Identification of the allegations potentially constituting sexual harassment; 

2. A description of the procedural steps taken from the receipt of the formal complaint 
through the determination, including any notifications to the parties, interviews 
with parties and witnesses, site visits, and methods used to gather other evidence; 

3. Findings of fact supporting the determination; 

4. Conclusions regarding the application of the school’s code of conduct to the facts;  

5. A statement of, and rationale for, the result as to each allegation, including a 
determination regarding responsibility, any disciplinary sanctions the school 
imposes on the respondent, and whether remedies designed to restore or preserve 

HBA- 107



34 

equal access to the recipient’s education program or activity will be provided by 
the charter school to the complainant; and 

6. The school’s procedures and permissible bases for the complainant and respondent 
to appeal and the date by which an appeal must be made.  

E. In determining appropriate disciplinary sanctions, the Decision-maker should consider the 
surrounding circumstances, the nature of the behavior, past incidents or past or continuing 
patterns of behavior, the relationships between the parties involved, and the context in 
which the alleged incident occurred. 

F. The written determination of responsibility must be provided to the parties simultaneously.  

G. The Title IX Coordinator is responsible for the effective implementation of any remedies.  

H. The determination regarding responsibility becomes final either on the date that the school 
provides the parties with the written determination of the result of the appeal, if an appeal 
is filed, or if an appeal is not filed, the date on which an appeal would no longer be 
considered timely. 

XII. APPEALS 

A. The school shall offer the parties an opportunity to appeal a determination regarding 
responsibility or the school’s dismissal of a formal complaint or any allegations therein, 
on the following bases:  

1. A procedural irregularity that affected the outcome of the matter (e.g., a material 
deviation from established procedures); 

2. New evidence that was not reasonably available at the time the determination 
regarding responsibility or dismissal was made, that could affect the outcome of 
the matter; and 

3. The Title IX Coordinator, Investigator, or Decision-maker had a conflict of 
interest or bias for or against complainants or respondents generally or the 
individual complainant or respondent that affected the outcome of the matter. 

B. If notice of an appeal is timely received by the school, the school will notify the parties in 
writing of the receipt of the appeal, assign or designate the Appellate Decision-maker, and 
give the parties a reasonable, equal opportunity to submit a written statement in support 
of, or challenging, the outcome. 

C. After reviewing the parties’ written statements, the Appellate Decision-maker must issue 
a written decision describing the result of the appeal and the rationale for the result.  

D. The written decision describing the result of the appeal must be provided simultaneously 
to the parties.  

A.E. The decision of the Appellate Decision-maker is final.  No further review beyond 
the appeal is permitted. 

School Action 

HBA- 108



35 

A. Upon conclusion of the investigation and receipt of a report, the school will take 
appropriate action. Such action may include, but is not limited to, warning, 
suspension, exclusion, expulsion, transfer, remediation, termination or discharge. 
School action taken for violation of this policy will be consistent with 
requirements of Minnesota and federal law and school policies. 

B. The result of the school's investigation of each complaint filed under these 
procedures will be reported in writing to the complainant by the school in 
accordance with state and federal law regarding data or records privacy. 

Reprisal 

The school will discipline or take appropriate action against any pupil, teacher, administrator or 
other school personnel who retaliates against any person who reports alleged unlawful sex 
discrimination toward a student or any person who testifies, assists or participates in an 
investigation, or who testifies, assists or participates in a proceeding or hearing relating to such 
unlawful sex discrimination. Retaliation includes, but is not limited to, any form of intimidation, 
reprisal or harassment. 

Right To Alternative Complaint Procedures 

These procedures do not deny the right of any individual to pursue other avenues of recourse 
which may include filing charges with the Minnesota Department of Human Rights, initiating 
civil action or seeking redress under state criminal statutes and/or federal law, or contacting the 
Office of Civil Rights for the United States Department of Education. 

XIII. RETALIATION PROHIBITED 

A. Neither the school nor any other person may intimidate, threaten, coerce, or discriminate 
against any individual for the purpose of interfering with any right or privilege secured by 
Title IX, its implementing regulations, or this policy, or because the individual made a 
report or complaint, testified, assisted, or participated or refused to participate in any 
manner in an investigation, proceeding, or hearing under this policy. Intimidation, threats, 
coercion, or discrimination, including charges against an individual for code of conduct 
violations that do not involve sex discrimination or sexual harassment, but arise out of the 
same facts or circumstances as a report or complaint of sex discrimination, or a report or 
formal complaint of sexual harassment, for the purpose of interfering with any right or 
privilege secured by Title IX, its implementing regulations, or this policy, constitutes 
retaliation. Retaliation against a person for making a report of sexual harassment, filing a 
formal complaint, or participating in an investigation, constitutes a violation of this policy 
that can result in the imposition of disciplinary sanctions/consequences and/or other 
appropriate remedies. 

HBA- 109



36 

B. Any person may submit a report or formal complaint alleging retaliation in the manner 
described in this policy and it will be addressed in the same manner as other complaints 
of sexual harassment or sex discrimination.  

C. Charging an individual with violation of school policies for making a materially false 
statement in bad faith in the course of a grievance proceeding under this policy shall not 
constitute retaliation, provided, however, that a determination regarding responsibility, 
alone, is not sufficient to conclude that any party made a materially false statement in bad 
faith. 

XIV. TRAINING 

A. The school shall ensure that Title IX Personnel receive appropriate training. The 
training shall include instruction on: 

1. The Title IX definition of sexual harassment; 

2. The scope of the school’s education program or activity; 

3. How to conduct an investigation and grievance process, appeals, and informal 
resolution processes, as applicable; 

4. How to serve impartially, including by avoiding prejudgment of the facts at 
issue, conflicts of interest, and bias; 

5. For Decision-makers, training on issues of relevance of questions and 
evidence, including when questions and evidence about the complainant’s prior 
sexual behavior are not relevant; and 

6. For Investigators, training on issues of relevance, including the creation of an 
investigative report that fairly summarizes relevant evidence.  

A.B. The training materials will not rely on sex stereotypes and must promote impartial 
investigations and adjudications of formal complaints.  

B.C. Materials used to train Title IX Personnel must be posted on the school’s website. 
If the school does not have a website, it must make the training materials available for 
public inspection upon request. 

XV. DISSEMINATION OF POLICY AND EVALUATION 

A. This policy shall be made available to all students, parents/guardians of students, staff 
membersschool employees, and employee unions and organizations. 

B. The school shall conspicuously post the name of the Title IX Coordinator, including office 
address, telephone number, and work e-mail address on its website and in each handbook 
that it makes available to parents, employees, students, unions, or applicants. 

C. The school must provide applicants for admission and employment, students, parents or 
legal guardians of secondary school students, employees, and all unions holding collective 
bargaining agreements with the school, with the following:  

HBA- 110



37 

1. The name or title, office address, electronic mail address, and telephone number of 
the Title IX Coordinator; 

2. Notice that the school does not discriminate on the basis of sex in the education 
program or activity that it operates, and that it is required by Title IX not to 
discriminate in such a manner; 

3. A statement that the requirement not to discriminate in the education program or 
activity extends to admission and employment, and that inquiries about the 
application of Title IX may be referred to the Title IX Coordinator, to the Assistant 
Secretary for Civil Rights of the United States Department of Education, or both; 
and 

1. Notice of the school’s grievance procedures and grievance process contained in this 
policy, including how to report or file a complaint of sex discrimination, how to 
report or file a formal complaint of sexual harassment, and how the school will 
respond.   

2.4.The school shall review this policy and the school's operation for compliance with 
state and federal laws prohibiting discrimination on a continuous basis. 

XVI. RECORDKEEPING  

A. The school must create, and maintain for a period of seven calendar years, records of any 
actions, including any supportive measures, taken in response to a report or formal 
complaint of sexual harassment. In each instance, the school must document: 

1. The basis for the school’s conclusion that its response to the report or formal 
complaint was not deliberately indifferent;  

2. The measures the school has taken that are designed to restore or preserve equal 
access to the school’s education program or activity; and 

3. If the school does not provide a complainant with supportive measures, then it must 
document the reasons why such a response was not clearly unreasonable in light of 
the known circumstances. Such a record must be maintained for a period of seven 
years.  

4. The documentation of certain bases or measures does not limit the recipient in the 
future from providing additional explanations or detailing additional measures 
taken. 

B. The school must also maintain for a period of seven calendar years records of: 

1. Each sexual harassment investigation including any determination regarding 
responsibility, any disciplinary sanctions imposed on the respondent, and any 
remedies provided to the complainant designed to restore or preserve equal access 
to the recipient’s education program or activity;  

2. Any appeal and the result therefrom; 

3. Any informal resolution and the result therefrom; and  

HBA- 111



38 

4. All materials used to train Title IX Personnel. 

 
  

HBA- 112



39 

10. Equal Educational Opportunity (MSBA #102) 

Adopted by the Best Academy, Inc.Harvest Best Academy Board of Directors:  

1. PURPOSE 

The purpose of this policy is to ensure that equal educational opportunity is provided for all 
students of the school. 

11.  GENERAL STATEMENT OF POLICY 

A. It is the school's policy to provide equal educational opportunity for all students. 
The school does not unlawfully discriminate on the basis of race, color, creed, 
religion, national origin, sex, marital status, parental status, status with regard to 
public assistance, disability, sexual orientation, including gender identity and 
expression, or age. The school also makes reasonable accommodations for 
disabled studentsstudents with disabilities. 

B. The school prohibits the harassment and discrimination of any individual for any 
of the protected categories listed above. For information about the types of conduct 
that constitute violation of the school's policy on harassment and violence and the 
school 's procedures for addressing such complaints, refer to the school's policy on 
harassment and violence. 

C. The school prohibits discrimination of students with a disability, within the intent 
of Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (“Section 504”), who need 
services, accommodations, or programs in order to receive a free appropriate 
public education. For information as to protections that may apply pursuant to 
Section 504 and the school’s corresponding procedures for addressing disability 
discrimination complaints, refer to the school’s policy on student disability 
nondiscrimination. 

B.D. The school prohibits sexual harassment discrimination of any individual on the 
basis of sex in its education programs or activities. For information as to the 
protections that apply pursuant to Title IX and the school’s procedures for 
addressing sexual harassment and discrimination, refer to the school’s policy on 
Title IX sex nondiscrimination. 

C.E. This policy applies to all areas of education including academics, coursework, co-
curricular and extracurricular activities, or other rights or privileges of enrollment. 

D.F. It is the responsibility of every school employee to comply with this policy 
conscientiously.. 

HBA- 113



40 

E.G. Any student, parent or guardian having any questions regarding this policy should 
discuss it with the Chief Compliance Administrative Officer. 

  

  

HBA- 114



41 

 

11. Equal Employment Opportunity (MSBA #401) 

Adopted by the Best Academy, Inc.Harvest Best Academy Board of Directors:  

1. PURPOSE 

The putposepurpose of this Best Academy, Inc. policy is to provide equal employment 
opportunity for all applicants for school employment and school employees. 

11. GENERAL STATEMENT OF POLICY 

A. It is the school's policy to provide equal employment opportunity for all applicants 
and employees. The school does not unlawfully discriminate on the basis of race, 
color, creed, religion, national origin, sex, marital status, status with regard to 
public assistance, disability, sexual orientation, including gender identity or 
expression, age, and family care leave status or veteran status. The school also 
makes reasonable accommodations for disabled employees. 

B. The school prohibits the harassment of any individual for any of the categories 
listed above. For information about the types of conduct that constitute 
impermissible harassment and the school's internal procedures for addressing 
complaints of harassment, please refer to the school's policy on harassment and 
violence. 

C. c. This policy applies to all areas of employment, including hiring, discharge, 
promotion, compensation, facilities or privileges of employment. 

D. It is the responsibility of every school employee to follow this policy. 

E. Any person having any questions regarding this policy should discuss it with the 
Chief Compliance Administrative Officer. 

 
  

HBA- 115



42 

 
12. Disability Nondiscrimination Policy (MSAB # 402) 

Adopted by the Best Academy, Inc.Harvest Best Academy Board of Directors:  

I1. PURPOSE 

The purpose of this Best Academy, Inc. policy is to provide a fair employment setting for 
all persons and to comply with state and federal law. 

II11. GENERAL STATEMENT OF POLICY 

A. The school shall not discriminate against qualified individuals with disabilities 
because of the disabilities of such individuals in regard to job application 
procedures, hiring, advancement, discharge, compensation, job training, and other  
terms, conditions, and privileges of employment. 

B. The school shall not engage in contractual or other arrangements that have the effect 
of subjecting its qualified applicants or employees with disabilities to 
discrimination on the basis of disability. The school shall not exclude or otherwise 
deny equal jobs or job benefits to a qualified individual because of the known 
disability of an individual with whom the qualified individual is known to have a 
relationship or association. 

C. The school shall make reasonable accommodations for the known physical or 
mental limitations of an otherwise qualified individual with a disability who is an 
applicant or employee, unless the accommodation would impose undue hardship 
on the operation of the business of the school. 

D. Any job applicant or employee wishing to discuss the need for a reasonable 
accommodation, or other matters related to a disability or the enforcement and 
application of this policy, should contact the Chief Compliance Administrative 
Officer. This individual is the schools' appointed American with Disabilities Act 
(ADA Section 504) coordinator.

Commented [JS8]: Emily, is this the appropriate contact? 
Also list the name, title, office address, telephone number 
and email address) 

HBA- 116



 

43 

13. Public and Private Personnel Data (MSBA #406) 

Adopted by the Best Academy, Inc.Harvest Best Academy Board of Directors: As 
Amended October 26, 2013. 

I1. PURPOSE 

The purpose of this policy is to provide guidance to school employees regarding the data 
the school collects and maintains regarding its employees, volunteers, independent 
contractors, and applicants (“personnel”). 

II11. GENERAL STATEMENT OF POLICY 

A. All data on individuals collected, created, received, maintained or disseminated by 
the school, which is classified by statute or federal law as public, shall be accessible 
to the public pursuant to the procedures established by the school. 

B. All other data on individuals is private or confidential. 

III. DEFINITIONS 

A. "Public" means that the data is available to anyone who requests it. 

B. "Private" means the data is not public and is only available to the subject of the 
data, as limited by state or federal law, school staff whose work assignments 
reasonably require access; entities and agencies who are authorized by law to gain 
access to that specific data; and entities or individuals given access by the express 
written direction of the data subject. who need it to conduct the business of the 
school.  

C.B. "Confidential" means the data is not public and is not available to the subject. 

D.C. "Parking space leasing data" means the following government data on an 
application for, or leassee of, a parking space: residence address, home telephone 
number, beginning and ending work hours, place of employment, location of 
parking space, and work telephone number. 

E.D. "Personnel data'' means data on individuals collected and maintained  because they 
are or were employees, of the school, applicants for employment, volunteers for the 
school, or or independent contractors for the school.members of or applicants for 
an advisory board or commission. Personnel data include data submitted to the 
school by an employee as part of an organized self-evaluation effort by the school 
to request suggestions from all employees on ways to cut costs, make the school 
more efficient, or to improve school operations. An employee who is identified in 
a suggestion shall have access to all data in the suggestion except the identity of the 
employee making the suggestion. 

HBA- 117



44 

F.E. "Finalist" means an individual who is selected to be interviewed by the school board 
for a position. 

G.F. "Protected health information" means individually identifiable health information 
as defined by federal law, that is transmitted by electronic media, maintained in 
electronic media, or transmitted or maintained in any other form or medium by a 
health care provider, in connection with a transaction covered by federal 
law.transmitted in electronic form by a school acting as a healthcare provider. 
"Protected health information" excludes individually identifiable health 
information in education records covered by the Family Educational Rights and 
Privacy ActFERPA and employment records held by a school in its role as 
employer. 

IV. PUBLIC PERSONNEL DATA

A. The following information on current and former employees, including volunteers and 
independent contractors of the school, is public: 

• name;

• employee identification number, which may not be the
employee’s Social Security number;

• actual gross salary;

• salary range;

• terms and conditions of employment relationship;

• contract fees;

• actual gross pension;

• the value and nature of employer-paid fringe benefits;

• the basis for and the amount of any added remuneration, including 
expense reimbursement, in addition to salary;

• job title;

• bargaining unit;

• job description;

• education and training background;

• previous work experience;

• date of first and last employment;

• the existence and status of any complaints or charges against the
employee, regardless of whether the complaint or charge resulted
in a disciplinary action;

HBA- 118



 

45 

• the final disposition of any disciplinary action, as defined in 
Minnesota Statutes section 13.43, subdivision. 2(b), together with 
the specific reasons for the action and data documenting the basis 
of the action, excluding data that would identify confidential 
sources who are employees of the school; 

• the complete terms of any agreement settling any dispute arising 
out of the employment relationship, including executive director 
buyout agreements, except that the agreement must include 
specific reasons for the agreement if it involves the payment of 
more than $10,000 of public money, and such agreement may not 
have the purpose or effect of limiting access to or disclosure of 
personnel data or limiting the discussion of information or 
opinions related to personnel data; 

• work location; 

• work telephone number; 

• badge number; 

• work-related continuing education; 

• honors and awards received; and 

• payroll time sheets or other comparable data that are used only to 
account for employee’s work time for payroll purposes, except to 
the extent that release of time sheet data would reveal the 
employee’s reasons for the use of sick or other medical leave or 
other not public data. 

 
B. The following information on current or former applicants for employment or to 

an advisory board/ commissionby the school is public: 

• Veteran status; 

• Relevant test scores; 

• Rank on eligible list; 

• Job history; 

• Education and training; and 

• Work availability. 

C. Names of applicants are private data except when certified as eligible for 
appointment to a vacancy or when they becomethe School Board considers them 
to be finalists for an employment positionpublic employment. 

HBA- 119



 

46 

D. Data about applicants for appointment to a public body collected by the school as 
a result of the applicant’s application for appointment are private data on 
individuals except that the following are public: 

• name; 

• city of residence, except when the appointment has a residency 
requirement that requires the entire address to be public; 

• education and training; 

• employment history; 

• volunteer work; 

• awards and honors; 

• prior government service; 

• any data required to be provided or that are voluntarily provided 
in an application for appointment to a multimember agency 
pursuant to Minnesota Statutes section 15.0597; and 

• veteran status. 

Once an individual is appointed to a public body, the following additional items 
of data are public: 

• residential address; 

• either a telephone number or electronic mail address where the 
appointee can be reached, or both at the request of the appointee; 

• first and last dates of service on the public body; 

• the existence and status of any complaints or charges against an 
appointee; and 

• upon completion of an investigation of a complaint or charge 
against an appointee, the final investigative report is public, unless 
access to the data would jeopardize an active investigation. 

 
D. Names and home addresses of applicants for appointment to and members of an 

advisory board/commission are public. 

E. Regardless of whether there has been a final disposition as defined in Minn. Stat. 
 13.43, Subd. 2(b), upon completion of an investigation of a complaint or charge 

against a public official, as defined in Minn. Stat. § 13.43, Subd. 2(e), or if a public 
official resigns or is terminated from employment while the complaint or charge 
is pending, all data relating to the complaint or charge are public, unless access to 

HBA- 120



 

47 

the data would jeopardize an active investigation or reveal confidential sources. 
Data relating to a complaint or charge against a public official is public only if: 

1. the complaint or charge results in disciplinary action or the employee resigns 
or is terminated from employment while the complaint or charge is pending; 
or 

2. potential legal claims arising out of the conduct that is the subject of the 
complaint or charge are released as part of a settlement agreement 

Data that is classified as private under another law is not made public by this 
provision. 

V. PRIVATE PERSONNEL DATA 

A. All other personnel data not included in Section IV are private and will only be 
shared with school staff whose work requires such access. Private data will not be 
otherwise released unless authorized by law. or by the employee's informed 
written consent. 

B. Data pertaining to an employee's dependents are private data on individuals. 

C. Data created, collected or maintained by the school to administer employee 
assistance programs are private. 

D. Parking space leasing data with regard to data on individuals are private. 

D.E. An individual’s checking account number is private when submitted to a 
government entity. 

E.F. Personnel data must be disseminated to labor organizations to the extent necessary 
to conduct elections, investigate and process grievances, and implement the 
provisions of Minnesota Statutes chapters 179 and 179A.  Personnel data shall be 
disseminated to labor organizations and the Minnesota Bureau of Mediation 
Services (“BMS”) to the extent the dissemination is ordered or authorized by the 
Commissioner of the BMS. Employee Social Security numbers are not necessary 
to implement the provisions of Chapter 179 and 179A. 

The home addresses, nonemployer issued phone numbers and email addresses, 
dates of birth, and emails or other communications between exclusive 
representatives and their members, prospective members, and nonmembers are 
private data on individuals. 

Dissemination of personnel data to a labor organization pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 
13.43, Subd. 6, shall not subject the school to liability under Minn. Stat. § 13.08. 

HBA- 121



 

48 

Personnel data described under Minn. Stat. § 179A.07, Subd. 8, must be 
disseminated to an exclusive representative under the terms of that subdivision. 

F.G. The school may display a photograph of a current or former employee to 
prospective witnesses as part of the school's investigation of any complaint or 
charge against the employee. 

G. The school may, if the responsible authority or designee reasonably determines 
that the release of personnel data is necessary to protect an employee from harm 
to self or to protect another person who may be harmed by the employee, release 
data that are relevant to the concerns for safety to: 

1. The person who may be harmed and to the attorney representing the 
person when the data are relevant to obtaining a restraining order; 

1.2.  A pre-petition screening team conducting an investigation of the 
employee under Minn. Stat. § 253B.07, Subd. 1; or 

2.3.A court, law enforcement agency or prosecuting authority. 

H. Private personnel data or confidential investigative data on employees may be 
disseminated to a law enforcement agency for the purpose of reporting a crime or 
alleged crime committed by an employee, or for the purpose of assisting law 
enforcement in the investigation of such a crime or alleged crime. 

I. 1. A complainant has access to a statement provided by the complainant to the 
school in connection with a complaint or charge against an employee. 

J. When allegations of sexual or other types of harassment are made against an 
employee, the employee shall not have access to data that would identify the 
complainant or other witnesses if the school determines that the employee's access 
to that data would: 

1. Threaten the personal safety of the complainant or a witness; or 

2. Subject the complainant or witness to harassment. 

 

If a disciplinary proceeding is initiated against the employee, data on the 
complainant or witness shall be available to the employee as may be necessary for 
the employee to prepare for the proceeding. 

The school shall makemust any report to the Minnesota Professional Educator 
Licensing and Standards Board (“PELSB”) or the Board of School Administrators 
(“BOSA”), whichever has jurisdiction over the teacher’s or administrator’s 
license, board of teaching or the state Board of Directors as required by Minn. Stat. 
§ 122A.20, Subd. 2, and shall, upon written request from the licensing board 
having jurisdiction over a teacher'sthe license, provide the licensing board with 

Commented [JS9]: Formatting issue. This paragraph 
should become “H” and so forth. 

HBA- 122



 

49 

information about the teacher or administrator from the school 's files, any 
termination or disciplinary proceeding, and settlement or compromise, or any 
investigative file in accordance with Minn. Stat. § 122A.20, Subd. 2. 
 

K. Private personnel data shall be disclosed to the Minnesota Department of 
Employment and Economic Development department of economic security for the 
purpose of administration of the unemployment insurance program under Minn. 
Stat. Ch. 268. 

L. When a report of alleged maltreatment of a student in a school is made to the 
Commissioner of the Minnesota Department of Education (“MDE”) under Minn. 
Stat. Ch. 260E,Education, data that are relevant and collected by the school about 
the person alleged to have committed maltreatment must be provided to the 
Commissioner on request for purposes of an assessment or investigation of the 
maltreatment report. Additionally, personnel data may be released for purposes of 
providing information to a parent, legal guardian, or custodian of a child in 
accordance with MDE Screening Guidelines. 

M. The school shall release to a requesting school or school private personnel data on 
a current or former employee related to acts of violence toward or sexual contact 
with a student, if  

1. an investigation conducted by or on behalf of the school or law enforcement 
affirmed the allegations in writing prior to release and the investigation 
resulted in the resignation of the subject of the data; or  

2. the employee resigned while a complaint or charge involving the allegations 
was pending, the allegations involved acts of sexual contact with a student, 
and the employer informed the employee in writing, before the employee 
resigned, that if the employee resigns while the complaint or charge is still 
pending, the employer must release private personnel data about the 
employee’s alleged sexual contact with a student to a  school or  school 
requesting the data after the employee applies for employment with that  
school or school and the data remain classified as provided in Minn. Stat. 
Ch. 13.   

Data that are released under this paragraph must not include data on the student. 

M. Data submitted by an employee to the school as part of an organized self-evaluation 
effort by the school to request suggestions from all employees on ways to cut costs, 
make the school more efficient, or improve the school operations is private data. 
An employee who is identified in a suggestion, however, shall have access to all 
data in the suggestion except the identity of the employee making the 
suggestion.The identity of an employee making a suggestion as part of an 

HBA- 123



 

50 

organized selfevaluation effort by the school to cut costs, make the school more 
efficient, or to improve school operations is private. 

N.  

O. Protected Health information on employees is private unless otherwise provided 
by law. To the extent that the school transmits protected health information, the 
school will comply with all privacy requirements. 

P. Personal home contact information for employees may be used by the school to 
ensure that an employee can be reached in the event of an emergency or other 
disruption affecting continuity of school operations and may be shared with 
another government entity in the event of an emergency or other disruption to 
ensure continuity of operation for the school or government entity. 

Q. The personal telephone number, home address, and electronic mail address of a 
current or former employee of a contractor or subcontractor maintained as a result 
of a contractual relationship between the school and a contractor or subcontractor 
entered on or after August 1, 2012, are private data. These data must be shared with 
another government entity to perform a function authorized by law. The data also 
must be disclosed to a government entity or any person for prevailing wage 
purposes. 

N.R. When a continuing contract teacher is discharged immediately because the 
teacher’s license has been revoked due to a conviction for child abuse or sexual 
offenses involving a child as set forth in Minn. Stat. § 122A.40, Subd. 13(b), or 
when the Commissioner of the MDE makes a final determination of child 
maltreatment involving a teacher under Minn. Stat. § 260E.21, Subd. 4 or 35, the 
school principal or other person having administrative control of the school must 
include in the teacher’s employment record the information contained in the record 
of the disciplinary action or the final maltreatment determination, consistent with 
the definition of public data under Minn. Stat. § 13.41, Subd. 5, and must provide 
PELSB and the licensing division at MDE with the necessary and relevant 
information to enable PELSB and MDE’s licensing division to fulfill their statutory 
and administrative duties related to issuing, renewing, suspending, or revoking a 
teacher’s license. In addition to the background check required under Minn. Stat. 
§ 123B.03, a school board or other school hiring authority must contact PELSB 
and MDE to determine whether the teacher’s license has been suspended or 
revoked, consistent with the discharge and final maltreatment determinations. 
Unless restricted by federal or state data practices law or by the terms of a collective 
bargaining agreement, the responsible authority for a school must disseminate to 
another school private personnel data on a current or former teacher (employee or 
contractor) of the district, including the results of background investigations, if the 
requesting school seeks the information because the subject of the data has applied 
for employment with the requesting school. 

HBA- 124



 

51 

6.8. MULTIPLE CLASSIFICATIONS 

If Minn. Stat. Ch. 13, or any other state or federal law classifies data on individuals as both private 
and confidential, the data are private. 

7.9. CHANGE IN CLASSIFICATIONS 

The school shall change the classification of data in its possession if it is required to do so to 
comply with other either judicial or administrative rules pertaining to the conduct of legal actions 
or with a specific statute applicable to the data in the possession of the disseminating or receiving 
agency. 

8.10. RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY 

The school has designated the Human Resources Director as the authority responsible for 
personnel data. 

9.11. EMPLOYEE AUTHORIZATION/RELEASE FORM 

An employee authorization form is included as an addendum to this policy.  

Commented [JS10]: Formatting got off. This could be 
“VI.” Attempting to address in track changes creates further 
formatting issues.  

Commented [JS11]: VII. 

Commented [JS12]: VIII 

Commented [LTK13]: Name and contact information 
should be included 

Commented [JS14]: IX 

HBA- 125



 

52 

FORM: EMPLOYEE AUTHORIZATION FOR RELEASE OF INFORMATION 

TO: Harvest Best Academy 
 1300 Olson Memorial Highway 
 Minneapolis, MN 55411 
 
RE: Personnel Records of [full 
name]:_______________________________________________ 

Date of Birth: 
 

This is your full and sufficient authorization, pursuant to Minn. Stat. 13.05, Subd. 4, and Minn. 

Rules 1205.1400, Subp. 4, to release to Best Academy, 
Inc________________________________, its representatives, agents, or employees, private 
personnel data concerning my employment at the school. all information pertaining to [describe/ 
maintained by the employer school, withThe specific data I want to release includes [specify 
data]: 

 

 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 
the following exceptions:  

The information is needed for the purpose of [specify] 

 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

 

This authorization specifically includes records prepared prior to the date of this authorization 

and records prepared after the date of this authorization, such records to be used only for the 

HBA- 126



 

53 

purpose specified. I do not authorize re-release of this information by the third party. I 

understand that although the data are classified as private at the school, classification/treatment 

of the data at the entity it is released to depends on laws or policies that apply to that entity. . 

 

I understand that I may revoke this consent in writing at any time. Upon the fulfillment of the 

above-stated purpose, this consent will automatically expire without my express revocation. A 

photocopy of this authorization will be treated in the same manner as an original. 

Dated:_____________________  _____________________________________ 
Signature of Employee 

ATTENTION PUBLIC FACILITIES: Minn. Stat. 13.05 requires automatic expiration of this 
authorization one (1) year from the date of authorization.  

HBA- 127



 

54 

 
15. Family and Medical Leave Policy (MSBA #410) 

Adopted by the Best Academy, Inc.Harvest Best Academy Board of Directors: As Amended 
October 26, 2013. 

I1. PURPOSE 

The purpose of this policy is to provide for family and medical leave to school employees in 
accordance with the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) and also with parenting leave under 
state law. 

II11. GENERAL STATEMENT OF POLICY 

The following procedures and policies regarding family and medical leave are adopted by the 
school, pursuant to the requirements of the FMLA and consistent with the requirements of the 
Minnesota parenting leave laws. 

III. DEFINITIONS 
 

A. “Covered active duty” means: 

1. in the case of a member of a regular component of the Armed Forces, duty during 
the deployment of the member with the Armed Forces to a foreign country; and 

2. in the case of a member of a reserve component of the Armed Forces, duty during 
the deployment of the member with the Armed Forces to a foreign country under a 
call or order to active duty under a provision of law referred to in 10 United States 
Code section 101(a)(13)(B). 

B. “Covered servicemember” means: 

1. a member of the Armed Forces, including a member of the National Guard or 
Reserves, who is undergoing medical treatment, recuperation, or therapy, is 
otherwise in outpatient status, or is otherwise on the temporary disability retired 
list, for a serious injury or illness; or 

2. a covered veteran who is undergoing medical treatment, recuperation, or therapy 
for a serious injury or illness and who was a member of the Armed Forces, 
including a member of the National Guard or Reserves, and was discharged or 
released under conditions other than dishonorable, at any time during the period of 
five years preceding the first date the eligible employee takes FMLA leave to care 
for the covered veteran. 

C. “Eligible employee” means an employee who has been employed by the charter school for 
a total of at least 12 months and who has been employed for at least 1,250 hours of service 
during the 12-month period immediately preceding the commencement of the leave.  An 
employee returning from fulfilling his or her Uniformed Services Employment and 

HBA- 128



 

55 

Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA)-covered service obligation shall be credited with 
the hours of service that would have been performed but for the period of absence from 
work due to or necessitated by USERRA-covered service.   In determining whether the 
employee met the hours of service requirement, and to determine the hours that would have 
been worked during the period of absence from work due to or necessitated by USERRA-
covered service, the employee’s pre-service work schedule can generally be used for 
calculations.  While the 12 months of employment need not be consecutive, employment 
periods prior to a break in service of seven years or more may not be counted unless: (1) 
the break is occasioned by the employee’s fulfillment of his or her USERRA-covered 
service obligation; or (2) a written agreement, including a collective bargaining agreement, 
exists concerning the charter school’s intention to rehire the employee after the break in 
service. 

D. “Military caregiver leave” means leave taken to care for a covered servicemember with a 
serious injury or illness. 

E. “Next of kin of a covered servicemember” means the nearest blood relative other than the 
covered servicemember’s spouse, parent, son, or daughter, in the following order of 
priority:  blood relatives who have been granted legal custody of the covered 
servicemember by court decree or statutory provisions, brothers and sisters, grandparents, 
aunts and uncles, and first cousins, unless the covered servicemember has specifically 
designated in writing another blood relative as his or her nearest blood relative for purposes 
of military caregiver leave under the FMLA.  When no such designation is made and there 
are multiple family members with the same level of relationship to the covered 
servicemember, all such family members shall be considered the covered servicemember’s 
next of kin, and the employee may take FMLA leave to provide care to the covered 
servicemember, either consecutively or simultaneously.  When such designation has been 
made, the designated individual shall be deemed to be the covered servicemember’s only 
next of kin. 

F. “Outpatient status” means, with respect to a covered servicemember who is a current 
member of the Armed Forces, the status of a member of the Armed Forces assigned to: 

1. a military medical treatment facility as an outpatient; or 

2. a unit established for the purpose of providing command and control of members 
of the Armed Forces receiving care as outpatients. 

G. “Qualifying exigency” means a situation where the eligible employee seeks leave for one 
or more of the following reasons: 

1. to address any issues that arise from a short-notice deployment (seven calendar 
days or less) of a covered military member; 

2. to attend military events and related activities of a covered military member; 

3. to address issues related to childcare and school activities of a covered military 
member’s child; 

4. to address financial and legal arrangements for a covered military member; 

HBA- 129



 

56 

5. to attend counseling provided by someone other than a health care provider for 
oneself, a covered military member, or his/her child; 

6. to spend up to 15 calendar days with a covered military member who is on short-
term, temporary rest and recuperation leave during a period of deployment; 

7. to attend post-deployment activities related to a covered military member; 

8. to address care needs of a covered military member’s parent who is incapable of 
self-care; and 

9. to address other events related to a covered military member that both the employee 
and charter school agree is a qualifying exigency. 

H. “Serious health condition” means an illness, injury, impairment, or physical or mental 
condition that involves: 

1. inpatient care in a hospital, hospice, or residential medical care facility; or 

2. continuing treatment by a health care provider. 

I. “Spouse” means a husband or wife.  For purposes of this definition, husband or wife refers 
to the other person with whom an individual entered into marriage as defined or recognized 
under state law for purposes of marriage in the state in which the marriage was entered into 
or, in the case of a marriage entered into outside of any state, if the marriage is valid in the 
place where entered into and could have been entered into in at least one state.  This 
definition includes an individual in a same-sex or common law marriage that either: (1) 
was entered into in a state that recognizes such marriages; or (2) if entered into outside of 
any state, is valid in the place where entered into and could have been entered into in at 
least one state. 

J. “Veteran” has the meaning given in 38 United States Code section 101. 

 
IV. LEAVE ENTITLEMENT 
 

A. Twelve-week Leave 

1. Eligible employees are entitled to a total of 12 work weeks of unpaid family or 
medical leave during the applicable 12-month period as defined below, plus any 
additional leave as required by law.   Leave may be taken for one or more of the 
following reasons in accordance with applicable law:Regular full-time and part-
time employees who have been employed by the school for at least 12 months and 
have worked at least 1,250 hours during the 12- month period immediately 
preceding the commencement of the leave are entitled to a total of 12 work weeks 
of unpaid family or medical leave during the applicable 12-month period as defined 
below, plus any additional leave as required by law. Leave may be taken for one or 
more of the following reasons in accordance with applicable law: 

a. Birth of the employee's child and to care for the child; 

HBA- 130



 

57 

b. Placement of an adopted or foster child with the employee; 

c. To care for the employee's spouse, son, daughter or parent with a serious 
health condition; and/or 

d. The employee's serious health condition makes the employee unable to 
perform the functions of the employee's job; and/or 

d.e. Any qualifying exigency arising from the employee’s spouse, son, 
daughter, or parent being on covered active duty, or notified of an 
impending call or order to active duty in the Armed Forces.. 

2. For the purposes of this policy, "year" is defined as a rolling 12-month period 
measured backward from the date an employee uses any leave. 

2.3.An employee’s entitlement to FMLA leave for the birth, adoption, or foster care of 
a child expires at the end of the 12-month period beginning on the date of the birth 
or placement. 

4. A "serious health condition" typically requires either inpatient care or continuing 
treatment by or under the supervision of a health care provider, as defined by 
applicable law. Family and medical leave generally is not intended to cover short-
term conditions for which treatment and recovery are very brief. 

5. In the context of a member of the Armed Forces, National Guard, or Reserves, a 
“serious injury or illness” means one that was incurred by the member in the line 
of duty on active duty in the Armed Forces or that was previously existing and was 
aggravated by service in the line of duty on active duty and that may render the 
member medically unfit to perform the duties of the member’s office, grade, rank, 
or rating. In the case of a covered veteran who was a member of the Armed Forces, 
National Guard, or Reserves at any time, during the period of five years preceding 
the date on which the veteran undergoes the medical treatment, recuperation, or 
therapy, a “serious injury or illness” means a qualifying injury or illness that was 
incurred by the member in the line of duty on active duty in the Armed Forces or 
that existed before the beginning of the member’s active duty and was aggravated 
by service in the line of duty in the Armed Forces and that manifested itself before 
or after the member became a veteran, and is: 

a. a continuation of a serious injury or illness that was incurred or aggravated 
when the covered veteran was a member of the Armed Forces and rendered 
the servicemember unable to perform the duties of the servicemember’s 
office, grade, rank, or rating; or 

b. a physical or mental condition for which the covered veteran has received 
a U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs Service-Related Disability 
(VASRD) rating of 50 percent or greater and such VASRD rating is based, 
in whole or in part, on the condition precipitating the need for military 
caregiver leave; or 

HBA- 131



 

58 

c. a physical or mental condition that substantially impairs the covered 
veteran’s ability to secure or follow a substantially gainful occupation by 
reason of a disability or disabilities related to military service, or would do 
so absent treatment; or 

a.d. an injury, including a psychological injury, on the basis of which the 
covered veteran has been enrolled in the Department of Veterans Affairs 
Program of Comprehensive Assistance for Family Caregivers. 

3.6.Eligible spouses employed by the school are limited to an aggregate of twelve 
weeks of leave during any 12-month period for the birth or adoption of a child, the 
placement of a child for foster care or to care for a parent. This limitation for 
spouses employed by the school does not apply to leave taken by one spouse to 
care for the other spouse who is seriously ill, to care for a child with a serious health 
condition, or because of the employee's own serious health condition, or other 
qualifying reason under this policy.. 

4.7.Depending on the type of leave, intermittent or reduced schedule leave may be 
granted at the discretion of the school or when medically necessary. However, part-
time employees are only eligible for a pro-rata portion of leave to be used on an 
intermittent or reduced schedule basis, based on their average hours worked per 
week. Where an intermittent or reduced schedule leave is foreseeable based on 
planned medical treatment, the school may transfer the employee temporarily to an 
available alternative position for which the employee is qualified and which better 
accommodates recurring periods of leave than does the employee's regular position, 
and which has equivalent pay and benefits. 

5.8.If an employee requests a leave for the serious health condition of the employee or 
the employee's spouse, child or parent, the employee will be required to submit 
sufficient medical certification. In such a case, the employee must submit the 
medical certification within 15 days from the date of the request or as soon as 
practicable under the circumstances. 

9. If the school has reason to doubt the validity of a health care provider's certification, 
it may require a second opinion at the school's expense. If the opinions of the first 
and second health care providers differ, the school may require certification from 
a third health care provider at the school's expense. An employee may also be 
required to present a certification from a health care provider indicating that the 
employee is able to return to work. 

6.10. If an employee requests a leave related to the employee’s spouse, son, 
daughter, or parent being on covered active duty, or notified of an impending call 
or order to active duty in the Armed Forces, the school may require the employee 
to submit a copy of the covered military member’s active duty orders or other 
documentation issued by the military indicating active duty or a call to active duty 
status and the dates of active duty service. Additionally, the school may require the 

HBA- 132



 

59 

employee to provide sufficient certification supporting the qualifying exigency for 
which leave is requested. 

7.11. Requests for leave shall be made to the school. Employees must give 30 
days' written notice of a leave of absence where practicable. Employees are 
expected to make a reasonable effort to schedule leaves resulting from planned 
medical treatment so as not to disrupt unduly the operations of the school, subject 
to and in coordination with the health care provider. 

8.12. During the period of a leave permitted under this policy (which does not 
exceed a total of 12 work weeks in the applicable 12- month period), the school 
will provide health insurance under its group health plan under the same conditions 
coverage would have been provided had the employee not taken the leave. The 
employee will be responsible for payment of the employee contribution to continue 
group health insurance coverage during the leave. An employee's failure to make 
necessary and timely contributions may result in termination of coverage.  

9.13. The school may request or require the employee to substitute accrued paid 
leave for any part of the 12-week period. Employees may be allowed to substitute 
paid leave for unpaid leave by meeting the requirements set out in the 
administrative directives and guidelines established for the implementation of this 
policy, if any. Employees eligible for leave must comply with the family and 
medical leave directives and guidelines prior to starting leave. It shall be the 
responsibility of the charter school director to develop directives and guidelines as 
necessary to implement this policy. Such directives and guidelines shall be 
submitted to the school board for annual review. The school shall comply with 
written notice requirements as set forth in federal regulations. 

10.14. Employees returning from a leave permitted under this policy (which does 
not exceed a total of 12 work weeks in the applicable 12- month period) are eligible 
for reinstatement in the same or an equivalent position as provided by law. 
However, the employee has no greater right to reinstatement or to other benefits 
and conditions of employment than if the employee had been continuously 
employed during the leave. 

11.15. An employee who does not return to work after leave may, in some 
situations, be required to reimburse the school for the cost of the health plan 
premiums paid by it. 

B. Twelve-Week Leave Under State Law 

1. An employee who does not qualify for parenting leave under the provisions above 
may qualify for a 12-week unpaid leave which is available to a biological or 
adoptive parent in conjunction with the birth or adoption of a child, or to a female 
employee for prenatal care or incapacity due to pregnancy, childbirth, or related 
health conditions under state law. The length of the leave shall be determined by 
the employee but must not exceed 12 weeks. This leave is separate and exclusive 
of the family and medical leave described in the preceding paragraphs but may be 

Commented [LK15]: Add the title of whoever will be 
responsible for this 

HBA- 133



 

60 

reduced by any period of paid parental, disability, personal, or medical, or sick 
leave, or accrued vacation provided by the school so that the total leave does not 
exceed 12 weeks or the leave taken for the same purpose under the FMLA. The 
leave taken under this section shall begin at a time requested by the employee and 
the employee must give the school reasonable notice of the date the leave shall 
commence and the estimated duration of the leave. For leave taken by a biological 
or adoptive parent in conjunction with the birth or adoption of a child, the leave 
must begin within 12 months of the birth or adoption; except that, in the case where 
the child must remain in the hospital longer than the mother, the leave must begin 
within 12 months after the child leaves the hospital. 

C. Twenty-Six Week Servicemember Family Military Leave 

1. An eligible employee who is the spouse, son, daughter, parent, or next of kin of a 
covered servicemember shall be entitled to a total of 26 work weeks of leave during 
a 12-month period to care for the servicemember. The leave described in this 
paragraph shall be available only during a single 12-month period. For purposes of 
this leave, the need to care for a servicemember includes both physical and 
psychological care. 

2. During a single 12-month period, an employee shall be entitled to a combined total 
of 26 work weeks of leave under Paragraphs IV.A. and IV.C. above. 

3. The 12-month period referred to in this section begins on the first day the eligible 
employee takes leave to care for a covered servicemember and ends 12 months 
after that date. 

4. Eligible spouses employed by the charter school are limited to an aggregate of 26 
weeks of leave during any 12-month period if leave is taken for birth of the 
employee’s child or to care for the child after birth; for placement of a child with 
the employee for adoption or foster care or to care for the child after placement; to 
care for the employee’s parent with a serious health condition; or to care for a 
covered servicemember with a serious injury or illness. 

5. The school may require the employee to substitute accrued paid leave for any part 
of the 26-week period. Employees may be allowed to substitute paid leave for 
unpaid leave by meeting the requirements set out in the administrative directives 
and guidelines established for the implementation of this policy, if any.  Employees 
eligible for leave must comply with the family and medical leave directives and 
guidelines prior to starting leave. 

6. An employee will be required to submit sufficient medical certification issued by 
the health care provider of the covered servicemember and other information in 
support of requested leave and eligibility for such leave under this section within 
15 days from the date of the request or as soon as practicable under the 
circumstances. 

1.7.The provisions of Paragraphs IV.A.7., IV.A.11., and IV.A.12 through IV.A.14. 
above shall apply to leaves under this section. 

HBA- 134



 

61 

 
The provisions of this policy are intended to comply with applicable law, including the Family 
and Medical Leave Act of 1993 ("FMLA") and applicable regulations. Any terms used from the 
FMLA will have the same meaning as defined by that Act and/or applicable regulations. To the 
extent that this policy is ambiguous or contradicts applicable law, the language of the applicable 
law will prevail. 
The requirements stated in the contract agreement between employees in a certified collective 
bargaining unit and the school regarding family and medical leaves (if any) shall be followed. 

B. Six-week Leave 

An employee who does not qualify for leave under Paragraph A above may qualify 
for a six-week unpaid parenting leave for birth or adoption of a child. The 
employee may qualify if he or she has worked for the school for at least 12 
consecutive months and has worked an average number of hours per week equal 
to one-half of the full time equivalent. This leave is separate and exclusive of the 
family and medical leave described in the preceding paragraphs. 

V. SPECIAL RULES FOR INSTRUCTIONAL EMPLOYEES 

A. An instructional employee is one whose principleprincipal function is to teach and instruct 
students in a class, a small group, or an individual setting. This includes, but is not limited 
to, teachers, coaches, driver's education instructors, and special education assistants. 

B. Instructional employees who request foreseeable medically necessary intermittent or 
reduced work schedule leave greater than twenty percent of the work days in the leave 
period may be required to: 

1. Take leave for the entire period or periods of the planned medical treatment; or 

2. Move to an available alternative position for which the employee is qualified, and 
which provides equivalent pay and benefits, but not necessarily equivalent duties. 

C. Instructional employees who request continuous leave near the end of a semester may be 
required to extend the leave through the end of the semester. The number of weeks 
remaining before the end of a semester does not include scheduled school breaks, such as 
summer, winter, or spring break. 

1. If an instructional employee begins leave for any purpose more than five weeks 
before the end of a semester and it is likely the leave will last at least three weeks, 
the school may require that the leave be continued until the end of the semester. 

2. If the instructional employee begins leave for a purpose other than the employee's 
own serious health condition during the last five weeks of a semester, the school 
may require that the leave be continued until the end of the semester if the leave 
will last more than two weeks or if the employee's return from leave would occur 
during the last two weeks of the semester. 

HBA- 135



 

62 

3. If the instructional employee begins leave for a purpose other than the employee's 
own serious health condition during the last three weeks of the semester and the 
leave will last more than five working days, school may require the employee to 
continue taking leave until the end of the semester. 

4. If the school requires an instructional employee to extend leave through the end of 
a semester as set forth in this paragraph, only the period of leave until the employee 
is ready and able to return to work shall be charged against the employee's FMLA 
leave entitlement. Any additional leave required by the charter school to the end of 
the school term is not counted as FMLA leave but as an unpaid or paid leave, to the 
extent the instructional employee has accrued paid leave available and the school 
shall maintain the employee's group health insurance and restore the employee to 
the same or equivalent job, including other benefits, at the conclusion of the 
leave.The entire period of leave taken under the special rules will be counted as 
leave. The school will continue to fulfill the school's leave responsibilities and 
obligations, including the obligation to continue the employee's health insurance 
and other benefits, if an instructional employee's leave entitlement ends before the 
involuntary leave period expires. 

VI. OTHER 

A. The provisions of this policy are intended to comply with applicable law, including the 
Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 ("FMLA") and applicable regulations. Any terms 
used from the FMLA will have the same meaning as defined by that Act and/or applicable 
regulations. To the extent that this policy is ambiguous or contradicts applicable law, the 
language of the applicable law will prevail. 

B. The requirements stated in the contract agreement between employees in a certified 
collective bargaining unit and the school regarding family and medical leaves (if any) shall 
be followed. 

 

VII. DISSEMINATION OF POLICY 

A. The Human Resource Director shall be responsible for administration of the FMLA 
policy 

A. A poster prepared by the U.S. Department of Labor summarizing the major provisions 
of the Family and Medical Leave Act and informing employees how to file a complaint 
shall be conspicuously posted in each school building in areas accessible to employees 
and applicants for employment. 

B. This policy shall be conspicuously posted in each school building in areas accessible 
to employees. 

C.B. This policy will be reviewed at least annually for compliance with state and federal 
law.  

HBA- 136



 

63 

16. Chemical Use and Abuse (MSBA #417) 

Adopted by the Best Academy, Inc.Harvest Best Academy Board of Directors: As 
Amended October 26, 2013 

I1. PURPOSE 

The Best Academy, Inc.Harvest Best Academy board recognizes that chemical use and 
abuse constitutes a grave threat to the physical and mental well-being of students and 
employees and significantly impedes the learning process. Chemical use and abuse also 
creates significant problems for society in general. The school board believes that the 
public school has a role in education, intervention, and prevention of chemical use and 
abuse. The purpose of this policy is to assist the school in its goal to prevent chemical use 
and abuse by providing procedures for education and intervention. 

II11. GENERAL STATEMENT OF POLICY 

A. Use or possession of controlled substances, toxic substances, medical cannabis, and 
alcohol is prohibited before, during, or after school hours, at school or any other school 
location, is prohibited in the school setting in accordance with school policies with respect 
to a Drug-Free Workplace/Drug-Free School. 

B. It is the policy of this school to provide an instructional program in every elementary and 
secondary school in chemical abuse and the prevention of chemical dependency.The 
school shall develop, implement, and evaluate comprehensive programs and activities that 
foster safe, healthy, supportive, and drug-free environments that support student academic 
achievement. 

C. The school shall establish and maintain in every school a chemical abuse preassessment 
team. The team is responsible for addressing reports of chemical abuse problems and 
making recommendations for appropriate responses to the individual reported cases.Every 
charter school that participates in a charter school chemical abuse program shall establish 
and maintain in every school a chemical abuse preassessment team.  The team is 
responsible for addressing reports of chemical abuse problems and making 
recommendations for appropriate responses to the individual reported cases. 

D. It will be the responsibility of the Chief AdministrativeCompliance Officer (CCO) in 
consultation with the Chief Executive Officer CEO, with the advice of the school board, 
to establish a school and community advisory team to address chemical abuse problems in 
the school. 

E.D. The school shall establish and maintain a program to educate and assist employees, 
students and others in understanding this policy and the goals of achieving drug-free 
schools and workplacesa drug-free awareness program for its employees. 

III. DEFINITIONS 

Commented [JS16]: Updated date 

HBA- 137



 

64 

A. "Chemical abuse" means use of any psychoactive or mood-altering chemical substance, 
without compelling medical reason, in a manner that induces mental, emotional, or 
physical impairment and causes socially dysfunctional or socially disordering behavior, to 
the extent that the student's normal function in academic, school, or social activities is 
chronically impaired. 

B. “Controlled substances,” as applied to the chemical abuse assessment of students, means a 
drug, substance, or immediate precursor in Schedules I through V of Minnesota Statutes 
section 152.02 and “marijuana” as defined in Minnesota Statutes section 152.01, 
subdivision 9 but not distilled spirits, wine, malt beverages, intoxicating liquors or tobacco.  
As otherwise defined in this policy, “controlled substances” include narcotic drugs, 
hallucinogenic drugs, amphetamines, barbiturates, marijuana, anabolic steroids, or any 
other controlled substance as defined in Schedules I through V of the Controlled 
Substances Act, 21 United States Code section 812, including analogues and look-alike 
drugs." Chemicals" includes but is not limited to alcohol, toxic substances, and controlled 
substances as defined in the school's Drug-Free Workplace/Drug-Free School policy. 

B. “Drug prevention” means prevention, early intervention, rehabilitation referral, recovery 
support services, or education related to the illegal use of drugs, such as raising awareness 
about the consequences of drug use that are evidence based. 

C. “Teacher” means all persons employed in a public school or education district or by a 
service cooperative as members of the instructional, supervisory, and support staff 
including executive directors, principals, supervisors, secondary vocational and other 
classroom teachers, librarians, counselors, school psychologists, school nurses, school 
social workers, audio-visual directors and coordinators, recreation personnel, media 
generalists, media supervisors, and speech therapists. 

C.D. "School location" includes any school building or on any school premises; on any 
school -owned vehicle or in any other school -approved vehicle used to transport students 
to and from school or school activities; off-school property at any school -sponsored or 
school -approved activity, event or function, such as a field trip or athletic event, where 
students are under the jurisdiction of the school; or during any period of time such 
employee is supervising students on behalf of the school or otherwise engaged in school 
business. 

IV. STUDENTS 

A. School Discipline Policy 

1. Procedures for detecting and addressing chemical abuse problems of a student 
while on school premises are included in the school student discipline policy. 

B. Programs and Activities 

1. The school shall develop, implement, and evaluate comprehensive programs and 
activities that foster safe, healthy, supportive, and drug-free environments that 
support student academic achievements.  The programs and activities may include, 
among other programs and activities, drug prevention activities and programs that 

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: No underline

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: No underline

HBA- 138



 

65 

may be evidence based, including programs to educate students against the use of 
alcohol, tobacco, marijuana, smokeless tobacco products, and electronic cigarettes. 

1.2.As part of its drug-free programs, the school may implement the drug abuse 
resistance education program (DARE) that enables peace officers to undergo the 
training to teach a curriculum on drug abuse resistance in schools. 

 

A. Instruction 
1. The school shall provide an instructional program in chemical abuse and 

the prevention of chemical dependency. The school may involve parents, 
students, health care professionals, state department staff, and members of 
the community in developing the curriculum. 

2. The school shall have age-appropriate and developmentally based 
activities that: 
 Address the consequences of violence and the illegal use of drugs, as 

appropriate; 
 Promote a sense of individual responsibility; 
 Teach students that most people do not illegally use drugs; 
 Teach students to recognize social and peer pressure to use drugs illegally 

and the skills for resisting illegal drug use;  Teach students about the 
dangers of emerging drugs; 

 Engage students in the learning process; and 
 Incorporate activities in secondary schools that reinforce prevention 

activities implemented in elementary schools. 

3. The school shall have activities that involve families, community sectors 
(which may include appropriately trained seniors), and a variety of drug 
and violence prevention providers in setting clear expectations against 
violence and illegal use of drugs and appropriate consequences for 
violence and illegal use of drugs. 

4. The school shall disseminate drug and violence prevention information 
within the school and to the community. 

5. The school shall have professional development and training for, and 
involvement of, school personnel, student services personnel, parents, and 
interested community members in prevention, education, early 
identification and intervention, mentoring, or rehabilitation referral, as 
related to drug and violence prevention. 

6. The school shall have drug and violence prevention activities that may 
include the following: 

Formatted: Underline

Commented [LK17]: It is not necessary to include this 
section in the School Board policy 

HBA- 139



 

66 

 Community-wide planning and organizing activities to reduce violence and 
illegal drug use, which may include gang activity prevention. 

 The hiring and mandatory training, based on scientific research, of school 
security personnel who interact with students in support of youth drug and 
violence prevention activities under this policy that are implemented in the 
school. 

 Conflict resolution programs, including peer mediation programs that 
educate and train peer mediators and a designated faculty supervisor, and 
youth anti-crime and anti-drug councils and activities. 

 Counseling, mentoring, referral services, and other student assistance 
practices and programs, including assistance provided by qualified school 
-based mental health services providers and the training of teachers by 
school -based mental health services providers in appropriate identification 
and intervention techniques for students at risk of violent behavior and 
illegal use of drugs. 

 Programs that encourage students to seek advice from, and to confide in, a 
trusted adult regarding concerns about violence and illegal drag use. 

A.C. Reports of Chemical Use, Possession, orand Abuse Transfer of Alcohol or a 
Controlled Substance 

1. In the event that a school employee knows or has reason to believe that a student is 
abusingusing, possessing, transferring, distributing or selling chemicals alcohol or 
a controlled substance in a school location, the school employee shall immediately 
notify the school's chemical abuse preassessment team, or staff member assigned 
duties similar to those of such a team, of this information.: 

a. The employee shall immediately either take the student to CEO, CCO or notify an 
appropriate administrator of the observation and continue to observe the student 
until the administrator arrives. 

b. The CCO will notify the student's parents. If there is a medical emergency, the 
administrator will notify the school nurse and/or outside medical personnel as 
appropriate. 

c. The CCO will notify law enforcement officials, the student's counselor, and the 
chemical pre-assessment team. 

d. The CCO and/or law enforcement officials will confiscate the chemicals and/or 
conduct a search of the student's person, effects, locker, vehicle, or areas within the 
student's control. Searches by school officials shall be in accordance with school 
board policies regarding search and seizure. 

e. The school will take appropriate disciplinary action in compliance with the student 
discipline code. Such discipline may include immediate suspension, initiation of 
expulsion proceedings, and/or referral to a detoxification center or medical center. 

HBA- 140



 

67 

2. If a school employee has reason to believe that a student is abusing, possessing, 
transferring, distributing or selling chemicals: 

3. The employee shall notify the CCO or a member of the pre-assessment team and 
shall describe the basis for the suspicion. The CCO and/or team will determine 
what action should be taken. Action may include conducting an investigation, 
gathering data, scheduling a conference with the student or parents, or providing a 
meeting between a single member of the team and the student to discuss the 
behaviors that have been reported and attempting to ascertain facts regarding 
chemical abuse. 

4. The team may determine there is no chemical abuse. If the team determines there 
is chemical abuse, the team will select an appropriate course of action, which may 
include referral to a school counselor; referral to a treatment program; referral for 
screening, assessment, and treatment planning; participation in support groups; or 
other appropriate measures. 

5.2.Students involved in the useabuse, possession, transfer, distribution, or sale of 
alcohol or controlled substanceschemicals mayshall be suspended in compliance 
with the student discipline policy and the Pupil Fair Dismissal Act, Minn. Stat. 
5121A.40-121A.56, and proposed for expulsion. 

3. Searches by school officials in connection with the useabuse, possession, transfer, 
distribution or sale of chemicals alcohol or controlled substances will be conducted 
in accordance with school board policies related to search and seizure. 

6.4.Nothing in this section prevents a teacher or any other school employee from 
reporting to a law enforcement agency any violation of law occurring on school 
premises or at school sponsored events. 

B.D. Preassessment Team 

1. TheEvery school shall have a chemical abuse pre-assessment team designated by 
the Chief Executive OfficerEO or designee. The team will be composed of 
classroom teachers, administrators, and other appropriate professional staff to the 
extent they exist in each school, such as the school nurse, school counselor or 
psychologist, social worker, chemical abuse specialist, or others. 

2. The team is responsible for addressing reports of chemical abuse problems and 
making recommendations for appropriate responses to the individual reported 
cases. 

3. Within forty-five (45) days after receiving an individual reported case, the team 
shall make a determination whether to provide the student and, in the case of a 
minor, the student's parents with information about school and community services 
in connection with chemical abuse. 

 
C.E. Data Practices 

Commented [LK18]: This level of detail is not required in 
the policy and could limit the school’s ability to address the 
particular circumstances surrounding an incident 

HBA- 141



 

68 

1. Student data may be disclosed without consent in health and safety emergencies 
pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 13.32 and applicable federal law and regulations. 

2. Destruction of Records: 

a. If the pre-assessment team decides not to provide a student and, in the case 
of a minor, the student's parents with information about school or 
community services in connection with chemical abuse, records created or 
maintained by the team about the student shall be destroyed not later than 
six (6) months after the determination is made. 

b. If the team decides to provide the student and, in the case of a minor or a 
dependent student, the student's parents with such information, records 
created or maintained by the team about the student shall be destroyed not 
later than six (6) months after the student is no longer enrolled in the school. 

c. Destruction of records identifying individual students shall be governed by 
paragraph IV.E.2. notwithstanding Minnesota Statutes section 138.163 
(Preservation and Disposal of Public Records)This section shall govern 
destruction of records notwithstanding provisions of the Records 
Management Act, Minn. Stat. § 138.163. 

D.F. Consent 
1. Any minor may give effective consent for medical, mental, and other health 

services to determine the presence of or to treat conditions associated with alcohol 
and other drug abuse, and the consent of no other person is required. 

 
F. School and Community Advisory Team 

 The CCCO or CEO, with the advice of the school board, shall establish a school 
and community advisory team to address chemical abuse problems. The 
advisory team will be composed of representatives from the school 
preassessment teams to the extent possible, law enforcement agencies, county 
attorney's office, social service agencies, chemical abuse treatment programs, 
parents, and the business community. 

  The advisory team shall: 
 Build awareness of the problem within the community, identify available 

treatment and counseling programs for students and develop good working 
relationships and enhance communication between the schools and other  
community agencies; and 

 Develop a written procedure clarifying the notification process to be used by 
the chemical abuse pre-assessment team when a student is believed to be in 
possession of or under the influence of alcohol or a controlled substance. 
The procedure must include contact with the student and the student's 
parents or guardian in the case of a minor student. 

V. EMPLOYEES 

Commented [LK19]: This is not required to be included in 
the policy/seems repetitive to other paragraphs in this policy 

HBA- 142



 

69 

A. The Chief of Administrationschool shall undertake and maintain a drug-free awareness and 
prevention program to inform employees, students and others about: 

1. The dangers and health risks of chemical abuse in the workplace/school. 

2. The school’s's ’drug-free workplace/drug-free school policy. 

3. Any available drug or alcohol counseling, treatment, rehabilitation, re-entry and/or 
assistance programs available to employees and/or students. 

3.4.The penalties that may be imposed on employees for drug abuse violations. 

B. The charter school Chief of Administrationschool shall notify any federal granting agency 
that is required to be notified under the Drug-Free Workplace Act within ten (10) days 
after receiving notice from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of any 
criminal drug statute conviction of an employee for a criminal drug statute violation 
occurring in the workplace. To facilitate the giving of such notice, any employee aware of 
such a conviction shall report the same to the Chief of Administrationschool. 

 
  

HBA- 143



 

70 

17. Drug Free Workplace/Drug Free School (MSBA #418) 

Adopted by the Best Academy, Inc.Harvest Best Academy Board of Directors: As 
Amended October 26, 2013. 

I. PURPOSE 

The purpose of this Best Academy, Inc. policy is to maintain a safe and healthful 
environment for employees and students by prohibiting the use of alcohol, toxic 
substances, medical cannabis, nonintoxicating cannabinoids, edible cannabinoid products, 
and controlled substances without a physician's prescription. 

II. GENERAL STATEMENT OF POLICY 

A. Use or possession of controlled substances, toxic substances, medical cannabis, 
nonintoxicating cannabinoids, edible cannabinoid products, and alcohol before, during, or 
after school hours, at school or in any other school location, is prohibited as general policy. 
Paraphernalia associated with controlled substances is prohibited. 

B. It shall be a violation of this policy for any student, teacher, administrator, other school 
personnel, or member of the public to use alcohol, toxic substances, medical cannabis, 
nonintoxicating cannabinoids, edible cannabinoid products, or controlled substances in any 
school location. 

B.C. An individual may not use or possess cannabis flower, cannabis products, lower-
potency hemp edibles, or hemp-derived consumer products in a public school, as defined 
in Minn. Stat. § 120A.05, subd. 9, 11, and 13, including all facilities, whether owned, 
rented, or leased, and all vehicles that the charter school owns, leases, rents, contracts for, 
or controls. 

C.D. The Chief Compliance Administrative Officer (CACO) shall be responsible for 
enforcement of this policy and toschool will act to enforce this policy and to discipline or 
take appropriate action against any student, teacher, administrator, school personnel, or 
member of the public who violates this policy. 

III. DEFINITIONS 

A. "Alcohol" includes any alcoholic beverage, malt beverage, fortified wine, or other 
intoxicating liquor containing more than one-half of one percent alcohol by volume. 

B. "Controlled substances" include narcotic drugs, hallucinogenic drugs, amphetamines, 
barbiturates, marijuana, anabolic steroids, or any other controlled substance as defined in 
Schedules I through V of the Controlled Substances Act, 21 U.S.C. § 812, including 
analogues and look-alike drugs. 

HBA- 144



 

71 

C. “Edible cannabinoid product” means any product that is intended to be eaten or consumed 
as a beverage by humans, contains a cannabinoid in combination with food ingredients, 
and is not a drug. 

D. “Nonintoxicating cannabinoid” means substances extracted from certified hemp plants that 
do not produce intoxicating effects when consumed by injection, inhalation, ingestion, or 
by any other immediate means. 

B.E. “Medical cannabis” means any species of the genus cannabis plant, or any mixture 
or preparation of them, including whole plant extracts and resins, and is delivered in the 
form of: (1) liquid, including, but not limited to, oil; (2) pill; (3) vaporized delivery method 
with use of liquid or oil but which does not require the use of dried leaves or plant form; 
(4) combustion with use of dried raw cannabis; or (5) any other method approved by the 
Commissioner of the Minnesota Department of Health (“Commissioner”). 

C.F. "Toxic substances" includes glue, cement, aerosol paint, containing toluene, 
benzene, xylene, amyl nitrate, butyl nitrate, nitrous oxide, or containing other aromatic 
hydrocarbon solvents, but does not include glue, cement, or paint contained in a packaged 
kit for the construction of a model automobile, airplane, or similar item; butane or a butane 
lighter; or any similar substance declared to be toxic to the central nervous system and to 
have a potential for abuse, by a rule adopted by the Commissioner.or other substances used 
or possessed with the intent of inducing intoxication or excitement of the central nervous 
system. 

G. "Use" includes selling, buying, manufacturing, distributing, dispensing, possessing, using, 
or being under the influence of, or consuming in any manner, but not limited to, 
consumption by injection, inhalation, ingestion, or by any other immediate means. alcohol 
and/or controlled substances, whether or not for the purpose of receiving remuneration or 
consideration. 

D.H. “Sell” means to sell, give away, barter, deliver, exchange, distribute or dispose of 
to another, or to manufacture; or to offer or agree to perform such an act, or to possess with 
intent to perform such an act. 

E.I. "Possess" means to have on one's person, in one's effects, or in an area subject to one's 
control. 

F.J. "School location" includes any school building or on any school premises; in any school -
owned vehicle or in any other school -approved vehicle used to transport students to and 
from school or school activities; off school property at any school -sponsored or school -
approved activity, event, or function, such as a field trip or athletic event, where students 
are under the jurisdiction of the school; or during any period of time such employee is 
supervising students on behalf of the school or otherwise engaged in school business. 

IV. EXCEPTIONS 

A. It shall not be a violation of this policy for a person to bring onto a school location, for 
such person's own use, a controlled substance, except medical cannabis, nonintoxicating 

HBA- 145



 

72 

cannabinoids, or edible cannabinoid products, which has a currently accepted medical use 
in treatment in the United States and the person has a physician's prescription for the 
substance. The person shall comply with the relevant procedures of this policy. 

B. It shall not be a violation of this policy for a person to possess an alcoholic beverage in a 
school location when the possession is within the exceptions of Minn. Stat. § 624.701, 
Subd. la (experiments in laboratories; pursuant to a temporary license to sell liquor issued 
under Minnesota laws or possession after the purchase from such a temporary license 
holder). 

B.C. It shall not be a violation of this policy when a person uses or possesses a toxic 
substance unless they do so with the intent of inducing or intentionally aiding another in 
inducing intoxication, excitement, or stupefaction of the central nervous system, except 
under the direction and supervision of a medical doctor. 

V. PROCEDURES 

A. Students who have a prescription from a physician for medical treatment with a controlled 
substance, except medical cannabis, nonintoxicating cannabinoids, or edible cannabinoid 
products, must comply with the school 's student medication policy. 

B. Employees who have a prescription from a physician for medical treatment with a 
controlled substance, except medical cannabis, nonintoxicating cannabinoids, or edible 
cannabinoid products are permitted to possess such controlled substance and associated 
necessary paraphernalia, such as an inhaler or syringe. The employee must inform his or 
her supervisor. The employee may be required to provide a copy of the prescription. 

C. Each employee shall be provided with written notice of this Drug-Free Workplace/Drug-
Free School policy and shall be required to acknowledge that he or she has received the 
policy. 

D. Employees are subject to the school's drug and alcohol testing policies and procedures. 

E. Members of the public are not permitted to possess controlled substances, intoxicating 
cannabinoids, or edible cannabinoid products in a school location except with the express 
permission of the CACO. 

E.F. No person is permitted to possess or use medical cannabis, nonintoxicating 
cannabinoids, or edible cannabinoid products on a school bus or van; or on the grounds of 
any preschool or primary or secondary school; or on the grounds of any child care facility.  
This prohibition includes (1) vaporizing or combusting medical cannabis on any form of 
public transportation where the vapor or smoke could be inhaled by a minor child or in any 
public place, including indoor or outdoor areas used by or open to the general public or 
place of employment; and (2) operating, navigating, or being in actual physical control of 
any motor vehicle or working on transportation property, equipment or facilities while 
under the influence of medical cannabis, nonintoxicating cannabinoids, or edible 
cannabinoid products. 

HBA- 146



 

73 

F.G. Possession of alcohol on school grounds pursuant to the exceptions of Minn. Stat. 
 624.701, Subd. la shall be by permission of the school board only. The applicant shall 

apply for permission in writing and shall follow the school board procedures for placing 
an item on the agenda. 

VI. SCHOOL PROGRAMS 

A. Starting in the 2026-2027 school year, the school must implement a comprehensive 
education program on cannabis use and substance use, including but not limited to the use 
of fentanyl or mixtures containing fentanyl, for students in middle school and high school. 
The program must include instruction on the topics listed in Minn. Stat. § 120B.215, subd. 
1 and must: 

1. respect community values and encourage students to communicate with parents, 
guardians, and other trusted adults about cannabis use and substance use, including 
but not limited to the use of fentanyl or mixtures containing fentanyl; and 

2. refer students to local resources where students may obtain medically accurate 
information about cannabis use and substance use, including but not limited to the 
use of fentanyl or mixtures containing fentanyl, and treatment for a substance use 
disorder. 

B. School efforts to develop, implement, or improve instruction or curriculum as a result of 
the provisions of this section must be consistent with Minn. Stat. §§ 120B.10 and 120B.11. 

A.C. Notwithstanding any law to the contrary, the school shall have a procedure for a 
parent, a guardian, or an adult student 18 years of age or older to review the content of the 
instructional materials to be provided to a minor child or to an adult student pursuant to 
this article. The school must allow a parent or adult student to opt out of instruction under 
this article with no academic or other penalty for the student and must inform parents and 
adult students of this right to opt out. 

VII. ENFORCEMENT 

A. Students 

1. Students may be required to participate in programs and activities that provide 
education against the use of alcohol, tobacco, marijuana, smokeless tobacco 
products, electronic cigarettes, and nonintoxicating cannabinoids, and edible 
cannabinoid products. 

1.2.A student who violates the terms of this policy shall be subject to discipline in 
accordance with the school's discipline policy. Such discipline may include 
suspension or expulsion from school. 

2.3.The studentStudents may be referred to a drug or alcohol assistance or 
rehabilitation program, school based mental health services, mentoring and 
counseling, including early identification of mental health symptoms, drug use and 
violence and appropriate referral to direct individual or group counselling service, 

HBA- 147



 

74 

which may be provided by school based mental health services providers; and/or 
to law enforcement officials when appropriate. 

B. Employees 

1. As a condition of employment in any federal grant, each employee who is engaged 
either directly or indirectly in performance of a federal grant shall abide by the 
terms of this policy and shall notify his or her supervisor in writing of his  or her 
conviction of any criminal drug statute for a violation occurring in any of the places 
listed above on which work on a school federal grant is performed, no later than 
five (5) calendar days after such conviction. Conviction means a finding of guilt 
(including a plea of nolo contendere) or imposition of sentence, or both, by any 
judicial body charged with the responsibility to determine violations of the federal 
or state criminal drug statutes. 

2. An employee who violates the terms of this policy is subject to disciplinary action, 
including non-renewal, suspension, termination, or discharge as deemed 
appropriate by the school board. 

3. In addition, any employee who violates the terms of this policy may be required to 
satisfactorily participate in a drug and/or alcohol abuse assistance or rehabilitation 
program approved by the school., Any employee who fails to satisfactorily 
participate in and complete such a program is subject to nonrenewal, suspension, 
or termination as deemed appropriate by the school board. 

4. Sanctions against employees, including non-renewal, suspension, termination, or 
discharge shall be pursuant to and in accordance with applicable statutory authority, 
collective bargaining agreements, and school policies. 

C. The Public 

1. A member of the public who violates this policy shall be informed of the policy 
and asked to leave. If necessary, law enforcement officials will be notified and 
asked to provide an escort. 

 
  

HBA- 148



 

75 

 
18. Tobacco- —Free Environment; Possession and Use of Tobacco, Tobacco-related 
Devices, and Electronic Delivery Devices; Vaping Awareness and Prevention Instruction 
(MSBA #419) 

Adopted by the Best Academy, Inc.Harvest Best Academy Board of Directors: As 
Amended October 26, 2013 

I. PURPOSE 

The purpose of this policy is to maintain learning and working environments that are tobacco 
free. 

II. GENERAL STATEMENT OF POLICY 

A. It shall be a violation of this policy for any student, teacher, administrator, and other school 
personnel, of the school or person to use tobacco or tobacco-related devices, or carries or 
uses an activated electronic delivery device in a public school. This prohibition extends to 
all facilities, whether owned, rented, or leased, and all vehicles that a school owns, leases, 
rents, contracts for, or controls. In addition, this prohibition includes vehicles used, in 
whole or in part, for work purposes, during hours of school operation, if more than one 
person is present. This prohibition includes all school property and all off-campus events 
sponsored by the school. 

B. It shall be a violation of this policy for any elementary school, middle school, or secondary 
school student to possess any type of tobacco or tobacco-related device, or electronic 
delivery devices in a public school. This prohibition extends to all facilities, whether 
owned, rented, or leased, and all vehicles that a school owns, leases, rents, contracts for, 
or controls and includes vehicles used, in whole or in part, for school purposes, during 
hours of school operation, if more than one person is present. This prohibition includes all 
school property and all off-campus events sponsored by the school. 

C. The Chief Compliance Administrative Officer (CACO)school will act to enforce this 
policy and to discipline or take appropriate action against any student, teacher, 
administrator, school personnel, or person who is found to have violated this policy. 

C.D. The school will not solicit or accept any contributions or gifts of money, curricula, 
materials, or equipment from companies that directly manufacture and are identified with 
tobacco products, tobacco-related devices, or electronic delivery devices.  The school will 
not promote or allow promotion of tobacco products or electronic delivery devices on 
school property or at school-sponsored events. 

III. DEFINITIONS Tobacco and Tobacco Related Devices Defined 

A. "Tobacco" means cigarettes and any product containing, made, or derived from tobacco 
that is intended for human consumption, whether chewed, smoked, absorbed, dissolved, 
inhaled, snorted, sniffed, or ingested by any other means, or any component, part, or 

HBA- 149



 

76 

accessory of a tobacco product, including, but not limited to,; cigars; cheroots; stogies; 
perique; granulated, plug cut, crimp cut, ready rubbed, and other smoking tobacco; snuff; 
snuff flour; cavendish; plug and twist tobacco; fine cut and other chewing tobacco; shorts; 
refuse scraps, clippings, cuttings and sweepings of tobacco; and other kinds and forms of 
tobacco., prepared in such manner as to be suitable for chewing or smoking in a pipe or 
other tobacco-related devices. Tobacco excludes any drugs, devices, or combination 
products, as those terms are defined in the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, that are 
authorized for sale by the United States Food and Drug Administration. 

B. "Tobacco-related devices" means cigarette papers or pipes for smoking. or other devices 
intentionally designed or intended to be used in a manner which enables the chewing, 
sniffing, smoking, or inhalation of vapors aerosol or vapor of tobacco or tobacco products.  
Tobacco-related devices include components of tobacco-related devices which may be 
marketed or sold separately. 

C. "Smoking" means inhaling, exhaling, burning, or carrying any lighted or heated cigar, 
cigarette, pipe, or any other lighted or heated product containing, made, or derived from 
nicotine, tobacco, marijuana, or other plant, whether natural or synthetic, that is intended 
for inhalation. Smoking includes carrying or using an activated electronic delivery 
device.includes carrying a lighted cigar; cigarette, pipe, or any other lighted smoking 
equipment. 

D. “Vaping” means using an activated electronic delivery device or heated tobacco product. 

E. “Electronic delivery device” means any product containing or delivering nicotine, lobelia, 
or any other substance, whether natural or synthetic, intended for human consumption that 
can be used by a person to simulate smoking in the delivery of nicotine or any other 
substance through inhalation of aerosol or vapor from the product. Electronic delivery 
devices include but is not limited to devices manufactured, marketed, or sold as electronic 
cigarettes, electronic cigars, electronic pipe, vape pens, modes, tank systems, or under any 
other product name or descriptor. Electronic delivery device includes any component part 
of a product, whether or not marketed or sold separately. Electronic delivery device 
excludes drugs, devices, or combination products, as those terms are defined in the Federal 
Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, that are authorized for sale by the United States Food and 
Drug Administration. 

C.F. “Heated tobacco product” means a tobacco product that produces aerosols 
containing nicotine and other chemicals which are inhaled by users through the mouth. 

IV. EXCEPTION 

A. It shall not be a violation of this policy for a Native American adult to light tobacco on 
school property as a part of a traditional Native American spiritual or cultural ceremony. 
A Native American student may carry a medicine pouch containing loose tobacco intended 
as observance of traditional spiritual or cultural practices. A Native American is a person 
who is a member of an Indian tribe as defined under Minnesota law. 

HBA- 150



 

77 

A.B. It shall not be a violation of this policy when an adult nonstudent possesses a 
tobacco or nicotine product that has been approved by the United States Food and Drug 
Administration for sale as a tobacco-cessation product, as a tobacco-dependence product, 
or for other medical purposes, and is being marketed and sold solely for such an approved 
purpose. Nothing in this exception authorizes smoking or use of tobacco, tobacco-related 
devices, or electronic delivery devices on school property or at off- campus events 
sponsored by the school. 

V. VAPING PREVENTION INSTRUCTION 

A. The school must provide vaping prevention instruction at least once to students in grades 
6 through 8. 

A.B. The school may use instructional materials based upon the Minnesota Department 
of Health’s school e-cigarette toolkit or may use other smoking prevention instructional 
materials with a focus on vaping and the use of electronic delivery devices and heated 
tobacco products. The instruction may be provided as part of the school’s locally 
developed health standards. 

VI. ENFORCEMENT 

A. All individuals on school premises shall adhere to this policy. 

B. Students who violate this tobacco-free policy shall be subject to school discipline 
procedures. 

C. School administrators and other school personnel who violate this tobacco-free policy shall 
be subject to school discipline procedures. 

D. School action taken for violation of this policy will be consistent with requirements of 
Minnesota or federal law, and school policies. 

E. Persons who violate this tobacco-free policy may be referred to the building administration 
or other school supervisory personnel responsible for the area or program at which the 
violation occurred. 

F. School administrators may call the local law enforcement agency to assist with 
enforcement of this policy. Smoking or use of any tobacco product in a public school is a 
violation of the Minnesota Clean Indoor Air Act and/or the Freedom to Breathe Act of 
2007 and is a petty misdemeanor. A court injunction may be instituted against a repeated 
violator. 

F.G. No persons shall be discharged, refused to be hired, penalized, discriminated 
against, or in any manner retaliated against for exercising any right to a smoke-free 
environment provided by the Freedom to Breathe Act of 2007 or other law. 

VII. DISSEMINATION OF POLICY 

HBA- 151



 

78 

A. This policy shall be summarized included in the student handbook. 

B. The school will develop a method of discussing this policy with students and 
employees. 

  

HBA- 152



 

79 

 
20. School Weapons Policy (MSBA #501 

Adopted by the Best Academy, Inc.Harvest Best Academy Board of Directors: As 
Amended October 26, 2013. 

I. PURPOSE 

The purpose of this policy is to assure a safe school environment for students, staff and the public. 

II. GENERAL STATEMENT OF POLICY 

No student or non-student, including adults and visitors, shall possess, use or distribute a weapon 
when in a school location except as provided in this policy. The school will act to enforce this 
policy and to discipline or take appropriate action against any student, teacher, administrator, 
school employee, volunteer, or member of the public who violates this policy. 

III. DEFINITIONS 

A. "Weapon" 

1. A "weapon" means any object, device or instrument designed as a weapon or 
through its use is capable of threatening or producing bodily harm or which may 
be used to inflict self-injury including, but not limited to, any firearm, whether 
loaded or unloaded; airguns; pellet guns; BB guns; all knives; blades; clubs; metal 
knuckles; nunchucks; throwing stars; explosives; fireworks; mace and other 
propellants; stun guns; ammunition; poisons; chains; arrows; and objects that have 
been modified to serve as a weapon. 

2. No person shall possess, use or distribute any object, device or instrument having 
the appearance of a weapon and such objects, devices or instruments shall be 
treated as weapons including, but not limited to, weapons listed above which are 
broken or non-functional, look-alike guns; toy guns; and any object that is a 
facsimile of a real weapon. 

3. No person shall use articles designed for other purposes (i.e., lasers or laser 
pointers, belts, combs, pencils, files, scissors, etc.), to inflict bodily harm and/or 
intimidate and such use will be treated as the possession and use of a weapon. 

B. "School Location" includes any school building or grounds, whether leased, rented, owned 
or controlled by the school, locations of school activities or trips, bus stops, school buses 
or school vehicles, school -contracted vehicles, the area of entrance or departure from 
school premises or events, all locations where school related functions are conducted, and 
anywhere students are under the jurisdiction of the school. 

HBA- 153



 

80 

C. "Possession" means having a weapon on one's person or in an area subject to one's control 
in a school location. 

C.D. “Dangerous Weapon” means any firearm, whether loaded or unloaded, or any 
device designed as a weapon and capable of producing death or great bodily harm, any 
combustible or flammable liquid or other device or instrumentality that, in the manner it is 
used or intended to be used, is calculated or likely to produce death or great bodily harm, 
or any fire that is used to produce death or great bodily harm. As used in this definition, 
"flammable liquid" means any liquid having a flash point below 100 degrees Fahrenheit 
and having a vapor pressure not exceeding 40 pounds per square inch (absolute) at 100 
degrees Fahrenheit but does not include intoxicating liquor. As used in this subdivision, 
"combustible liquid" is a liquid having a flash point at or above 100 degrees Fahrenheit. 

IV. EXCEPTIONS 

A. A student who finds a weapon on the way to school or in a school location, or a student 
who discovers that he or she accidentally has a weapon in his or her possession, and takes 
the weapon immediately to the Chief Compliance Administrative Officer (CACO)'s office 
shall not be considered to possess a weapon. If it would be impractical or dangerous to take 
the weapon to the CACO's office, a student shall not be considered to possess a weapon if 
he or she immediately turns the weapon over to an administrator, teacher or head coach or 
immediately notifies an administrator, teacher or head coach of the weapon's location. 

B. It shall not be a violation of this policy if a non-student (or student where specified) falls 
within one of the following categories: 

1. Active lLicensed peace officers;,  

1.2.military Military personnel, or students or non-students participating in military 
training, who are on duty performing official duties;  

2.3. Persons authorized to carry a pistol under Minn. Stat. § 624.714, while in a motor 
vehicle or outside of a motor vehicle for the purpose of directly placing a firearm 
in, or retrieving it from, the trunk or rear area of the vehicle; 

3.4.Persons who keep or store in a motor vehicle pistols in accordance with Minn. Stat. 
§§ 624.714 or 624.715, or other firearms in accordance with Minn. Stat. § 97B.045; 

a. Section 624.714 specifies procedures and standards for obtaining pistol 
permits and penalties for the failure to do so. Section 624.715 defines an 
exception to the pistol permit requirements for "antique firearms that are 
carried or possessed as curiosities or for their historical significance or 
value." 

b. Section 97B.045 generally provides that a firearm may not be transported 
in a motor vehicle unless it is (1) unloaded and in a gun case without any 
portion of the firearm exposed; (2) unloaded and in the closed trunk; or (3) 
a handgun carried in compliance with Sections 624.714 and 624.715. 

Commented [JS20]: Would you prefer principal’s office? 

Commented [JS21]: Same comment as above 

HBA- 154



 

81 

4.5.Firearm safety or marksmanship courses or activities for students or nonstudents 
conducted on school property; 

5.6.Possession of dangerous weapons, BB guns, or replica firearms by a ceremonial 
color guard; 

6.7.A gun or knife show held on school property; 

7.8.Possession of dangerous weapons, BB guns, or replica firearms with written 
permission of the CACO or other person having general control and supervision of 
the school or the director of a child care center; or 

8.9.Persons who are on unimproved property owned or leased by a child care center, 
school or school unless the person knows that a student is currently present on the 
land for a school -related activity. 

C. Policy Application to Instructional Equipment/Tools 

1. While the school takes a firm "Zero Tolerance" position onprohibits the possession, 
use or distribution of weapons by students, and a similar position with regard to 
nonstudents, such a position is not meant to interfere with instruction or the use of 
appropriate equipment and tools by students or non-students. Such equipment and 
tools, when properly possessed, used and stored, shall not be considered in 
violation of the rule against the possession, use or distribution of weapons. 
However, when authorized instructional and work equipment and tools are used in 
a potentially dangerous or threatening manner, such possession and use will be 
treated as the possession and use of a weapon. 

D. Firearms in School Parking Lots and Parking Facilities 

1. The school may not prohibit the lawful carry or possession of firearms in a school 
parking lot or parking facility. For purposes of this policy, the "lawful" carrny or 
possession of a firearm in a school parking lot or parking facility is specifically 
limited to non-student permit-holders authorized under Minn. Stat. § 624.714, to 
carry a pistol in the interior of a vehicle or outside the motor vehicle for the purpose 
of directly placing a firearm in, or retrieving it from, the trunk or rear area of the 
vehicle. Any possession or carry of a firearm beyond the immediate vicinity of a 
permit-holder's vehicle shall constitute a violation of this policy. 

V. CONSEQUENCES FOR STUDENT WEAPON POSSESSION/USE/DISTRIBUTION 

A. The school does not allow the possession, use, or distribution of weapons by students.  
takes a position of "Zero Tolerance" in regard to the possession, use or distribution of 
weapons by studentsonsequently, Tthe minimum consequence for students possessing, 
using or distributing weapons shall include: 

1. Immediate out-of-school suspension; 

2. Confiscation of the weapon; 

3. Immediate notification of police; 

HBA- 155



 

82 

4. Parent or guardian notification; and 

5. Recommendation to the CACO of dismissal for a period of time not to exceed one 
year. 

B. Pursuant to Minnesota law, a student who brings a firearm, as defined by federal law, to 
school will be expelled for at least one year. The school board may modify this requirement 
on a case-by-case basis. 

B.C. The appropriate school official shall, as soon as practicable, refer to the criminal 
justice or juvenile delinquency system, as appropriate, a student who brings a firearm to 
school unlawfully. 

C.D. Administrative Discretion 

1. While the school takes a "Zero Tolerance" position onprohibits the possession, use 
or distribution of weapons by students, the CACO may use discretion in 
determining whether, under the circumstances, a course of action other than the 
minimum consequences specified above is warranted. If so, other appropriate 
action may be taken, including consideration of a recommendation for lesser 
discipline. 

VI. CONSEQUENCES FOR WEAPON POSSESSION/USE/DISTRIBUTION BY NON-
STUDENTS 

A. Employees 

1. An employee who violates the terms of this policy is subject to disciplinary action, 
including non-renewal, suspension, or discharge as deemed appropriate by the 
school board. 

2. Sanctions against employees, including non-renewal, suspension, or discharge shall 
be pursuant to and in accordance with applicable statutory authority, collective 
bargaining agreements, and school policies. 

3. When an employee violates the weapons policy, law enforcement may be notified, 
as appropriate. 

B. Other Non-students 

1. Any member of the public who violates this policy shall be infonnedinformed of 
the policy and asked to leave the school location. Depending on the circumstances, 
the person may be barred from future entry to school locations. In addition, if the 
person is a student in another school, that school may be contacted concerning the 
policy violation. 

2. If appropriate, law enforcement will be notified of the policy violation by the 
member of the public and may be asked to provide an escort to remove the member 
of the public from the school location. 

VII. REPORTS OF DANGEROUS WEAPON INCIDENTS IN SCHOOL ZONES 

HBA- 156



 

83 

The school must electronically report to the Minnesota Commissioner of Education incidents 
involving the use or possession of a dangerous weapon in school zones, as required under Minn. 
Stat. § 121A.06. 

 

HBA- 157



 

84 

. 
21. Search of Student Lockers Desks Personal Possessions and Student's Person (MSBA 
# 502) 

Adopted by the Best Academy, Inc.Harvest Best Academy Board of Directors: As 
Amended October 26, 2013 

I. PURPOSE 

The purpose of this policy is to provide for a safe and healthful educational environment by 
enforcing the school's policies against contraband. 

II.  GENERAL STATEMENT OF POLICY 

A. Lockers and Personal Possessions within a Locker 

Pursuant to Minnesota statutes, school lockers are the property of the school. At no time 
does the school relinquish its exclusive control of lockers provided for the convenience of 
students. School officials for any reason may conduct inspection of the interior of lockers 
at any time, without notice, without student consent, and without a search warrant. The 
personal possessions of students within a school locker may be searched only when school 
officials have a reasonable suspicion that the search will uncover evidence of a violation 
of law or school rules. As soon as practicable after the search of a student's personal 
possessions, the school officials must provide notice of the search to students whose 
lockers were searched unless disclosure would impede an ongoing investigation by police 
or school officials. 

B. Desks 

School desks are the property of the school. At no time does the school relinquish its 
exclusive control of desks provided for the convenience of students. School officials for 
any reason may conduct inspection of the interior of desks at any time, without notice, 
without student consent, and without a search warrant. 

C. Personal Possessions and Student's Person 

The personal possessions of students and/or a student's person may be searched when 
school officials have a reasonable suspicion that the search will uncover a violation of law 
or school rules. The search will be reasonable in its scope and intrusiveness. 

D. Use of Lockers and Desks for Contraband 

It shall be a violation of this policy for students to use lockers and desks for unauthorized 
purposes or to store contraband. It shall be a violation for students to carry contraband on 
their person or in their personal possessions. 

III. DEFINITIONS 

HBA- 158



 

85 

A. "Contraband" means any unauthorized item possession of which is prohibited by school 
policy and/or law. It includes but is not limited to weapons and "lookalikes," alcoholic 
beverages, controlled substances and "look-alikes," overdue books and other materials 
belonging to the school, and stolen property. 

B. "Personal possessions" includes but is not limited to purses, backpacks, book bags, 
packages, and clothing. 

C. "Reasonable suspicion" means that a school official has grounds to believe that the search 
will result in evidence of a violation of school policy, rules, and/or law. Reasonable 
suspicion may be based on a school official's personal observation, a report from a student, 
parent or staff member, a student's suspicious behavior, a student's age and past history or 
record of conduct both in and out of the school context, or other reliable sources of 
information. 

D. "Reasonable scope" means that the scope and/or intrusiveness of the search is reasonably 
related to the objectives of the search. Factors to consider in determining what is reasonable 
include the seriousness of the suspected infraction, the reliability of the information, the 
necessity of acting without delay, and/or the existence of exigent circumstances 
necessitating an immediate search and further investigation (e.g. to prevent violence, 
serious and immediate risk of harm or destruction of evidence), and the age of the student. 

IV. PROCEDURES 

A. School officials may inspect the interiors of lockers and desks for any reason at any time, 
without notice, without student consent, and without a search warrant. 

B. School officials may inspect the personal possessions of a student and/or a student's person 
based on a reasonable suspicion that the search will uncover a violation of law or school 
rules. A search of personal possessions of a student and/or a student's person will be 
reasonable in its scope and intrusiveness. 

C. As soon as practicable after a search of personal possessions within a locker pursuant to 
this policy, the school officials must provide notice of the search to students whose 
possessions were searched unless disclosure would impede an ongoing investigation by 
police or school officials. 

D. Whenever feasible, a search of a person shall be conducted in private by a school official 
of the same sex. A second school official of the same sex shall be present as an observer 
during the search of a person whenever feasible. 

E. A strip search is a search involving the removal of coverings or clothing from private areas. 
Mass strip searches, or body cavity searches, are prohibited. Strip searches will be 
conducted only in circumstances involving imminent danger. 

F. A school official conducting any other search may determine when it is appropriate to have 
a second official present as an observer. 

HBA- 159



 

86 

G.  This policy must be disseminated to parents and students in the way that other policies of 
general application to students are disseminatedA copy of this policy will be printed in the 
student handbook or disseminated in any other way which school officials deem 
appropriate. The school shall provide a copy of this policy to a student when the student is 
given use of a locker. 

V. DIRECTIVES AND GUIDELINES 

The Chief Compliance Administrative Officer may establish reasonable directives and 
guidelines which address specific needs of the school, such as use of tape in lockers, 
standards of cleanliness and care, posting of pin-ups and posters which may constitute 
sexual harassment, etc. 

VI. SEIZURE OF CONTRABAND 

If a search yields contraband, school officials will seize the item and, where appropriate, 
turn it over to legal officials for ultimate disposition. 

VII. VIOLATIONS 

A student found to have violated this policy and/or the directives and guidelines 
implementing it shall be subject to discipline in accordance with the school's Student 
Discipline Policy, which may include suspension, exclusion, or expulsion, and the student 
may, when appropriate, be referred to legal officials. 
 

  

HBA- 160



 

87 

 
22. Student Discipline (MSBA #506) 

Adopted by the Best Academy, Inc.Harvest Best Academy Board of Directors: As 
Amended October 26, 2013 

I. PURPOSE 

The purpose of this Best Academy, Inc. policy is to ensure that students are aware of and comply 
with the school's expectations for student conduct. Such compliance will enhance the school's 
ability to maintain discipline and ensure that there is no interference with the educational process. 
The school will take appropriate disciplinary action when students fail to adhere to the Code of 
Student Conduct established by this policy. 

II. GENERAL STATEMENT OF POLICY 

The school board recognizes that individual responsibility and mutual respect are essential 
components of the educational process. The school board further recognizes that nurturing the 
maturity of each student is of primary importance and is closely linked with the balance that must 
be maintained between authority and self-discipline as the individual progresses from a child's 
dependence on authority to the more mature behavior of self-control. 

Students are entitled to learn and develop in a setting which promotes respect of self, others, and 
property. Proper positive discipline can only result from an environment that provides options 
and stresses student self-direction, decision-making, and responsibility. Schools can function 
effectively only with internal discipline based on mutual understanding of rights and 
responsibilities. 

Students must conduct themselves in an appropriate manner that maintains a climate in which 
learning can take place. Overall decorum affects student attitudes and influences student behavior. 
Proper student conduct is necessary to facilitate the education process and to create an atmosphere 
conducive to high student achievement. 

Although this policy emphasizes the development of self-discipline, it is recognized that there are 
instances when it will be necessary to administer disciplinary measures. It is the position of the 
school that a fair and equitable -wide student discipline policy will contribute to the quality of the 
student's educational experience, This discipline policy is adopted in accordance with and subject 
to the Minnesota Pupil Fair Dismissal Act, Minn. Stat. §§ 121A.40-121A.56. 

In view of the foregoing and in accordance with Minn. Stat. § 121A.55, the school board, with 
the participation of school administrators, teachers, employees, students, parents, community 
members, and such other individuals and organizations as appropriate, has developed this policy 
which governs student conduct and applies to all students of the school. 

HBA- 161



 

88 

III. DEFINITIONS 

A. "Nonexclusionary disciplinary policies and practices" means policies and practices that 
are alternatives to dismissing a pupil from school, including but not limited to evidence-
based positive behavior interventions and supports, social and emotional services, school-
linked mental health services, counseling services, social work services, academic 
screening for Title 1 services or reading interventions, and alternative education services. 
Nonexclusionary disciplinary policies and practices include but are not limited to the 
policies and practices under sections 120B.12; 121A.575, clauses (1) and (2); 121A.031, 
subdivision 4, paragraph (a), clause (1); 121A.61, subdivision 3, paragraph (r); and 
122A.627, clause (3). 

B. "Pupil withdrawal agreement" means a verbal or written agreement between a school 
administrator or charter school administrator and a pupil's parent to withdraw a student 
from the charter school to avoid expulsion or exclusion dismissal proceedings. The 
duration of the withdrawal agreement cannot be for more than a 12-month period. 

IV. POLICY 

A. The school board must establish uniform criteria for dismissal and adopt written policies 
and rules to effectuate the purposes of the Minnesota Pupil Fair Dismissal Act. The policies 
must include nonexclusionary disciplinary policies and practices consistent with Minn. 
Stat. § 121A.41, subd. 12, and must emphasize preventing dismissals through early 
detection of problems. The policies must be designed to address students' inappropriate 
behavior from recurring. 

B. The policies must recognize the continuing responsibility of the school for the education 
of the pupil during the dismissal period. 

C. The school is responsible for ensuring that alternative educational services, if the pupil 
wishes to take advantage of them, must be adequate to allow the pupil to make progress 
toward meeting the graduation standards adopted under Minn. Stat. § 120B.02 and help 
prepare the pupil for readmission in accordance with section Minn. Stat. § 121A.46, subd. 
5. 

D. For expulsion and exclusion dismissals and pupil withdrawal agreements as defined in 
Minn. Stat. § 121A.41, subd. 13: 

1. for a pupil who remains enrolled in the school or is awaiting enrollment in a new 
school, the school's continuing responsibility includes reviewing the pupil's 
schoolwork and grades on a quarterly basis to ensure the pupil is on track for 
readmission with the pupil's peers. The school must communicate on a regular 
basis with the pupil's parent or guardian to ensure that the pupil is completing the 
work assigned through the alternative educational services as defined in Minn. Stat. 
§ 121A.41, subd. 11. These services are required until the pupil enrolls in another 
school or returns to the same school; 

HBA- 162



 

89 

2. a pupil receiving school-based or school-linked mental health services in the school 
under Minn. Stat. § 245.4889 continues to be eligible for those services until the 
pupil is enrolled in a new school; and 

3. the school must provide to the pupil's parent or guardian information on accessing 
mental health services, including any free or sliding fee providers in the 
community. The information must also be posted on the school website. 

V. AREAS OF RESPONSIBILITY 

A. The School Board. 

The school board holds all school personnel responsible for the maintenance of order 
within the school and supports all personnel acting within the framework of this discipline 
policy. 

B. The Chief Executive Officer (CEO)CEO. 

The CEO shall establish guidelines and directives to carry out this policy, hold all school 
personnel, students, and parents responsible for conforming to this policy, and support all 
school personnel performing their duties within the framework of this policy.  

C. The Principal.  

The school Principal is given the responsibility and authority to formulate building rules 
and regulations necessary to enforce this policy, subject to final school board approval. The 
principal shall give direction and support to all school personnel performing their duties 
within the framework of this policy. The principal shall consult with parents of students 
conducting themselves in a manner contrary to the policy. The principal shall also involve 
other professional employees in the disposition of Behavior referrals and shall make use of 
those agencies appropriate for assisting students and parents. A principal, in exercising his 
or her lawful authority, may use reasonable force when it is necessary under the 
circumstances to restrain a student to prevent imminent bodily harm or death to the student 
or another.shall also establish guidelines and directives for using the services of appropriate 
agencies for assisting students and parents. Any guidelines or directives established to 
implement this policy shall be submitted to the school board for approval and shall be 
attached as an addendum to this policy. 

C. Chief of Administration and Dean of Students. 

The COA is given the responsibility and authority to formulate building rules and 
regulations necessary to enforce this policy, subject to final school board approval. The 
COA and Dean of Students shall give direction and support to all school personnel 
performing their duties within the framework of this policy. School administrators shall 
consult with parents of students conducting themselves in a manner contrary to the policy. 
The COA and Dean of Students shall also involve other professional employees in the 
disposition of behavior referrals and shall make use of those agencies appropriate for 
assisting students and parents. The Dean of Students, in exercising his or her lawful 

Commented [LK22]: These do not appear to be active 
positions at the school. Paragraph C could be changed to the 
Chief Administrative Officer if that is who should be 
responsible rather than the principal 

HBA- 163



 

90 

authority, may use reasonable force when it is necessary under the circumstances to correct 
or restrain a student or prevent bodily harm or death to another. 

D. Teachers. 

All teachers shall be responsible for providing a well-planned teaching/learning 
environment and shall have primary responsibility for student conduct, with appropriate 
assistance from the administration. All teachers shall enforce the Code of Student Conduct. 
In exercising the teacher's lawful authority, a teacher may use reasonable force when it is 
necessary under the circumstances to correct or restrain a student or prevent bodily harm 
or death to another. 

E. Other School Personnel. 

All school personnel shall be responsible for contributing to the atmosphere of mutual 
respect within the school. Their responsibilities relating to student behavior shall be as 
authorized and directed by the directorCEO. A school employee, school bus driver, or other 
agent of a school, in exercising his or her lawful authority, may use reasonable force when 
it is necessary under the circumstances to restrain a student or prevent bodily harm or death 
to another. 

F. Parents or Legal Guardians. 

Parents and guardians shall be held responsible for the behavior of their children as 
determined by law and community practice. They are expected to cooperate with school 
authorities and to participate regarding the behavior of their children. 

G. Students. 

All students shall be held individually responsible for their behavior and for knowing and 
obeying the Code of Student Conduct and this policy. 

H. Community Members. 

Members of the community are expected to contribute to the establishment of an 
atmosphere in which rights and duties are effectively acknowledged and fulfilled. 

I. Reasonable Force Reports. 

1. The school must report data on its use of any reasonable force used on a student 
with a disability to correct or restrain the student to prevent imminent bodily harm 
or death to the student or another that is consistent with the definition of physical 
holding under Minn. Stat. § 125A.0941, paragraph (c), as outlined in section 
125A.0942, subd. 3, paragraph (b). 

2. Beginning with the 2024-2025 school year, the school must report annually by July 
15, in a form and manner determined by the MDE Commissioner, data from the 
prior school year about any reasonable force used on a general education student to 
correct or restrain the student to prevent imminent bodily harm or death to the 
student or another that is consistent with the definition of physical holding under 
Minn. Stat. § 125A.0941, paragraph (c). 

HBA- 164



 

91 

1.3.Any reasonable force used under Minn. Stat. §§ 121A.582; 609.06, subd. 1; and 
609.379 which intends to hold a child immobile or limit a child's movement where 
body contact is the only source of physical restraint or confines a child alone in a 
room from which egress is barred shall be reported to the MDE as a restrictive 
procedure, including physical holding or seclusion used by an unauthorized or 
untrained staff person. 

VI. STUDENT RIGHTS 

All students have the right to an education and the right to learn. 

VII. STUDENT RESPONSIBILITIES 

All students have the responsibility: 

A. For their behavior and for knowing and obeying all school rules, regulations, policies and 
procedures; 

B. To attend school daily, except when excused, and to be on time to all classes and other 
school functions; 

C. To pursue and attempt to complete the courses of study prescribed by the state and local 
school authorities; 

D. To make necessary arrangements for making up work when absent from school ; 

E. To assist the school staff in maintaining a safe school for all students; 

F. To be aware of all school rules, regulations, policies and procedures, including those in 
this policy, and to conduct themselves in accord with them; 

G. To assume that until a rule or policy is waived, altered or repealed, it is in full force and 
effect; 

H. To be aware of and comply with federal, state, and local laws; 

I. To volunteer information in disciplinary cases should they have any knowledge relating to 
such cases and to cooperate with school staff as appropriate; 

J. To respect and maintain the school 's property and the property of others; 

K. To dress and groom in a manner which meets standards of safety and health and common 
standards of decency and which is consistent with applicable school policy; 

L. To avoid inaccuracies in student newspapers or publications and refrain from indecent or 
obscene language; 

M. To conduct themselves in an appropriate physical or verbal manner; and 

N. To recognize and respect the rights of others. 

VIII. CODE OF STUDENT CONDUCT 

HBA- 165



 

92 

A. The following are examples of unacceptable behavior subject to disciplinary action by the 
school. These examples are not intended to be an exclusive list. Any student who engages 
in any of these activities shall be disciplined in accordance with this policy. This policy 
applies to all school buildings, school grounds, and school property or property 
immediately adjacent to school grounds; school-sponsored activities or trips; school bus 
stops; school buses, school vehicles, school contracted vehicles, or any other vehicles 
approved for charter school purposes; the area of entrance or departure from school 
premises or events; and all school-related functions, school-sponsored activities, events, or 
trips. School property also may mean a student’s walking route to or from school for 
purposes of attending school or school-related functions, activities, or events. While 
prohibiting unacceptable behavior subject to disciplinary action at these locations and 
events, the school does not represent that it will provide supervision or assume liability at 
these locations and events. This policy also applies to any student whose conduct at any 
time or in any place interferes with or obstructs the mission or operations of the school or 
the safety or welfare of the student, other students, or employees. 

1. Violations against property including, but not limited to, damage to or destruction 
of school property or the property of others, failure to compensate for damage or 
destruction of such property, arson, breaking and entering, theft, robbery, 
possession of stolen property, extortion, trespassing, unauthorized usage, or 
vandalism; 

2. The use of profanity or obscene language, or the possession of obscene materials; 

3. Gambling, including, but not limited to, playing a game of chance for stakes; 

4. Hazing; 

5. Violation of the school’s Attendance Policy and/or aAttendance problems 
including, but not limited to, truancy, absenteeism, tardiness, skipping classes, or 
leaving school grounds without permission; 

6. Opposition to authority using physical force or violence; 

7. Using, possessing, or distributing tobacco, tobacco-related devices, electronic 
cigarettes, or tobacco paraphernalia in violation of the school’s policy related to 
tobacco; 

8. Using, possessing, distributing, intending to distribute, making a request to another 
person for (solicitation), or being under the influence of alcohol or other 
intoxicating substances or look-alike substances; 

9. Using, possessing, distributing intending to distribute, making a request to another 
person for (solicitation), or being under the influence of narcotics, drugs, or other 
controlled substances, or look-alike substances, except as prescribed by a 
physician, including one student sharing prescription medication with another 
student (these prohibitions include medical marijuana or medical cannabis, even 
when prescribed by a physician); 

HBA- 166



 

93 

10. Using, possessing, or distributing items or articles that are illegal or harmful to 
persons or property including, but not limited to, drug paraphernalia; 

11. Using, possessing, or distributing weapons, or look-alike weapons or other 
dangerous objects; 

12. Violation of the school Weapons Policy; 

13. Violation of the school’s Violence Prevention Policy; 

14. Possession of ammunition including, but not limited to, bullets or other projectiles 
designed to be used in or as a weapon; 

15. Possession, use, or distribution of explosives or any compound or mixture, the 
primary or common purpose or intended use of which is to function as an explosive; 

16. Possession, use, or distribution of fireworks or any substance or combination of 
substances or article prepared for the purpose of producing a visible or an audible 
effect by combustion, explosion, deflagration or detonation; 

17. Using an ignition device, including a butane or disposable lighter or matches, inside 
an educational building and under circumstances where there is a risk of fire, except 
where the device is used in a manner authorized by the school ; 

18. Violation of any local, state, or federal law as appropriate; 

19. Acts disruptive of the educational process, including, but not limited to, 
disobedience, disruptive or disrespectful behavior, defiance of authority, cheating, 
insolence, insubordination, failure to identify oneself, improper activation of fire 
alarms, or bomb threats; 

20. Use of a cell phone or other electronic device in violation of the charter school’s 
Internet Acceptable Use and Safety Policy; Possession of nuisance devices or 
objects that cause distractions and may facilitate cheating including, but not limited 
to, pagers, radios, and phones, including picture phones; 

20. Violation of the school’s Internet Acceptable Use and Safety Policy; 

21. Violation of school bus or transportation rules or the school bus safety policy; 

22. Violation of parking or school traffic rules and regulations, including, but not 
limited to, driving on school property in such a manner as to endanger persons or 
property; 

23. Violation of directives or guidelines relating to lockers or improperly gaining 
access to a school locker; 

24. Possession or distribution of slanderous, libelous or pornographic materials; 

24.25. Violation of the school’s Bullying Prohibition Policy; 

25.26. Student attire or personal grooming which creates a danger to health or 
safety or creates a disruption to the educational process, including clothing which 
bears a message which is lewd, vulgar, or obscene, apparel promoting products or 

HBA- 167



 

94 

activities that are illegal for use by minors, or clothing containing objectionable 
emblems, signs, words, objects, or pictures communicating a message that is racist, 
sexist, or otherwise derogatory to a protected minority group or which connotes 
gang membership; 

26.27. Criminal activity; 

27.28. Falsification of any records, documents, notes or signatures; 

28.29. Tampering with, changing, or altering records or documents of the school 
by any method including, but not limited to, computer access or other electronic 
means; 

29.30. Scholastic dishonesty which includes, but is not limited to, cheating on a 
school assignment or test, plagiarism, or collusion, including the use of picture cell 
phones or other technology to accomplish this end; 

30.31. Impertinent or disrespectful words, symbols, acronyms, or language, 
whether oral or written, toward teachers or other school personnel; 

31.32. Sexual and/or racial abuse and/or harassmentViolation of the school’s 
Harassment and Violence Policy; 

32.33. Actions, including fighting or any other assaultive behavior, which causes 
or could cause injury to the student or other persons or which otherwise endangers 
the health, safety, or welfare of teachers, students, other school personnel, or other 
persons; 

33.34. Committing an act that inflicts great bodily harm upon another person, even 
though accidental or a result of poor judgment; 

34.35. Violations against persons, including, but not limited to, assault or 
threatened assault, fighting, harassment, interference or obstruction, attack with a 
weapon, or look-alike weapon, sexual assault, illegal or inappropriate sexual 
conduct, or indecent exposure; 

35.36. Verbal assaults, or verbally abusive behavior, including, but not limited to, 
use of words, symbols, acronyms, or language, whether oral or written, that is 
discriminatory, abusive, obscene, threatening, intimidating or that degrades other 
people or threatens school property; 

36.37. Physical or verbal threats including, but not limited to, the staging or 
reporting of dangerous or hazardous situations that do not exist; 

37.38. Inappropriate, abusive, threatening, or demeaning actions based on race, 
color, creed, religion, sex, marital status, status with regard to public assistance, 
disability, national origin, or sexual orientation; 

38.39. Violation of school rules, regulations, policies, or procedures; 

39.40. Other acts, as determined by the school , which are disruptive of the 
educational process or dangerous or detrimental to the student or other students, 

HBA- 168



 

95 

school personnel, or surrounding persons, or which violate the rights of others or 
which damage or endanger the property of the school , or which otherwise 
interferes with or obstruct the mission or operations of the school or the safety or 
welfare of students or employees. 

IX. RECESS AND OTHER BREAKS 

A. "Recess detention" means excluding or excessively delaying a student from participating 
in a scheduled recess period as a consequence for student behavior. Recess detention does 
not include, among other things, providing alternative recess at the student's choice. 

B. The school is encouraged to ensure student access to structured breaks from the demands 
of school and to support teachers, principals, and other school staff in their efforts to use 
evidence-based approaches to reduce exclusionary forms of discipline. 

C. The school must not use recess detention unless: 

1. a student causes or is likely to cause serious physical harm to other students or staff; 

2. the student's parent or guardian specifically consents to the use of recess detention; 
or 

3. for students receiving special education services, the student's individualized 
education program team has determined that withholding recess is appropriate 
based on the individualized needs of the student. 

D. The school must not withhold recess from a student based on incomplete schoolwork. 

E. The school must require school staff to make a reasonable attempt to notify a parent or 
guardian within 24 hours of using recess detention. 

F. The school must compile information on each recess detention at the end of each school 
year, including the student's age, grade, gender, race or ethnicity, and special education 
status. This information must be available to the public upon request. The school is 
encouraged to use the data in professional development promoting the use of 
nonexclusionary discipline. 

A.G. The school must not withhold or excessively delay a student's participation in 
scheduled mealtimes. This section does not alter a school's existing responsibilities under 
Minn. Stat. § 124D.111 or other state or federal law. 

X. DISCIPLINARY ACTION OPTIONS 

It is the general policy of the school to utilize progressive discipline to the extent reasonable and 
appropriate based upon the specific facts and circumstances of student misconduct. The specific 
form of discipline chosen in a particular case is solely within the discretion of the school. At a 
minimum, violation of school rules, regulations, policies or procedures will result in discussion 
of the violation and a verbal warning. The school shall, however, impose more severe disciplinary 
sanctions for any violation, including exclusion or expulsion, if warranted by the student's 

HBA- 169



 

96 

misconduct, as determined by the school. Disciplinary action may include, but is not limited to, 
one or more of the following: 

A. Student conference with teacher, Dean of StudentsChief Administrative Officer, Principal, 
counselor or other school personnel, and verbal warning; 

A.B. Confiscation by school personnel and/or by law enforcement of any item, article, 
object, or thing, prohibited by, or used in the violation of, any school policy, rule, 
regulation, procedure, or state or federal law. If confiscated by the charter school, the 
confiscated item, article, object, or thing will be released only to the parent/guardian 
following the completion of any investigation or disciplinary action instituted or taken 
related to the violation. 

B.C. Parent contact; 

C.D. Parent conference; 

D.E. Removal from class; 

E.F. In-school suspension; 

F.G. Suspension from extracurricular activities; 

G.H. Detention or restriction of privileges; 

H.I. Loss of school privileges; 

I.J. In-school monitoring or revised class schedule; 

J.K. Referral to in-school support services; 

K.L. Referral to community resources or outside agency services; 

L.M. Financial restitution; 

M.N. Referral to police, other law enforcement agencies, or other appropriate authorities; 

N.O. A request for a petition to be filed in court for juvenile delinquency adjudication; 

P. Out-of-school suspension under the Pupil Fair Dismissal Act; 

O.Q. Saturday school; 

P.R. Preparation of an admission or readmission plan; 

Q.S. Expulsion under the Pupil Fair Dismissal Act; 

R.T. Exclusion under the Pupil Fair Dismissal Act; and/or 

S.U. Other disciplinary action as deemed appropriate by the school. 

XI. REMOVAL OF STUDENTS FROM CLASS 

A. Teachers have the responsibility of attempting to modify disruptive student behavior by 
such means as conferring with the student, using positive reinforcement, assigning 
detention or other consequences, or contacting the student's parents. When such measures 
fail, or when the teacher determines it is otherwise appropriate based upon the student's 

HBA- 170



 

97 

conduct, the teacher shall have the authority to remove the student from class pursuant to 
the procedures established by this discipline policy. "Removal from class" and "removal" 
mean any actions taken by a teacher, Dean of StudentsChief Administrative Officer, 
Principal, or other school employee to prohibit a student from attending a class or activity 
period for a period of time not to exceed five (5) days, pursuant to this discipline policy. 
Grounds for removal from class shall include any of the following: 

1. Willful conduct that significantly disrupts the rights of others to an education, 
including conduct that interferes with a teacher's ability to teach or communicate 
effectively with students in a class or with the ability of other students to learn; 

2. Willful conduct that endangers surrounding persons, including school employees, 
the student or other students, or the property of the school; 

3. Willful violation of any school rules, regulations, policies or procedures,  including 
the Code of Student Conduct in this policy; or 

4. Other conduct, which in the discretion of the teacher or administration requires 
removal of the student from class. 

B. Such removal shall be for at least one (1) activity period or class period of instruction for 
a given course of study and shall not exceed five (5) such periods. The removal from class 
shall be for a period of time deemed appropriate by the principal, in consultation with the 
teacher. 

C. A student must be removed from class immediately if the student engages in assault or 
violent behavior. “Assault” is an act done with intent to cause fear in another of immediate 
bodily harm or death; or the intentional infliction of, or attempt to inflict, bodily harm upon 
another.   

D. If a student is removed from class more than ten (10) times in a school year, the school 
shall notify the parent or guardian of the student's tenth removal from class and make 
reasonable attempts to convene a meeting with the student's parent or guardian to discuss 
the problem that is causing the student to be removed from class. 

E. Procedures for Removal of a Student From a Class. 

1. Specify procedures to remove a student from a class to be followed by a teacher, 
school administrator, or other charter school employee; 

2. Specify required approvals necessary; 

3. Specify paperwork and reporting procedures. 

F. Responsibility for and Custody of a Student Removed from Class. 

1. Designation of where student is to go when removed; 

2. Designation of how student is to get to designated destination; 

3. Whether student must be accompanied; 

4. Statement of what student is to do when and while removed; 

HBA- 171



 

98 

5. Designation of who has control over and responsibility for student after removal 
from class. 

G. Procedures for Return of a Student to a Specific Class from Which the Student was 
Removed. 

1. Specification of procedures; 

2. Actions or approvals required such as notes, conferences, readmission plans. 

H. Procedures for Notifying a Student and the Student’s Parents or Guardian of Violation of 
the Rules of Conduct and of Resulting Disciplinary Actions. 

1. Specification of Procedures; 

2. Actions or approvals required, such as notes, conferences, readmission plans. 

I. Students with a Disability - Special Provisions. 

1. Procedures for consideration of whether there is a need for further assessment; 

2. Procedures for consideration of whether there is a need for a review of the adequacy 
of the current Individualized Education Program (IEP) of a student with a disability 
who is removed from class or disciplined; and 

3. Any procedures determined appropriate for referring students in need of special 
education services to those services. 

J. Procedures for Detecting and Addressing Chemical Abuse Problems of Students While on 
School Premises. 

1. Establishment of a chemical abuse preassessment team pursuant to Minnesota 
Statutes, section 121A.26; 

2. Establishment of teacher reporting procedures to the chemical abuse preassessment 
team pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, section 121A.29. 

D.K. Procedures for Immediate and Appropriate Interventions Tied to Violations of the 
Code of Student Conduct. 

XII. DISMISSAL 

A. "Dismissal" means the denial of the current educational program to any student, including 
exclusion, expulsion and suspension. Dismissal does not include removal from class. The 
school shall not deny due process or equal protection of the law to any student involved in 
a dismissal proceeding that may result in suspension, exclusion or expulsion. 

The school shall not dismiss any student without attempting to use nonexclusionary 
disciplinary policies and procedures before dismissal proceedings or pupil withdrawal 
agreements, except where it appears that the student will create an immediate and 
substantial danger to self or to surrounding persons or property. 

Commented [LTK23]: Procedures for these sections must 
be developed and included in this policy 

HBA- 172



 

99 

The use of exclusionary practices for early learners as defined in Minn. Stat. § 121A.425 
is prohibited. Exclusionary practices cannot be used to address attendance and truancy 
issues.  

 

B. Violations leading to suspension, based upon severity, may also be grounds for  actions 
leading to expulsion, and/or exclusion. A student may be dismissed on any of the following 
grounds: 

1. Willful violation of any reasonable school board regulation, including those found 
in this policy; 

2. Willful conduct that significantly disrupts the rights of others to an education, or 
the ability of school personnel to perform their duties, or school sponsored 
extracurricular activities; or 

3. Willful conduct that endangers the student or other students, or surrounding 
persons, including school employees, or property of the school. 

C. Prohibited Disciplinary Dismissals 

1. Students enrolled in the following are not subject to dismissals under the Pupil Fair 
Dismissal Act: 

i. a preschool or prekindergarten program, including an early childhood 
family education, school readiness, school readiness plus, voluntary 
prekindergarten, Head Start, or other school-based preschool or 
prekindergarten program; or 

ii. kindergarten through Grade 3. 

2. This section does not apply to a dismissal from school for less than one school day, 
except as provided under Minn. Stat., chapter 125A and federal law for a student 
receiving special education services. 

3. Notwithstanding this section, expulsions and exclusions may be used only after 
resources outlined under Nonexclusionary discipline have been exhausted, and only 
in circumstances where there is an ongoing serious safety threat to the child or 
others. 

D. Suspension Procedures 

1. "Suspension" means an action by the school administration, under rules 
promulgated by the School Board, prohibiting a student from attending school for 
a period of no more than ten (10) school days; provided, however, if a suspension 
is longer than five (5) school days, the suspending administrator shall provide the 
Principal with a reason for the longer term of suspension. This definition does not 
apply to dismissal for one (1) school day or less where a student with a disability 
does not receive regular or special education instruction during that dismissal 
period.This definition does not apply to dismissal for one (1) school day or less, 
except as may be provided in federal law for a student with a disability. 

HBA- 173



 

100 

2. School administration must allow a suspended pupil the opportunity to complete 
all school work assigned during the period of the pupil's suspension and to receive 
full credit for satisfactorily completing the assignments. The school principal or 
other person having administrative control of the school building or program is 
encouraged to designate a school employee as a liaison to work with the pupil's 
teachers to allow the suspended pupil to (1) receive timely course materials and 
other information, and (2) complete daily and weekly assignments and receive 
teachers' feedback. 

2.3.If a student's total days of removal from school exceed ten (10) cumulative days in 
a school year, the school shall make reasonable attempts to convene a meeting with 
the student and the student's parent or guardian prior to subsequently removing the 
student from school and with the permission of the parent or guardian, arrange for 
a mental health screening for the student at the parent or guardian’s expense. The 
purpose of this meeting is to attempt to determine the pupil's need for assessment 
or other services, including whether the parent or guardian should have the student 
assessed or diagnosed by a mental health professional to determine if the student 
needs treatment for a mental health disorder. 

3.4.The definition of suspension under Minnesota Statutes, section 121A.41, 
subdivision 10, does not apply to a student's dismissal from school for less than one 
school day, except as provided under federal law for a student with a 
disability. Each suspension action may include a readmission plan. The plan shall 
include, where appropriate, a provision for implementing alternative educational 
services upon readmission and may not be used to extend the current suspension. 
A readmission plan must not obligate a parent or guardian to provide psychotropic 
drugs to their student as a condition of readmission. School administration must not 
use the refusal of a parent or guardian to consent to the administration of 
psychotropic drugs to their student or to consent to a psychiatric evaluation, 
screening, or examination of the student as a ground, by itself, to prohibit the 
student from attending class or participating in a school-related activity, or as a 
basis of a charge of child abuse, child neglect, or medical or educational neglect. 
The school administration may not impose consecutive suspensions against the 
same student for the same course of conduct, or incident of misconduct, except 
where the student will create an immediate and substantial danger to self or to 
surrounding persons or property or where the school is in the process of initiating 
an expulsion, in which case the school administration may extend the suspension 
to a total of fifteen (15) days. 

4. In the case of a student with a disability who has been suspended for more than five 
(5) consecutive days or ten (10) cumulative school days in the same year, and the 
suspension does not involve a recommendation for expulsion or exclusion or other 
change in placement under federal law, the student's individual education plan 
(IEP) team shall meet immediately as soon as possible, but not more than ten (10) 
school days after the after the sixth (6th) consecutive day of suspension or the tenth 
(10th) cumulative day of suspension has elapsed.date on which the decision to 

HBA- 174



 

101 

remove the student from the student's current education placement is made. The 
individual education planIEP team, including at least one of the child’s teachers,  
shall meet and , at the meeting, conduct a review of the relationship between the 
child's disability and the behavior subject to disciplinary action, and determine the 
extent to which the child needs services in order to continue to participate in the 
general education curriculum, although in another setting, and to progress toward 
meeting the goals in the child’s IEP. and determine the appropriateness of the 
child's education plan. 

5. The requirements of the individual education plan team meeting apply when: (1) 
the parent requests a meeting; (2) the student is removed from the student's current 
placement for five (5) or more consecutive days; or (3) the student's total days of 
removal from the student's placement during the school year exceed ten (10) 
cumulative days in a school year. The school administration shall implement 
alternative educational services when the suspension exceeds five (5) days. A 
separate administrative conference shall be conducted for each period of 
suspension. 

5.  

6. The school administration shall implement alternative educational services when 
the suspension exceeds five (5) days. Alternative educational services may include, 
but are not limited to, special tutoring, modified curriculum, modified instruction, 
other modifications or adaptations, instruction through electronic media, special 
education services as indicated by appropriate assessments, homebound instruction, 
supervised homework, or enrollment in another school or in an alternative learning 
center under Minn. Stat. § 123A.05 selected to allow the pupil to progress toward 
meeting graduation standards under Minn. Stat. § 120B .02, although in a different 
setting. 

7. The school administration shall not suspend a student from school without an 
informal administrative conference with the student. The informal administrative 
conference shall take place before the suspension, except where it appears that the 
student will create an immediate and substantial danger to self or to surrounding 
persons or property, in which case the conference shall take place as soon as 
practicable following the suspension. At the informal administrative conference, a 
school administrator shall notify the student of the grounds for the suspension, 
provide an explanation of the evidence the authorities have, and the student may 
present the student's version of the facts. A separate administrative conference is 
required for each period of suspension. 

8. After the school administration notifies a student of the grounds for suspension, 
school administration may, instead of imposing the suspension, do one or more of 
the following: 

i. strongly encourage a parent or guardian of the student to attend school with 
the student for one day; 

HBA- 175



 

102 

ii. assign the student to attend school on Saturday as supervised by the 
principal or the principal’s designee; and 

iii. petition the juvenile court that the student is in need of services under Minn. 
Stat., chapter 260C. 

8.9.A written notice containing the grounds for suspension, a brief statement of the 
facts, a description of the testimony, a readmission plan, and a copy of the 
Minnesota Pupil Fair Dismissal Act, Minn. Stat. §§ 121A.40-121A.56, shall be 
personally served upon the student at or before the time the suspension is to take 
effect, and upon the student's parent or guardian by mail within forty-eight (48) 
hours of the conference. (See attached sample Notice of Suspension.) 

9.10. The school administration shall make reasonable efforts to notify the 
student's parent or guardian of the suspension by telephone as soon as possible 
following suspension. 

10.11. In the event a student is suspended without an informal administrative 
conference on the grounds that the student will create an immediate and substantial 
danger to surrounding persons or property, the written notice shall be served upon 
the student and the student's parent or guardian within forty-eight (48) hours of the 
suspension. Service by mail shall be complete upon mailing. 

11.12. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions, the student may be suspended 
pending the school board's decision in an expulsion or exclusion proceeding, 
provided that alternative educational services are implemented to the extent that 
suspension exceeds five (5) days. 

E. Expulsion and Exclusion Procedures 

1. "Expulsion" means a school board action to prohibit an enrolled student from 
further attendance for up to twelve (12) months from the date the student is 
expelled. The authority to expel rests with the school board. 

2. "Exclusion" means an action taken by the school board to prevent enrollment or re-
enrollment of a student for a period that shall not extend beyond the school year. 
The authority to exclude rests with the school board. 

3. All expulsion and exclusion proceedings will be held pursuant to and in accordance 
with the provisions of the Minnesota Pupil Fair Dismissal Act, Minn. Stat.  §§ 
#121A.40-121A.56. 

4. No expulsion or exclusion shall be imposed without a hearing, unless the student 
and parent or guardian waives the right to a hearing in writing. 

5. The student and parent or guardian shall be provided written notice of the school's 
intent to initiate expulsion or exclusion proceedings. This notice shall be served 
upon the student and his or her parent or guardian personally or by mail, and shall 
contain a complete statement of the facts; a list of the witnesses and a description 
of their testimony; state the date, time and place of hearing; be accompanied by a 

Formatted

HBA- 176



 

103 

copy of the Pupil Fair Dismissal Act, Minn. Stat. §§ 121A.40-121A.56; describe 
the nonexclusionary disciplinary practices alternative educational services 
accorded the student in an attempt to avoid the expulsion proceedings; and inform 
the student and parent or guardian of their right to: (1) have a representative of the 
student's own choosing, including legal counsel at the hearing; (2) examine the 
student's records before the hearing; (3) present evidence; and (4) confront and 
cross-„ examine witnesses. The school shall advise the student's parent or guardian 
that free or low-cost legal assistance may be available and that a legal assistance 
resource list is available from the Minnesota Department of Education (MDE) and 
posted on its website. 

6. The hearing shall be scheduled within ten (10) days of the service of the written 
notice unless an extension, not to exceed five (5) days, is requested for good cause 
by the school, student, parent or guardian. 

7. All hearings shall be held at a time and place reasonably convenient to the student, 
parent or guardian and shall be closed, unless the student, parent or guardian 
requests an open hearing. 

8. The school shall record the hearing proceedings at expense, and a party may obtain 
a transcript at its own expense. 

9. The student shall have a right to a representative of the student's own choosing, 
including legal counsel, at the student's sole expense. The school shall advise the 
student's parent or guardian that free or low-cost legal assistance may be available 
and that a legal assistance resource list is available from MDE. The school board 
may appoint an attorney to represent the school in any proceeding. 

10. If the student designates a representative other than the parent or guardian, the 
representative must have a written authorization from the student and the parent or 
guardian providing them with access to and/or copies of the student's records. 

11. All expulsion or exclusion hearings shall take place before and be conducted by an 
independent hearing officer designated by the school. The hearing shall be 
conducted in a fair and impartial manner. Testimony shall be given under oath and 
the hearing officer shall have the power to issue subpoenas and administer oaths. 

12. At a reasonable time prior to the hearing, the student, paréntparent or guardian, or 
authorized representative shall be given access to all school records pertaining to 
the student, including any tests or reports upon which the proposed dismissal action 
may be based. 

13. The student, parent or guardian, or authorized representative, shall have the right to 
compel the presence of any school employee or agent or any other person who may 
have evidence upon which the proposed dismissal action may be based, and to 
confront and cross-examine any witnesses testifying for the school. 

HBA- 177



 

104 

14. The student, parent or guardian, or authorized representative, shall have the right to 
present evidence and testimony, including expert psychological or educational 
testimony. 

15. The student cannot be compelled to testify in the dismissal proceedings. 

16. The hearing officer shall prepare findings and a recommendation based solely upon 
substantial evidence presented at the hearing, which must be made to the school 
board and served upon the parties within two (2) days after the close of the hearing. 

17. The school board shall base its decision upon the findings and recommendation of 
the hearing officer and shall render its decision at a meeting held within five (5) 
days after receiving the findings and recommendation. The school board may 
provide the parties with the opportunity to present exceptions and comments to the 
hearing officer's findings and recommendation provided that neither party presents 
any evidence not admitted at the hearing. The decision by the school board must be 
based on the record, must be in writing, and must state the controlling facts on 
which the decision is made in sufficient detail to apprise the parties and the 
Commissioner of Education (Commissioner) of the basis and reason for the 
decision. 

18. A party to an expulsion or exclusion decision made by the school board may appeal 
the decision to the Commissioner within twenty-one (21) calendar days of school 
board action pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 121A.49. The decision of the school board 
shall be implemented during the appeal to the Commissioner. 

19. The school shall report any suspension, expulsion or exclusion action taken to the 
appropriate public service agency, when the student is under the supervision of such 
agency. 

20. The school shall report through the MDE electronic reporting system each 
expulsion or exclusion within thirty (30) days of the effective date of the action to 
the Commissioner. This report shall include a statement of alternative educational 
services given the student and the reason for, the effective date, and the duration of 
the exclusion or expulsion. The report must also include the student’s age, grade, 
gender, race, and special education status. The dismissal report must include state 
student identification numbers of affected students. 

21. Whenever a student fails to return to school within ten (10) school days of the 
termination of dismissal, a school administrator shall inform the student and his/her 
parent or guardian by mail of the student's right to attend and to be reinstated in the 
school. 

XIII. ADMISSION OR READMISSION PLAN 

A school administrator shall prepare and enforce an admission or readmission plan for any student 
who is excluded or expelled from school. The plan mustmay include measures to improve the 
student's behavior which may include completing a character education program consistent with 

HBA- 178



 

105 

Minn. Stat. § 120B.232, subd. 1, social and emotional learning, counseling, social work services, 
mental health services, referrals for special education or 504 evaluation, and evidence-based 
academic interventions. and requireThe plan must include reasonable attempts to obtain parental 
involvement in the admission or readmission process, and may indicate the consequences to the 
student of not improving the student's behavior. The readmission plan must not obligate parents 
to provide a sympathomimetic medication for their child as a condition of readmission. 

XIV. NOTIFICATION OF POLICY VIOLATIONS 

Notification of any violation of this policy and resulting disciplinary action shall be as provided 
herein, or as otherwise provided by the Pupil Fair Dismissal Act or other applicable law. The 
teacher, Dean of StudentsChief Administrative Officer, Principal or other school official may 
provide additional notification as deemed appropriate. 

In addition, the school must report, through the MDE electronic reporting system, each exclusion 
or expulsion, each physical assault of a charter school employee by a pupil, and each pupil 
withdrawal agreement within thirty (30) days of the effective date of the dismissal action, pupil 
withdrawal, or assault, to the MDE Commissioner. This report must include a statement of the 
nonexclusionary disciplinary practices, or other sanction, intervention, or resolution in response 
to the assault given to the pupil and the reason for, the effective date, and the duration of the 
exclusion or expulsion or other sanction, intervention, or resolution. The report must also include 
the pupil’s age, grade, gender, race, and special education status. 

XV. STUDENT DISCIPLINE RECORDS 

It is the policy of the school that complete and accurate student discipline records be maintained. 
The collection, dissemination, and maintenance of student discipline records shall be consistent 
with applicable school policies and federal and state law, including the Minnesota Government 
Data Practices Act, Minn. Stat. Ch. 13. 

XVI. DISABLED STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES 

Students who are currently identified as disabled eligible under IDEA or Section 504 will be 
subject to the provisions of this policy, unless the student's IEP or 504 Plan specifies a necessary 
modification. 
 
Where a student is dismissed for five (5) or more consecutive days, or has accumulated more than 
ten (10) days of dismissal over the course of the school year, the school will convene a meeting 
to determine whether the student's educational program is appropriate and whether the behavior 
subject to discipline is a manifestation of the student's disability. Such a meeting must be held 
within ten (10) days of the school's decision to remove the student from his or her current 
educational placement and must be held before commencing an expulsion or exclusion of the 
student. Before initiating an expulsion or exclusion of a student with a disability, relevant 
members of the child’s IEP team and the child’s parent shall, consistent with federal law, conduct 
a manifestation determination and determine whether the child’s behavior was (i) caused by or 

HBA- 179



 

106 

had a direct and substantial relationship to the child’s disability and (ii) whether the child’s 
conduct was a direct result of a failure to implement the child’s IEP.  If the student's educational 
program is appropriate and the behavior is not a manifestation of the student's disability, the 
school will proceed with discipline — up to and including expulsion — as if the student did not 
have a disability, unless the student's educational program provides otherwise. If the team 
determines that the behavior subject to discipline is a manifestation of the student's disability, the 
team will confer on the appropriate discipline (excluding exclusion or expulsion) and take steps 
to alter the student's educational program, as necessary. the team shall conduct a functional 
behavioral assessment and implement a behavioral intervention plan for such student provided 
that the  school had not conducted such assessment prior to the manifestation determination before 
the behavior that resulted in a change of placement. Where a behavioral intervention plan 
previously has been developed, the team will review the behavioral intervention plan and modify 
it as necessary to address the behavior.Regardless of whether the behavior is a manifestation of 
the student's disability, if the team determines that the student's educational program is either not 
appropriate or not being properly implemented, the team will take steps to alter the program and 
will take any program alterations into account in determining appropriate discipline. 

When a student who has an IEP is excluded or expelled for misbehavior that is not a manifestation 
of the student's disability, the school shall continue to provide special education and related 
services during the period of expulsion or exclusion.after any period of suspension, if suspension 
is imposed. 

XVII. OPEN ENROLLED STUDENTS 

The school may terminate the enrollment of a nonresident student enrolled under an Enrollment 
Option Program (Minn. Stat. § 124D.03) or Enrollment in Nonresident Charter School (Minn. 
Stat. § 124D.08) at the end of a school year if the student meets the definition of a habitual truant, 
the student has been provided appropriate services for truancy (Minn. Stat. Ch. 260A), and the 
student's case has been referred to juvenile court. The school may also terminate the enrollment 
of a nonresident student over the age of sixteen seventeen (176) enrolled under an Enrollment 
Options Program if the student is absent without lawful excuse for one or more periods on fifteen 
(15) school days and has not lawfully withdrawn from school . 

XVIII. DISCIPLINE COMPLAINT PROCEDURE 

Students, parents and other guardians, and school staff may file a complaint and seek corrective 
action when the requirements of the Minnesota Pupil Fair Dismissal Act, including the 
implementation of the local behavior and discipline policies, are not being implemented 
appropriately or are being discriminately applied. The Discipline Complaint Procedure must, at a 
minimum: 

1. provide procedures for communicating this policy including the ability for a parent 
to appeal a decision under Minn. Stat § 121A.49 that contains explicit instructions 
for filing the complaint; 

HBA- 180



 

107 

2. provide an opportunity for involved parties to submit additional information related 
to the complaint; 

3. provide a procedure to begin to investigate complaints within three school days of 
receipt, and identify personnel who will manage the investigation and any resulting 
record and are responsible for keeping and regulating access to any record; 

4. provide procedures for issuing a written determination to the complainant that 
addresses each allegation and contains findings and conclusions; 

5. if the investigation finds the requirements of Minn. Stat. §§ 121A.40 to 121A.61, 
including any local policies that were not implemented appropriately, contain 
procedures that require a corrective action plan to correct a student's record and 
provide relevant staff with training, coaching, or other accountability practices to 
ensure appropriate compliance with policies in the future; and 

1.6.prohibit reprisals or retaliation against any person who asserts, alleges, or reports a 
complaint, and provide procedures for applying appropriate consequences for a 
person who engages in reprisal or retaliation. 

XIX. DISTRIBUTION OF POLICY 

The school will notify students and parents of the existence and contents of this policy in such 
manner, as it deems appropriate. Copies of this discipline policy shall be made available to all 
students and parents at the commencement of each school year and to all new students and parents 
upon enrollment. This policy shall also be available upon request in each Principal's office. 

XX. REVIEW OF POLICY 

The Principal and representatives of parents, students and staff in each school building shall 
confer at least annually to review this discipline policy, determine if the policy is working as 
intended, and to assess whether the discipline policy has been enforced. Any recommended 
changes shall be submitted to the Principal for consideration by the school board, which shall 
conduct an annual review of this policy.  

HBA- 181



 

108 

23. Bullying Prohibition Policy (MSMA 514) 
 
Adopted by Best Academy Board of Directors: September 22, 2011 and Amended October 26, 
2013 
 
 
I. REVIEW OF POLICY 

A safe and civil environment is needed for students to learn and attain high academic standards 
and to promote healthy human relationships. Bullying, like other violent or disruptive behavior, is 
conduct that interferes with students' ability to learn and teachers' ability to educate students in a 
safe environment. Best Academy cannot monitor the activities of students at all times and 
eliminate all incidents of bullying between students, particularly when students are not under the 
direct supervision of school personnel. However, to the extent such conduct affects the educational 
environment of Best Academy and the rights and welfare of its students and is within the control 
of the school in its normal operations, it is the school's intent to prevent bullying and to take action 
to investigate, respond, remediate, and discipline those acts of bullying which have not been 
successfully prevented. The purpose of this policy is to assist the school in its goal of preventing 
and responding to acts of bullying, intimidation, violence, and other similar disruptive behavior. 

II. GENERAL STATEMENT OF POLICY 

A. An act of bullying, by either an individual student or a group of students, is expressly 
prohibited on Best Academyschool property or at school-related functions and activities, 
or on school transportation. Bullying by the use of electronic technology and 
communications on the school premises, during the school functions or activities, on the 
school transportation, or on the school computers, networks, forums, and mailing lists is 
prohibited. Additionally, bullying by use of electronic technology and communications off 
the school premises to the extent such use substantially and materially disrupts student 
learning or the school environment is also prohibited. 

B. A school-aged child who voluntarily participates in a public school activity, such as a 
cocurricular or extracurricular activity, is subject to the policy provisions applicable to the 
public school students participating in the activity. 

C. This policy applies not only to students who directly engage in an act of bullying but also 
to students who, by their indirect behavior, condone or support another student's act of 
bullying. This policy also applies to any student whose conduct at any time or in any place 
constitutes bullying that interferes with or obstructs the mission or operations of the school 
district or the safety or welfare of the student, other students, or employees,. or materially 
and substantially interferes with a student’s educational opportunities or performance or 
ability to participate in school functions or activities or receive school benefits, services, 
or privileges. This policy also applies to an act of cyberbullying regardless of whether such 
act is committed on or off school property and/or with or without the use of school 
resources. This policy also applies to sexual exploitation. 

HBA- 182



 

109 

C.D. Malicious and sadistic conduct involving race, color, creed, national origin, sex, 
age, marital status, status with regard to public assistance, disability, religion, sexual 
harassment, and sexual orientation and gender identity as defined in Minn. Stat., chapter 
363A is prohibited. This prohibition applies to students, independent contractors, teachers, 
administrators, and other school personnel. Malicious and sadistic conduct and sexual 
exploitation by a school staff member, independent contractor, or enrolled student against 
a staff member, independent contractor, or student that occurs as described above is 
prohibited. 

D.E. No teacher, administrator, volunteer, contractor, or other employee of Best 
Academythe school shall permit, condone, or tolerate bullying. 

E.F. Apparent permission or consent by a student being bullied does not lessen the 
prohibitions contained in this policy. 

G. Retaliation against a victim, good faith reporter, or a witness of bullying is prohibited.  

F.H. False accusations or reports of bullying against another student are prohibited. 

G.I. A person who engages in an act of bullying, reprisal, retaliation, or false reporting 
of bullying or permits, condones, or tolerates bullying shall be subject to discipline for that 
act in accordance with Best Academythe school's policies and procedures. The school may 
take into account the following factors: 

1. The developmental and maturity levels of the parties involved; 

2. The levels of harm, surrounding circumstances, and nature of the behavior; 

3. Past incidences or past or continuing patterns of behavior; 

4. The relationship between the parties involved; and 

5. The context in which the alleged incidents occurred.  

Best Academy Board of Education Policy Consequences for students who commit 
prohibited acts of bullying may range from positive behavioral interventions up to and 
including suspension and/or expulsion.  

Consequences for employees who permit, condone, or tolerate bullying or engage in an act 
of reprisal or intentional false reporting of bullying may result in disciplinary action up to 
and including termination or discharge. 

Consequences for other individuals engaging in prohibited acts of bullying may include, 
but not be limited to, exclusion from school property and events and/or termination of 
services and/or contracts. 

H.J. The school will act to investigate all complaints of bullying reported to the school 
and will discipline or take appropriate action against any student, teacher, administrator, 
volunteer, contractor, or other employee of the school district who is found to have violated 
this policy. 

III. DEFINITIONS 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of
the same style

HBA- 183



 

110 

For purposes of this policy, the definitions included in this section apply. 

A. "Bullying" means intimidating, threatening, abusive, or harming conduct that is objectively 
offensive and: any written or verbal expression, physical act or gesture, or pattern thereof, 
by a student that is intended to cause or is perceived as causing distress to one or more 
students and which substantially interferes with another student's or students' educational 
benefits, opportunities, or performance. Bullying includes, but is not limited to, conduct by 
a student against another student that a reasonable person under the circumstances knows 
or should know has the effect of: 

A.  
1. an actual or perceived imbalance of power exists between the student engaging in 

the prohibited conduct and the target of the prohibited conduct, and the conduct is 
repeated or forms a pattern; or harming a student; 

 
2. materially and substantially interferes with a student’s educational opportunities or 

performance or ability to participate in school functions or activities or receive 
school benefits, services, or privileges.damaging a student's property; 

B. The term “bullying” specifically includes cyberbullying, malicious and sadistic conduct, 
and sexual exploitation.   

C. placing a student in reasonable fear of harm to his or her person or property; or 
D. creating a hostile educational environment for a student. 
B. “Cyberbullying” means bullying using technology or other electronic communication, 

including, but not limited to, a transfer of a sign, signal, writing, image, sound, or data, 
including a post on a social network Internet website or forum, transmitted through a 
computer, cell phone, or other electronic device. The term applies to prohibited conduct 
which occurs on school premises, on school property, at school functions or activities, on 
school transportation, or on school computers, networks, forums, and mailing lists, or off 
school premises to the extent that it substantially and materially disrupts student learning 
or the school environment. 

C. "Immediately" means as soon as possible but in no event longer than 24 hours. 
D. “Intimidating, threatening, abusive, or harming conduct” means, but is not limited to, 

conduct that: 
1.  causes physical harm to a student or a student’s property or causes a student to be 

in reasonable fear of harm to person or property;  
2. violates a student’s reasonable expectation of privacy, defames a student, or 

constitutes intentional infliction of emotional distress against a student under 
Minnesota common law; or 

E.3. is directed at any student or students, including those based on a person’s 
actual or perceived race, ethnicity, color, creed, religion, national origin, 
immigration status, sex, marital status, familial status, socioeconomic status, 
physical appearance, sexual orientation including gender identity and expression, 
academic status related to student performance, disability, or status with regard to 
public assistance, age, or any additional characteristic defined in the Minnesota 

Formatted

HBA- 184



 

111 

Human Rights Act (MHRA). However, prohibited conduct need not be based on 
any particular characteristic defined in this paragraph or the MHRA. 

E. ”Malicious and sadistic conduct” means actions that intend to cause harm by intentionally 
injuring another without just cause or reason or engaging in extreme or excessive cruelty 
or delighting in cruelty that creates a hostile learning environment. 

F. "On school property,  or at school-related functions, or on school transportation" means all 
school buildings, school grounds, and school property or property immediately adjacent to 
school grounds, school bus stops, school buses, school vehicles, school contracted vehicles, 
or any other vehicles approved for school purposes, the area of entrance or departure from 
school grounds, premises, or events, and all school-related functions, school-sponsored 
activities, events, or trips. School property also may mean a student's walking route to or 
from school for purposes of attending school or school-related functions, activities, or 
events. While prohibiting bullying at these locations and events, the school does not 
represent that it will provide supervision or assume liability at these locations and events. 

G. “Prohibited conduct” means bullying, cyberbullying, malicious and sadistic conduct, 
sexual exploitation, or retaliation or reprisal for asserting, alleging, reporting, or providing 
information about such conduct or knowingly making a false report about prohibited 
conduct. 

H. “Remedial response” means a measure to stop and correct prohibited conduct, prevent 
prohibited conduct from recurring, and protect, support, and intervene on behalf of a 
student who is the target or victim of prohibited conduct. 

F.I. “Student” means a student enrolled in the school. 

IV. REPORTING PROCEDURE 

A. Any person who believes he or she has been the target or victim of bullying or any person 
with knowledge or belief of conduct that may constitute bullying shall report the alleged 
acts immediately to the a school directorofficial designated by this policy. A student may 
report bullying anonymously, but action may not be taken against an alleged perpetrator 
based solely on an anonymous report. 

B. Best AcademyThe school encourages the reporting party or complainant to use the report 
form available from the director Chief Administrative Officer or available from the school 
office, but oral reports shall be considered complaints as well. 

C. The Principal is the person responsible for receiving reports of bullying or other prohibited 
conduct at the building level. Any person may report bullying or other prohibited conduct 
directly to the school human rights officer or the Chief Administrative Officer. If the 
complaint involves the report taker, the complaint shall be made or filed directly with the 
Chief Administrative Officer or the charter school human rights officer by the reporting 
party or complainant. 

C.D. A teacher, school administrator, volunteer, contractor, or other school employee 
shall be particularly alert to possible situations, circumstances, or events that might include 

Commented [LTK24]: Designate who will provide the 
form 

Commented [LTK25]: Designate who will receive reports 

HBA- 185



 

112 

bullying. Any such person who receives a report of, observes, or has other knowledge or 
belief of conduct that may constitute bullying shall inform the director/pPrincipal 
immediately. School personnel who fail to inform the Principal of conduct that may 
constitute bullying or other prohibited conduct or who fail to make reasonable efforts to 
address and resolve the bullying or prohibited conduct in a timely manner may be subject 
to disciplinary action. 

D.E. Reports of bullying are classified as private educational and/or personnel data 
and/or confidential investigative data and will not be disclosed except as permitted by law. 

E.F. Submission of a good faith complaint or report of bullying will not affect the 
complainant's or reporter's future employment, grades, or work assignments, or educational 
or work environment. 

F.G. The school will respect the privacy of the complainant(s), the individual(s) against 
whom the complaint is filed, and the witnesses as much as possible, consistent with the 
school district's obligation to investigate, take appropriate action, and comply with any 
legal disclosure obligations. 

V. SCHOOL DISTRICT ACTION 

A. Upon receipt of a complaint or report of bullying, Best Academythe school shall undertake 
or authorize an investigation by school officials or a third party designated by the school. 

B. Best AcademyThe school may take immediate steps, at its discretion, to protect the 
complainant, reporter, students, or others pending completion of an investigation of 
bullying, consistent with applicable law. 

B.C. The alleged perpetrator of the bullying or other prohibited conduct shall be allowed 
the opportunity to present a defense during the investigation or prior to the imposition of 
discipline or other remedial responses. 

C.D. Upon completion of the investigation that determines bullying or other prohibited 
conduct occurred, Best Academythe school will take appropriate action. Such action may 
include, but is not limited to, warning, suspension, exclusion, expulsion, transfer, 
remediation, termination, or discharge. Disciplinary consequences will be sufficiently 
severe to try to deter violations and to appropriately discipline prohibited behavior. School 
action taken for violation of this policy will be consistent with the requirements of 
applicable statutory authority, including the Minnesota Pupil Fair Dismissal Act; school 
district policies; and regulations. Remedial responses to the bullying or other prohibited 
conduct shall be tailored to the particular incident and nature of the conduct and shall take 
into account the factors specified in this policy. 

E. Best AcademyThe school is not authorized to disclose to a victim private educational or 
personnel data regarding an alleged perpetrator who is a student or employee of the school. 
School officials will notify the parent(s) or guardian(s) of students involved in a bullying 
incident and the remedial action taken, to the extent permitted by law, based on a confirmed 
report. 

HBA- 186



 

113 

D.F. In order to prevent or respond to bullying or prohibited conduct committed by or 
directed against a child with a disability, the school shall, when determined appropriate by 
the child’s individualized education program (IEP) team or Section 504 team, allow the 
child’s IEP or Section 504 plan to be drafted to address the skills and proficiencies the 
child needs as a result of the child’s disability to allow the child to respond to or not to 
engage in bullying or other prohibited conduct. 

VI. REPRISAL OR RETALIATION 

A. Best AcademyThe school will discipline or take appropriate action against any student, 
teacher, administrator, volunteer, contractor, or other employee of the school who retaliates 
or commits an act of reprisal against any person who makes a good faith report of alleged 
bullying or prohibited conduct, or against any person who provides information about 
bullying or prohibited conduct, or who testifies, assists, or participates in an investigation, 
or against any person who testifies, assists, or participates in a proceeding or hearing 
relating to such bullying. Retaliation includes, but is not limited to, any form of 
intimidation, reprisal, harassment, or intentional disparate treatment. Disciplinary 
consequences will be sufficiently severe to deter violations and to appropriately discipline 
the individual(s) who engaged in the prohibited conduct. Remedial responses to the 
prohibited conduct shall be tailored to the particular incident and nature of the conduct and 
shall take into account the factors specified in this policy. 

VII. TRAINING AND EDUCATION 

B. Best Academy annually will provide information and any applicable training to school staff 
regarding this policy. 

C. Best Academy annually will provide education and information to students regarding 
bullying, including information regarding this school policy prohibiting bullying, the 
harmful effects of bullying, and other applicable initiatives to prevent bullying. 

D. The administration of the school will implement programs and other initiatives to prevent 
bullying, to respond to bullying in a manner that does not stigmatize the victim, and to 
make resources or referrals to resources available to victims of bullying. 

A. The school shall discuss this policy with school personnel and volunteers and provide 
appropriate training to school personnel regarding this policy. The school shall establish a 
training cycle for school personnel to occur during a period not to exceed every three school 
years. Newly employed school personnel must receive the training within the first year of 
their employment with the school. The school or a school administrator may accelerate the 
training cycle or provide additional training based on a particular need or circumstance. 
This policy shall be included in employee handbooks, training materials, and publications 
on school rules, procedures, and standards of conduct, which materials shall also be used 
to publicize this policy. 

B. The school shall require ongoing professional development, consistent with Minn. Stat. § 
122A.60, to build the skills of all school personnel who regularly interact with students to 

HBA- 187



 

114 

identify, prevent, and appropriately address bullying and other prohibited conduct. Such 
professional development includes, but is not limited to, the following: 

1. Developmentally appropriate strategies both to prevent and to immediately and 
effectively intervene to stop prohibited conduct 

2. The complex dynamics affecting a perpetrator, target, and witnesses to prohibited 
conduct; 

3. Research on prohibited conduct, including specific categories of students at risk for 
perpetrating or being the target or victim of bullying or other prohibited conduct in 
school; 

4. The incidence and nature of cyberbullying; and 

5. Internet safety and cyberbullying. 

C. The school annually will provide education and information to students regarding bullying, 
including information regarding this policy prohibiting bullying, the harmful effects of 
bullying, and other applicable initiatives to prevent bullying and other prohibited conduct. 

D. The administration of the school is directed to implement programs and other initiatives to 
prevent bullying, to respond to bullying in a manner that does not stigmatize the target or 
victim, and to make resources or referrals to resources available to targets or victims of 
bullying. 

E. The administration is encouraged to provide developmentally appropriate instruction and 
is directed to review programmatic instruction to determine if adjustments are necessary to 
help students identify and prevent or reduce bullying and other prohibited conduct, to value 
diversity in school and society, to develop and improve students’ knowledge and skills for 
solving problems, managing conflict, engaging in civil discourse, and recognizing, 
responding to, and reporting bullying or other prohibited conduct, and to make effective 
prevention and intervention programs available to students. 

The administration must establish strategies for creating a positive school climate and use 
evidence-based social-emotional learning to prevent and reduce discrimination and other 
improper conduct. 

The administration is encouraged, to the extent practicable, to take such actions as it may 
deem appropriate to accomplish the following: 

1. Engage all students in creating a safe and supportive school environment; 

2. Partner with parents and other community members to develop and implement 
prevention and intervention programs; 

3. Engage all students and adults in integrating education, intervention, and other 
remedial responses into the school environment; 

4. Train student bystanders to intervene in and report incidents of bullying and other 
prohibited conduct to the schools’ primary contact person; 

5. Teach students to advocate for themselves and others; 

HBA- 188



 

115 

6. Prevent inappropriate referrals to special education of students who may engage in 
bullying or other prohibited conduct; and 

1.7.Foster student collaborations that, in turn, foster a safe and supportive school 
climate. 

B.F. The school may implement violence prevention and character development 
education programs to prevent or reduce policy violations. Such programs may offer 
instruction on character education including, but not limited to, character qualities such as 
attentiveness, truthfulness, respect for authority, diligence, gratefulness, self-discipline, 
patience, forgiveness, respect for others, peacemaking, and resourcefulness. 

C.G. The school shall inform affected students and their parents of rights they may have 
under state and federal data practices laws to obtain access to data related to an incident 
and their right to contest the accuracy or completeness of the data. The school may 
accomplish this requirement by inclusion of all or applicable parts of its protection and 
privacy of pupil records policy in the student handbook. 

VIII. NOTICE 

A. The school will give annual notice of this policy to students, parents or guardians, and staff, 
and this policy shall appear in the student handbook. 

B. This policy must be conspicuously posted throughout each school building and in the 
administrative and main offices of the school. 

C. This policy must be distributed to each school employee and independent contractor at the 
time of hiring or contracting. 

D. Notice of the rights and responsibilities of students and their parents under this policy must 
be included in the student discipline policy distributed to parents at the beginning of each 
school year. 

E. This policy shall be available to all parents and other school community members in an 
electronic format in the language appearing on the school’s website. 

F. The school must develop a process for discussing this policy with students, parents of 
students, independent contractors, and school employees. 

A.G. The school shall provide an electronic copy of its most recently amended policy to 
the Minnesota Commissioner of Education. 

IX. POLICY REVIEW 

To the extent practicable, the school board shall annually review and revise this policy.  The policy 
shall be made consistent with Minn. Stat. §§ 121A.031 and 121A.0312 and other applicable law. 

 
  

HBA- 189



 

116 

24. Protection and Privacy of Pupil Records (MSBA #515) 

Adopted by the Best Academy Board of Directors: September 22, 2011 and Amended October 
26, 2013. 

I. PURPOSE 

Best Academy recognizes its responsibility in regard to the collection, maintenance and 
dissemination of pupil records and the protection of the privacy rights of students as provided in 
federal law and state statutes. 

II. GENERAL STATEMENT OF POLICY 

The following procedures and policies regarding the protection and privacy of parents and 
students are adopted by the school, pursuant to the requirements of 20 U.S.C. § 1232g, et seq., 
(Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)) 34 CFR. Part 99 and consistent with the 
requirements of the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act, Minn. Stat. Ch. 13, and Minn. 
Rules Parts 1205.0100-1205.2000. 

III. DEFINITIONS 

A. Authorized Representative 

“Authorized representative” means any entity or individual designated by the school, state, 
or an agency headed by an official of the Comptroller of the United States, the Attorney 
General of the United States, the Secretary of the U.S. Department of Education, or state 
and local educational authorities to conduct, with respect to federal or state supported 
education programs, any audit or evaluation or any compliance or enforcement activity in 
connection with federal legal requirements that relate to these programs. 

B. Biometric Record 

“Biometric record,” as referred to in “Personally Identifiable,” means a record of one or 
more measurable biological or behavioral characteristics that can be used for automated 
recognition of an individual (e.g., fingerprints, retina and iris patterns, voiceprints, DNA 
sequence, facial characteristics, and handwriting). 

C. Dates of Attendance 

Date of attendance, as referred to in Directory Information, means the period of time during 
which a student attends or attended a school or schools in the school, including attendance 
in person or by paper correspondence, videoconference, satellite, Internet, or other 
technologies for students who are not in the classroom, and including the period during 
which a student is in a work-study program.  The term does not include specific daily 
records of a student's attendance at a school or schools in the school. 

D. Dependent Student 

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline

HBA- 190



 

117 

A "dependent student" is an individual who during each of five (5) calendar months during 
the calendar year in which the taxable year of the parent begins: 

E. Is a full-time student at an educational institution; or 

F. Is pursuing a full-time course of instructional on-farm training under the supervision of an 
accredited agent of an educational institution or of a state or political subdivision of the 
state. 

G.D. Directory Information 

1. Under federal law, "Directory information" means information contained in an 
education record of a student which would not generally be considered harmful or 
an invasion of privacy if disclosed. It includes, but is not limited to: the student's 
name, address, telephone listing, email address, photograph, date and place of birth, 
major field of study, dates of attendance, grade level, enrollment status (i.e. full-
time or part-time), participation in officially recognized activities and sports, 
weight and height of members of athletic teams, degrees, honors and awards 
received, and the most recent educational agency or institution attended. It also 
includes the name, address and telephone number of the student's parent(s). 
Directory information does not include: 

i. a student’s social security number; 

ii. a student’s identification number (ID), user ID, or other unique personal 
identifier used by a student for purposes of accessing or communicating in 
electronic systems if the identifier may be used to access education records 
without use of one or more factors that authenticate the student’s identity 
such as a personal identification number (PIN), password, or other factor 
known or possessed only by the authorized user; 

iii. personally identifiable data that references religion, race, color, social 
position or nationality; or 

iv. data collected from nonpublic school students, other than those who receive 
shared time educational services, unless written consent is given by the 
student’s parent or guardian. 

2. Under Minnesota law, a school may not designate a student’s home address, 
telephone number, email address, or other personal contact information as 
“directory information.” 

H.E. Education Records 

1. What constitutes "education records." Education records mean those records which: 
(1) are directly related to a student; and (2) are maintained by the school or by a 
party acting for the school. 

2. What does not constitute an education record? The term "education records" does 
not include: 

a. Records of instructional personnel which: 

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline

HBA- 191



 

118 

i. are in the sole possession of the maker of the record; and 

i.ii. are used only as a memory aid; 

ii.iii. are not accessible or revealed to any other individual except a substitute 
teacher; and 

iii.iv. are destroyed at the end of the school year. 

b. Records of a law enforcement unit of the school, provided educational records 
maintained by the school are not disclosed to the unit, and the law enforcement 
records are: 

i. maintained separately from education records; 

ii. maintained solely for law enforcement purposes; and 

iii. disclosed only to law enforcement officials of the same jurisdiction. 

c. Records relating to an individual, including a student, who is employed by the 
school which: 

i. are made and maintained in the normal course of business; 

ii. relate exclusively to the individual in that individual's capacity as an 
employee; and 

iii. are not available for use for any other purpose. 

However, these provisions shall not apply to records relating to an individual in 
attendance at the school that is employed as a result of his or her status as a student. 

d. Records relating to an eligible student, or a student attending an institution of 
post-secondary education, which are: 

i. made or maintained by a physician, psychiatrist, psychologist or other 
recognized professional or paraprofessional acting in his or her professional 
or paraprofessional capacity or assisting in that capacity; 

ii. made, maintained, or used only in connection with the provision of 
treatment to the student; and 

iii. disclosed only to individuals providing the treatment; provided that a 
physician or other appropriate professional of the student's choice can 
personally review the records. For the purpose of this definition, "treatment" 
does not include remedial educational activities or activities that are a part 
of the program of instruction within the school. 

e. Records created or received by the school after an individual is no longer a 
student at the school and that are not directly related to the individual’s 
attendance as a student.that only contain information about an individual after 
he or she is no longer a student at the school. 

e.f. Grades on peer-related papers before the papers are collected and recorded 
by a teacher. 

HBA- 192



 

119 

I.F. Eligible Student 

"Eligible student" means a student who has attained eighteen (18) years of age or is 
attending an institution of post-secondary education. 

J.G. Juvenile Justice System 

"Juvenile justice system" includes criminal justice agencies and the judiciary when 
involved in juvenile justice activities. 

K.H. Legitimate Educational Interest 

"Legitimate educational interest" includes interest directly related to classroom instruction, 
teaching, student achievement and progress, discipline of a student, student health and 
welfare, and the ability to respond to a request for education data. It includes a person's 
need to know in order to: 

1. Perform an administrative task required in the school or employee's contract or 
position description approved by the school board; 

2. Perform a supervisory or instructional task directly related to the student's 
education; or 

3. Perform a service or benefit for the student or the student's family such as health 
care, counseling, and student job placement or student financial aid. 

4. Perform a task directly related to responding to a request for data. 

L.I. Parent 

"Parent" means a parent of a student and includes a natural parent, a guardian, or an 
individual acting as a parent of the student in the absence of a parent or guardian. The 
school may presume the parent has the authority to exercise the rights provided herein, 
unless it has been provided with evidence that there is a state law or court order governing 
such matters as marriage dissolution, separation or child custody, or a legally binding 
instrument that provides to the contrary. 

M.J. Personally Identifiable 

"Personally identifiable" means that the data or information includes, but is not limited to: 
(a) a student's name; (b) the name of the student's parent or other family member; (c) the 
address of the student or student's family; (d) a personal identifier such as the student's 
social security number or student number or biometric record; (e) other indirect identifiers, 
such as the student’s date of birth, place of birth, and mother’s maiden name; (f) a list of 
personal characteristics or other information that would make the student's identity easily 
traceable; or (gf) information requested by a person who the school reasonably believes 
knows the identity of the student to whom the education record relates.other information 
that would make the student's identity easily traceable. 

N.K. Record 

"Record" means any information or data recorded in any way including, but not limited to, 
handwriting, print, computer media, video or audio tape, film, microfilm and microfiche. 

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline

HBA- 193



 

120 

O.L. Responsible Authority 

"Responsible authority" means the charter school Chief of AdministrationAdministrative 
Officer. 

P.M. Student 

"Student" includes any individual who is or has been in attendance; enrolled or registered 
at the school and upon whom the school maintains education records. Student also includes 
applicants for enrollment or registration at the school, and individuals who receive shared 
time educational services from the school. 

Q.N. School Official 

"School official" includes: (a) a person duly elected to the school board; (b) a person 
employed by the school board in an administrative, supervisory, instructional or other 
professional position; (c) a person employed by the school board as a temporary substitute 
in a professional position for the period of his or her performance as a substitute; and (d) a 
person employed by, or under contract to, the school board to perform a special task such 
as a secretary, a clerk, as public information officer or data practices compliance official, 
an attorney or an auditor for the period of his or her performance as an employee or 
contractor. 

R.O. Summary Data 

"Summary data" means statistical records and reports derived from data on individuals but 
in which individuals are not identified and from which neither their identities nor any other 
characteristic that could uniquely identify the individual is ascertainable. 

S.P. Other Terms and Phrases 

All other terms and phrases shall be defined in accordance with applicable state and federal 
law or ordinary customary usage. 

IV. GENERAL CLASSIFICATION 

State law provides that all data collected, created, received or maintained by a school are public 
unless classified by state or federal law as not public or private or confidential. State law classifies 
all data on individuals maintained by a school that relates to a student as private data on 
individuals. This data may not be disclosed to parties other than the parent or eligible student 
without consent, except pursuant to a valid court order, certain state statutes authorizing access, 
and the provisions of 20 U.S.C. 1232gFERPA and the regulations promulgated there under. 

V. STATEMENT OF RIGHTS 

A. Rights of Parents and Eligible Students 

Parents and eligible students have the following rights under this policy: 

1. The right to inspect and review the student's education records; 

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline

HBA- 194



 

121 

2. The right to request the amendment of the student's education records to ensure that 
they are not inaccurate, misleading, or otherwise in violation of the student's 
privacy or other rights; 

3. The right to consent to disclosures of personally identifiable information contained 
in the student's education records, except to the extent that such consent is not 
required for disclosure pursuant to this policy, state or federal law, or the 
regulations promulgated there under; 

4. The right to refuse release of secondary students' names, addresses, and home 
telephone numbers to military recruiting officers and post-secondary educational 
institutions; 

5. The right to file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Education concerning 
alleged failures by the school to comply with the federal law and the regulations 
promulgated there under; 

6. The right to be informed about rights under the federal law; and 

7. The right to obtain a copy of this policy at the location set forth in the COPIES OF 
POLICY “Copies of Policy” section of this policy. 

B. Eligible Students 

All rights and protections given parents under this policy transfer to the student when he 
or she reaches eighteen (18) years of age or enrolls in an institution of post-secondary 
education. The student then becomes an "eligible student." However, the parents of an 
eligible student who is also a "dependent student" are entitled to gain access to the 
educational records of such student without first obtaining the consent of the student. In 
addition, parents of an eligible student may be given access to education records in 
connection with a health or safety emergency if the disclosure meets the conditions of any 
provision set forth in 34 Code of Federal Regulations section 99.31(a). 

VI. DISCLOSURE OF EDUCATION RECORDS 

A. Consent Required for Disclosure 

1. The school shall obtain a signed and dated written consent of the parent of a student 
or the eligible student before disclosing personally identifiable information from 
the education records of the student, except as provided herein. 

2. The written consent required by this subdivision must be signed and dated by the 
parent of the student or the eligible student giving the consent and shall include: 

i. A specification of the records to be disclosed; 

ii. The purpose or purposes of the disclosure; 

iii. The party or class of parties to whom the disclosure may be made; 

iii.iv. The consequences of giving consent; and 

iv.v. If appropriate, a termination date for the consent. 

Formatted: Underline

HBA- 195



 

122 

3. When a disclosure is made under this subdivision: 

i. If the parent or eligible student so requests, the school shall provide him or 
her with a copy of the records disclosed; and 

ii. If the parent of a student who is not an eligible student so requests, the 
school shall provide the student with a copy of the records disclosed. 

4. A signed and dated written consent may include a record and signature in electronic 
form that: 

i. Identifies and authenticates a particular person as the source of the 
electronic consent; and 

ii. Indicates such person’s approval of the information contained in the 
electronic consent. 

4.5.If the responsible authority seeks an individual's informed consent to the release of 
private data to an insurer or the authorized representative of an insurer, informed 
consent shall not be deemed to have been given unless the statement is: 

i. In plain language; 

ii. Dated; 

iii. Specific in designating the particular persons or agencies the data subject is 
authorizing to disclose information about the data subject; 

iv. Specific as to the nature of the information the subject is authorizing to be 
disclosed; 

v. Specific as to the persons or agencies to whom the subject is authorizing 
information to be disclosed; 

vi. Specific as to the purpose or purposes for which the information may be 
used by any of the parties named in Clause v above, both at the time of the 
disclosure and at any time in the future; and 

vii. Specific as to its expiration date which should be within a reasonable time, 
not to exceed one year except in the case of authorizations given in 
connection with applications for (i) life insurance or non-cancelable or 
guaranteed renewable health insurance and identified as such, two years 
after the date of the policy, or (ii) medical assistance under Minn. Stat. Ch. 
256B or Minnesota Care under Minn. Stat. Ch. 256L, which shall be 
ongoing during all terms of eligibility, for individualized education program 
health-related services provided by a school that are subject to third party 
reimbursement. 

5.6.Eligible Student Consent 

Whenever a student has attained eighteen (18) years of age or is attending an 
institution of post-secondary education, the rights accorded to and the consent 
required of the parent of the student shall thereafter only be accorded to and 

HBA- 196



 

123 

required of the eligible student, except as provided in the “Statement of Rights” 
section of this policy. 

B. Prior Consent for Disclosure Not Required 

The school may disclose personally identifiable information from the education records of 
a student without the written consent of the parent of the student or the eligible student 
unless otherwise provided herein, if the disclosure is: 

1. To other school officials, including teachers, within the school whom the school 
determines have a legitimate educational interest in such records; 

2. To a contractor, consultant, volunteer, or other party to whom the school has 
outsourced institutional services or functions provided that the outside party: 

i. performs an institutional service or function for which the school would 
otherwise use employees; 

ii. is under the direct control of the school with respect to the use and 
maintenance of education records; and 

i.iii. will not disclose the information to any other party without the prior consent 
of the parent or eligible student and uses the information only for the 
purposes for which the disclosure was made; 

2.3.To officials of other schools or schools in which the student seeks or intends to 
enroll, including post-secondary educational institutions, as long as the disclosure 
is for purposes related to the student’s enrollment or transfer. The records shall 
include information about disciplinary action taken as a result of any incident in 
which the student possessed or used a dangerous weapon, and with proper annual 
notice (See Part XIX.), suspension and expulsion information pursuant to section 
4155 of the federal No Child Left Behind Act7917 of the federal Every Student 
Succeeds Act, 20 United States Code section 7917, and, if applicable, data 
regarding a student’s history of violent behavior. The records also shall include a 
copy of any probable cause notice or any disposition or court order under Minn. 
Stat. § 260B.171, unless the data are required to be destroyed under Minn. Stat. § 
120A.22, Subd. 7(c) or § 121 A. 75. On request, the school will provide the parent 
or eligible student with a copy of the education records which have been transferred 
and provide an opportunity for a hearing to challenge the content of those records 
in accordance with the REQUEST TO AMEND RECORDS; PROCEDURES TO 
CHALLENGE DATA section of this policy; 

3.4.To authorized representatives of the Comptroller General of the United States, the 
Attorney General of the United States, the Secretary of the U.S. Department of 
Education, or the Commissioner of the State Department of Education or his or her 
representative, subject to the conditions relative to such disclosure provided under 
federal law; 

4.5.In connection with financial aid for which a student has applied or has received, if 
the information is necessary for such purposes as to: 

HBA- 197



 

124 

i. Determine eligibility for the aid; 

ii. Determine the amount of the aid; 

iii. Determine conditions for the aid; or 

iv. Enforce the terms and conditions of the aid. 

"Financial aid" for purposes of this provision means a payment of funds provided 
to an individual or a payment in kind of tangible or intangible property to the 
individual that is conditioned on the individual's attendance at an educational 
agency or institution; 

5.6.To state and local officials or authorities to whom such information is specifically 
allowed to be reported or disclosed pursuant to state statute adopted: 

i. Before November 19, 1974, if the allowed reporting or disclosure concerns 
the juvenile justice system and such system’s ability to effectively serve the 
student whose records are released; or 

i.ii. After November 19, 1974, if the reporting or disclosure allowed by state 
statute concerns the juvenile justice system and the system's ability to 
effectively serve, prior to adjudication, the student whose records are 
released, provided the officials and authorities to whom the records are 
disclosed certify in writing to the school that the data will not be disclosed 
to any other party, except as provided by state law, without the prior written 
consent of the parent of the student. At a minimum, the school shall disclose 
the following information to the juvenile justice system under this 
paragraph: a student's full name, home address, telephone number, and date 
of birth; a student's school schedule, attendance record, and photographs, if 
any; and parents' names, home addresses, and telephone numbers; 

6.7.To organizations conducting studies for or on behalf of educational agencies or 
institutions for the purpose of developing, validating or administering predictive 
tests, administering student aid programs or improving instruction; provided that 
the studies are conducted in a manner which does not permit the personal 
identification of parents or students by individuals other than representatives of the 
organization and the information is destroyed when no longer needed for the 
purposes for which the study was conducted,. and the school enters into a written 
agreement with the organization that: (a) specifies the purpose, scope, and duration 
of the study and the information to be disclosed; (b) requires the organization to use 
personally identifiable information from education records only to meet the purpose 
of the study as stated in the written agreement; (c) requires the organization to 
conduct the study in a manner that does not permit personal identification of parents 
and students by anyone other than representatives of the organization with 
legitimate interests; and (d) requires the organization to destroy all personally 
identifiable information when information is no longer needed for the purposes for 
which the study was conducted and specifies the time period in which the 
information must be destroyed. For purposes of this provision, the term 

HBA- 198



 

125 

"organizations"  includes, but is not limited to, federal, state and local agencies and 
independent organizations. In the event the Department of Education determines 
that a third party outside of the school to whom information is disclosed violates 
this provision, the school may not allow that third party access to personally 
identifiable information from education records for at least five years. 

7.8.To accrediting organizations in order to carry out their accrediting functions; 

9.  

8. To parents of a student eighteen (18) years of age or older if the student is a 
dependent of the parents for income tax purposes; dependent student; 

9.10. To comply with a judicial order or lawfully issued subpoena, provided, 
however, that the school makes a reasonable effort to notify the parent or eligible 
student of the order or subpoena in advance of compliance therewith so that the 
parent or eligible student may seek protective action, unless the disclosure is in 
compliance with a federal grand jury subpoena, or any other subpoena issued for 
law enforcement purposes, and the court or other issuing agency has ordered that 
the existence or the contents of the subpoena or the information furnished in 
response to the subpoena not be disclosed, or the disclosure is in compliance with 
an ex parte court order obtained by the United States Attorney General (or designee 
not lower than an Assistant Attorney General) concerning investigations or 
prosecutions of an offense listed in 18 U.S.C. § 2332b(g)(5)(B), an act of domestic 
or international terrorism as defined in 18 U.S.C. § 2331, or a parent is a party to a 
court proceeding involving child abuse and neglect or dependency matters, and the 
order is issued in the context of the proceeding. In addition, if the school initiates 
legal action against a parent or student it may disclose to the court, without a court 
order or subpoena, the education records of the student that are relevant for the 
school to proceed with the legal action as plaintiff. Also, if a parent or eligible 
student initiates a legal action against the school, the school may disclose to the 
court, without a court order or subpoena, the student's education records that are 
relevant for the school to defend itself. 

10.11. To appropriate parties in connection with an emergency if knowledge of the 
information is necessary to protect the health, including mental health, or safety of 
the student or other individuals. The decision must be based upon information 
available at the time the threat occurs that indicates that there is an articulable and 
significant threat to the health or safety of a student or other individuals. In making 
a determination whether to disclose information under this section, the school may 
take into account the totality of the circumstances pertaining to a threat and may 
disclose information from education records to any person whose knowledge of the 
information is necessary to protect the health or safety of the student or other 
students. A record of this disclosure must be maintained pursuant to this policy. In 
addition, an educational agency or institution may include in the educational 
records of student appropriate information concerning disciplinary action taken 
against the student for conduct that posed a significant risk to the safety or 

HBA- 199



 

126 

wellbeing of that student, other students, or other members of the school 
community. This information may be disclosed to teachers and school officials 
within the school and/or teachers and school officials in other schools who have 
legitimate educational interests in the behavior of the student; 

11.12. To the juvenile justice system if information about the behavior of a student 
who poses a risk of harm is reasonably necessary to protect the health or safety of 
the student or other individuals; 

12.13. Information the school has designated as "directory information" pursuant 
to the RELEASE OF DIRECTORY INFORMATION section of this policy; 

13.14. To military recruiting officers and post-secondary educational institutions 
pursuant to this policy;To military recruiting officers pursuant to the MILITARY 
RECRUITMENT section of this policy; 

14.15. To the parent of a student who is not an eligible student or to the student 
himself or herself; 

15.16. To appropriate health authorities to the extent necessary to administer 
immunization programs and for bona fide epidemiologic investigations which the 
commissioner of health determines are necessary to prevent disease or disability to 
individuals in the public educational agency or institution in which the investigation 
is being conducted; 

16.17. To volunteers who are determined to have a legitimate educational interest 
in the data and who are conducting activities and events sponsored by or endorsed 
by the educational agency or institution for students or former students; or 

17.18. To the juvenile justice system, on written request that certifies that the 
information will not be disclosed to any other person except as authorized by law 
without the written consent of the parent of the student: 

i. the following information about a student must be disclosed: a student's full 
name, home address, telephone number, date of birth; a student's school 
schedule, attendance record, and photographs, if any; and any parents' 
names, home addresses, and telephone numbers; 

ii. the existence of the following information about a student, not the actual 
data or other information contained in the student's educational record, may 
be disclosed provided that a request for access must be submitted on the 
statutory form and it must contain an explanation of why access to the 
information is necessary to serve the student: (1) use of a controlled 
substance, alcohol, or tobacco; (2) assaultive or threatening conduct that 
could result in dismissal from school under the Pupil Fair Dismissal Act; 
(3) possession or use of weapons or look-alike weapons; (4) theft; or (5) 
vandalism or other damage to property. Prior to releasing this information, 
the school Principal or Chief of AdministrationAdministrative Officer of a 
school who receives such a request must, to the extent permitted by federal 

HBA- 200



 

127 

law, notify the student's parent or guardian by certified mail of the request 
to disclose information. If the student's parent or guardian notifies the 
school official of an objection to the disclosure within ten (10) days of 
receiving certified notice, the school official must not disclose the 
information and instead must inform the requesting member of the juvenile 
justice system of the objection. If no objection from the parent or guardian 
is received within fourteen (14) days, the school official must respond to the 
request for information.  

iii. The written requests of the juvenile justice system member(s), as well as a 
record of any release, must be maintained in the student's file. 

18.19. To the special education coordinatorPrincipal of the school the student 
attends and to any counselor directly supervising or reporting on the behavior or 
progress of the student if it is information from a disposition order received by 
special education coordinatora school officer under Minn. Stat. § 260B.171, sSubd. 
3. The special education coordinatorPrincipal must notify the counselor 
immediately and must place the disposition order in the student's permanent 
education record. The special education coordinatorPrincipal also must notify 
immediately any teacher or administrator who directly supervises or reports on the 
behavior or progress of the student whom the special education coordinator believes 
needs the information to work with the student in an appropriate manner, to avoid 
being needlessly vulnerable, or to protect other persons from needless vulnerability. 
The special education coordinatorPrincipal may also notify other school 
employees, substitutes, and volunteers who are in direct contact with the student if 
the special education coordinatorPrincipal determines that these individuals need 
the information to work with the student in an appropriate manner, to avoid being 
needlessly vulnerable, or to protect other persons from needless vulnerability. Such 
notices from the special education coordinatorPrincipal must identify the student, 
outline the offense, and describe any conditions of probation about which the school 
must provide information if this information is provided in the disposition order. 
Disposition order information received is private educational data received for the 
limited purpose of serving the educational needs of the student and protecting 
students and staff. The information may not be further disseminated by the 
counselor, teacher, administrator, staff member, substitute, or volunteer except as 
necessary to serve the student, to protect students and staff, or as otherwise required 
by law, and only to the student or the student's parent or guardian. 

19.20. To the charter school special education coordinatorPrincipal where the 
student attends if it is information from a peace officer's record of children received 
by special education coordinatora school official under Minn. Stat. § 260B.171, 
Subd. 5. The special education coordinatorPrincipal must place the information in 
the student's educational record. The special education coordinatorPrincipal also 
must notify immediately any teacher, counselor, or administrator directly 
supervising the student whom the special education coordinatorPrincipal believes 
needs the information to work with the student in an appropriate manner, to avoid 

HBA- 201



 

128 

being needlessly vulnerable, or to protect other persons from needless vulnerability. 
The school Principalspecial education coordinator  may also notify other 
employees, substitutes, and volunteers who are in direct contact with the student if 
the special education coordinatorPrincipal determines that these individuals need 
the information to work with the student in an appropriate manner, to avoid being 
needlessly vulnerable, or to protect other persons from needless vulnerability. Such 
notices from the special education coordinatorPrincipal must identify the student 
and describe the alleged offense if this information is provided in the peace officer's 
notice. Peace officer's record information received is private educational data 
received for the limited purpose of serving the educational needs of the student and 
protecting students and staff. The information must not be further disseminated by 
the counselor, teacher administrator, staff member, substitute, or volunteer except 
to communicate with the student or the student's parent or guardian as necessary to 
serve the student, to protect students and staff, or as otherwise required by law. 

The school special education coordinatorPrincipal must delete the peace officer's 
record from the student's educational record, destroy the data, and make reasonable 
efforts to notify any teacher, counselor, staff member, administrator, substitute, or 
volunteer who received information from the peace officer's record if the county 
attorney determines not to proceed with a petition or directs the student into a 
diversion or mediation program or if a juvenile court makes a decision on a petition 
and the county attorney or juvenile court notifies the special education coordinator 
of such action. 

21. To the Secretary of Agriculture, or authorized representative from the Food and 
Nutrition Service or contractors acting on behalf of the Food and Nutrition Service, 
for the purposes of conducting program monitoring, evaluations, and performance 
measurements of state and local educational and other agencies and institutions 
receiving funding or providing benefits of one or more programs authorized under 
the National School Lunch Act or the Child Nutrition Act of 1966 for which the 
results will be reported in an aggregate form that does not identify any individual, 
on the conditions that: (a) any data collected shall be protected in a manner that will 
not permit the personal identification of students and their parents by other than the 
authorized representatives of the Secretary; and (b) any personally identifiable data 
shall be destroyed when the data are no longer needed for program monitoring, 
evaluations, and performance measurements; or 

22. To an agency caseworker or other representative of a State or local child welfare 
agency, or tribal organization (as defined in 25 U.S.C. § 5304), who has the right 
to access a student’s case plan, as defined and determined by the State or tribal 
organization, when such agency or organization is legally responsible, in 
accordance with State or tribal law, for the care and protection of the student, 
provided that the education records, or the personally identifiable information 
contained in such records, of the student will not be disclosed by such agency or 
organization, except to an individual or entity engaged in addressing the student’s 
education needs and authorized by such agency or organization to receive such 

Formatted: Space Before:  6 pt, After:  6 pt, Add space
between paragraphs of the same style

Formatted: Add space between paragraphs of the
same style

HBA- 202



 

129 

disclosure and such disclosure is consistent with the State or tribal laws applicable 
to protecting the confidentiality of a student’s education records. 

C. Nonpublic School Students 

The school may disclose personally identifiable information from the education records of 
a nonpublic school student, other than a student who receives shared time educational 
services, without the written consent of the parent of the student or the eligible student 
unless otherwise provided herein, if the disclosure is: 

a. Pursuant to a valid court order; 

b. Pursuant to a statute specifically authorizing access to the private data; or 

a.c. To appropriate health authorities to the extent necessary to administer 
immunization programs and for bona fide epidemiological investigations which the 
commissioner of health determines are necessary to prevent disease or disability to 
individuals in the public educational agency or institution in which the investigation 
is being conducted. 

VII. RELEASE OF DIRECTORY INFORMATION 

A. ClassificationEducational Data 

Directory informationEducational data designated as directory information is public data 
to the extent required under federal law. Directory information must be designated pursuant 
to the provisions of the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act and FERPA. The school 
may not designate a student’s home address, telephone number, email address, or other 
personal contact information as directory information under this section. When requested, 
the school must share personal contact information and directory information, whether 
public or private, with the Minnesota Department of Education, as required for federal 
reporting purposes.  

B. Former Students 

Unless a former student affirmatively opted out of the release of directory information in 
his or her last year ofwhile in attendance and has not rescinded the opt out request at any 
time, the school may disclose directory information from the education records generated 
by it regarding the former student without meeting the requirements of Paragraph C. of this 
section. In addition, under an explicit exclusion from the definition of an "education 
record," the school may release records that only contain information about an individual 
obtained after he or she is no longer a student at the school and that are not directly related 
to the individual’s attendance as a student (e.g., a student’s activities as an alumnus of the 
school). 

C. Present Students and Parents 

The school may disclose directory information from the education records of a student and 
information regarding parents without prior written consent of the parent of the student or 
eligible student, except as provided herein. Prior to such disclosure the school shall: 

HBA- 203



 

130 

 

1. When conducting the directory information designation and notice process required 
by federal law, the school shall give parents and students notice of the right to refuse 
to let the charter school designate specified data about the student as directory 
information. 

2. The school shall give annual notice by any means that are reasonably likely to 
inform the parents and eligible students of: 

1.Annually give public notice by any means that are reasonably likely to 
inform the parents and eligible students of: 

i. The types of personally identifiable information regarding students and/or 
parents that the school has designated as directory information; 

ii. The parent's or eligible student's right to refuse to let the school designate 
any or all of those types of information about the student and/or the parent 
as directory information; and 

iii. The period of time in which a parent or eligible student has to notify the 
school in writing that he or she does not want any or all of those types of 
information about the student and/or the parent designated as directory 
information. 

3. Allow a reasonable period of time after such notice has been given for a parent or 
eligible student to inform the school, in writing, that any or all of the information 
so designated should not be disclosed without the parent's or eligible student's prior 
written consent, except as provided in the DISCLOSURE OF EDUCATION 
RECORDS“Disclosure of Education Records” section of this policy. 

4. A parent or eligible student may not opt out of the directory information disclosures 
to prevent the school from disclosing or requiring the student to disclose the 
student’s name, ID, or charter school e-mail address in a class in which the student 
is enrolled; or to prevent the school from requiring a student to wear, to display 
publicly, or to disclose a student ID card or badge that exhibits information that 
may be designated as directory information and that has been properly designated 
by the charter school as directory information. 

2.5.The school shall not disclose or confirm directory information without meeting the 
written consent requirements of this policy if a student’s social security number or 
other non-directory information is used alone or in combination with other data 
elements to identify or help identify the student or the student’s records. 

D. Procedure for Obtaining Nondisclosure of Directory Information 

The parent's or eligible student's written notice shall be directed to the responsible authority 
and shall include the following: 

1. Name of the student and/or parent, as appropriate; 

2. Home address; 

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style:
1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 
0.75" + Indent at:  1"

Formatted

HBA- 204



 

131 

3. School presently attended by student; 

4. Parent's legal relationship to student, if applicable; and 

5. Specific categories of directory information to be made not public without the 
parent's or eligible student's prior written consent, which shall only be applicable 
for that school year. 

D.H. Duration 

The designation of any information as directory information about a student or parents will 
remain in effect for the remainder of the school year unless the parent or eligible student 
provides the written notifications provided herein. 

VIII. DISCLOSURE OF PRIVATE RECORDS 

A. Private Records 

For the purposes herein, education records are records that are classified as private data on 
individuals by state law and which are accessible only to the student who is the subject of 
the data and the student's parent if the student is not an eligible student. The school may 
not disclose private records or their contents except as summary data, or except as provided 
in the DISCLOSURE OF EDUCATION RECORDS”Disclosure of Education Records” 
section of this policy, without the prior written consent of the parent or the eligible student. 
The school will use reasonable methods to identify and authenticate the identity of parents, 
students, school officials, and any other party to whom personally identifiable information 
from education records is disclosed. 

B. Private Records Not Accessible to Parent 

In certain cases, state law intends, and clearly provides, that certain information contained 
in the education records of the school pertaining to a student be accessible to the student 
alone, and to the parent only under special circumstances, if at all. 

1. The responsible authority may deny access to private data by a parent when a minor 
student who is the subject of that data requests that the responsible authority deny 
such access. The minor student's request must be submitted in writing setting forth 
the reasons for denying access to the parent and must be signed by the minor. Upon 
receipt of such request the responsible authority shall determine if honoring the 
request to deny the parent access would be in the best interest of the minor data 
subject. In making this determination the responsible authority shall consider the 
following factors: 

i. Whether the minor is of sufficient age and maturity to be able to explain the 
reasons for and understand the consequences of the request to deny access; 

ii. Whether the personal situation of the minor is such that denying parental 
access may protect the minor data subject from physical or emotional harm; 

iii. Whether there are grounds for believing that the minor data subject's 
reasons for precluding parental access are reasonably accurate; 

HBA- 205



 

132 

iv. Whether the data in question is of such a nature that disclosure of it to the 
parent may lead to physical or emotional harm to the minor data subject; 
and 

v. Whether the data concerns medical, dental or other health services provided 
pursuant to Minn. Stat. §§ 144.341-144.347, in which case the data may be 
released only if the failure to inform the parent would seriously jeopardize 
the health of the minor. 

C. Private Records Not Accessible to Student 

Students shall not be entitled to access to private data concerning financial records and 
statements of the student's parent or any information contained therein. 

D. Military-Connected Youth Identifier 

When a school updates its enrollment forms in the ordinary course of business, the school 
must include a box on the enrollment form to allow students to self-identify as a military-
connected youth. For purposes of this section, a "military-connected youth" means having 
an immediate family member, including a parent or sibling, who is currently in the armed 
forces either as a reservist or on active duty or has recently retired from the armed forces. 
Data collected under this provision is private data on individuals, but summary data may 
be published by the Department of Education. 

IX. DISCLOSURE OF CONFIDENTIAL RECORDS 

A. Confidential Records 

Confidential records are those records and data contained therein which state or federal law 
makes not public, and which are inaccessible to the student and the student's parents or to 
an eligible student. 

B. Reports Under the Maltreatment of Minors Reporting Act 

Pursuant to Minn. Stat. chapter 260E 626.556, reports pertaining to a neglected and/or 
physically and/or sexually abused child shall be accessible only to the appropriate welfare 
and law enforcement agencies. In respect to other parties, such data shall be confidential 
and will not be made available to the parent or the subject individual by the school. The 
subject individual, however, may obtain a copy of the report from either the local welfare 
agency, county sheriff or the local police department subject to the provisions of Minn. 
Stat. chapter 260E626.556, Subd. 11. 

Regardless of whether a written report is made under Minn. Stat. chapter 260E, as soon as 
practicable after a school receives information regarding an incident that may constitute 
maltreatment of a child in a school facility, the school shall inform the parent, legal 
guardian, or custodian of the child that an incident occurred that may constitute 
maltreatment of the child, when the incident occurred, and the nature of the conduct that 
may constitute maltreatment. 

C. Investigative Data 

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

HBA- 206



 

133 

Data collected by the school as part of an active investigation undertaken for the purpose 
of the commencement or defense of pending civil legal action, or which are retained in 
anticipation of a pending civil legal action are classified as protected nonpublic data in the 
case of data not on individuals, and confidential data in the case of data on individuals. 

1. The school may make any data classified as protected non-public or confidential 
pursuant to this subdivision accessible to any person, agency or the public if the 
school determines that such access will aid the law enforcement process, promote 
public health or safety, or dispel widespread rumor or unrest. 

2. A complainant has access to a statement he or she provided to the school. 

2.3.Parents or eligible students may have access to investigative data of which the 
student is the subject, but only to the extent the data is not inextricably intertwined 
with data about other school students, school employees, and/or attorney data as 
defined in Minn. Stat. § 13.393. 

3.4.Once a civil investigation becomes inactive, civil investigative data becomes public 
unless the release of the data would jeopardize another pending civil legal action, 
except for those portions of such data that are classified as not public data under 
state or federal law. Any civil investigative data presented as evidence in court or 
made part of a court record shall be public. For purposes of this provision, a civil 
investigation becomes inactive upon the occurrence of any of the following events: 

i. a decision by the school , or by the chief attorney for the school , not to 
pursue the civil legal action. However, such investigation may subsequently 
become active if the school or its attorney decides to renew the civil legal 
action; 

ii. the expiration of the time to file a complaint under the statute of limitations 
or agreement applicable to the civil legal action; or 

iii. the exhaustion or expiration of rights of appeal by either party to the civil 
legal action. 

5. A "pending civil legal action" for purposes of this subdivision is defined as 
including, but not limited to, judicial, administrative or arbitration proceedings. 

D. Chemical Abuse Records 

4. To the extent the school maintains records of the identity, diagnosis, prognosis, or 
treatment of any student which are maintained in connection with the performance of any 
drug abuse prevention function conducted, regulated, or directly or indirectly assisted by 
any department or agency of the United States, such records are classified as confidential 
and shall be disclosed only for the purposes and under the circumstances expressly 
authorized by law. 

X. DISCLOSURE OF SCHOOL RECORDS PRIOR TO EXCLUSION OR EXPULSION 
HEARING 

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or
numbering

HBA- 207



 

134 

At a reasonable time prior to any exclusion or expulsion hearing, the student and the student's 
parent or guardian or representative shall be given access to all school records pertaining to the 
student, including any tests or reports upon which the action proposed by the school may be 
based, pursuant to the Minnesota Pupil Fair Dismissal Act, Minn. Stat. § 121A.40, et seq. 

XI. DISCLOSURE OF DATA TO MILITARY RECRUITMENT OFFICERS 

A. The School will release the names, addresses, school email addresses, and home telephone 
numbers of secondary students in grades 11 and 12 to military recruiting officers and post-
secondary educational institutions within sixty (60) days after the date of the request unless 
a parent or eligible student has refused in writing to release this data to military recruiters 
pursuant to Paragraph C. below. 

B. Data released to military recruiting officers under this provision: 

1. May be used only for the purpose of providing information to students about 
military service, state and federal veterans' education benefits, and other career and 
educational opportunities provided by the military; and 

2. Cannot be further disseminated to any other person except personnel of the 
recruiting services of the armed forces; and 

2.3.Copying fees shall not be imposed..  

C. A parent or eligible student has the right to refuse the release of the name, address, email 
address, or home telephone number to military recruiting officers and post-secondary 
educational institutions. To refuse the release of the above information to military 
recruiting officers, a parent or eligible student must notify the PrincipalChief 
Administrative Officer, in writing, by September 10 each year. The written request must 
include the following information: 

1. Name of student and parent, as appropriate; 

2. Home address; 

3. Student's grade level; 

4. School presently attended by student; 

5. Parent's legal relationship to student, if applicable; 

6. Specific category or categories of information which are not to be released to 
military recruiters and post-secondary educational institutions; and 

7. Specific category or categories of information that are not to be released to the 
public, including military recruiters and post-secondary educational institutions. 

D. Annually, the school will provide public notice by any means that are reasonably likely to 
inform the parents and eligible students of their rights to refuse to release the names, 
addresses, and home phone numbers of secondary students in grades 11 and 12 without 
prior consent. 

HBA- 208



 

135 

E. A parent or eligible student's refusal to release the above information to military recruiting 
officers does not affect the school's release of directory information to the rest of the public, 
which includes military recruiting officers and post-secondary educational institutions. In 
order to make any directory information about a student private, the procedures contained 
in the RELEASE OF DIRECTORY INFORMATION “Release of Directory Information” 
section of this policy also must be followed. Accordingly, to the extent the school has 
designated the name, address, phone number, and grade level of students as directory 
information, absent a request from a parent or eligible student not to release such data, this 
information will be public data and accessible to members of the public, including military 
recruiting officers. 

XII. LIMITS ON REDISCLOSURE 

A. Redisclosure 

Consistent with the requirements herein, the school may only disclose personally 
identifiable information from the education records of a student on the condition that the 
party to whom the information is to be disclosed will not disclose the information to any 
other party without the prior written consent of the parent of the student or the eligible 
student, except that the officers, employees and agents of any party receiving personally 
identifiable information under this section may use the information, but only for the 
purposes for which the disclosure was made. 

B. Redisclosure Not Prohibited 

1. Subdivision A. of this section does not preclude the school from disclosing 
personally identifiable information under the DISCLOSURE OF EDUCATION 
RECORDS “Disclosure of Education Records” section of this policy with the 
understanding that the party receiving the information may make further 
disclosures of the information on behalf of the school provided: 

a. The disclosures meet the requirements of the DISCLOSURE OF 
EDUCATION RECORDSthat section of this policy; and 

b. The school has complied with the record-keeping requirements of the 
RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY; RECORD SECURITY; AND RECORD 
KEEPING “Responsible Authority; Record Security; and Record Keeping” 
section of this policy. 

2. Subdivision A. of this section does not apply to disclosures made pursuant to court 
orders or lawfully issued subpoenas or litigation, to disclosures of directory 
information, to disclosures to a parent or student, or to parents of dependent 
students or to disclosures concerning sex offenders and other individuals required 
to register under 42 U.S.C. § 14071. However, the school must provide notification 
if a redisclosure is made based upon a court order or lawfully issued subpoena.. 

C. Classification of Disclosed Data 

HBA- 209



 

136 

The information disclosed shall retain the same classification in the hands of the party 
receiving it as it had in the hands of the school. 

D. Notification 

The school shall, except for disclosures made pursuant to court orders or lawfully issued 
subpoenas, disclosure of directory information under the RELEASE OF DIRECTORY 
INFORMATION section of this policy, or disclosures to a parent or student, the school 
shall inform the party to whom a disclosure is made of the requirements set forth in this 
section. In the event that the Family Policy Compliance Office determines that a state or 
local educational authority, a federal agency headed by an official listed in 34 CFR § 
99.31(a)(3), or an authorized representative of a state or local educational authority or a 
federal agency headed by an official listed in § 99.31(a)(3), or a third party improperly 
rediscloses personally identifiable information from education records or fails to provide 
the required notification, the educational agency or institutionschool may not allow that 
third party access to personally identifiable information from education records for at least 
five years. 

XIII. RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY, RECORD SECURITY; AND RECORD KEEPING 

A. Responsible Authority 

The responsible authority shall be responsible for the maintenance and security of student 
records.  

B. Record Security 

The Charter SchoolPrincipal of each school subject to the supervision and control of the 
responsible authority shall be the records manager of the school, and shall have the duty 
of maintaining and securing the privacy and/or confidentiality of student records. 

C. Plan for Securing Student Records 

The Principal shall submit to the responsible authority a written plan for securing students 
records by September 1 of each school year. The written plan shall contain the following 
information: 

1. A description of records maintained; 

2. Titles and addresses of person(s) responsible for the security of student records; 

3. Location of student records, by category, in the buildings; 

4. Means of securing student records; and 

5. Procedures for access and disclosure. 

D. Review of Written Plan for Securing Student Records 

The responsible authority shall review the plans submitted pursuant to Paragraph C. of this 
section for compliance with the law, this policy and the various administrative policies of 
the school. The responsible authority shall then promulgate a chart incorporating the 
provisions of Paragraph C. that shall be attached to and become a part of this policy. 

HBA- 210



 

137 

E. Record-Keeping 

1. The charter school special education coordinatorPrincipal shall, for each request 
for and each disclosure of personally identifiable information from the education 
records of a student, maintain a record with the education records of the student 
which indicates:  

i. The parties who have requested or received personally identifiable 
information from the education records of the student; and 

ii. The legitimate interests these parties had in requesting or. obtaining the 
information; 

ii.iii. the names of the state and local educational authorities and federal officials 
and agencies listed in this policy that may make further disclosures of 
personally identifiable information from the student’s education records 
without consent. 

2. In the event the school discloses personally identifiable information from an 
education record of a student pursuant to Paragraph B. of the LIMITS ON 
REDISCLOSURE “limits on Redisclosure” section of this policy, the record of 
disclosure required under this section shall also include: 

i. the names of the additional parties to which the receiving party may disclose 
the information on behalf of the school ; and  

ii. the legitimate interests under the DISCLOSURE OF EDUCATION 
RECORDS “Disclosure of Education Records” section of this policy which 
each of the additional parties has in requesting or obtaining the information. 

3. Paragraph (1) of Record Keeping does not apply to requests by or disclosure to a 
parent of a student or an eligible student, disclosures pursuant to the written consent 
of a parent of a student or an eligible student, requests by or disclosures to other 
school officials under Paragraph B. 1 of the DISCLOSURE OF EDUCATION 
RECORDS“Disclosure of Education Records” section of this policy, to requests 
for disclosures of directory information under the RELEASE OF DIRECTORY 
INFORMATION section of this policy, or to a party seeking or receiving the 
records as directed by a Federal grand jury or other law enforcement subpoena and 
the issuing court or agency has ordered that the existence or the contents of the 
subpoena or the information provided in response to the subpoena not be disclosed 
or as directed by an ex parte court order obtained by the United States Attorney 
General (or designee not lower than an Assistant Attorney General) concerning 
investigations or prosecutions of an offense listed in 18 U.S.C. § 2332b(g)(5)(B) or 
an act of domestic or international terrorism.. 

4. The record of requests of disclosures may be inspected by: 

i. The parent of the student or the eligible student; 

HBA- 211



 

138 

ii. The school official or his or her assistants who are responsible for the 
custody of the records; and 

iii. The parties authorized by law to audit the record-keeping procedures of the 
school . 

5. The school shall record the following information when it discloses personally 
identifiable information from education records under the health or safety 
emergency exception: 

i. the articulable and significant threat to the health or safety of a student or 
other individual that formed the basis for the disclosure; and 

iii.ii. the parties to whom the school disclosed the information. 

5.6.The record of requests and disclosures shall be maintained with the education 
records of the student as long as the school maintains the student's education 
records. 

XIV. RIGHT TO INSPECT AND REVIEW EDUCATION RECORDS 

A. Parent of a Student,. an Eligible Student, or the Parent of an Eligible Student Who is Also 
a Dependent Student 

The school shall permit the parent of a student, an eligible student, or the parent of an 
eligible student who is also a dependent student who is or has been in attendance in the 
school to inspect or review the education records of the student, except those records which 
are made confidential by state or federal law or as otherwise provided in the DISCLOSURE 
OF PRIVATE RECORDS“Disclosure of Private Records” section of this policy. 

B. Response to Request for Access 

The school shall respond to any request pursuant to Subdivision A. of this section 
immediately, if possible, or within ten (10) days of the date of the request, excluding 
Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays. 

C. Right to Inspect and Review 

The right to inspect and review education records under Subdivision A. of this section 
includes: 

1. The right to a response from the school to reasonable requests for explanations and 
interpretations of records; and 

2. If circumstances effectively prevent the parent or eligible student from exercising 
the right to inspect and review the education records, the school shall provide the 
parent or eligible student with a copy of the records requested, or make other 
arrangements for the parent or eligible student to inspect and review the requested 
records. 

HBA- 212



 

139 

2.3.Nothing in this policy shall be construed as limiting the frequency of inspection of 
the education records of a student with a disability by the student’s parent or 
guardian or by the student upon the student reaching the age of majority. 

D. Form of Request 

Parents or eligible students shall submit to the school a written request to inspect education 
records which identify as precisely as possible the record or records he or she wishes to 
inspect. 

E. Collection of Student Records 

If a student's education records are maintained in more than one location, the responsible 
authority may collect copies of the records or the records themselves from the various 
locations so they may be inspected at one site. However, if the parent or eligible student 
wishes to inspect these records where they are maintained, the school shall attempt to 
accommodate those wishes. The parent or eligible student shall be notified of the time and 
place where the records may be inspected. 

F. Records Containing Information on More Than One Student 

If the education records of a student contain information on more than one student, the 
parent or eligible student may inspect and review or be informed of only the specific 
information that pertains to that student. 

G. Authority to Inspect or Review 

The school may presume that either parent of the student has authority to inspect or review 
the education records of a student unless the school has been provided with evidence that 
there is a legally binding instrument or a state law or court order governing such matters 
as marriage dissolution, separation or custody which provides to the contrary. 

H. Fees for Copies of Records 

1. The school shall charge a reasonable fee for providing photocopies or printed copies of 
records unless printing a copy is the only method to provide for the inspection of data. 
In determining the amount of the reasonable fee, the school shall consider the 
following: 

i. The cost of materials, including paper, used to provide the copies; 

ii. The cost of the labor required to prepare the copies; 

iii. Any schedule of standard copying charges established by the school in its 
normal course of operations; 

iv. Any special costs necessary to produce such copies from machine-based 
record-keeping systems, including but not limited to computers and 
microfilm systems; and 

v. Mailing costs. 

HBA- 213



 

140 

2. If 100 or fewer pages of black and white, letter or legal size paper copies are requested, 
actual costs shall not be used, and, instead, the charge shall be no more than 25 cents 
for each page copied. 

I.3. The cost of providing copies shall be borne by the parent or eligible student. 

J.4. The responsible authority, however, may not impose a fee for a copy of an education 
record made for a parent or eligible student if doing so would effectively prevent or, in 
the case of a student with a disability, impair, the parent or eligible student from 
exercising their right to inspect or review the student's education records. 

K. The school reserves the right to make amay charge a fee for copies such as of official 
transcripts it forwards to potential employers or post-secondary institutions for 
employment or admissions purposes. The fee for such copies and other copies 
forwarded to third parties with prior consent, as a convenience, will be from $1 to $15 
plus postage if that is involved. 

XV. REQUEST TO AMEND RECORDS; PROCEDURES TO CHALLENGE DATA 

A. Request to Amend Education Records 

The parent of a student or an eligible student who believes that information contained in 
the education records of the student is inaccurate, misleading or violates the privacy or 
other rights of the student may request that the school amend those records. 

1. The request shall be in writing, shall identify the item the requestor believes to be 
inaccurate, misleading or in violation of the privacy or other rights of the student, 
shall state the reason for this belief, and shall specify the correction the requestor 
wishes the school to make. The request shall be signed and dated by the requestor. 

2. The school shall decide whether to amend the education records of the student in 
accordance with the request within thirty (30) days a reasonable period of time after 
receiving the request. 

3. If the school decides to refuse to amend the education records of the student in 
accordance with the request, it shall inform the parent of the student or the eligible 
student of the refusal and advise the parent or eligible student of the right to a 
hearing under Subdivision B. of this section. 

B. Right to a Hearing 

If the school refuses to amend the education records of a student, the school, on request, 
shall provide an opportunity for a hearing in order to challenge the content of the student's 
education records to ensure that information in the education records of the student is not 
inaccurate, misleading, or otherwise in violation of the privacy or other rights of the 
student. A hearing shall be conducted in accordance with Subdivision C. of this section. 

1. If, as a result of the hearing, the school decides that the information is inaccurate, 
misleading, or otherwise in violation of the privacy or other rights of the student, it 

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style:
1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 
0.5" + Indent at:  0.75"

HBA- 214



 

141 

shall amend the education records of the student accordingly and so inform the 
parent of the student or the eligible student in writing. 

2. If, as a result of the hearing, the school decides that the information is not 
inaccurate, misleading, or otherwise in violation of the privacy or other rights of 
the student, it shall inform the parent or eligible student of the right to place a 
statement in the record commenting on the contested information in the record or 
stating why he or she disagrees with the decision of the school , or both. 

3. Any statement placed in the education records of the student under Subdivision B 
of this section shall: 

i. Be maintained by the school as part of the education records of the student 
so long as the record or contested portion thereof is maintained by the 
school; and 

ii. If the education records of the student, or the contested portion thereof, is 
disclosed by the school to any party, the explanation shall also be disclosed 
to that party. 

C. Conduct of Hearing 

1. The hearing shall be held within a reasonable period of time after the school has 
received the request, and the parent of the student or the eligible student shall be 
given notice of the date, place and time reasonably in advance of the hearing. 

2. Any individual, including an official of the school, who does not have a direct 
interest in the outcome of the hearing, may conduct the hearing. The school board  
attorney shall be in attendance to present the school board's position and advise the 
designated hearing officer on legal and evidentiary matters. 

3. The parent of the student or eligible student shall be afforded a full and fair 
opportunity for hearing to present evidence relative to the issues raised under 
Subdivisions A. and B. of this section and may be assisted or represented by 
individuals of his or her choice at his or her own expense, including an attorney. 

4. The school shall make a decision in writing within a reasonable period of time after 
the conclusion of the hearing. The decision shall be based solely on evidence 
presented at the hearing and shall include a summary of evidence and reasons for 
the decision. 

D. Appeal 

The final decision of the designated hearing officer may be appealed in accordance with 
the applicable provisions of the Minn. Stat. Ch. 14 relating to contested cases. 

XVI. PROBLEMS ACCESSING DATA 

A. The data practices compliance official is the designated employee to whom persons may 
direct questions or concerns regarding problems in obtaining access to data or other data 
practices problems. 

HBA- 215



 

142 

B. Data practices compliance official means the Special education coordinator of the Charter 
School.Chief Administrative Officer. 

B.C. Any request by an individual with a disability for reasonable modifications of the 
school’s policies or procedures for purposes of accessing records shall be made to the data 
practices compliance official. 

XVII. COMPLAINTS FOR NONCOMPLIANCE WITH FERPA 

A. Where to File Complaints 

Complaints regarding alleged violations of rights accorded parents and eligible students by 
20 U.S.C. {1232gFERPA, and the rules promulgated there under, shall be submitted in 
writing to the Family Policy Compliance Office Student Privacy Policy Office, U.S. 
Department of Education, 400 Maryland Avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20202. 

B. Content of Complaint 

A complaint filed pursuant to this section must contain specific allegations of fact giving 
reasonable cause to believe that a violation of 20 U.S.C. 51232gFERPA and the rules 
promulgated there under has occurred. 

XVIII. WAIVER 

A parent or eligible student may waive any of his or her rights provided herein pursuant to 20 
U.S.C. 51232gFERPA. A waiver shall not be valid unless in writing and signed by the parent or 
eligible student. The school may not require such a waiver. 

XIX. ANNUAL NOTIFICATION OF RIGHTS 

A. Contents of Notice 

The school shall give parents of students currently in attendance and eligible students 
currently in attendance annual notice by such means as are reasonably likely to inform the 
parents and eligible students of the following: 

1. That the parent or eligible student has a right to inspect and review the student's 
education records and the procedure for inspecting and reviewing education records; 

2. That the parent or eligible student has a right to seek amendment of the student's 
education records to ensure that those records are not inaccurate, misleading, or 
otherwise in violation of the student's privacy or other rights and the procedure for 
requesting amendment of records; 

3. That the parent or eligible student has a right to consent to disclosures of personally 
identifiable information contained in the student's education records,  except to the 
extent that federal and state law and the regulations promulgated there under 
authorize disclosure without consent; 

HBA- 216



 

143 

4. That the parent or eligible student has a right to file a complaint with the U.S. 
Department of Education regarding an alleged failure by the school to comply with 
the requirements of 20 U.S.C. *1232gFERPA, and the rules promulgated there 
under; 

5. The criteria for determining who constitutes a school official and what constitutes a 
legitimate educational interest for purposes of disclosing education records to other 
school officials whom the school has determined to have legitimate educational 
interests; and 

6. That the school forwards education records on request to a school in which a student 
seeks or intends to enroll or is already enrolled as long as the disclosure is for 
purposes related to the student’s enrollment or transfer and that such records may 
include including suspension and expulsion records pursuant to the federal Every 
Student Succeeds ActNo Child Left Behind Act and, if applicable, a student's history 
of violent behavior. 

B. Notification to Parents of Students Having a Primary Home Language Other Than English 

The school shall provide for the need to effectively notify parents of students identified as 
having a primary or home language other than English. 

C. Notification to Parents or Eligible Students Who are Disabled 

The school shall provide for the need to effectively notify parents or eligible students 
identified as disabled. 

XX. DESTRUCTION AND RETENTION OF RECORDS 

State and federal law shall control destruction and retention of records by the school. 

XXI. COPIES OF POLICY 

Parents and eligible students may obtain copies of this policy at the Chief Administrative Officer’s 
office.  
 

HBA- 217



 

95 

23. Bullying Prohibition Policy (MSMA 514) 
 
Adopted by Best Academy Board of Directors: September 22, 2011 and Amended October 26, 
2013 
 
 
I. REVIEW OF POLICY 

A safe and civil environment is needed for students to learn and attain high academic standards 
and to promote healthy human relationships. Bullying, like other violent or disruptive behavior, is 
conduct that interferes with students' ability to learn and teachers' ability to educate students in a 
safe environment. Best Academy cannot monitor the activities of students at all times and 
eliminate all incidents of bullying between students, particularly when students are not under the 
direct supervision of school personnel. However, to the extent such conduct affects the educational 
environment of Best Academy and the rights and welfare of its students and is within the control 
of the school in its normal operations, it is the school's intent to prevent bullying and to take action 
to investigate, respond, remediate, and discipline those acts of bullying which have not been 
successfully prevented. The purpose of this policy is to assist the school in its goal of preventing 
and responding to acts of bullying, intimidation, violence, and other similar disruptive behavior. 

II. GENERAL STATEMENT OF POLICY 

A. An act of bullying, by either an individual student or a group of students, is expressly 
prohibited on school property or at school-related functions and activities, or on school 
transportation. Bullying by the use of electronic technology and communications on the 
school premises, during the school functions or activities, on the school transportation, or 
on the school computers, networks, forums, and mailing lists is prohibited. Additionally, 
bullying by use of electronic technology and communications off the school premises to 
the extent such use substantially and materially disrupts student learning or the school 
environment is also prohibited. 

B. A school-aged child who voluntarily participates in a public school activity, such as a 
cocurricular or extracurricular activity, is subject to the policy provisions applicable to the 
public school students participating in the activity. 

C. This policy applies not only to students who directly engage in an act of bullying but also 
to students who, by their indirect behavior, condone or support another student's act of 
bullying. This policy also applies to any student whose conduct at any time or in any place 
constitutes bullying that interferes with or obstructs the mission or operations of the school 
district or the safety or welfare of the student, other students, or employees, or materially 
and substantially interferes with a student’s educational opportunities or performance or 
ability to participate in school functions or activities or receive school benefits, services, 
or privileges. This policy also applies to an act of cyberbullying regardless of whether such 
act is committed on or off school property and/or with or without the use of school 
resources. This policy also applies to sexual exploitation. 

HBA- 218



 

96 

D. Malicious and sadistic conduct involving race, color, creed, national origin, sex, age, 
marital status, status with regard to public assistance, disability, religion, sexual 
harassment, and sexual orientation and gender identity as defined in Minn. Stat., chapter 
363A is prohibited. This prohibition applies to students, independent contractors, teachers, 
administrators, and other school personnel. Malicious and sadistic conduct and sexual 
exploitation by a school staff member, independent contractor, or enrolled student against 
a staff member, independent contractor, or student that occurs as described above is 
prohibited. 

E. No teacher, administrator, volunteer, contractor, or other employee of the school shall 
permit, condone, or tolerate bullying. 

F. Apparent permission or consent by a student being bullied does not lessen the prohibitions 
contained in this policy. 

G. Retaliation against a victim, good faith reporter, or a witness of bullying is prohibited.  

H. False accusations or reports of bullying against another student are prohibited. 

I. A person who engages in an act of bullying, reprisal, retaliation, or false reporting of 
bullying or permits, condones, or tolerates bullying shall be subject to discipline for that 
act in accordance with the school's policies and procedures. The school may take into 
account the following factors: 

1. The developmental and maturity levels of the parties involved; 

2. The levels of harm, surrounding circumstances, and nature of the behavior; 

3. Past incidences or past or continuing patterns of behavior; 

4. The relationship between the parties involved; and 

5. The context in which the alleged incidents occurred.  

Consequences for students who commit prohibited acts of bullying may range from 
positive behavioral interventions up to and including suspension and/or expulsion.  

Consequences for employees who permit, condone, or tolerate bullying or engage in an act 
of reprisal or intentional false reporting of bullying may result in disciplinary action up to 
and including termination or discharge. 

Consequences for other individuals engaging in prohibited acts of bullying may include, 
but not be limited to, exclusion from school property and events and/or termination of 
services and/or contracts. 

J. The school will act to investigate all complaints of bullying reported to the school and will 
discipline or take appropriate action against any student, teacher, administrator, volunteer, 
contractor, or other employee of the school who is found to have violated this policy. 

III. DEFINITIONS 

For purposes of this policy, the definitions included in this section apply. 

HBA- 219



 

97 

A. "Bullying" means intimidating, threatening, abusive, or harming conduct that is objectively 
offensive and:  

1. an actual or perceived imbalance of power exists between the student engaging in 
the prohibited conduct and the target of the prohibited conduct, and the conduct is 
repeated or forms a pattern; or  

2. materially and substantially interferes with a student’s educational opportunities or 
performance or ability to participate in school functions or activities or receive 
school benefits, services, or privileges. 

B. The term “bullying” specifically includes cyberbullying, malicious and sadistic conduct, 
and sexual exploitation.  “Cyberbullying” means bullying using technology or other 
electronic communication, including, but not limited to, a transfer of a sign, signal, writing, 
image, sound, or data, including a post on a social network Internet website or forum, 
transmitted through a computer, cell phone, or other electronic device. The term applies to 
prohibited conduct which occurs on school premises, on school property, at school 
functions or activities, on school transportation, or on school computers, networks, forums, 
and mailing lists, or off school premises to the extent that it substantially and materially 
disrupts student learning or the school environment. 

C. "Immediately" means as soon as possible but in no event longer than 24 hours. 
D. “Intimidating, threatening, abusive, or harming conduct” means, but is not limited to, 

conduct that: 
1.  causes physical harm to a student or a student’s property or causes a student to be 

in reasonable fear of harm to person or property;  
2. violates a student’s reasonable expectation of privacy, defames a student, or 

constitutes intentional infliction of emotional distress against a student under 
Minnesota common law; or 

3. is directed at any student or students, including those based on a person’s actual or 
perceived race, ethnicity, color, creed, religion, national origin, immigration status, 
sex, marital status, familial status, socioeconomic status, physical appearance, 
sexual orientation including gender identity and expression, academic status related 
to student performance, disability, or status with regard to public assistance, age, or 
any additional characteristic defined in the Minnesota Human Rights Act (MHRA). 
However, prohibited conduct need not be based on any particular characteristic 
defined in this paragraph or the MHRA. 

E. ”Malicious and sadistic conduct” means actions that intend to cause harm by intentionally 
injuring another without just cause or reason or engaging in extreme or excessive cruelty 
or delighting in cruelty that creates a hostile learning environment. 

F. "On school property, at school-related functions, or on school transportation" means all 
school buildings, school grounds, and school property or property immediately adjacent to 
school grounds, school bus stops, school buses, school vehicles, school contracted vehicles, 
or any other vehicles approved for school purposes, the area of entrance or departure from 
school grounds, premises, or events, and all school-related functions, school-sponsored 
activities, events, or trips. School property also may mean a student's walking route to or 
from school for purposes of attending school or school-related functions, activities, or 

HBA- 220



 

98 

events. While prohibiting bullying at these locations and events, the school does not 
represent that it will provide supervision or assume liability at these locations and events. 

G. “Prohibited conduct” means bullying, cyberbullying, malicious and sadistic conduct, 
sexual exploitation, or retaliation or reprisal for asserting, alleging, reporting, or providing 
information about such conduct or knowingly making a false report about prohibited 
conduct. 

H. “Remedial response” means a measure to stop and correct prohibited conduct, prevent 
prohibited conduct from recurring, and protect, support, and intervene on behalf of a 
student who is the target or victim of prohibited conduct. 

I. “Student” means a student enrolled in the school. 

IV. REPORTING PROCEDURE 

A. Any person who believes he or she has been the target or victim of bullying or any person 
with knowledge or belief of conduct that may constitute bullying shall report the alleged 
acts immediately to a school official designated by this policy. A student may report 
bullying anonymously, but action may not be taken against an alleged perpetrator based 
solely on an anonymous report. 

B. The school encourages the reporting party or complainant to use the report form available 
from the Chief Administrative Officer or available from the school office, but oral reports 
shall be considered complaints as well. 

C. The Principal is the person responsible for receiving reports of bullying or other prohibited 
conduct at the building level. Any person may report bullying or other prohibited conduct 
directly to the school human rights officer or the Chief Administrative Officer. If the 
complaint involves the report taker, the complaint shall be made or filed directly with the 
Chief Administrative Officer or the charter school human rights officer by the reporting 
party or complainant. 

D. A teacher, school administrator, volunteer, contractor, or other school employee shall be 
particularly alert to possible situations, circumstances, or events that might include 
bullying. Any such person who receives a report of, observes, or has other knowledge or 
belief of conduct that may constitute bullying shall inform the Principal immediately. 
School personnel who fail to inform the Principal of conduct that may constitute bullying 
or other prohibited conduct or who fail to make reasonable efforts to address and resolve 
the bullying or prohibited conduct in a timely manner may be subject to disciplinary action. 

E. Reports of bullying are classified as private educational and/or personnel data and/or 
confidential investigative data and will not be disclosed except as permitted by law. 

F. Submission of a good faith complaint or report of bullying will not affect the complainant's 
or reporter's future employment, grades, or work assignments, or educational or work 
environment. 

G. The school will respect the privacy of the complainant(s), the individual(s) against whom 
the complaint is filed, and the witnesses as much as possible, consistent with the school's 

HBA- 221



 

99 

obligation to investigate, take appropriate action, and comply with any legal disclosure 
obligations. 

V. SCHOOL ACTION 

A. Upon receipt of a complaint or report of bullying, the school shall undertake or authorize 
an investigation by school officials or a third party designated by the school. 

B. The school may take immediate steps, at its discretion, to protect the complainant, reporter, 
students, or others pending completion of an investigation of bullying, consistent with 
applicable law. 

C. The alleged perpetrator of the bullying or other prohibited conduct shall be allowed the 
opportunity to present a defense during the investigation or prior to the imposition of 
discipline or other remedial responses. 

D. Upon completion of the investigation that determines bullying or other prohibited conduct 
occurred, the school will take appropriate action. Such action may include, but is not 
limited to, warning, suspension, exclusion, expulsion, transfer, remediation, termination, 
or discharge. Disciplinary consequences will be sufficiently severe to try to deter violations 
and to appropriately discipline prohibited behavior. School action taken for violation of 
this policy will be consistent with the requirements of applicable statutory authority, 
including the Minnesota Pupil Fair Dismissal Act; school district policies; and regulations. 
Remedial responses to the bullying or other prohibited conduct shall be tailored to the 
particular incident and nature of the conduct and shall take into account the factors 
specified in this policy. 

E. The school is not authorized to disclose to a victim private educational or personnel data 
regarding an alleged perpetrator who is a student or employee of the school. School 
officials will notify the parent(s) or guardian(s) of students involved in a bullying incident 
and the remedial action taken, to the extent permitted by law, based on a confirmed report. 

F. In order to prevent or respond to bullying or prohibited conduct committed by or directed 
against a child with a disability, the school shall, when determined appropriate by the 
child’s individualized education program (IEP) team or Section 504 team, allow the child’s 
IEP or Section 504 plan to be drafted to address the skills and proficiencies the child needs 
as a result of the child’s disability to allow the child to respond to or not to engage in 
bullying or other prohibited conduct. 

VI. REPRISAL OR RETALIATION 

A. The school will discipline or take appropriate action against any student, teacher, 
administrator, volunteer, contractor, or other employee of the school who retaliates or 
commits an act of reprisal against any person who makes a good faith report of alleged 
bullying or prohibited conduct, or against any person who provides information about 
bullying or prohibited conduct, or who testifies, assists, or participates in an investigation, 
or against any person who testifies, assists, or participates in a proceeding or hearing 
relating to such bullying. Retaliation includes, but is not limited to, any form of 

HBA- 222



 

100 

intimidation, reprisal, harassment, or intentional disparate treatment. Disciplinary 
consequences will be sufficiently severe to deter violations and to appropriately discipline 
the individual(s) who engaged in the prohibited conduct. Remedial responses to the 
prohibited conduct shall be tailored to the particular incident and nature of the conduct and 
shall take into account the factors specified in this policy. 

VII. TRAINING AND EDUCATION 

A. The school shall discuss this policy with school personnel and volunteers and provide 
appropriate training to school personnel regarding this policy. The school shall establish a 
training cycle for school personnel to occur during a period not to exceed every three school 
years. Newly employed school personnel must receive the training within the first year of 
their employment with the school. The school or a school administrator may accelerate the 
training cycle or provide additional training based on a particular need or circumstance. 
This policy shall be included in employee handbooks, training materials, and publications 
on school rules, procedures, and standards of conduct, which materials shall also be used 
to publicize this policy. 

B. The school shall require ongoing professional development, consistent with Minn. Stat. § 
122A.60, to build the skills of all school personnel who regularly interact with students to 
identify, prevent, and appropriately address bullying and other prohibited conduct. Such 
professional development includes, but is not limited to, the following: 

1. Developmentally appropriate strategies both to prevent and to immediately and 
effectively intervene to stop prohibited conduct 

2. The complex dynamics affecting a perpetrator, target, and witnesses to prohibited 
conduct; 

3. Research on prohibited conduct, including specific categories of students at risk for 
perpetrating or being the target or victim of bullying or other prohibited conduct in 
school; 

4. The incidence and nature of cyberbullying; and 

5. Internet safety and cyberbullying. 

C. The school annually will provide education and information to students regarding bullying, 
including information regarding this policy prohibiting bullying, the harmful effects of 
bullying, and other applicable initiatives to prevent bullying and other prohibited conduct. 

D. The administration of the school is directed to implement programs and other initiatives to 
prevent bullying, to respond to bullying in a manner that does not stigmatize the target or 
victim, and to make resources or referrals to resources available to targets or victims of 
bullying. 

E. The administration is encouraged to provide developmentally appropriate instruction and 
is directed to review programmatic instruction to determine if adjustments are necessary to 
help students identify and prevent or reduce bullying and other prohibited conduct, to value 
diversity in school and society, to develop and improve students’ knowledge and skills for 

HBA- 223



 

101 

solving problems, managing conflict, engaging in civil discourse, and recognizing, 
responding to, and reporting bullying or other prohibited conduct, and to make effective 
prevention and intervention programs available to students. 

The administration must establish strategies for creating a positive school climate and use 
evidence-based social-emotional learning to prevent and reduce discrimination and other 
improper conduct. 

The administration is encouraged, to the extent practicable, to take such actions as it may 
deem appropriate to accomplish the following: 

1. Engage all students in creating a safe and supportive school environment; 

2. Partner with parents and other community members to develop and implement 
prevention and intervention programs; 

3. Engage all students and adults in integrating education, intervention, and other 
remedial responses into the school environment; 

4. Train student bystanders to intervene in and report incidents of bullying and other 
prohibited conduct to the schools’ primary contact person; 

5. Teach students to advocate for themselves and others; 

6. Prevent inappropriate referrals to special education of students who may engage in 
bullying or other prohibited conduct; and 

7. Foster student collaborations that, in turn, foster a safe and supportive school 
climate. 

F. The school may implement violence prevention and character development education 
programs to prevent or reduce policy violations. Such programs may offer instruction on 
character education including, but not limited to, character qualities such as attentiveness, 
truthfulness, respect for authority, diligence, gratefulness, self-discipline, patience, 
forgiveness, respect for others, peacemaking, and resourcefulness. 

G. The school shall inform affected students and their parents of rights they may have under 
state and federal data practices laws to obtain access to data related to an incident and their 
right to contest the accuracy or completeness of the data. The school may accomplish this 
requirement by inclusion of all or applicable parts of its protection and privacy of pupil 
records policy in the student handbook. 

VIII. NOTICE 

A. The school will give annual notice of this policy to students, parents or guardians, and staff, 
and this policy shall appear in the student handbook. 

B. This policy must be conspicuously posted throughout each school building and in the 
administrative and main offices of the school. 

C. This policy must be distributed to each school employee and independent contractor at the 
time of hiring or contracting. 

HBA- 224



 

102 

D. Notice of the rights and responsibilities of students and their parents under this policy must 
be included in the student discipline policy distributed to parents at the beginning of each 
school year. 

E. This policy shall be available to all parents and other school community members in an 
electronic format in the language appearing on the school’s website. 

F. The school must develop a process for discussing this policy with students, parents of 
students, independent contractors, and school employees. 

G. The school shall provide an electronic copy of its most recently amended policy to the 
Minnesota Commissioner of Education. 

IX. POLICY REVIEW 

To the extent practicable, the school board shall annually review and revise this policy.  The policy 
shall be made consistent with Minn. Stat. §§ 121A.031 and 121A.0312 and other applicable law. 

 
  

HBA- 225



Exhibit H: Harvest Best Academy Environmental Education Goals 

EE Performance Indicator 1: Awareness 

1. 70% of students at Harvest Best Academy have the awareness, or are increasing their
awareness, of the relationship between the environment and human life as measured by
curriculum-based measures across the contract period.

EE Performance Indicator 2: Knowledge 

2. 70% of students at Harvest Best Academy have the knowledge, or are increasing their
knowledge, of human and natural systems and processes as measured by curriculum-based
measures across the contract period.

EE Performance Indicator 3: Attitudes 

3. 70% of students at Harvest Best Academy have an attitude, or are increasing their attitude
of, appreciation and concern for the environment as measured by curriculum-based
measures across the contract period.

EE Performance Indicator 4: Skills 

4. 70% of students at Harvest Best Academy have or are increasing their problem solving and
critical thinking skills as it relates to the environment and human life as measured by
curriculum-based measures across the contract period.

EE Performance Indicator 5: Action 

5. 70% of students at Harvest Best Academy demonstrate the capacity, or are increasing their
capacity, to work individually and collectively toward sustaining a healthy natural
environment as measured by curriculum-based measures across the contract period.

The school will develop an Environmental Literacy Plan (ELP) that will specify the curriculum-
based measures. The ELP will be submitted to Osprey Wilds annually no later than September 1 for 
the current school year and is subject to approval by Osprey Wilds. If the ELP does not satisfactorily 
meet Osprey Wilds’ expectations for environmental education as determined by Osprey Wilds, the 
ELP will need to be revised until such expectations are met. 

HBA- 226


	Harvest Best Academy Board Packet 5.29.24.pdf
	Harvest Best Academy Agenda 5.29.24
	BEST April 2024 Financial Report.pdf
	Financials - Dashboard
	Financials - Balance Sheet
	Financials - Rev Exp Stmt
	Financials - Cash Flow Summary

	BEST April 2024 Supplemental Information
	supp info cover page- April 2024
	Detail Payment Register By Ven- April 2024
	Receipt Listing Report with Det by batch- April 2024
	Journal Entry Listing by batch- April 2024

	Chronically Absent Analysis FY24
	Slide Number 1

	NWEA Results 2021_24 - Math Spring 23-24
	NWEA Results 2021_24 - Rdg Spring 23-24
	School System Accountability policy (1)
	School Meals policy (1)
	School Curriculum and Instruction Goals policy (1)
	Employment Background Check policy (1)
	Credit Card Policy (1)
	Curriculum Development policy (1)
	Public Data Policy (1)
	Harvest Best Revised Policies (first batch)  RRM Rev (2)
	B. Six-week Leave
	A. Instruction
	F. School and Community Advisory Team

	Board Policy Manual 1 5.23.24

	Harvest Best Academy Board Minutes 4.23.24
	HBA_Exhibit H_EE Goals_Updated



